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o990

Department of the Treasury
Intemal Revenue Service

Return of Organization Exempt From Income Tax

Under section 501(c), 527, or 4947(a)(1) of the Internal Revenue Code (except private
foundations)
B Do not enter Social Security numbers on this form as 1t may be made public By law, the IRS
generally cannot redact the information on the form
Bk Information about Form 990 and its instructions i1s at www.IRS.gov/form990

OMB No 1545-0047

A For the 2013 calendar year, or tax year beginning 10-01-2013

B Check If applicable
I_ Address change

|_ Name change
I_ Initial return

|_ Terminated

I_ Amended return

|_ Application pending

, 2013, and ending_j 09-30-2014

2013

Open to Public

Inspection

C Name of organization
BAPTIST MEDICAL CENTER OF NASSAU INC

Doing Business As
BMC NASSAU

59-3234721

D Employer identification number

Number and street (or P O box if mail i1s not delivered to street address)| Room/suite
3563 Philips Hwy Bldg F Ste 608
Attn Mike Lee

E Telephone number

(904)202-1797

City or town, state or province, country, and ZIP or foreign postal code
Jacksonville, FL 32207

G Gross recelpts $ 67,498,288

F Name and address of principal officer H(a) Is this a group return for
A HUGH GREENE subordinates?

841 Prudential Dr Aetna Bld 1601

Jacksonville, FL 32207 H(b) Are all subordinates

included?

I Tax-exempt status

¥ s501(c)(3) [~ 501(c)( )M (imsertno) [ 4947(a)(1) or [ 527

J Website:» WWWBAPTISTIJAXCOM

[T Yes ¥ No
[~ Yes[ No

If "No," attach a list (see Instructions)

H(c) Group exemption number &

K Form of organization

|7 Corporation |_ Trust |_ Association |_ Other = L Year of formation 1994

M State of legal domicile FL

m Summary
1 Briefly describe the organization’s mission or most significant activities
CONTINUE THE HEALING MINISTRY OF CHRIST BY PROVIDING ACCESSIBLE, QUALITY HEALTHCARE SERVICES AT A
REASONABLE COSTIN AN ATMOSPHERE THAT FOSTERS RESPECT AND COMPASSION
g
=
% 2 Check this box M If the organization discontinued its operations or disposed of more than 25% of its net assets
&
j 3 Number of voting members of the governing body (Part VI, line 1a) 3 13
x 4 Number of Independent voting members of the governing body (Part VI, linelb) . . . . . 4 9
g 5 Total number of Individuals employed in calendar year 2013 (Part V, line 2a) 5 478
-8 6 Total number of volunteers (estimate If necessary) 6 183
7aTotal unrelated business revenue from Part VIII, column (C),line12 . . . . . . . . 7a 12,479
b Net unrelated business taxable income from Form 990-T,line34 . . . . . . .+ . . 7b 0
Prior Year Current Year
8 Contributions and grants (Part VIII,linelh) . . . . . .. . . . 0 94,464
% 9 Program service revenue (Part VIII, line 2g) 61,425,294 65,939,119
% 10 Investment income (Part VIII, column (A), ines 3,4, and 7d ) 809,832 802,355
= 11 Other revenue (Part VIII, column (A), ines 5,6d,8c,9¢c,10c,and 11e) 2,259,998 662,350
12 Total revenue—add lines 8 through 11 (must equal Part VIII, column (A), line
12) T T T 64,495,124 67,498,288
13 Grants and similar amounts paid (Part IX, column (A), lines 1-3) 33,295 46,125
14 Benefits paid to or for members (Part IX, column (A),line4) . . . . . 0 0
15 Salaries, other compensation, employee benefits (Part IX, column (A), lines
$ 5-10) 24,284,829 24,145,806
% 16a Professional fundraising fees (PartIX, column (A), line 11e) . . . . . 0 0
E b Total fundraising expenses (Part IX, column (D), line 25) (Y
17 Other expenses (PartIX, column (A), lines 11a-11d,11f-24e) 24,160,745 26,250,083
18 Total expenses Add lines 13-17 (must equal PartIX, column (A), line 25) 48,478,869 50,442,014
19 Revenue less expenses Subtractline 18 from line 12 16,016,255 17,056,274
wd Beginning of Current End of Year
E§ Year
33 20 Total assets (Part X, line 16) 97,608,635 110,049,071
EE 21 Total habilities (Part X, line 26) 10,273,516 10,649,621
=3 22 Net assets or fund balances Subtractline 21 from line 20 87,335,119 99,399,450

Signature Block

Under penalties of perjury, I declare that I have examined this return, including accompanying schedules and statements, and to the best of
my knowledge and belief, it Is true, correct, and complete Declaration of preparer (other than officer) is based on all information of which
preparer has any knowledge

’ | 2015-07-20
Sign Signature of officer Date
Here SCOTT WOOTEN SVP & CFO
Type or prnint name and title
Pnnt/Type preparer's name Preparer's signature Date Check |_ I PTIN

- self-employed
Paid Fim's name Firm's EIN b=
Preparer
Use Only Firm's address b Phone no

May the IRS discuss this return with the preparer shown above? (see Iinstructions)

[TYes[ No

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the separate instructions.

Cat No 11282Y

Form 990 (2013)



Form 990 (2013) Page 2
m Statement of Program Service Accomplishments

Check If Schedule O contains a response or note to any lineinthis PartIII . . . . . + .+ « + .« .+« . . I

1

Briefly describe the organization’s mission

CONTINUE THE HEALING MINISTRY OF CHRIST BY PROVIDING ACCESSIBLE, QUALITY HEALTHCARE SERVICES AT A
REASONABLE COSTIN AN ATMOSPHERE THAT FOSTERS RESPECT AND COMPASSION

Did the organization undertake any significant program services during the year which were not listed on
the prior Form 990 0r 990-EZ? . . + v & o« o« wwe e e e e e [T Yes ¥ No

If "Yes," describe these new services on Schedule O

Did the organization cease conducting, or make significant changes in how it conducts, any program
SEIVICES? v v v e e e e e e e e e e [~ Yes [ No

If "Yes," describe these changes on Schedule O
Describe the organization’s program service accomplishments for each of its three largest program services, as measured by

expenses Section 501(c)(3)and 501(c)(4) organizations are required to report the amount of grants and allocations to others,
the total expenses, and revenue, If any, for each program service reported

(Code ) (Expenses $ 47,911,361  including grants of $ 46,125 ) (Revenue $ 66,264,533 )

BAPTIST MEDICAL CENTER OF NASSAU, INC (BMCN) IS A HIGHLY ADVANCED, EXTREMELY WELL-EQUIPPED COMMUNITY HOSPITAL ON AMELIA ISLAND THAT
PROVIDES A FULL SPECTRUM OF INPATIENT AND OUTPATIENT SERVICES AND 24-HOUR EMERGENCY CARE TO COASTAL COMMUNITIES IN NORTHEAST FLORIDA
AND SOUTHEAST GEORGIA BMCN IS AN ACCREDITED CHEST PAIN CENTER, HAS EARNED MAGNET RECOGNITION FOR EXCELLENCE IN PATIENT CARE, AND OFFERS
MANY ADVANCED SERVICES AND TECHNOLOGIES NOT TYPICALLY SEEN IN A COMMUNITY HOSPITAL, INCLUDING A 64-SLICE CT, DIGITAL MAMMOGRAPHY AND A
FULL-TIME HOSPITALIST PROGRAM BMCN WAS ONE OF THE FIRST COMMUNITY HOSPITALS IN THE NATION TO CONVERT TO AN ELECTRONIC MEDICAL RECORD
SYSTEM ALL PATIENTS ARE CARED FOR IN THE STATE-OF-THE-ART BERKMAN BUILDING, WHICH OFFERS 48 PRIVATE PATIENT SUITES INCLUDING INTENSIVE
CARE BMCN HAS A BUSY MATERNITY DEPARTMENT, DELIVERING 532 BABIES DURING THE PAST FISCAL YEAR INPATIENT PEDIATRIC CARE IS PROVIDED BY
WOLFSON CHILDREN'S HOSPITAL IN JACKSONVILLE, OUR SISTER HOSPITAL IN BAPTIST HEALTH SYSTEM, INC (BHS), AND THE ONLY PEDIATRIC SPECIALTY
HOSPITAL IN THE AREA THE MEDICAL STAFF INCLUDES HIGHLY TRAINED PHYSICIANS IN 24 DIFFERENT SPECIALTIES WHO PRACTICE LOCALLY, AND AS PART OF
BHS, BMCN HAS ACCESS TO MANY ADDITIONAL SPECIALIZED PHYSICIANS, SERVICES, AND RESOURCES WHEN NEEDED DURING THE FISCAL YEAR, THERE WERE
478 EMPLOYEES, 54 BEDS, 3,184 ADMISSIONS ACCOUNTING FOR 11,030 PATIENT DAYS, AND 28,207 EMERGENCY ROOM VISITS AS PART OF BHS, THE REGION'S
ONLY COMMUNITY-OWNED, FAITH-BASED HEALTHCARE SYSTEM, BMCN IS COMMITTED TO IMPROVING THE HEALTH OF EVERYONE IN ITS COMMUNITY,
REGARDLESS OF THEIR ABILITY TO PAY BMCN PROVIDED THE FOLLOWING UNCOMPENSATED CARE AND COMMUNITY BENEFIT FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED
SEPTEMBER 30, 2014 (1) CHARITY CARE, $2 8 MILLION, (2) UNREIMBURSED MEDICARE COSTS, $3 3 MILLION, AND (3) SPECIFIC COMMUNITY PROGRAMS, $95
THOUSAND FOR A TOTAL OF $6 1 MILLION OF UNCOMPENSATED CARE AND COMMUNITY BENEFIT BMCN'S PRIMARY FOCUS IS ADDRESSING UNMET HEALTH
NEEDS, PARTICULARLY AMONG VULNERABLE POPULATIONS WHO HAVE LIMITED RESOURCES AND ACCESS TO HEALTH CARE BMCN HAS GONE BEYOND THE
DELIVERY OF ESSENTIAL HEAL CARE TO IMPROVE THE LIVES OF INDIVIDUALS AND THE OVERALL QUALITY OF LIFE IN OUR REGION BAPTIST HEALTH'S COMMUNITY
HEALTH COMMITTEE GUIDES THE COMMUNITY HEALTH EFFORTS THIS COMMITTEE PROVIDES STRATEGIC DIRECTION RELATED TO COMMUNITY HEALTH
ACTIVITIES AND ENSURES FOCUS ON KEY PRIORITIES THAT ALIGN WITH BAPTIST HEALTH'S MISSION A CORNERSTONE OF OUR COMMITMENT TO THE COMMUNITY
IS CARING FOR THE HEALTH OF VULNERABLE, UNINSURED AND UNDERSERVED PEOPLE AMONG US ONE OF BMCN'S GUIDING PRINCIPLES OF COMMUNITY HEALTH
IS TO COLLABORATE WITH OTHER LOCAL ORGANIZATIONS TO LEVERAGE OUR COLLECTIVE EXPERTISE AND STRENGTH FOR THE HEALTH BENEFITS OF THE
COMMUNITY THIS COLLABORATIVE APPROACH HELPS ENSURE EFFICIENCY AND AVOIDS DUPLICATION OF EFFORT, RESULTING IN ENHANCEMENT OF THE LIVES OF
AREA RESIDENTS AT EVERY LIFE STAGE AND INCOME LEVEL BMCN COMMUNITY HEALTH PRIORITIES CURRENTLY INCLUDE (1) INCREASING ACCESS TO CARE FOR
MEDICALLY UNDERSERVED PEOPLE, (2) PREVENTING AND MANAGING CHRONIC DISEASES, (3) ASSISTING VICTIMS OF DOMESTIC VIOLENCE, AND (4) HELPING OUR
CHILDREN AND YOUTH BMCN, INDIVIDUALLY AND THROUGH ITS RELATED AFFILIATE, SOUTHERN BAPTIST HOSPITAL OF FLORIDA, INC , PROVIDED THE FOLLOWING
CHARITABLE DONATIONS TO THE NASSAU COUNTY COMMUNITY $65 THOUSAND DOLLARS FOR NASSAU COUNTY COUNCIL ON AGING TO SUPPORT A
TRANSPORTATION PROGRAM FOR SENIOR CITIZENS, $25 THOUSAND FOR THE NASSAU BOYS AND GIRLS CLUB, WHICH ASSISTS THE YOUTH OF THE LOCAL
COMMUNITY, AND $10 THOUSAND TO THE NASSAU COUNTY ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT BOARD TO SUPPORT JOB GROWTH AND IMPROVE ECONOMIC CONDITIONS
IN NASSAU COUNTY

4b

(Code ) (Expenses $ including grants of $ ) (Revenue $ )

4c

(Code ) (Expenses $ including grants of $ ) (Revenue $ )

4ad

Other program services (Describe in Schedule O )
(Expenses $ including grants of $ ) (Revenue $ )

4de

Total program service expenses & 47,911,361

Form 990 (2013)



Form 990 (2013)

10

11

12a

13

14a

15

16

17

18

19

20a

Part III

Page 3
E1a @A Checklist of Required Schedules
Yes No

Is the organization described in section 501(c)(3)or4947(a)(1) (otherthan a private foundation)? If "Yes,” Yes
complete Schedule A 1
Is the organization required to complete Schedule B, Schedule of Contributors (see instructions)? b 2 Yes
Did the organization engage in direct or indirect political campaign activities on behalf of or in opposition to No
candidates for public office? If "Yes,” complete Schedule C, Part I 3
Section 501(c)(3) organizations. Did the organization engage In lobbying activities, or have a section 501 (h) No
election In effect during the tax year? If "Yes,” complete Schedule C, Part I1 4
Is the organization a section 501(c)(4), 501 (c)(5), or 501(c)(6) organization that receives membership dues,
assessments, or similar amounts as defined in Revenue Procedure 98-197? If "Yes,"” complete Schedule C,

5
Did the organization maintain any donor advised funds or any similar funds or accounts for which donors have the
right to provide advice on the distribution or investment of amounts in such funds or accounts? If "Yes,” complete N
Schedule D, Part I 6 0
Did the organization receive or hold a conservation easement, including easements to preserve open space, N
the environment, historic land areas, or historic structures? If "Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part II 7 0
Did the organization maintain collections of works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets? If "Yes,” N
complete Schedule D, Part III 8 0
Did the organization report an amount in Part X, line 21 for escrow or custodial account liability, serve as a
custodian for amounts not listed in Part X, or provide credit counseling, debt management, credit repair, or debt N
negotiation services? If "Yes,"” complete Schedule D, Part IV . 9 0
Did the organization, directly or through a related organization, hold assets in temporarily restricted endowments,| 10 Yes
permanent endowments, or quasi-endowments? If "Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part
If the organization’s answer to any of the following questions Is "Yes," then complete Schedule D, Parts VI, VII,
VIII,IX, or X as applicable
Did the organization report an amount for land, buildings, and equipment in Part X, line 10? v
If "Yes,"” complete Schedule D, Part VI.¥& . 1la €s
Did the organization report an amount for investments—other securities in Part X, line 12 that 1s 5% or more of N
Its total assets reported Iin Part X, line 16? If "Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part VII 11b 0
Did the organization report an amount for investments—program related in Part X, line 13 that 1s 5% or more of N
Its total assets reported in Part X, line 16? If "Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part VIII 11c 0
Did the organization report an amount for other assets in Part X, line 15 that 1s 5% or more of its total assets v
reported in Part X, line 16? If "Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part IXE e e e e e 11d es
Did the organization report an amount for other liabilities in Part X, line 25? If "Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part X%} 11e | Yes
Did the organization’s separate or consolidated financial statements for the tax year include a footnote that 11f | ves
addresses the organization’s liability for uncertain tax positions under FIN 48 (ASC 740)? If "Yes,” complete
Schedule D, Part X%}
Did the organization obtain separate, Independent audited financial statements for the tax year?
If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Parts XI and XII 12a No
Was the organization included in consolidated, independent audited financial statements for the tax year? If 12b | Yes
"Yes," and if the organization answered "No" to line 12a, then completing Schedule D, Parts XI and XII is optional
Is the organization a school described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(1n)? If "Yes,” complete Schedule E 13 No
Did the organization maintain an office, employees, or agents outside of the United States? 14a No
Did the organization have aggregate revenues or expenses of more than $10,000 from grantmaking, fundraising,
business, iInvestment, and program service activities outside the United States, or aggregate foreign investments
valued at $100,000 or more? If "Yes,” complete Schedule F, Parts I and IV . 14b No
Did the organization report on Part IX, column (A), line 3, more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to or N
for any foreign organization? If "Yes,” complete Schedule F, Parts II and IV 15 0
Did the organization report on Part IX, column (A), line 3, more than $5,000 of aggregate grants or other N
assistance to or for foreign individuals? If "Yes,” complete Schedule F, Parts III and IV . 16 0
Did the organization report a total of more than $15,000 of expenses for professional fundraising services on Part 17 No
IX, column (A), lines 6 and 11e? If "Yes,” complete Schedule G, Part I (see instructions)
Did the organization report more than $15,000 total of fundraising event gross income and contributions on Part N
VIII, ines 1c and 8a? If "Yes," complete Schedule G, Part I 18 0
Did the organization report more than $15,000 of gross income from gaming activities on Part VIII, line 9a? If 19 No
"Yes," complete Schedule G, Part I1]
Did the organization operate one or more hospital facilities? If "Yes,” complete ScheduleH . . . . E 20a | Yes
If"Yes" to line 204, did the organization attach a copy of its audited financial statements to this return? ) 20b | Ves

Form 990 (2013)



Form 990 (2013)

21

22

23

24a

25a

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35a

36

37

38

Part I

Page 4
13 @A Checklist of Required Schedules (continued)
Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to any domestic organization or 21 Yes
government on Part IX, column (A), line 1? If "Yes,” complete Schedule I, Parts I and I]
Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to individuals in the United States on 22 N
PartIX, column (A), ine 2? If "Yes,” complete Schedule I, Parts I and II] 0
Did the organization answer "Yes" to Part VII, Section A, line 3,4, or 5 about compensation of the organization’s v
current and former officers, directors, trustees, key employees, and highest compensated employees? If "Yes,” 23 es
complete Schedule ] .
Did the organization have a tax-exempt bond issue with an outstanding principal amount of more than $100,000
as of the last day of the year, that was I1ssued after December 31, 2002? If "Yes,” answer lines 24b through 24d v
and complete Schedule K. If "No,” go to line 25a 24a €s
Did the organization invest any proceeds of tax-exempt bonds beyond a temporary period exception? 24b No
Did the organization maintain an escrow account other than a refunding escrow at any time during the year N
to defease any tax-exempt bonds? 24c 0
Did the organization act as an "on behalf of" 1Issuer for bonds outstanding at any time during the year? 24d No
Section 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) organizations. Did the organization engage In an excess benefit transaction with
a disqualified person during the year? If "Yes,” complete Schedule L, Part I 25a No
Is the organization aware that it engaged in an excess benefit transaction with a disqualified person in a prior
year, and that the transaction has not been reported on any of the organization’s prior Forms 990 or 990-EZ? If | 25b No
"Yes," complete Schedule L, Part I
Did the organization report any amount on Part X, ine 5, 6, or 22 for receivables from or payables to any current
or former officers, directors, trustees, key employees, highest compensated employees, or disqualified persons? 26 No
If so, complete Schedule L, Part II
Did the organization provide a grant or other assistance to an officer, director, trustee, key employee, substantial
contributor or employee thereof, a grant selection committee member, or to a 35% controlled entity or family 27 No
member of any of these persons? If "Yes,” complete Schedule L, Part III
Was the organization a party to a business transaction with one of the following parties (see Schedule L, Part IV
instructions for applicable filing thresholds, conditions, and exceptions)
A current or former officer, director, trustee, or key employee? If "Yes,” complete Schedule L, Part
e - 28a | Yes
A family member of a current or former officer, director, trustee, or key employee? If "Yes,” N
complete Schedule L, Part IV . 28b 0
An entity of which a current or former officer, director, trustee, or key employee (or a family member thereof) was N
an officer, director, trustee, or direct or indirect owner? If "Yes,” complete Schedule L, Part IV . 28c 0
Did the organization receive more than $25,000 in non-cash contributions? If "Yes,” complete Schedule M 29 No
Did the organization receive contributions of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets, or qualified N
conservation contributions? If "Yes,” complete Schedule M 30 0
Did the organization liquidate, terminate, or dissolve and cease operations? If "Yes,” complete Schedule N, No
31

Did the organization sell, exchange, dispose of, or transfer more than 25% of its net assets? If "Yes,"” complete N
Schedule N, Part IT 32 0
Did the organization own 100% of an entity disregarded as separate from the organization under Regulations N
sections 301 7701-2 and 301 7701-3? If "Yes,” complete Schedule R, Part I 33 0
Was the organization related to any tax-exempt or taxable entity? If "Yes,” complete Schedule R, Part II, III, or IV,

Yes
and Part V, line 1 34
Did the organization have a controlled entity within the meaning of section 512(b)(13)? 354 No
If 'Yes'to line 35a, did the organization receive any payment from or engage in any transaction with a controlled 35b N
entity within the meaning of section 512(b)(13)? If "Yes,” complete Schedule R, Part V, line 2 0
Section 501(c)(3) organizations. Did the organization make any transfers to an exempt non-charitable related N
organization? If "Yes,"” complete Schedule R, Part V, line 2 36 0
Did the organization conduct more than 5% of its activities through an entity that 1s not a related organization N
and that is treated as a partnership for federal iIncome tax purposes? If "Yes,” complete Schedule R, Part VI 37 0
Did the organization complete Schedule O and provide explanations in Schedule O for Part VI, lines 11b and 197 v
Note. All Form 990 filers are required to complete Schedule O 38 es

Form 990 (2013)



Form 990 (2013) Page 5
Statements Regarding Other IRS Filings and Tax Compliance

Check If Schedule O contains a response ornote to any lineinthisPartV... . . . + v W v w « .« .« . .
Yes No
la Enter the number reported in Box 3 of Form 1096 Enter -0- if not applicable . .| 1la 58
b Enter the number of Forms W-2G included in line 1a Enter-0- if not applicable ib

c Did the organization comply with backup withholding rules for reportable payments to vendors and reportable
gaming (gambling) winnings to prize winners? . . . .+ +  « o« 4 4 a4 w e a e 1c Yes

2a Enter the number of employees reported on Form W-3, Transmittal of Wage and
Tax Statements, filed for the calendar year ending with or within the year covered
by thisreturn . . . .+ .+« .+ v e e e e e e e e e 2a 478

b Ifatleastone s reported on line 2a, did the organization file all required federal employment tax returns?

Note. If the sum of lines 1a and 2a I1s greater than 250, you may be required to e-file (see Instructions) 2b ves
3a Did the organization have unrelated business gross income of $1,000 or more during the year? . . . 3a Yes
b If“Yes,” has it filed a Form 990-T for this year? If "No” to /ine 3b, provide an explanation in ScheduleO . . . 3b Yes
4a At any time during the calendar year, did the organization have an interest in, or a signature or other authority
over, a financial account in a foreign country (such as a bank account, securities account, or other financial
account)? . . . . . w e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e da No
b If "Yes," enter the name of the foreign country
See Instructions for filing requirements for Form TD F 90-22 1, Report of Foreign Bank and Financial Accounts
5a Was the organization a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction at any time during the tax year? . . 5a No
b Did any taxable party notify the organization that it was or s a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction? 5b No
c If"Yes," to line 5a or 5b, did the organization file Form 8886-T?
5c¢
6a Does the organization have annual gross receipts that are normally greater than $100,000, and did the 6a No
organization solicit any contributions that were not tax deductible as charitable contributions?
b If"Yes," did the organization include with every solicitation an express statement that such contributions or gifts
were not tax deductible? . . . . . . . L L oo 00 0w e e e e e e 6b
7 Organizations that may receive deductible contributions under section 170(c).
a Did the organization receive a payment in excess of $75 made partly as a contribution and partly for goods and 7a No
services provided to the payor?
b If"Yes," did the organization notify the donor of the value of the goods or services provided? . . . . . 7b
c Did the organization sell, exchange, or otherwise dispose of tangible personal property for which 1t was required to
fille Form 82822 . . . . . . . 4 4 a e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 72 No
d If"Yes," indicate the number of Forms 8282 filed during the year . . . . | 7d |
e Did the organization receive any funds, directly or indirectly, to pay premiums on a personal benefit
CONtract? . . + & & h h h h e e e e e e e e e e | 76 No
f Did the organization, during the year, pay premiums, directly or indirectly, on a personal benefit contract? . . 7f No
g Ifthe organization received a contribution of qualified intellectual property, did the organization file Form 8899 as
required? . . . 4 v e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e s ey T

h Ifthe organization received a contribution of cars, boats, airplanes, or other vehicles, did the organization file a
Form 1098-C? . . . « « v e e e e a e e e e e e e e e 7h

8 Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds and section 509(a)(3) supporting organizations. Did
the supporting organization, or a donor advised fund maintained by a sponsoring organization, have excess
business holdings at any time duringtheyear? . . . . . . . . . . . . 8

9 Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds.

a Did the organization make any taxable distributions under section 49662 . . . . . . . . . . 9a
Did the organization make a distribution to a donor, donor advisor, or related person? . . . . . . . 9b
10 Section 501(c)(7) organizations. Enter
Initiation fees and capital contributions included on Part VIII,ine12 . . . 10a
b Gross receipts, included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 12, for public use of club 10b
facilities
11 Section 501(c)(12) organizations. Enter
a Gross income from members or shareholders . . . . . . . . . 11a
Gross Income from other sources (Do not net amounts due or paid to other sources
against amounts due orreceived fromthem) . . . . . . . . . . 11b
12a Section 4947(a)(1) non-exempt charitable trusts. Is the organization filing Form 990 in lieu of Form 10417 12a

b If"Yes," enter the amount of tax-exempt interest received or accrued during the
Year . . 4 4w e e e e e e e e 12b

13 Section 501(c)(29) qualified nonprofit health insurance issuers.

a Is the organization licensed to iIssue qualified health plans in more than one state?

Note. See the instructions for additional information the organization must report on Schedule O 13a
b Enter the amount of reserves the organization 1s required to maintain by the states
in which the organization is licensed to 1Issue qualified health plans 13b
c Enter the amount of reservesonhand . . . . . . . . . . . . 13c
14a Did the organization recelve any payments for indoor tanning services during the tax year> . . . . . 14a No
b If"Yes," has it filed a Form 720 to report these payments? If "No,” provide an explanation in Schedule O . . 14b

Form 990 (2013)



Form 990 (2013) Page 6
m Governance, Management, and Disclosure For each "Yes" response to lines 2 through 7b below, and for a

"No" response to lines 8a, 8b, or 10b below, describe the circumstances, processes, or changes in Schedule O.
See instructions.
Check If Schedule O contains a response ornote to any lineinthisPartVI . . . . . .+ +« + +v & +« . . ¥

Section A. Governing Body and Management

la

7a

9

Yes No
Enter the number of voting members of the governing body at the end of the tax 1a 13
year
If there are matenial differences In voting rights among members of the governing
body, or If the governing body delegated broad authority to an executive committee
or similar committee, explain in Schedule O
Enter the number of voting members included in line 1a, above, who are
independent . . . . .+ v v 4 4 e e e e e e e e W | 1 9
Did any officer, director, trustee, or key employee have a family relationship or a business relationship with any
other officer, director, trustee, or key employee? . . . .+ .+ .+ « « &+ 4 w44 a4 2 No
Did the organization delegate control over management duties customarily performed by or under the direct 3 No
supervision of officers, directors or trustees, or key employees to a management company or other person?
Did the organization make any significant changes to its governing documents since the prior Form 990 was
1= 4 No
Did the organization become aware during the year of a significant diversion of the organization’s assets? . 5 No
Did the organization have members or stockholders? . . . . . .. . .+ .+ .+ .« .+ .« .« . . 6 Yes
Did the organization have members, stockholders, or other persons who had the power to elect or appoint one or
more members of the governingbody? . . . . . . . . . . . . . .0 ... 7a Yes

Are any governance decisions of the organization reserved to (or subject to approval by) members, stockholders,| 7b Yes
or persons other than the governing body?

Did the organization contemporaneously document the meetings held or written actions undertaken during the
year by the following

The governing body? . . . .+ .+ & & & + « &« 4« 4 4 4 e e e a a4 4. | Ba ] Yes

Each committee with authority to act on behalf of the governingbody? . . . . . . . . . . . .| 8b Yes

Is there any officer, director, trustee, or key employee listed in Part VII, Section A, who cannot be reached at the
organization’s mailing address? If "Yes " provide the names and addresses n Schedu/e o . . . 9 No

Section B. Policies (This Section B requests information about policies not required by the Internal Revenue Code.)

10a
b

11a

12a

13

14
15

16a

Yes No

Did the organization have local chapters, branches, or affihates? . . . . . . . . . .+ . . 10a No

If "Yes," did the organization have written policies and procedures governing the activities of such chapters,
affiliates, and branches to ensure their operations are consistent with the organization's exempt purposes? 10b

Has the organization provided a complete copy of this Form 990 to all members of its governing body before filing
the form? . . . . . . . . . . . . e e e e . e e e e e . e 11a No

Describe in Schedule O the process, iIf any, used by the organization to review this Form 990

Did the organization have a written conflict of interest policy? If “No,"gotoline13 . . . . . . . 12a | Yes
Were officers, directors, or trustees, and key employees required to disclose annually interests that could give

rseto conflicts? . . . . . . . ..o e e e e e e e e e e e 12b | Yes
Did the organization regularly and consistently monitor and enforce compliance with the policy? If "Yes,” describe

in Schedule O how this was done . . . . « « & « & « 4 4 w4 e e e . J|12c] Yes
Did the organization have a written whistleblower policy? . . . .. . . .+ . .+ «+ .« .+« .+ . . 13 Yes
Did the organization have a written document retention and destruction policy? . . . . . . . . . 14 Yes

Did the process for determining compensation of the following persons include a review and approval by
independent persons, comparability data, and contemporaneous substantiation of the deliberation and decision?

The organization’s CEO, Executive Director, or top management offictal . . . . . . . . . . . 15a | Yes

Other officers or key employees of the organization . . . . . .+ .+ .+ + « « « &« 4« . 15b | Yes

If"Yes" to line 15a or 15b, describe the process in Schedule O (see Instructions)

Did the organization invest in, contribute assets to, or participate In a joint venture or similar arrangement with a
taxable entity duringthe year? . . . . .+ . .+ . 0 4 4w e w e e e e 16a No

If "Yes," did the organization follow a written policy or procedure requiring the organization to evaluate its
participation in joint venture arrangements under applicable federal tax law, and take steps to safeguard the
organization’s exempt status with respect to such arrangements? . . . . . . . . . . . . 16b

Section C. Disclosure

17
18

19

20

List the States with which a copy of this Form 990 I1s required to be filedm

Section 6104 requires an organization to make its Form 1023 (or 1024 if applicable), 990, and 990-T (501(c)
(3)s only) available for public inspection Indicate how you made these available Check all that apply

[T Own website ¥ Another's website [¥ Uponrequest [ Other (explain in Schedule 0)

Describe in Schedule O whether (and If so, how) the organization made its governing documents, conflict of
Interest policy, and financial statements available to the public during the tax year

State the name, physical address, and telephone number of the person who possesses the books and records of the organization
EScott Finnegan 841 Prudential Dr Aetna Bldg 1602
Jacksonville, FL 32207 (904)202-3270

Form 990 (2013)



Form 990 (2013)

m Compensation of Officers, Directors,Trustees, Key Employees, Highest Compensated
Employees, and Independent Contractors
Check If Schedule O contains a response or note to any lineinthis PartVII . . . . . . . « « .« . . . I

Page 7

Section A. Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees

1a Complete this table for all persons required to be listed Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the organization’s
tax year

# List all of the organization’s current officers, directors, trustees (whether individuals or organizations), regardless of amount
of compensation Enter-0-1n columns (D), (E), and (F) if no compensation was paid

# List all of the organization’s current key employees, If any See instructions for definition of "key employee "

# List the organization’s five current highest compensated employees (other than an officer, director, trustee or key employee)
who recelved reportable compensation (Box 5 of Form W-2 and/or Box 7 of Form 1099-MISC) of more than $100,000 from the
organization and any related organizations

# List all of the organization’s former officers, key employees, or highest compensated employees who received more than $100,000
of reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations

# List all of the organization’s former directors or trustees that received, in the capacity as a former director or trustee of the
organization, more than $10,000 of reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations

List persons In the following order individual trustees or directors, institutional trustees, officers, key employees, highest
compensated employees, and former such persons

[T Check this box If neither the organization nor any related organization compensated any current officer, director, or trustee

(A) (B) (©) (D) (E) (F)

Name and Title Average Position (do not check Reportable Reportable Estimated
hours per more than one box, unless | compensation | compensation amount of
week (list person i1s both an officer from the from related other
any hours and a director/trustee) organization organizations compensation
for related o= | _ 2 = |o T | (W-2/1099- (W-2/1099- from the

organizations (" & | = |Z |® |2& |2 MISC) MISC) organization
o= I ] pair Y
below == |3 |6 |le [T |2 and related
g [m = i b= = B
dotted line) c|= P organizations
= g (] ]
el a
c | = T =
212 |°|®
I 7
I E
T o
C
(1) A HUGH GREENE 0 00
X X 0 1,072,886 514,891
President & Director 40 00
(2) JON C LASSERRE 200
X X 0 0 0
Secretary/Treasurer & Director 0
(3) RICHARD W KEFFER 200
X X 0 0 0
Chairman & Director 0
(4) CHRISTINA H BRYAN 2 00
X 0 0 0
Vice Chairman & Director 0
(5) DONNA L VANPUYMBROUCK 200
X 0 0 0
Director 0
(6) GERALD R BURFORD MD 200
X 0 0 0
Director 0
(7) GREGORY N SMITH MD 200
X 0 0 0
Director 0
(8) JAMES M TOWNSEND 100
X 0 0 0
Director 100
(9) JANICE ANCRUM 200
X 0 0 0
Director 0
(10) KATHERINE MONAHAN 200
X 0 0 0
Director 0
(11) MICHAEL M BELL 200
X 0 0 0
Director 0
(12) ROBERT FERREIRA 200
X 0 0 0
Director 0
(13) WILLIAM H GOWER 200
X 0 0 0
Director 0
(14) WILLIE J SCOTT 200
X 0 0 0
Director 0
(15) HARVEY GRANGER 0 00
X 0 486,616 215,282
Assistant Secretary 40 00
(16) JOHN F WILBANKS 0 00
X 0 634,992 241,332
Executive VP 40 00
(17) SCOTT WOOTEN 0 00
X 0 50,000 0
SVP/CFO 40 00

Form 990 (2013)



Form 990 (2013)
m Section A. Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees (continued)

Page 8

(A) (B) (©) (D) (E) (F)

Name and Title Average Position (do not check Reportable Reportable Estimated
hours per more than one box, unless | compensation compensation | amount of other
week (list person i1s both an officer from the from related compensation
any hours and a director/trustee) organization organizations from the
for related o= | _ 2 = o T |n (W-2/1099- (W-2/1099- organization

organizations a a > |Z|r |da |2 MISC) MISC) and related
below E= |5 |8 |o %6 3 organizations
g [m = il = R
dotted line) c |2 P
oe e =R
- = [m]} ()
i w | =2
o = I e
I % =
B
- T
C
(18) STEPHEN LEE 40 00
X 260,876 46,975
Vice President 0
(19) MICHAEL LUKASZEWSKI 0 00
X 0 691,689 20,236
SVP/CFO 40 00
(20) BARBARA GINGHER 40 00
X 153,933 30,509
Assistant Administrator, Nursing 0
(21) CHARLOTTE MOORE 40 00
X 112,102 24,669
Director, Imaging Services 0
(22) DAVID TONCRAY 40 00
X 107,623 9,389
Director, Phammacy 0
(23) JANICE PAULEY 40 00
X 106,083 10,070
Director, Surgical Services 0
(24) STEPHEN BEAN 40 00
X 134,856 33,260
Pharmacist 0
1b Sub-Total . . . . . . .+ .+ .+ e e e e >
Total from continuation sheets to Part VII, SectionA . . . . *
Total (add linesiband1c) . . . . . . . . . . . . * 875,473 2,936,183 1,146,613
2 Total number of individuals (including but not limited to those listed above) who received more than
$100,000 of reportable compensation from the organizationk10
Yes No
3 Did the organization list any former officer, director or trustee, key employee, or highest compensated employee
on line 1a? If "Yes,”" complete Schedule J for such individual . .+« .« « « &« « &« o &« 2 &« &« & No
4 For any individual listed on line 1a, Is the sum of reportable compensation and other compensation from the
organization and related organizations greaterthan $150,000°? If "Yes,"” complete Schedule J for such
individual =« . 4 0 4w h e a e s e e e w e w s wwawaw Yes
5 Did any person listed on line 1a recelve or accrue compensation from any unrelated organization or individual for
services rendered to the organization? If "Yes,” complete Schedule J for suchperson .+« .« « « &« &« & No

Section B. Independent Contractors

1

Complete this table for your five highest compensated independent contractors that received more than $100,000 of

compensation from the organization Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the organization’s tax year

(A) (B)
Name and business address Description of services

<)

Compensation

HOSPITALIST SERVICES FOR THE

BAPTIST PRIMARY CARE INC 3563 PHILIPS HWY BLDG A STE 101 JACKSONVILLE FL 32207 HOSPITAL 974,400
AMELIA ANESTHESIA PL 1250 S 18TH ST FERNANDINA BEACH FL 32034 Q'ggi?:l_sm SERVICES FOR THE 281,285
CROWN HEALTH CARE LAUNDRY SERVICE INC 1501 N GUILLEMARD PENSACOLA FL 32501 h%JS'\:,IIDTRAISERVICES FOR THE 272,918

RESTAURANT AND HOUSEKEEPING 252,711

SODEXHO INC & AFFILIATES PPO BOX 536922 ATLANTA GA 303536922

SERVICES FOR THE HOSPITAL

2 Total number of Independent contractors (including but not limited to those listed above) who received more than

$100,000 of compensation from the organization #4

Form 990 (2013)



Form 990 (2013) Page 9
m Statement of Revenue
Check If Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part VIII .. .. . L
(A) (B) (©) (D)

Total revenue Related or Unrelated Revenue
exempt business excluded from
function revenue tax under
revenue sections

512-514
la Federated campaigns . . 1a
g2
[ b Membershipdues . . . . ib
=]
(e = |
o] 5: ¢ Fundraisingevents . . . . 1c
E 5 d Related organizations . . . 1d 94,464
o=
o = e Government grants (contributions) 1e
in
e f Al other contnibutions, gifts, grants, and  1f
E T} similar amounts not included above
—
.'E 5 g Noncash contributions included in lines
= la-1f $
E = 94,464
= h Total. Add lines 1a-1f ,
oom -
@ Business Code
E 2a NET PATIENT SERVICE REVENUES 622000 64,853,989 64,853,989 0 0
=
SE b EHR REVENUE MEDICARE 622000 1,006,971 1,006,971 0 0
3 ¢ EHR REVENUE MEDICAID 622000 78,159 78,159 0 0
=
E d 0
— e 0
&
= f All other program service revenue 0 0 0 0
=
& g Total. Add lines 2a-2f - 65,939,119
3 Investment income (including dividends, interest, 802 355 0 0 802 355
and other similar amounts) * ! !
Income from investment of tax-exempt bond proceeds , , * 0
5 Royalties * 0
(1) Real (1) Personal
6a Gross rents 232,390 0
b Less rental 0 0
expenses
¢ Rental income 232,390 0
or (loss)
d Net rental iIncome or (loss) [ 232,390 232,390 0 0
(1) Securities (n) Other
7a Gross amount
from sales of
assets other
than inventory
b Less costor
other basis and
sales expenses
Gain or (loss) 0 0
Net gain or (loss) . 0
8a Gross income from fundraising
@ events (not including
2 $ 0
5 of contributions reported on line 1c¢)
P See Part IV, line 18
o a
)
E b Less direct expenses . . . b
E c Netincome or (loss) from fundraising events . . 0
9a Gross income from gaming activities
See Part1IV, line 19
a
b Less direct expenses . . . b
c Netincome or (loss) from gaming activities . . .m 0
10a Gross sales of inventory, less
returns and allowances
a
b Less costofgoods sold . . b
c Netincome or (loss) from sales of iInventory . . @ 0
Miscellaneous Revenue Business Code
b GAINS ON INTEREST RATE 523000 74,495 74,495 0 0
SWAPS
C REFERENCE LAB REVENUES 621500 31,008 18,529 12,479 0
All other revenue 61,127 0 0 61,127
e Total.Addlines 11a-11d -
429,960
12  Total revenue. See Instructions -
67,498,288 66,264,533 12,479 1,126,812

Form 990 (2013)



Form 990 (2013) Page 10
m Statement of Functional Expenses
Section 501(c)(3)and 501(c)(4) organizations must complete all columns All other organizations must complete column (A)
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part IX .. .. L
Do not include amounts reported on lines 6b, (A) PrOgraS‘nB)SerVICG Manage(r(1:1)ent and Funég)lsmg
7b, 8b, 9b, and 10b of Part VIII. Total expenses expenses general expenses expenses
1 Grants and other assistance to governments and organizations
In the United States See PartIV, line 21 46,125 46,125
2 Grants and other assistance to individuals in the
United States See PartIV, line 22 0 0
3 Grants and other assistance to governments,
organizations, and individuals outside the United
States See PartIV, lines 15 and 16 0 0
Benefits paid to or for members 0 0
5 Compensation of current officers, directors, trustees, and
key employees 307,851 0 307,851 0
6 Compensation not included above, to disqualified persons
(as defined under section 4958(f)(1)) and persons
described in section 4958 (c)(3)(B) 0 0 0 0
7 Other salaries and wages 17,385,141 16,685,446 699,695 0
8 Pension plan accruals and contributions (include section 401 (k)
and 403(b) employer contributions) 1,232,192 1,194,022 38,170 0
9 Other employee benefits 3,895,651 3,692,391 203,260 0
10 Payroll taxes 1,324,971 1,283,221 41,750 0
11 Fees for services (non-employees)
a Management 2,165,278 1,515,763 649,515 0
b Legal 39,752 27,827 11,925 0
c Accounting 17,012 11,908 5,104 0
d Lobbying 0 0 0 0
e Professional fundraising services See PartIV, line 17 0 0
f Investment management fees 0 0 0 0
g Other(Ifline 11g amount exceeds 10% ofline 25,
column (A) amount, list line 11g expenses on
Schedule O) 731,193 731,193 0 0
12 Advertising and promotion 45,599 45,599 0 0
13 Office expenses 7,508,934 7,353,893 155,041 0
14 Information technology 905,157 905,157 0 0
15 Rovyalties 0 0 0 0
16 Occupancy 2,332,176 2,332,176 0 0
17  Travel 65,008 65,008 0 0
18 Payments of travel or entertainment expenses for any federal,
state, or local public officials 0 0 0 0
19 Conferences, conventions, and meetings 114,417 114,417 0 0
20 Interest 44,557 44,557 0 0
21 Payments to affiliates 0 0 0 0
22 Depreciation, depletion, and amortization 3,103,563 3,103,563 0 0
23 Insurance 870,781 870,781 0 0
24 Other expenses Itemize expenses not covered above (List
miscellaneous expenses In line 24e Ifline 24e amount exceeds 10%
of ine 25, column (A) amount, list line 24e expenses on Schedule O )
a SYSTEM FUNCTION ALLOCATION 7,236,523 6,945,615 290,908 0
b AHCA AND NICA ASSESSMENTS 717,115 717,115 0 0
c DUES AND MEMBERSHIPS 60,074 42,052 18,022 0
d LICENSES &FEES 107,644 53,822 53,822 0
e All other expenses 185,300 129,710 55,590 0
25 Total functional expenses. Add lines 1 through 24e 50,442,014 47,911,361 2,530,653 0
26 Joint costs. Complete this line only If the organization
reported in column (B) joint costs from a combined
educational campaign and fundraising solicitation Check
here ® [ if following SOP 98-2 (ASC 958-720)
0

Form 990 (2013)



Form 990 (2013)

Page 11

Balance Sheet

Check iIf Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part X .. '
(A) (B)
Beginning of year End of year
1 Cash-non-interest-bearing 600 1 600
2 Savings and temporary cash investments 2
3 Pledges and grants receivable, net 3
4 Accounts recelvable, net 6,988,169 4 8,262,726
5 Loans and other receivables from current and former officers, directors, trustees, key
employees, and highest compensated employees Complete Part II of
Schedule L
ol 5 0
6 Loans and other receivables from other disqualified persons (as defined under section
4958 (f)(1)), persons described in section 4958(c)(3)(B), and contributing employers
and sponsoring organizations of section 501(c)(9) voluntary employees' beneficiary
" organizations (see Instructions) Complete Part II of Schedule L
g ol 6 0
ﬂ 7 Notes and loans receivable, net 7
< 8 Inventories for sale or use 737,184 8 825,175
9 Prepaid expenses and deferred charges 457,013 9 1,534,202
10a Land, buildings, and equipment cost or other basis
Complete Part VI of Schedule D 10a 72,548,993
b Less accumulated depreciation 10b 35,076,040 37,503,763| 10c 37,472,953
11 Investments—publicly traded securities 8,846,384 11 9,648,739
12 Investments—other securities See Part IV, line 11 0] 12 0
13 Investments—program-related See Part IV, line 11 0] 13 0
14 Intangible assets 14
15 Other assets See PartIV,line 11 43,075,522 15 52,304,676
16 Total assets. Add lines 1 through 15 (must equal line 34) 97,608,635| 16 110,049,071
17 Accounts payable and accrued expenses 5,058,677 17 5,447 193
18 Grants payable 0] 18
19 Deferred revenue 19
20 Tax-exempt bond habilities 4,714,454 20 4,278,888
w 21 Escrow or custodial account hability Complete Part IV of Schedule D 21
:E 22 Loans and other payables to current and former officers, directors, trustees,
= key employees, highest compensated employees, and disqualified
ﬁ persons Complete PartII of Schedule L 0] 22 0
= 23 Secured mortgages and notes payable to unrelated third parties 23
24 Unsecured notes and loans payable to unrelated third parties 24
25 Other liabilities (including federal Income tax, payables to related third parties,
and other habilities not included on lines 17-24) Complete Part X of Schedule
D e e e e e e e e 500,385| 25 923,540
26 Total liabilities. Add lines 17 through 25 10,273,516| 26 10,649,621
" Organizations that follow SFAS 117 (ASC 958), check here & [ and complete
E lines 27 through 29, and lines 33 and 34.
% 27 Unrestricted net assets 87,007,756 27 98,571,107
E 28 Temporarily restricted net assets 234,568 28 338,946
E 29 Permanently restricted net assets 92,795| 29 489,397
u:. Organizations that do not follow SFAS 117 (ASC 958), check here » [ and
= complete lines 30 through 34.
- 30 Capital stock or trust principal, or current funds 30
E 31 Paid-1n or capital surplus, or land, building or equipment fund 31
.»;':|:"1I 32 Retained earnings, endowment, accumulated income, or other funds 32
i 33 Total net assets or fund balances 87,335,119| 33 99,399,450
= 34 Total lhabilities and net assets/fund balances 97,608,635| 34 110,049,071

Form 990 (2013)



Form 990 (2013) Page 12
lm Reconcilliation of Net Assets
Check If Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part XI v
1 Total revenue (must equal Part VIII, column (A), line 12)
1 67,498,288
2 Total expenses (must equal Part IX, column (A), line 25)
2 50,442,014
3 Revenue less expenses Subtractline 2 from line 1
3 17,056,274
4 Net assets or fund balances at beginning of year (must equal Part X, line 33, column (A))
4 87,335,119
5 Net unrealized gains (losses) on investments
5 23,861
6 Donated services and use of facilities
6 0
7 Investment expenses
7 0
8 Prior period adjustments
8 0
9 Otherchanges in net assets or fund balances (explain in Schedule 0)
9 -5,069,626
10 Net assets or fund balances at end of year Combine lines 3 through 9 (must equal Part X, line 33,
column (B)) 10 99,399,450
Financial Statements and Reporting
Check If Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part XI1I .-
Yes No
1 Accounting method used to prepare the Form 990 [T Cash [ Accrual [ Other
If the organization changed its method of accounting from a prior year or checked "Other," explain in
Schedule O
2a Were the organization’s financial statements compiled or reviewed by an independent accountant? 2a No
If 'Yes,' check a box below to indicate whether the financial statements for the year were compiled or reviewed on
a separate basis, consolidated basis, or both
[ Separate basis [ Consolidated basis [~ Both consolidated and separate basis
b Were the organization’s financial statements audited by an independent accountant? 2b Yes
If‘Yes,' check a box below to indicate whether the financial statements for the year were audited on a separate
basis, consolidated basis, or both
[ Separate basis [ Consolidated basis [~ Both consolidated and separate basis
c If"Yes," to line 2a or 2b, does the organization have a committee that assumes responsibility for oversight of the
audit, review, or compilation of its financial statements and selection of an independent accountant? 2c Yes
If the organization changed either its oversight process or selection process during the tax year, explain in
Schedule O
3a As aresult of a federal award, was the organization required to undergo an audit or audits as set forth in the
Single Audit Act and OMB Circular A-1337 3a No
b If"Yes," did the organization undergo the required audit or audits? If the organization did not undergo the 3b
required audit or audits, explain why in Schedule O and describe any steps taken to undergo such audits

Form 990 (2013)
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SCHEDULE A
(Form 990 or 990EZ)

Department of the

Treasury

Internal Revenue Service

OMB No 1545-0047

2013

Public Charity Status and Public Support
Complete if the organization is a section 501(c)(3) organization or a section 4947(a)(1)
nonexempt charitable trust.

I Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ. = See separate instructions.
P Information about Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) and its instructions is at

Name of the organization
BAPTIST MEDICAL CENTER OF NASSAU INC

Open to Public
Inspection

Employer identification number

www.irs.gov /form990.

59-3234721

m Reason for Public Charity Status (All organizations must complete this part.) See instructions.
The organization I1s not a private foundation because iti1s (For lines 1 through 11, check only one box )

1 [T A church, convention of churches, or association of churches described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(i).

2 [T A school described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(ii). (Attach Schedule E )

3 ¥ A hospital or a cooperative hospital service organization described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(iii).

4 [T A medical research organization operated In conjunction with a hospital described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(iii). Enter the
hospital's name, city, and state

5 [T An organization operated for the benefit of a college or university owned or operated by a governmental unit described In
section 170(b)(1)(A)(iv). (Complete Part II )

6 [T A federal, state, or local government or governmental unit described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(v).

7 [T Anorganization that normally receives a substantial part of its support from a governmental unit or from the general public
described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(vi). (Complete Part II )

8 [T A community trust described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(vi) (Complete Part II )

9 [T An organization that normally receives (1) more than 331/3% of Iits support from contributions, membership fees, and gross
receipts from activities related to its exempt functions—subject to certain exceptions, and (2) no more than 331/3% of
Its support from gross investment income and unrelated business taxable Income (less section 511 tax) from businesses
acquired by the organization after June 30,1975 See section 509(a)(2). (Complete PartIII )

10 [T An organization organized and operated exclusively to test for public safety See section 509(a)(4).

11 [T Anorganization organized and operated exclusively for the benefit of, to perform the functions of, or to carry out the purposes of
one or more publicly supported organizations described in section 509(a)(1) or section 509(a)(2) See section 509(a)(3). Check
the box that describes the type of supporting organization and complete lines 11e through 11h

a [ Typel b [ Typell ¢ [ Typelll - Functionally integrated d [ Type III - Non-functionally integrated
e [T By checking this box, I certify that the organization I1s not controlled directly or indirectly by one or more disqualified persons
other than foundation managers and other than one or more publicly supported organizations described in section 509(a)(1) or
section 509(a)(2)
f If the organization received a written determination from the IRS that it i1s a Type I, Type II, or Type I1I supporting organization,
check this box
g Since August 17, 2006, has the organization accepted any gift or contribution from any of the
following persons?
(i) A person who directly or indirectly controls, either alone or together with persons described in (1) Yes | No
and (1) below, the governing body of the supported organization? 11g(i)
(ii) A family member of a person described in (1) above? 11g(ii)
(iii) A 35% controlled entity of a person described in (1) or (1) above? 11g(iii)
h Provide the following information about the supported organization(s)

(i) Name of
supported
organization

(i) EIN

(iii) Type of
organization
(described on

(iv) Is the
organization In
col (i) listed In

(v) Did you notify
the organization
in col (i) of your

(vi) Is the
organization In
col (i) organized

(vii) Amount of
monetary
support

lines 1- 9 above your governing support? intheU S 7
or IRC section document?
(see
instructions))
Yes No Yes No Yes No

Total

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990EZ.

Cat No 11285F

Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2013



Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2013 Page 2
IERTESN Support Schedule for Organizations Described in Sections 170(b)(1)(A)(iv) and 170(b)(1)(A)(vi)

(Complete only If you checked the box on line 5, 7, or 8 of Part I or If the organization failed to qualify under
Part II1. If the organization fails to qualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part III.)

Section A. Public Support

Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning

1

6

n) B (a) 2009 (b) 2010 (c) 2011 (d) 2012 (e) 2013 (f) Total

Gifts, grants, contributions, and
membership fees received (Do not
include any "unusual

grants ")

Tax revenues levied for the
organization's benefit and either
paid to or expended on Its
behalf

The value of services or facilities
furnished by a governmental unit to
the organization without charge

Total. Add lines 1 through 3

The portion of total contributions
by each person (other than a
governmental unit or publicly
supported organization) included on
line 1 that exceeds 2% of the
amount shown on line 11, column

(f)

Public support. Subtract line 5 from
line 4

Section B. Total Support

Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning

7
8

10

11

12
13

iy (a) 2009 (b) 2010 (c) 2011 (d) 2012 (e) 2013 (f) Total

Amounts from line 4

Gross Income from interest,
dividends, payments received on
securities loans, rents, royalties
and income from similar

sources

Net income from unrelated
business activities, whether or not
the business Is regularly carried
on

Otherincome Do notinclude gain
or loss from the sale of capital
assets (Explainin Part IV )

Total support (Add lines 7 through
10)

Gross receipts from related activities, etc (see Iinstructions) | 12 |

First five years. If the Form 990 1s for the organization's first, second, third, fourth, or fifth tax year as a 501(c)(3) organization, check

this box and stop here il
Section C. Computation of Public Support Percentage
14 Public support percentage for 2013 (line 6, column (f) divided by line 11, column (f)) 14
15 Public support percentage for 2012 Schedule A, PartII, line 14 15
16a 33 1/3% support test—2013. If the organization did not check the box on line 13, and line 14 1s 33 1/3% or more, check this box
and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization >
b 33 1/3% support test—2012. If the organization did not check a box online 13 or 16a, and line 15 1s 33 1/3% or more, check this
box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization >
17a 10%-facts-and-circumstances test—2013. If the organization did not check a box online 13, 16a, or 16b, and line 14
I1Is 10% or more, and If the organization meets the "facts-and-circumstances"” test, check this box and stop here. Explain
in Part IV how the organization meets the "facts-and-circumstances” test The organization qualifies as a publicly supported
organization [ 2
b 10%-facts-and-circumstances test—2012. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, 16b, or 17a, and line
151s 10% or more, and If the organization meets the "facts-and-circumstances” test, check this box and stop here.
Explainin Part IV how the organization meets the "facts-and-circumstances"” test The organization qualifies as a publicly
supported organization PI_
18 Private foundation. If the organization did not check a box online 13, 16a, 16b, 17a, or 17b, check this box and see
Instructions L2

Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2013



Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2013 Page 3
.m Support Schedule for Organizations Described in Section 509(a)(2)

(Complete only If you checked the box on line 9 of Part I or If the organization failed to qualfy under
Part II. If the organization fails to qualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part II.)

Section A. Public Support

Calendar year (°Enf)'s:a' vear beginning (a) 2009 (b) 2010 (c) 2011 (d) 2012 (e) 2013 (F) Total
1 Gifts, grants, contributions, and
membership fees received (Do not
include any "unusual grants ")
2 Gross receipts from admissions,
merchandise sold or services
performed, or facilities furnished in
any activity that 1s related to the
organization's tax-exempt
purpose
3 Gross recelipts from activities that
are not an unrelated trade or
business under section 513
4 Tax revenues levied for the
organization's benefit and either
paid to or expended on Its
behalf
5 The value of services or facilities
furnished by a governmental unit to
the organization without charge
6 Total.Add lines 1 through 5
7a Amounts includedonlines 1, 2,
and 3 recelved from disqualified
persons
b Amounts included on lines 2 and 3
received from other than
disqualified persons that exceed
the greater of $5,000 or 1% of the
amount on line 13 for the year
c Addlines 7aand 7b
8 Public support (Subtract line 7¢
from line 6 )
Section B. Total Support
Calendar year (°Enf)'s:a' vear beginning (a) 2009 (b) 2010 (c) 2011 (d) 2012 (e) 2013 (F) Total
9 Amounts from line 6
10a Gross income from interest,
dividends, payments received on
securities loans, rents, royalties
and income from similar
sources
b Unrelated business taxable
income (less section 511 taxes)
from businesses acquired after
June 30,1975
c Addlines 10a and 10b
11 Net income from unrelated
business activities not included
in line 10b, whether or not the
business Is regularly carried on
12 Otherincome Do notinclude
gain or loss from the sale of
capital assets (Explainin Part
IV )
13 Total support. (Add lines 9, 10c,
11,and 12)
14 First five years. If the Form 990 1s for the organization's first, second, third, fourth, or fifth tax yearas a 501(c)(3) organization,
check this box and stop here >
Section C. Computation of Public Support Percentage
15 Public support percentage for 2013 (line 8, column (f) divided by line 13, column (f)) 15
16 Public support percentage from 2012 Schedule A, Part I1I, line 15 16
Section D. Computation of Investment Income Percentage
17 Investment income percentage for 2013 (line 10c¢, column (f) divided by line 13, column (f)) 17
18 Investment income percentage from 2012 Schedule A, PartIII, ine 17 18
19a 33 1/3% support tests—2013. If the organization did not check the box on line 14, and line 15 I1s more than 33 1/3%, and line 17 1s not
more than 33 1/3%, check this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization L2
b 33 1/3% support tests—2012. If the organization did not check a box on line 14 orline 19a, and line 16 1s more than 33 1/3% and line 18
I1s not more than 33 1/3%, check this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization L2
20 Private foundation. If the organization did not check a box on line 14, 19a, or 19b, check this box and see Instructions L2

Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2013
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Part IV Supplemental Information. Provide the explanations required by Part II, line 10; Part II, line 17a or
17b; and Part I1I, ine 12. Also complete this part for any additional information. (See Instructions).

Facts And Circumstances Test

Return Reference

Explanation

Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2013
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SCHEDULE D
(Form 990)

OMB No 1545-0047

Supplemental Financial Statements

k= Complete if the organization answered "Yes," to Form 990, 20 1 3
Part IV, line 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11a, 11b, 11c, 11d, 11e, 11f, 12a, or 12b

Department of the Treasury k- Attach to Form 990. - See separate instructions. * Information about Schedule D (Form 990) e sI-1 [ Lol {111 e
Intemal Revenue Service and its instructions is at www.irs.gov/form990. Inspection

Name of the organization Employer identification number

BAPTIST MEDICAL CENTER OF NASSAU INC

59-3234721

m Organizations Maintaining Donor Advised Funds or Other Similar Funds or Accounts. Complete If the

organization answered "Yes" to Form 990, Part IV, line 6.

1
2
3
4
5

(a) Donor advised funds (b) Funds and other accounts

Total number at end of year

Aggregate contributions to (during year)

Aggregate grants from (during year)

Aggregate value at end of year

Did the organization inform all donors and donor advisors In writing that the assets held in donor advised
funds are the organization's property, subject to the organization's exclusive legal control? [~ Yes ™ No

Did the organization inform all grantees, donors, and donor advisors 1n writing that grant funds can be
used only for charitable purposes and not for the benefit of the donor or donor advisor, or for any other purpose
conferring iImpermissible private benefit? [~ Yes ™ No

m Conservation Easements. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" to Form 990, Part IV, line 7.

1

a 0N T o

Purpose(s) of conservation easements held by the organization (check all that apply)
[T Preservation of land for public use (e g, recreation or education) [ Preservation of an historically important land area
[T Protection of natural habitat [T Preservation of a certified historic structure

[~ Preservation of open space

Complete lines 2a through 2d iIf the organization held a qualified conservation contribution in the form of a conservation
easement on the last day of the tax year

Held at the End of the Year

Total number of conservation easements 2a
Total acreage restricted by conservation easements 2b
Number of conservation easements on a certified historic structure included in (a) 2c

Number of conservation easements included in (¢) acquired after 8/17/06, and noton a
historic structure listed in the National Register 2d

Number of conservation easements modified, transferred, released, extinguished, or terminated by the organization during

the tax year &

Number of states where property subject to conservation easement 1s located &

Does the organization have a written policy regarding the periodic monitoring, inspection, handling of violations, and
enforcement of the conservation easements 1t holds? [~ Yes [~ No

Staff and volunteer hours devoted to monitoring, inspecting, and enforcing conservation easements during the year
[

Amount of expenses Incurred In monitoring, Inspecting, and enforcing conservation easements during the year
L

Does each conservation easement reported on line 2(d) above satisfy the requirements of section 170(h)(4 )(B)(1)
and section 170(h)(4 )(B)(11)? [ Yes [ No

In Part XIII, describe how the organization reports conservation easements In its revenue and expense statement, and
balance sheet, and include, If applicable, the text of the footnote to the organization’s financial statements that describes
the organization’s accounting for conservation easements

m Organizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets.

Complete If the organization answered "Yes" to Form 990, Part 1V, line 8.

la

b

If the organization elected, as permitted under SFAS 116 (ASC 958), not to report In its revenue statement and balance sheet
works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of public
service, provide, in Part XIII, the text of the footnote to its financial statements that describes these items

If the organization elected, as permitted under SFAS 116 (ASC 958), to report in its revenue statement and balance sheet
works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of public
service, provide the following amounts relating to these items

() Revenues included in Form 990, Part VIII, ine 1 3

(ii) Assets included in Form 990, Part X L]

If the organization received or held works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets for financial gain, provide the
following amounts required to be reported under SFAS 116 (ASC 958) relating to these items

Revenues included in Form 990, Part VIII, line 1 3

Assets Included in Form 990, Part X 3

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. Cat No 52283D Schedule D (Form 990) 2013
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Manizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets (continued)

3 Using the organization’s acquisition, accession, and other records, check any of the following that are a significant use of its
collection items (check all that apply)

a [~ Ppublic exhibition d [T Loan or exchange programs

b [ Scholarly research e [ Other

c l_ Preservation for future generations

4 Provide a description of the organization’s collections and explain how they further the organization’s exempt purpose In
Part XIII

5 During the year, did the organization solicit or receive donations of art, historical treasures or other similar
assets to be sold to raise funds rather than to be maintained as part of the organization’s collection? [ Yes ™ No
i-14®A"A Escrow and Custodial Arrangements. Complete If the organization answered "Yes" to Form 990,
Part IV, line 9, or reported an amount on Form 990, Part X, line 21.

la Is the organization an agent, trustee, custodian or other intermediary for contributions or other assets not

included on Form 990, Part X? [ Yes [ No
b If"Yes," explain the arrangement in Part XIII and complete the following table
Amount
€ Beginning balance 1c
d  Additions during the year id
€ Distributions during the year 1le
f  Ending balance 1f
2a Did the organization include an amount on Form 990, Part X, line 217 [~ Yes [~ No

b If "Yes," explain the arrangement in Part XIII Check here If the explanation has been provided in Part XIII . . . . . . . . I_
Endowment Funds. Complete If the organization answered "Yes" to Form 990, Part IV, lne 10.

(a)Current year (b)Prior year b (c)Two years back | (d)Three years back | (e)Four years back

1a Beginning of year balance . . . . 212,505 192,857 107,166 71,794 66,966

b Contrnibutions . . . . . . . . 401,162 710 56,024 36,186 0
c Netinvestment earnings, gains, and losses

23,860 20,938 31,667 286 6,500

d Grants orscholarships . . . . . 0 0 0 1,100 1,672

e Other expenditures for facilities

and programs 759 2,000 2,000 0 0

f Administrative expenses . . . . 0 0 0 0 0

g Endofyearbalance . . . . . . 636,768 212,505 192,857 107,166 71,794

2 Provide the estimated percentage of the current year end balance (line 1g, column (a)) held as
a Board designated or quasi-endowment = 15 700 %
b Permanent endowment 76900 %

€ Temporarily restricted endowment & 7400 %
The percentages In lines 2a, 2b, and 2¢c should equal 100%

3a Are there endowment funds not in the possession of the organization that are held and administered for the

organization by Yes | No
(i) unrelated organizations . . . . .+ . 4 4 4 44w e e e e e w e ] 3a(d No
(ii) related organizations . .« « 4 . e 4 e e e e e e e e e e e . | 3aii) [ Yes

b If"Yes" to 3a(n), are the related organizations listed as required on ScheduleR? . . . . . . . . . 3b

4 Describe in Part XIII the intended uses of the organization's endowment funds

m Land, Buildings, and Equipment. Complete If the organization answered 'Yes' to Form 990, Part IV, line
11a. See Form 990, Part X, line 10.

Description of property (a) Cost or other | (b)Cost or other | (c) Accumulated (d) Book value
basis (investment) basis (other) depreciation
1a Land . .+« v h e e e e e e e e e e 477,107 477,107
b Bulldings . . . .+ « v v 4 e e e e 40,696,781 13,025,084 27,671,697
c Leasehold improvements . . . . . . . . . . . . 84,649 31,957 52,692
d Equipment . . . . .« v e e e e e 28,176,757 21,192,098 6,984,659
e Other . . « e e e e 3,113,699 826,901 2,286,798
Total. Add lines 1a through 1e (Column (d) must equal Form 990, Part X, column (B), line 10(c).) . . . . . . . » 37,472,953

Schedule D (Form 990) 2013
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m Investments—Other Securities. Complete If the organization answered 'Yes' to Form 990, Part IV, line 11b.

See Form 990, Part X, ne 12.

(a) Description of security or category (b)Book value
(including name of security)

(c) Method of valuation
Cost or end-of-year market value

(1)Financial derivatives

(2)Closely-held equity Interests

Other

Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, col (B) lne 12 ) *

Investments—Program Related. Complete If the organization answered 'Yes' to Form 990, Part IV, line 11c.

See Form 990, Part X, line 13,

(a) Description of Investment (b) Book value

(c) Method of valuation
Cost or end-of-year market value

Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, col (B) line 13) *

Other Assets. Complete If the organization answered 'Yes' to Form 990, Part IV, line 11d See Form 990, Part X, line 15

(a) Description

(b) Book value

(1) ADVANCES TO AFFILIATED ORGANIZATIONS

51,443,990
(2) INTEREST IN NET ASSETS OF BAPTIST HEALTH SYSTEM FOUNDATION, INC 853,077
(3) PREPAID BONDS COST OF ISSUANCE 7,609
Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, col.(B) line 15.) ] 52,304,676

Other Liabilities. Complete If the organization answered 'Yes' to Form 990, Part IV, line 11e or 11f. See

Form 990, Part X, line 25.

1 (a) Description of liability (b) Book value

Federal income taxes 0
ESTIMATED THIRD-PARTY SETTLEMENTS 497,650
1997A BOND SWAP MARKET VALUE 307,481
2001 BOND SWAP MARKET VALUE 118,409
Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, col (B) Ine 25) m 923,540

2. Liability for uncertain tax positions In Part XIII, provide the text of the footnote to the organization's financial statements that
reports the organization's liability for uncertain tax positions under FIN 48 (ASC 740) Check here If the text of the footnote has been

provided in Part XIII

~

Schedule D (Form 990) 2013
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m Reconciliation of Revenue per Audited Financial Statements With Revenue per Return Complete If
the organization answered 'Yes' to Form 990, Part 1V, line 12a.

Total revenue, gains, and other support per audited financial statements . . . . . . . 1
2 Amounts included on line 1 but not on Form 990, Part VIII, line 12
a Net unrealized gains on investments . . . . . . . . . . 2a
b Donated services and use of facilities . . . . . . . . . 2b
c Recoveries of prior year grants 2c
d Other (Describe in Part XIII ) 2d
e Add lines 2a through 2d 2e
3 Subtract line 2e from line 1 3
4 Amounts included on Form 990, Part VIII, ine 12, but noton line 1
Investment expenses not included on Form 990, Part VIII, ine 7b . 4a
Other (Describe in Part XIII ) 4b
c Add lines 4a and 4b 4c
5 Total revenue Add lines 3 and 4c. (This must equal Form 990, PartI,linel12) . . . . 5

m Reconciliation of Expenses per Audited Financial Statements With Expenses per Return. Complete
if the organization answered 'Yes' to Form 990, Part IV, line 12a.

Total expenses and losses per audited financial statements . . . . . . . . . . . 1
2 Amounts included on line 1 but not on Form 990, Part IX, line 25
a Donated services and use of facilities . . . . . . . . . . 2a
b Prior year adjustments 2b
c Other losses 2c
d Other (Describe in Part XIII ) 2d
e Add lines 2a through 2d 2e
3 Subtract line 2e from line 1 3
4 Amounts included on Form 990, PartIX, line 25, but not on line 1:
Investment expenses not included on Form 990, Part VIII, ine7b . . 4a
Other (Describe in Part XIII ) 4b
c Add lines 4a and 4b 4c
Total expenses Add lines 3 and 4c. (This must equal Form 990, PartI,line18) . . . . . . 5

m Supplemental Information

Provide the descriptions required for Part II, ines 3,5, and 9, Part III, lines 1a and 4, Part IV, lines 1b and 2b,
PartV, line 4, Part X, line 2, Part XI, lines 2d and 4b, and Part XII, ines 2d and 4b Also complete this part to provide any additional

information

Return Reference

Explanation

Schedule D, Part V, Line 4, Intended
uses of endowment funds

BAPTIST MEDICAL CENTER OF NASSAU INC (BMCN)HAS TEMPORARY RESTRICTED QUASI-
ENDOWMENT FUND AND PERMANENTLY RESTRICTED ENDOWMENT FUNDS THAT ARE HELD
AND ADMINISTERED BY ITS RELATED FUNDRAISING AFFILIATED ORGANIZATION, BAPTIST
HEALTH SYSTEM FOUNDATION,INC ANNUALLY,5% OF THE COMBINED ENDOWMENT
CORPUS AND ACCUMULATED INVESTMENT EARNINGS ARE AVAILABLE FOR CAPITAL
PROJECTS OF BMCN

Schedule D, Part X, Line 2, FIN 48
(ASC 740) footnote

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (DOLLARSIN THOUSANDS)9 INCOME
TAXES DEFERRED INCOME TAXES, WHICH AS OF SEPTEMBER 30,2014 AND 2013, HAVE NO
NET CARRYING VALUE, REFLECT THE NET TAX EFFECT OF TEMPORARY DIFFERENCES
BETWEEN THE CARRYING AMOUNTS OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND THE AMOUNTS USED FORINCOME TAXPURPOSES AS OF SEPTEMBER 30,
2014 AND 2013,BHS HAD DEFERRED TAX ASSETS OF $24,358 AND $22,388, RESPECTIVELY,
RELATING PRINCIPALLY TO NET OPERATING LOSS CARRYOVERS ASC 740-10-50-3,
INCOME TAXES DISCLOSURE,REQUIRES A VALUATION ALLOWANCE TO REDUCE THE
DEFERRED TAX ASSETS REPORTED IF, BASED ON THE WEIGHT OF THE EVIDENCE, IT IS
MORE LIKELY THAN NOT THAT SOME PORTION ORALL OF THE DEFERRED TAX ASSETS WILL
NOT BE REALIZED AFTER CONSIDERATION OF ALLTHE EVIDENCE,BOTH POSITIVE AND
NEGATIVE, MANAGEMENT DETERMINED THAT A $24,358 AND $22,388 ALLOWANCE AT
SEPTEMBER 30,2014 AND 2013, RESPECTIVELY, WAS NECESSARY TO REDUCE THE
DEFERRED TAX ASSETS TO THE AMOUNT THAT WOULD MORE LIKELY THAN NOT BE
REALIZED THE CHANGE IN THE VALUATION ALLOWANCE FOR THE CURRENT YEAR IS
$1,970 AT SEPTEMBER 30,2014,BHS HAS AVAILABLE NET OPERATING LOSS
CARRYFORWARDS OF $64,729 THESE NET OPERATING LOSSES WILL EXPIRE BETWEEN 2018
AND 2034

Schedule D (Form 990) 2013
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m Supplemental Information (continued)

Return Reference

Explanation
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SCHEDULE H
(Form 990)

Department of the Treasury
Intemal Revenue Service

OMB No 1545-0047

Hospitals

k- Complete if the organization answered "Yes" to Form 990, Part IV, question 20.
k- Attach to Form 990. - See separate instructions.

Name of the organization
BAPTIST MEDICAL CENTER OF NASSAU INC

59-3234721

k- Information about Schedule H (Form 990) and its instructions is at www.irs.gov /form990. Open to Public
Inspection

Employer identification number

m Financial Assistance and Certain Other Community Benefits at Cost

Yes | No
1a Did the organization have a financial assistance policy during the tax year? If "No," skip to question 6a 1a | Yes
b If"Yes," was it a written policy? 1b | Yes
2 Ifthe organization had multiple hospital facilities, indicate which of the following best describes application of the
financial assistance policy to its various hospital facilities during the tax year
I7 Applied uniformly to all hospital facilities I_ Applied uniformly to most hospital facilities
I_ Generally taillored to individual hospital facilities
3 Answerthe following based on the financial assistance eligibility criteria that applied to the largest number of the
organization's patients during the tax year
a Did the organization use Federal Poverty Guidelines (FPG) as a factor in determining eligibility for providing free care?
If "Yes," indicate which of the following was the FPG family income limit for eligibility for free care 3a | Yes
™ 100% I 150% I 200%™ Other %
b Did the organization use FPG as a factor in determining eligibility for providing discounted care? If "Yes," indicate
which of the following was the family income limit for eligibility for discounted care 3b | ves
I~ 200% I 250%™ 300%™ 350% ¥ 400% [ Other %
c Ifthe organization used factors otherthan FPG in determining eligibility, describe in Part VI the income based
criteria for determining eligibility for free or discounted care Include in the description whether the organization
used an asset test or other threshold, regardless of iIncome, as a factor in determining eligibility for free or
discounted care
4 Did the organization's financial assistance policy that applied to the largest number of its patients during the tax year]
provide for free or discounted care to the "medically indigent"? P e e e e e e e e 4 | Yes
5a Did the organization budget amounts for free or discounted care provided under its financial assistance policy during
the tax year? 5a | Yes
b If"Yes," did the organization's financial assistance expenses exceed the budgeted amount? 5b | Yes
c If"Yes" toline 5b, as a result of budget considerations, was the organization unable to provide free or discounted
care to a patient who was eligibile for free or discounted care? 5c No
6a Did the organization prepare a community benefit report during the tax year? 6a | Yes
b If"Yes," did the organization make it available to the public? 6b | Yes
Complete the following table using the worksheets provided in the Schedule H instructions Do not submit these
worksheets with the Schedule H
7 Financial Assistance and Certain Other Community Benefits at Cost
Financial Assistance and | (@) Numberof| by persons (c) Total community (d) Direct offsetting (e) Net community benefit | (f) Percent of
Means-Tested activities or served benefit expense revenue expense total expense
programs
Government Programs (optional) (optional)
a Financial Assistance at cost
(from Worksheet 1) . 2,779,080 0 2,779,080 5510 %
b Medicad (from Worksheet 3,
column a) .. .. 6,841,525 7,130,282 -288,757 0 %
¢ Costs of other means-teste
government programs (from
Worksheet 3, column b) . 0 0 0 0 %
d Total Financial Assistance
and Means-Tested
Government Programs R 0 0 9,620,605 7,130,282 2,490,323 5510 %
Other Benefits
e Community health
|mprovement services and
community benefit operations
(from Worksheet 4) 0 0 %
f Health professions education
(from Worksheet 5) 0 0 %
g Subsidized health services
(from Worksheet 6) 0 0 %
h Research (from Worksheet 7) 0 0 %
1 Cash and in-kind
contributions for community
benefit (from Worksheet 8) 53,687 53,687 0110 %
] Total. Other Benefits 0 0 53,687 0 53,687 0110 %
k Total. Add lines 7d and 7) 0 0 9,674,292 7,130,282 2,544,010 5620 %

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990.

Cat No 50192T

Schedule H (Form 990) 2013
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Im Community Building Activities Complete this table If the organmization conducted any community building
activities during the tax year, and describe in Part VI how its community building activities promoted the health
of the communities It serves.

(a) Number of (b) Persons (c) Total community (d) Direct offsetting (e) Net community (f) Percent of
activities or  [|served (optional) building expense revenue building expense total expense
programs
(optional)
1  Physical mprovements and housing 0 0 %
2 Economic development 0 0 %
3 Community support 1 0 0 %
4 Environmental improvements 0 0 %
Leadership development and training
for community members 0 0 %
6  Coalition building 2 0 0 %
Community health iImprovement
advocacy 4 0 0 %
8 Workforce development 0 0 %
9 Other 0 0 %
10 Total 7 0 0 0 0 0 %
m Bad Debt, Medicare, & Collection Practices
Section A. Bad Debt Expense Yes | No
1 Did the organization report bad debt expense in accordance with Heathcare Financial Management Associlation
Statement No 152 . . . . . . e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 1 No
2 Enter the amount of the organization's bad debt expense Explain in Part VI the
methodology used by the organization to estimate this amount . . . . . . 2 2,345,412

3 Enter the estimated amount of the organization's bad debt expense attributable to
patients eligible under the organization's financial assistance policy Explainin Part VI
the methodology used by the organization to estimate this amount and the rationale, If
any, for including this portion of bad debt as community benefit . . . . . . 3 0

4 Provide in Part VI the text of the footnote to the organization’s financial statements that describes bad debt expense
or the page number on which this footnote Is contained in the attached financial statements

Section B. Medicare

5 Enter total revenue received from Medicare (including DSH andIME) . . . . . 5 18,832,973
6 Enter Medicare allowable costs of care relating to paymentsonline5 . . . . .| 6 22,105,561
7 Subtract line 6 from line 5 This Is the surplus (or shortfall) . . . . . . . .| 7 -3,272,588
8 Describe in Part VI the extent to which any shortfall reported in line 7 should be treated as community benefit

Also describe in Part VI the costing methodology or source used to determine the amount reported on line 6
Check the box that describes the method used

I_ Cost accounting system I7 Cost to charge ratio I_ Other
Section C. Collection Practices

9a Did the organization have a written debt collection policy during the tax year? . . . . . . . . . . 9a | Yes

b If"Yes," did the organization’s collection policy that applied to the largest number of its patients during the tax year
contain provisions on the collection practices to be followed for patients who are known to qualify for financial
assistance? Describe inPartVI . . . T 9b | Yes

Part IV ] nagement Compa nies and Joint Ve NtUre s (owned 10% or more by officers, directors, trustees, key employees, and physicians—see Instructions)

(a) Name of entity (b) Description of primary (c) Organization's (d) Officers, directors, (e) Physicians'
activity of entity profit % or stock trustees, or key profit % or stock
ownership % employees' profit % ownership %
or stock ownership %

10

11

12

13

Schedule H (Form 990) 2013
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Facility Information

Section A. Hospital Facilities

13yi0-43

(hst in order of size from largest to

smallest—see Instructions)

How many hospital facilities did the

organization operate during the tax year?
1

[EpdEaL pasuEaa]
Epd=oy & ua4p|iyg
[pdsoy Gunama |
Ajpae) oy
84Ny +F—H3

Eudsoy 882208 B30

Name, address, primary website address,
and state license number

See Additional Data Table

o115 g EIpawl ElaUes)

Other (Describe) | Facility reporting group

Schedule H (Form 990) 2013
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Facility Information (continued)
Section B. Facility Policies and Practices
(Complete a separate Section B for each of the hospital facilities or facility reporting groups listed in Part V, Section A)

Name of hospital facility or facility reporting group

If reporting on Part V, Section B for a single hospital facility only: line number of
hospital facility (from Schedule H, Part V, Section A)

Page 4 2

BAPTIST MEDICAL CENTER OF NASSAU INC

Yes

No

Community Health Needs Assessment (Lines 1 through 8c are optional for tax years begining on or before March 23, 2012)

1

o o n T O

T Q =0 O n T

8a

During the tax year or either of the two |mmed|ate|y preceding tax years, did the hospital facility conduct a community
health needs assessment (CHNA)? If "No," skip to line 9

If "Yes," indicate what the CHNA report describes (check all that apply)
|7 A definition of the community served by the hospital facility
|7 Demographics of the community

|7 Existing health care facilities and resources within the community that are available to respond to the health needs of
the community

|7 How data was obtained

|7 The health needs of the community

|7 Primary and chronic disease needs and other health iIssues of uninsured persons, low-income persons, and minority
groups

|7 The process for identifying and prioritizing community health needs and services to meet the community health needs

|7 The process for consulting with persons representing the community’s interests

|_ Information gaps that limit the hospital facility’s ability to assess the community’s health needs

|_ Other (describe iInPart VI)

Indicate the tax year the hospital facility last conducted a CHNA 2012

In conducting its most recent CHNA, did the hospital facility take into account input from persons who represent the broad

Interests of the community served by the hospital facility, including those with special knowledge of or expertise in public

health? If "Yes," describe in Part VI how the hospital facility took into account input from persons who represent the

community, and identify the persons the hospital faC|I|ty

consulted . .

Was the hospital faC|I|ty s CHNA conducted W|th one or more other hosp|ta| facilities? If "Yes," list the other hospital

facilities in Part VI

Did the hospital facility make its CHNA report W|der avallable to the publlc?

If "Yes," indicate howthe CHNA report was made widely available (check all that apply)

|7 Hospital facility’s website (list url) www baptistjax com
|7 Other website (ist url) http //ufhealthjax org

|7 Available upon request from the hospital facility

I_ Other (describe iInPart VI)

If the hospital facility addressed needs 1dentified in its most recently conducted CHNA, indicate how (check all that apply

as of the end of the tax year)

|7 Adoption of an Implementation strategy that addresses each of the community health needs identified through the
CHNA

|7 Execution of the Implementation strategy

|7 Participation in the development of a community-wide plan

|7 Participation in the execution of a community-wide plan

|7 Inclusion of a community benefit section in operational plans

|7 Adoption of a budget for provision of services that address the needs identified in the CHNA

|7 Prioritization of health needs I1n 1ts community

|7 Prioritization of services that the hospital facility will undertake to meet health needs in its community
|_ Other (describe iInPart VI)

Did the hospital facility address all of the needs identified in its most recently conducted CHNA? If"No," explainin Part VI
which needs It has not addressed and the reasons why It has not addressed such needs .

Did the organization incur an excise tax under section 4959 for the hospital facility's failure to conduct a CHNA as
required by section 501(r)(3)?.

If"Yes" to line 8a, did the organization file Form 4720 to report the section 4959 excise tax? .

c If"Yes" to line 8b, what Is the total amount of section 4959 excise tax the organization reported on Form 4720 for all of its

hospital facilities? $

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

8a

8b

Schedule H (Form 990) 2013
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Facility Information (continued)

Financial Assistance Policy Yes | No
9 Did the hospital facility have in place during the tax year a written financial assistance policy that

Explained eligibility criteria for financial assistance, and whether such assistance includes free or discounted care? 9 |Yes
10 Used federal poverty guidelines (FPG) to determine eligibility for providing freecare? . . . . . . . . . . . 10 | Yes

If"Yes," indicate the FPG family income limit for eligibility for free care 200%
If "No," explainin Part VI the criteria the hospital facility used
11 Used FPG to determine eligibility for providing discounted care? . . .+ + & « & & & & & & &« 4 & W . 11 | Yes

If "Yes," indicate the FPG family income limit for eligibility for discounted care 400%
If "No," explainin Part VI the criteria the hospital facility used
Explained the basis for calculating amounts charged to patients? . . . . . . . + « «+ « « & « « « . 12 | Yes

=
N

If "Yes," indicate the factors used in determining such amounts (check all that apply)
|7 Income level

a
b |7 Asset level

c |7 Medical indigency

d |7 Insurance status

e |7 Uninsured discount

f |7 Medicaid/Medicare

g |7 State regulation

h |7 Residency

i I_Other(descrlbeln Part VI)
13 Explained the method for applying for financial assistance? . . . . . . .+ .« « v « W« « & 4 4 4 . . 13 | Yes
14 Included measures to publicize the policy within the community served by the hospital facility? . . . . . . . 14 | Yes

If "Yes," indicate how the hospital facility publicized the policy (check all that apply)

a |_ The policy was posted on the hospital facility’s website

b |_ The policy was attached to billing invoices

c |_ The policy was posted in the hospital facility’s emergency rooms or waiting rooms

d |_ The policy was posted in the hospital facility’s admissions offices

e |_ The policy was provided, in writing, to patients on admission to the hospital facility

f |7 The policy was available upon request

g |_ Other (describe in Part VI)

Billing and Collections

15 Did the hospital facility have in place during the tax year a separate billing and collections policy, or a written financial
assistance policy (FAP) that explained actions the hospital facility may take upon non-payment? . . . . 15 | Yes

16 Check all of the following actions against an individual that were permitted under the hospital facility's poI|C|es durlng
the tax year before making reasonable efforts to determine the individual’s eligibility under the facility’s FAP

I_ Reporting to credit agency

I_ Lawsuits

|_ Liens on residences

I_ Body attachments

I_ Other similar actions (describe in Section C)

o & n T O

17 Did the hospital facility or an authorized third party perform any of the following actions during the tax year before
making reasonable efforts to determine the individual’s eligibility under the facility’s FAP? . . . . . . . . . .17 No

If "Yes," check all actions in which the hospital facility or a third party engaged
a I_ Reporting to credit agency
b |_ Lawsuits
c |_ Liens on residences
d I_ Body attachments
e I_ Other similar actions (describe in Section C)

Schedule H (Form 990) 2013
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Facility Information (continued)
18 Indicate which efforts the hospital facility made before initiating any of the actions listed in line 17 (check all that apply)
I_ Notified individuals of the financial assistance policy on admission

|7 Notified individuals of the financial assistance policy prior to discharge
|7 Notified individuals of the financial assistance policy iIn communications with the individuals regarding the individuals’bills

|7 Documented its determination of whether individuals were eligible for financial assistance under the hospital facility’s
financial assistance policy

e |7 Other (describe in Section C)
Policy Relating to Emergency Medical Care

Q n T o

Yes| No

19 Did the hospital facility have in place during the tax year a written policy relating to emergency medical care that requires
the hospital facility to provide, without discrimination, care for emergency medical conditions to individuals regardless of
their eligibility under the hospital facility’s financial assistance policy? . . . . . . . . . . 19 [Yes
If "No," indicate why

|_ The hospital facility did not provide care for any emergency medical conditions
|_ The hospital facility’s policy was not in writing

n o o

|_ The hospital facility Iimited who was eligible to receive care for emergency medical conditions (describe in Part VI)
d |_ Other (describe in Part VI)

Charges to Individuals Eligible for Assistance under the FAP (FAP-Eligible Individuals)
20 Indicate how the hospital facility determined, during the tax year, the maximum amounts that can be charged to FAP-
eligible individuals for emergency or other medically necessary care

a |_ The hospital facility used 1ts lowest negotiated commercial insurance rate when calculating the maximum amounts that
can be charged

b |_ The hospital facility used the average of its three lowest negotiated commercial insurance rates when calculating the
maximum amounts that can be charged

c |_ The hospital facility used the Medicare rates when calculating the maximum amounts that can be charged
|7 Other (describe iInPart VI)
21 During the tax year, did the hospital facility charge any FAP-eligible individual to whom the hospital facility provided

emergency or other medically necessary services more than the amounts generally billed to individuals who had insurance
coveringsuchcare? . . . . . . . . 4 44w e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 21 No

If"Yes," explain in Part VI

22 During the tax year, did the hospital facility charge any FAP-eligible individual an amount equal to the gross charge for any
service provided to that individual? . . . . . . .+ & & & & 0 i 4 4 e e e e e e e 22 No

If"Yes," explain in Part VI

Schedule H (Form 990) 2013
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Facility Information (continued)

Section C. Supplemental Information for Part V, Section B.Provide descriptions required for Part V, Section B, lines
1y, 3,4, 5d, 61, 7, 10, 11, 121, 14q, 16e, 17¢, 18e, 19¢, 19d, 20d, 21, and 22. If applicable, provide separate descriptions
for each facility 1n a facility reporting group, designated by "Facility A," "Facility B," etc.

Form and Line Reference Explanation

See Additional Data Table

Schedule H (Form 990) 2013
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Facility Information (continued)

Section D. Other Health Care Facilities That Are Not Licensed, Registered, or Similarly Recognized as a
Hospital Facility
(hst in order of size, from largest to smallest)

How many non-hospital health care facilities did the organization operate during the tax year? 0
Name and address Type of Facility (describe)
1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

Schedule H (Form 990) 2013
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m Supplemental Information

Provide the following information

1 Required descriptions. Provide the descriptions required for Part I, lines 3¢, 6a,and 7, PartII and PartIII, ines 2, 3,4, 8 and 9b
Needs assessment. Describe how the organization assesses the health care needs of the communities 1t serves, in addition to any
CHNASs reported Iin Part V, Section B

3 Patient education of eligibility for assistance. Describe how the organization informs and educates patients and persons who may
be billed for patient care about their eligibility for assistance under federal, state, or local government programs or under the
organization’s financilal assistance policy

4 Community information. Describe the community the organization serves, taking into account the geographic area and demographic
constituents It serves

5 Promotion of community health. Provide any other information important to describing how the organization’s hospital facilities or
other health care facilities further its exempt purpose by promoting the health of the community (e g, open medical staff, community
board, use of surplus funds, etc )

6 Affiliated health care system. If the organization 1s part of an affiliated health care system, describe the respective roles of the
organization and its affiliates in promoting the health of the communities served

7 State filing of community benefit report. If applicable, identify all states with which the organization, or a related organization, files
a community benefit report

Form and Line Reference Explanation
Schedule H, Part I, Line 6a, BAPTIST HEALTH SYSTEM, INC

Community benefit report prepared by
related organization




Form and Line Reference Explanation

Schedule H, Part I, Line 7, Costing [THE ORGANIZATION USES A COST-TO-CHARGE RATIO BASED ON ITS COST ACCOUNTING

Methodology used to calculate SYSTEM

financial assistance




Form and Line Reference

Explanation

Schedule H, Part I, Line 7, col(f), Bad
Debt Expense excluded from financial
assistance calculation




Form and Line Reference

Explanation

Schedule H, Part I, Line 7g,
Subsidized Health Services

N/A




Form and Line Reference

Explanation

Schedule H, Part II, Community
Building Activities

LINE 3 COMMUNITY SUPPORT (1) SUMMER YOUTH VOLUNTEER PROGRAM - BAPTIST
HEALTH OFFERS OPPORTUNITIES FOR APPROXIMATELY 15 YOUNG PEOPLE AGES 16-17TO
VOLUNTEER DURING THE SUMMER TO ASSIST IN THE SELECTION OF A CAREER AND AS AN
OPPORTUNITY TO SERVE OTHERS BAPTIST EMPLOYEES SUPERVISE THE VOLUNTEERS
GIVING THEM DIRECTION AND SUPPORT DURING THEIR SERVICE LINE 6 COALITION
BUILDING (1) JACKSONVILLE METROPOLITAN COMMUNITY BENEFIT PARTNERSHIP CAME
TOGETHER TO DEVELOP A MULTI-HOSPITAL SYSTEM AND PUBLIC HEALTH SECTOR
COLLABORATIVE COMMUNITY HEALTH NEEDS ASSESSMENT THE PARTNERSHIP IS A
NETWORK OF FIVE HOSPITALS AND FOUR PUBLIC HEALTH DEPARTMENTS THAT ARE A
SHARED VOICE TO IMPROVE POPULATION HEALTH BY ELIMINATING THE GAPS THAT
PREVENT QUALITY,INTEGRATED HEALTH CARE AND TO IMPROVE ACCESS TO RESOURCES
THAT SUPPORT A HEALTHIER LIFESTYLE (2) NASSAU COMMUNITY HEALTH IMPROVEMENT
COALITION - BAPTIST MEDICAL CENTER OF NASSAU IS A MEMBER OF THE NASSAU
COMMUNITY HEALTH IMPROVEMENT COALITION (NCHIC) NCHIC IS A COALITION OF
LOCAL AGENCIES, ORGANIZATIONS, COMMUNITY GROUPS, AND COMMUNITY MEMBERS
WITH THE COMMON GOAL OF IMPROVING THE OVERALL HEALTH OF THE NASSAU COUNTY
COMMUNITY THE COALITION WORKS TO IMPROVE THE LEVEL OF HEALTH IN NASSAU
COUNTY THROUGH AWARENESS, EDUCATION, PARTNERSHIP, PREVENTION, SERVICE
DELIVERY, AND POLICY DEVELOPMENT SO THAT INDIVIDUALS ACHIEVE THEIR POTENTIAL
TO LIVE HEALTHY, ACTIVE LIFESTYLES LINE7 COMMUNITY HEALTH IMPROVEMENT
IADVOCACY (1) IN PARTNERSHIP WITH BARNABAS CENTER NASSAU, BAPTIST NASSAU
WORKS TO PROVIDE ACCESS TO PRIMARY HEALTH CARE FOR PEOPLE WHO ARE UNINSURED
IAND UNDERINSURED (2) BAPTIST MEDICAL CENTER SUPPORTS ACCESS TO MENTAL
HEALTH SERVICES IN PARTNERSHIP WITH STARTING POINT BEHAVIORAL HEALTH TO
PROVIDE MENTAL HEALTH FIRST AID THAT TEACHES PARTICIPANTS A FIVE-STEP ACTION
PLAN TO ASSESS A SITUATION, SELECT AND IMPLEMENT INTERVENTIONS AND SECURE
IAPPROPRIATE CARE FOR THE INDIVIDUAL (3)BAPTIST NASSAU PARTNERS WITH THE
NASSAU COUNTY COUNCILON AGINGTO SUPPORT THE PROVISION OF TRANSPORTATION
PROGRAM FOR THE ELDERLY IN A COMMUNITY WHERE NO PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION IS
IAVAILABLE (4) BAPTIST NASSAU ALSO PARTNERS WITH THE BOYS AND GIRLS CLUBOF
NASSAU COUNTY TO PROVIDE POSITIVE YOUTH DEVELOPMENT ACTIVITIES THE GOALS
OF WHICH ARE TO HELP STUDENTS BE SUCCESSFULIN SCHOOL AND LIFE INCLUDING ON-

[TIME GRADUATION FROM HIGH SCHOOL




Form and Line Reference

Explanation

Schedule H, Part III, Line 2, Bad debt
expense - methodology used to
estimate amount

PATIENT SERVICE REVENUES ARE REPORTED AT ESTIMATED NET REALIZABLE AMOUNTS
FOR SERVICES RENDERED BHS RECOGNIZES PATIENT SERVICE REVENUES ASSOCIATED
WITH PATIENTS WHO HAVE THIRD-PARTY PAYOR COVERAGE ON THE BASIS OF
CONTRACTUAL RATES FORTHE SERVICES RENDERED FOR UNINSURED PATIENTS THAT DO
NOT QUALIFY FOR CHARITY CARE, REVENUE IS RECOGNIZED ON THE BASIS OF
DISCOUNTED RATES IN ACCORDANCE WITH BHS' POLICY PATIENT SERVICE REVENUES
IARE REDUCED BY THE PROVISION FOR BAD DEBTS AND ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE ARE
REDUCED BY AN ALLOWANCE FORUNCOLLECTIBLE ACCOUNTS THESE AMOUNTS ARE
BASED ON MANAGEMENT'S ASSESSMENT OF HISTORICAL AND EXPECTED NET
COLLECTIONS FOREACH MAJORPAYOR SOURCE, CONSIDERING BUSINESS AND
ECONOMIC CONDITIONS, TRENDS IN HEALTH CARE COVERAGE AND OTHER COLLECTION
INDICATORS MANAGEMENT REGULARLY REVIEWS COLLECTIONS DATA BY MAJOR PAYOR
SOURCES IN EVALUATING THE SUFFICIENCY OF THE ALLOWANCE FORUNCOLLECTIBLE
IACCOUNTS ON THE BASIS OF HISTORICAL EXPERIENCE, A SIGNIFICANT PORTION OF BHS'
SELF-PAY PATIENTS WILL BE UNABLE OR UNWILLING TO PAY FOR THE SERVICES
PROVIDED THUS,BHS RECORDS A SIGNIFICANT PROVISION FOR BAD DEBTS IN THE
PERIOD SERVICES ARE PROVIDED RELATED TO SELF-PAY PATIENTS FORRECEIVABLES
INSSOCIATED WITH PATIENTS WHO HAVE THIRD-PARTY COVERAGE, BHS ANALYZES
CONTRACTUALLY DUE AMOUNTS AND PROVIDES AN ALLOWANCE FORUNCOLLECTIBLE
INCCOUNTS AND A PROVISION FOR BAD DEBTS,IF NECESSARY ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
IARE WRITTEN OFF AFTER COLLECTION EFFORTS HAVE BEEN FOLLOWED IN ACCORDANCE

WITH BHS' POLICIES




Form and Line Reference Explanation

Schedule H, Part I11, Line 3, Bad  [THE ENTIRE PROVISION FOR BAD DEBTS IS RECORDED AS A DEDUCTION FROM PATIENT
SERVICE REVENUES NONE OF THE PROVISION IS INCLUDED IN THE EXPENSES OF THE

Debt Expense Methodology
FORM 990 INCLUDING SCHEDULE HAND THE CALCULATION OF COMMUNITY BENEFIT




Form and Line Reference

Explanation

Schedule H, Part III, Line 4, Bad debt
expense - financial statement
footnote

BAPTIST HEALTH SYSTEM,INC AND SUBSIDIARIES NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS 2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES NET PATIENT SERVICE REVENUES,
INCCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, AND PROVISION FOR BAD DEBTS PATIENT SERVICE REVENUES
IARE REPORTED AT ESTIMATED NET REALIZABLE AMOUNTS FOR SERVICES RENDERED THE
ORGANIZATION RECOGNIZES PATIENT SERVICE REVENUES ASSOCIATED WITH PATIENTS
WHO HAVE THIRD-PARTY PAYOR COVERAGE ON THE BASIS OF CONTRACTUAL RATES FOR
THE SERVICES RENDERED FOR UNINSURED PATIENTS THAT DO NOT QUALIFY FOR
CHARITY CARE,REVENUE IS RECOGNIZED ON THE BASIS OF DISCOUNTED RATES IN
IACCORDANCE WITH THE ORGANIZATION'S POLICY PATIENT SERVICE REVENUES ARE
REDUCED BY THE PROVISION FOR BAD DEBTS AND ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE ARE REDUCED
BY AN ALLOWANCE FORUNCOLLECTIBLE ACCOUNTS THESE AMOUNTS ARE BASED ON
MANAGEMENT'S ASSESSMENT OF HISTORICAL AND EXPECTED NET COLLECTIONS FOR
EACH MAJORPAYOR SOURCE, CONSIDERING BUSINESS AND ECONOMIC CONDITIONS,
[TRENDS IN HEALTHCARE COVERAGE AND OTHER COLLECTION INDICATORS MANAGEMENT
REGULARLY REVIEWS COLLECTIONS DATA BY MAJOR PAYOR SOURCES IN EVALUATING THE
SUFFICIENCY OF THE ALLOWANCE FORUNCOLLECTIBLE ACCOUNTS ON THE BASIS OF
HISTORICAL EXPERIENCE, A SIGNIFICANT PORTION OF THE ORGANIZATION'S SELF-PAY
PATIENTS WILL BE UNABLE OR UNWILLING TO PAY FORTHE SERVICES PROVIDED THUS,
[THE ORGANIZATION RECORDS A SIGNIFICANT PROVISION FOR BAD DEBTS IN THE PERIOD
SERVICES ARE PROVIDED RELATED TO SELF-PAY PATIENTS FOR RECEIVABLES
INSSOCIATED WITH PATIENTS WHO HAVE THIRD-PARTY COVERAGE, THE ORGANIZATION
IANALYSES CONTRACTUALLY DUE AMOUNTS AND PROVIDES AN ALLOWANCE FOR
UNCOLLECTIBLE ACCOUNTS AND A PROVISION FOR BAD DEBTS,IF NECESSARY
IACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE ARE WRITTEN OFF AFTER COLLECTION EFFORT HAS BEEN

FOLLOWED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE ORGANIZATION'S POLICIES 18832973




Form and Line Reference Explanation

MEDICARE ALLOWABLE COSTS OF CARE BASED ON THE ORGANIZATION'S COST-TO-
CHARGE RATIO AND COST ACCOUNTING SYSTEM ARE USED TO DETERMINE THE AMOUNT
REPORTED ON LINE 6 NONE OF THE SHORTFALL REPORTED ON LINE 7 ISINCLUDED IN
SCHEDULE H, PART I

Schedule H, Part III, Line 8,
Community benefit & methodology for
determining medicare costs




Form and Line Reference Explanation

YES, THE ORGANIZATION DOES HAVE A WRITTEN DEBT COLLECTION POLICY THE POLICY
DOES NOT SPECIFICALLY ADDRESS THOSE PATIENTS WHO ARE KNOWN TO QUALIFY OR
HAVE APPLIED FOR CHARITY CARE AS THE ORGANIZATION DOES NOT BILL THESE
PATIENTS THE ORGANIZATION'S COST ACCOUNTING SYSTEM IDENTIFIES ALL PATIENTS
WHO HAVE A PENDING OR APPROVED CHARITY APPLICATION THE ORGANIZATION WOULD
ONLY BILL THE PATIENT IF, AFTER MULTIPLE ATTEMPTS TO OBTAIN ANY NEEDED
DOCUMENTATION FROM THE PATIENT TO COMPLETE THE CHARITY APPROVAL PROCESS,
THE PATIENT WAS NONCOMPLIANT

Schedule H, Part III, Line 9b,
Collection practices for patients
eligible for financial assistance




Form and Line Reference

Explanation

Schedule H, Part VI, Line 2, Needs
assessment

BAPTIST HEALTH SYSTEM INC (BHS), PARENT COMPANY OF THE FILING ORGANIZATION, IS
IA MEMBER OF THE JACKSONVILLE COMMUNITY BENEFIT PARTNERSHIP THAT IS A
COLLABORATIVE OF 5 HOSPITALS WHO WORKTOGETHERTO ACCESS AND ADDRESS
IMPORTANT COMMUNITY HEALTH NEEDS BAPTIST HEALTH HAS PARTNERED WITH 6 FAITH-
BASED ORGANIZATIONS LOCATED IN VULNERABLE LOW-INCOME NEIGHBORHOODS IN
NASSAU COUNTY WHERE A HEALTH NEEDS SURVEY IS CONDUCTED ANNUALLY THE
SURVEY OF THE MEMBERS OF OUR FAITH-BASED PARTNERS IS ANONYMOUS IN ADDITION,
DATA IS GATHERED FROM THE NORTHEAST FLORIDA COUNTS WEBSITE WHICH SERVES AS
IA SOURCE OF POPULATION DATA AND INFORMATION ABOUT THE HEALTH STATUS OF THE
COMMUNITY IT GATHERS INFORMATION FOR BAKER, CLAY, DUVAL, FLAGLER, NASSAU, ST

JOHNS, AND VOLUSIA COUNTIES




Form and Line Reference Explanation

Schedule H, Part VI, Line 3, Patient |°T EVERY PATIENT ACCESS POINT, "GUIDELINES FOR CHARITY CARE ELIGIBILITY" CARDS
education of eligibility for assistance J*RE PROVIDED THAT CONTAINS FINANCIAL DISCOUNT AND CHARITY CARE

INFORMATION THIS INCLUDES A GENERAL CHART OF ELIGIBLE INCOME LEVELS AND
ENCOURAGES PATIENTS TO SPEAK WITH ONE OF OUR PATIENT FINANCIAL ADVOCATES TO
ARRANGE A FINANCIAL EVALUATION THE ORGANIZATION SENDS STATEMENTS TO
PATIENTS WHO HAVE APPLIED FOR CHARITY CARE BUT HAVE NOT PROVIDED ALL THE
DOCUMENTATION THAT IS REQUIRED TO MAKE A DETERMINATION, LETTERS ARE SENT BY
THE ORGANIZATION REQUESTING THE INFORMATION TO COMPLETE THEIR APPLICATION




Form and Line Reference Explanation

BAPTIST MEDICAL CENTER OF NASSAU NASSAU COUNTY NASSAU COUNTY HASA TOTAL
IAREA OF 725 86 SQUARE MILES, OF WHICH 651 55 SQUARE MILES (OR 89 76%) IS LAND
IAND 74 30 SQUARE MILES (OR 10 24%)IS WATER, MUCH OFIT IN THE ATLANTIC OCEAN
FERNANDINA BEACH IS LOCATED ON AMELIA ISLAND, THE COUNTY'S ONE INHABITED
ISLAND THERE ARE 75,710 PEOPLE RESIDING IN NASSAU THE COUNTY THE RACIAL
MAKEUP OF THE COUNTY IS 90 02% WHITE, 7 74% BLACK OR AFRICAN AMERICAN, 0 43%
NATIVE AMERICAN, 0 46% ASIAN,0 03% PACIFIC ISLANDER, 0 32% FROM OTHER RACES,
IAND 1 00% FROM TWO OR MORE RACES 151% OFTHE POPULATION ARE HISPANIC OR
LATINO OF ANY RACE INTHE COUNTY THE POPULATION IS SPREAD OQUT WITH 25 00%
UNDER THE AGE OF 18,7 20% FROM 18 TO 24,28 80% FROM 25 TO 44,26 30% FROM45TO
64, AND 12 60% WHO ARE 65 YEARS OF AGE OROLDER THE MEDIAN AGE IS 38 YEARS THE
MEDIAN INCOME FORA HOUSEHOLD IN THE COUNTY IS $46,022, AND THE MEDIAN
INCOME FOR A FAMILY WAS $52,477 MALES HAD A MEDIAN INCOME OF $37,027 VERSUS
$25,443 FOR FEMALES THE PER CAPITA INCOME FORTHE COUNTY IS $22,836 ABOUT

6 40% OF FAMILIES AND © 10% OF THE POPULATION IS BELOWTHE POVERTY LINE,
INCLUDING 10 90% OFTHOSE UNDER AGE 18 AND 8 90% OF THOSE AGE 65 OROVER

Schedule H, Part VI, Line 4,
Community information




Form and Line Reference

Explanation

Schedule H, Part VI, Line 5,
P romotion of community health

BAPTIST HEALTH SYSTEM INC (BHS), PARENT COMPANY OF THE FILING ORGANIZATION,
CONTINUES TO MAINTAIN AN OPEN MEDICAL STAFF A DESIGNATED SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITY COMMUNITY HEALTH BOARD COMMITTEE CONSISTING OF NORTHEAST
FLORIDA RESIDENTS WHO ALSO SERVE ON BAPTIST HOSPITAL BOARDS OF DIRECTORS
PROVIDES DIRECTIONTO THE COMMUNITY HEALTH WORK BASED ON THE COMMUNITY
NEED WITHIN THE FOUR COUNTY AREA SERVED BY BAPTIST HEALTH BAPTIST HEALTH
CONTINUES TO DONATE MORE THAN $1 6 MILLION TO SUPPORT NONPROFIT
ORGANIZATIONS THAT PROVIDE HEALTH SERVICES TO THE UNDERSERVED AND LOW
INCOME COMMUNITY SOME OF THE NONPROFIT ORGANIZATIONS PROVIDE PRIMARY
CARE FORTHE UNINSURED AND THE UNDERINSURED SOME PROVIDE BEHAVIORAL HEALTH
SERVICES TO FAMILIES WHO WOULD NOT OTHERWISE HAVE ACCESS WHILE OTHERS

PROVIDE HEALTH SERVICES AND TRANSPORTATION FOR THE FRAIL ELDERLY




Form and Line Reference Explanation

BAPTIST HEALTH SYSTEM, INC (BHS)IS THE PARENT AFFILIATE OF BAPTIST MEDICAL
CENTER OF NASSAU,INC (BMCN) THE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY AND COMMUNITY HEALTH
TEAM AT BHS COORDINATES THE FUNDING OF NONPROFIT PARTNERS FOR BMCN AND
WORKS WITH OUR EMPLOYEES IN FACILITATING VOLUNTEER OPPORTUNITIES ACROSS
OCURCOMMUNITY MEMBERS OF THE BMCN BOARD OF DIRECTORS ALSO SERVE ON THE
SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY AND COMMUNITY HEALTH COMMITTEE BMCN WORKS CLOSELY
WITH A NUMBER OF NONPROFIT PARTNERS TO MEET THE COMMUNITY HEALTH NEEDS OF
NASSAU COUNTY, FLORIDA

Schedule H, Part VI, Line 6, Affillated
health care system




Form and Line Reference Explanation
BAPTIST HEALTH SYSTEM, INC (BHS), PARENT COMPANY OF THE FILING ORGANIZATION,

SCHEDULE H, PART VI, LINE 7,

STATE FILING OF COMMUNITY  [[S LOCATED WITHIN THE NORTHEAST FLORIDA QUADRANT THERE ARE NO REQUIREMENTS

BENEFIT REPORT FOR STATE FILING IN FLORIDA OF THE ANNUAL COMMUNITY BENEFIT REPORT HOWEVER,
BHS DOES PUBLISH THE REPORT AND IT IS AVAILABLE UPON REQUEST OR AT THE

WWW BAPTISTIAX COM WEBSITE
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Additional Data

Software ID: 13000248
Software Version: 2013v3.1
EIN: 59-3234721
Name: BAPTIST MEDICAL CENTER OF NASSAU INC

|Ifor each facilit

Section C. Supplemental Information for Part V, Section B.Provide descriptions required for Part V, Section B, lines
1y, 3, 4, 5d, 61,

7,10, 11, 121, 14q, 16e, 17e, 18e, 19c¢, 19d, 20d, 21, and 22. If applicable, provide separate descriptions
in a facility reporting group, designated by "Facility A," "Facility B," etc.

Form and Line

Explanation

Reference

Schedule H, (1)- BAPTIST MEDICAL CENTER OF NASSAU,INC NINE HOSPITALS (BAPTIST MEDICAL CENTER, BAPTIST
PartV Sec B, MEDICAL CENTER SOUTH, WOLFSON CHILDREN'S HOSPITAL, BAPTIST MEDICAL CENTER OF THE BEACHES,
Line 3, INC ,BAPTIST MEDICAL CENTER OF NASSAU,INC ,MAYO CLINIC, ST VINCENT'S MEDICAL CENTER RIVERSIDE,
Community ST VINCENT'S MEDICAL CENTER SOUTH AND UF HEALTH)AND FOUR DEPARTMENTS OF HEALTH (FLORIDA
Served by DEPARTMENTS' OF HEALTH FOR CLAY COUNTY, DUVAL COUNTY, ST JOHN'S COUNTY AND NASSAU COUNTY)
Needs CONVENED WITH THE HEALTH PLANNING COUNCIL OF NORTHEAST FLORIDA TO FACILITATE THE CHNA EACH
Assessment HOSPITALAGREED ONITS RESPECTIVE TARGETED COMMUNITIES INTERNALHOSPITAL CENSUS, EXISTING

COMMUNITY BENEFIT PROGRAMS, AS WELL AS SECONDARY DATA COLLECTION WERE USED A COMMUNITY
HEALTH SURVEY WAS DEVELOPED AND ADMINISTERED TO A BROAD, VARIED RANGE OF RESIDENTS LIVING IN
THE TARGETED FIVE-COUNTY COMMUNITY THE SURVEY CONTAINED QUESTIONS REGARDING PERCEIVED
QUALITY OF LIFE AND HEALTH OF THE COMMUNITY, BARRIERS TO HEALTH CARE, USE OF HEALTH CARE NEEDS
AND DEMOGRAPHIC INFORMATION THE SURVEY INCLUDED PARTICIPANTS FORM CLAY,DUVAL, NASSAU AND
ST JOHNS COUNTIES THE INTERNET PANEL METHOD WAS USED IN ORDERTO REACH THE LARGEST POSSIBLE
NUMBER OF QUALIFIED RESPONDENTS FOCUS GROUPS AND ROUND TABLE DISCUSSIONS WERE ANOTHER
METHOD USED TO TAKE INTO ACCOUNT INPUT FROM THE PERSONS WHO REPRESENT THE BROAD INTEREST OF
COMMUNITY SERVED THE ROUNDTABLE DISCUSSIONS ALLOWED FORTHE IDENTIFICATION OF THE NEEDS
AND PRIORITIES OF PARTICIPANTS WHO HAVE THE KNOWLEDGE AND EXPERTISE TO INFORM THE RESEARCH
REPRESENTATIVES FROM CLAY,DUVAL, NASSAU,PUTNAM AND ST JOHNS COUNTIES GAVE THEIRINPUT ON
MULTIPLE DIMENSIONS OF THEIR COMMUNITIES, INCLUDING THE BUILT ENVIRONMENT, LOCAL ECONOMY,
BARRIERS TO ACCESS AND MOTIVATION FOR HEALTHY LIVING FORTHE SECONDARY RESEARCH, PUBLIC
HEALTH RELATED DATA WAS GATHERED FROM FIVE COUNTIES EACH COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT
PROVIDED AN ASSESSMENT THAT DETERMINED PUBLIC HEALTH PRIORITIES FOR THE NEXT THREE TO FIVE
YEARS THE PARTNERSHIP'S CHNA REFLECTS THE PRIORITIES IDENTIFIED IN THE HEALTH DEPARTMENT
ASSESSMENTS AND ITS CORRESPONDING HEALTH IMPROVEMENT PLAN ,




Section C. Supplemental Information for Part V, Section B.Provide descriptions required for Part V, Section B, lines
1y, 3,4, 5d, 61, 7, 10, 11, 121, 14q, 16e, 17¢, 18e, 19¢, 19d, 20d, 21, and 22. If applicable, provide separate descriptions
|Ifor each facility in a facility reporting group, designated by "Facility A," "Facility B," etc.

Form and Line
Reference

Explanation

Schedule H, Part V
Sec B, Line 4, Other
Hospital Facilities
included in Needs
Assessment

(1)- BAPTIST MEDICAL CENTER OF NASSAU,INC THE HOSPITALSINVOLVED IN THE CHNA WERE
BAPTIST MEDICAL CENTER - DUVAL COUNTY, BAPTIST MEDICAL CENTER BEACHES - DUVAL COUNTY,
BAPTIST MEDICAL CENTER - NASSAU COUNTY, BAPTIST MEDICAL CENTER SOUTH - DUVAL COUNTY AND
NORTHERN ST JOHNS COUNTY, BROOKS REHABILITATION -DUVAL COUNTY AND ST JOHNS COUNTY,
MAYO CLINIC - DUVAL COUNTY, ST VINCENT'S MEDICAL CENTER RIVERSIDE - DUVAL COUNTY, CLAY
COUNTY AND PUTNAM COUNTY, ST VINCENT'S MEDICAL CENTER SOUTHSIDE - DUVAL COUNTY, SHANDS
JACKSONVILLE MEDICAL CENTER - DUVAL COUNTY, AND WOLFSON CHILDREN'S HOSPITAL - DUVAL

COUNTY,




Section C. Supplemental Information for Part V, Section B.Provide descriptions required for Part V, Section B, lines
1y, 3,4, 5d, 61, 7, 10, 11, 121, 14q, 16e, 17¢, 18e, 19¢, 19d, 20d, 21, and 22. If applicable, provide separate descriptions
|Ifor each facility in a facility reporting group, designated by "Facility A," "Facility B," etc.

Form and Line
Reference

Explanation

Schedule H, Part
V Sec B, Line 7,
Needs not
addressed In
Needs
Assessment

(1)- BAPTIST MEDICAL CENTER OF NASSAU,INC BAPTIST MEDICAL CENTER OF NASSAU'S (BMCN)
SELECTED PRIORITIES ARE HEART DISEASE, STROKE, DIABETES, NUTRITION, MAMMO GRAM, SMOKING
CESSATION,AND ACCESSTO FOOD AND PHYSICAL ACTIVITY BMCN HAS CHOSEN NOT TO ACTIVELY
ADDRESS THE REMAINING HEALTH NEEDS IDENTIFIED IN THE CHNA AS THEY WERE NOT SELECTED AS
PRIORITY HEALTH NEEDS TAKING EXISTING COMMUNITY RESOURCES INTO CONSIDERATION AND THAT
SOME PRIORITIES ARE BEING ADDRESSED BY OTHER HOSPITALS OR ORGANIZATIONS, BMCN HAS
SELECTED TO CONCENTRATE ONLY ON THOSE HEALTH NEEDS THAT WE CAN MOST EFFECTIVELY ADDRESS
GIVEN OUR AREAS OF FOCUS AND EXPERTISE THE PRIORITIES IDENTIFIED IN THE CHNA THAT WERE NOT
ADDRESSED WERE (1) CLEAN AND HEALTHY ENVIRONMENT AIR AND WATER QUALITY, ADULT ASTHMA,
RESPIRATORY ILLNESS, AND (2) COMMUNICABLE DISEASES SEXUALLY TRANSMITTED DISEASES, (STDS),
INCLUDING HIV,INFLUENZA AND PNEUMONIA, HEPATITIS AND HOUSING ,




Section C. Supplemental Information for Part V, Section B.Provide descriptions required for Part V, Section B, lines
1y, 3,4, 5d, 61, 7, 10, 11, 121, 14q, 16e, 17¢, 18e, 19¢, 19d, 20d, 21, and 22. If applicable, provide separate descriptions
|Ifor each facility in a facility reporting group, designated by "Facility A," "Facility B," etc.

Form and Line Explanation
Reference

Schedule H, Part (1)- BAPTIST MEDICAL CENTER OF NASSAU,INC AT EVERY PATIENT ACCESS POINT, "GUIDELINES FOR

V Sec B, Line 18e, [ CHARITY CARE ELIGIBILITY" CARDS ARE PROVIDED THAT CONTAINS FINANCIAL DISCOUNT AND CHARITY
Efforts made CARE INFORMATION THISINCLUDES A GENERAL CHART OF ELIGIBLE INCOME LEVELS AND ENCOURAGES
before initiating PATIENTS TO SPEAK WITH OUR PATIENT FINANCIAL ADVOCATES TO ARRANGE A FINANCIAL EVALUATION
collection actions |IF SEEN BY ONE OF THE ORGANIZATION'S PATIENT FINANCIAL ADVOCATES, THE PATIENT IS ADVISED
PRIORTO DISCHARGE ALL STATEMENTS TO PATIENTS PROVIDE A NUMBER TO CALL IF THEY NEED
FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE ALL APPLICATIONS FORFINANCIAL ASSISTANCE ARE MAINTAINED WHETHER OR
NOT THE PATIENT QUALIFIES ,




Section C. Supplemental Information for Part V, Section B.Provide descriptions required for Part V, Section B, lines
1y, 3,4, 5d, 61, 7, 10, 11, 121, 14q, 16e, 17¢, 18e, 19¢, 19d, 20d, 21, and 22. If applicable, provide separate descriptions
|Ifor each facility in a facility reporting group, designated by "Facility A," "Facility B," etc.

Form and Line Reference Explanation

Schedule H, Part V Sec B, Line 20d, How amounts (1)- BAPTIST MEDICAL CENTER OF NASSAU,INC THE ORGANIZATION HAS
charged to FAP-eligible patients were determined AN AUTOMATIC 40% DISCOUNT FORALLUNINSURED PATIENTS,
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Schedule 1
(Form 990)

Department of the Treasury
Internal Revenue Service

Name of the organization

BAPTIST MEDICAL CENTER OF NASSAU INC

Grants and Other Assistance to Organizations,
Governments and Individuals in the United States

Complete if the organization answered "Yes," to Form 990, Part 1V, line 21 or 22.
# Attach to Form 990
P Information about Schedule I (Form 990) and its instructions is at www.irs.gov /form990.

OMB No 1545-0047

2013

Open to Public
Inspection

59-3234721

Employer identification number

m General Information on Grants and Assistance

1 Does the organization maintain records to substantiate the amount of the grants or assistance, the grantees' eligibility for the grants or assistance, and
the selection criteria used to award the grants or assistance?.

2 Describe in Part IV the organization's procedures for monitoring the use of grant funds n the Unlted States

¥ Yes [ No

m Grants and Other Assistance to Governments and Organizations in the United States. Complete If the organization answered "Yes" to
Form 990, Part 1V, line 21, for any recipient that received more than $5,000. Part II can be duplicated if additional space 1s needed.

(a) Name and address of (b) EIN (c) IRC Code section| (d) Amount of cash (e) Amount of non- (f) Method of (g) Description of (h) Purpose of grant
organization If applicable grant cash valuation non-cash assistance | or assistance
or government assistance (book, FMV, appraisal,
other)
(1)BOYS AND GIRLS CLUB 59-3672345 501(C)(3) 15,000 SUPPORT FOR
OF NASSAU COUNTY YOUTH TO IMPROVE
FOUNDATION INC THEIR LIVES IN THE
PO BOX 16003 NASSAU COUNTY
FERNANDINA BEACH,FL COMMUNITY
32035
(2) NASSAU COUNTY N/A 10,350 DONATIONTO

ECONOMIC
DEVELOPMENT BOARD
INC

76346 WILLIAM BURGESS
BLVD

YULEE,FL 32097

NASSAU COUNTY
GOVERNMENT
INGENCY FOR JOB
CREATION AND
ECONOMIC
GROWTH

2 Enter total number of section 501 (c)(3) and government organizations listed in the line 1 table .

3 Enter total number of other organizations listed in the line 1 table .

[
>

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990.

Cat No 50055P

Schedule I (Form 990) 2013



Schedule I (Form 990) 2013

Page 2
m Grants and Other Assistance to Individuals in the United States. Complete If the organization answered "Yes" to Form 990, Part IV, line 22.
Part III can be duplicated If additional space Is needed.

(a)Type of grant or assistance (b)Number of

recipients

(c)Amount of
cash grant

(d)Amount of
non-cash assistance

(e)Method of valuation
(book,
FMV, appraisal, other)

(f)Description of non-cash assistance

Part IV Supplemental Information. Provide the information required in Part I, line 2, Part I1I, column (b), and any other additional information.

Return Reference

Explanation

Schedule I, PartI, Line 2,
Procedures for monitoring use of
grant funds

Schedule I, PartII, ColumnH,

ANNUAL BUDGETS FOR COMMUNITY DONATIONS ARE PREPARED BY THE HOSPITAL ORGANIZATION AND APPROVED BY BAPTIST HEALTH
SYSTEM,INC ,PARENT AFFILIATE OF THE ORGANIZATION

Purpose of grant or assistance

NASSAU COUNTY ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT BOARD,INC ,N/A DONATION TO NASSAU COUNTY GOVERNMENT AGENCY FORJOB
CREATION AND ECONOMIC GROWTH ,

Schedule I (Form 990) 2013
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Schedule J Compensation Information OMB No 1545-0047

(Form 990)

For certain Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest
Compensated Employees
k- Complete if the organization answered "Yes" to Form 990, Part 1V, line 23.

2013

Department of the Treasury k- Attach to Form 990. & See separate instructions. Open to Public
Intemal Revenue Service » Information about Schedule J (Form 990) and its instructions is at www.irs.gov/form990. Inspection

Name of the organization

BAPTIST MEDICAL CENTER OF NASSAU INC

59-3234721

Employer identification number

m Questions Regarding Compensation

la

Check the appropiate box(es) If the organization provided any of the following to or for a person listed in Form
990, Part VII, Section A, line 1a Complete Part III to provide any relevant information regarding these items

[T First-class or charter travel [T Housing allowance or residence for personal use
[T Travel for companions [T Payments for business use of personal residence
[T Tax idemnification and gross-up payments [T Health or social club dues or initiation fees

[T Discretionary spending account [T Personal services (e g, maid, chauffeur, chef)

If any of the boxes in line 1a are checked, did the organization follow a written policy regarding payment or
reimbursement or provision of all of the expenses described above? If "No," complete Part III to explain

Did the organization require substantiation prior to reimbursing or allowing expenses incurred by all
directors, trustees, officers, including the CEO /Executive Director, regarding the items checked in line 1a?

Indicate which, If any, of the following the filing organization used to establish the compensation of the
organization's CEO /Executive Director Check all that apply Do not check any boxes for methods

used by a related organization to establish compensation of the CEO /Executive Director, but explain in Part III
I_ Written employment contract

I Compensation survey or study

I_ Compensation committee
[T Independent compensation consultant

[T Form 990 of other organizations [T Approval by the board or compensation committee

During the year, did any person listed in Form 990, Part VII, Section A, line 1a with respect to the filing organization
or a related organization

Recelve a severance payment or change-of-control payment?
Participate In, or receive payment from, a supplemental nonqualified retirement plan?

Participate In, or recelve payment from, an equity-based compensation arrangement?
If"Yes" to any of lines 4a-c, list the persons and provide the applicable amounts for each item in Part III

Only 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) organizations only must complete lines 5-9.

For persons listed in Form 990, Part VII, Section A, line 1a, did the organization pay or accrue any
compensation contingent on the revenues of

The organization?
Any related organization?
If"Yes," to line 5a or 5b, describe iIn Part II1

For persons listed in Form 990, Part VII, Section A, line 1a, did the organization pay or accrue any
compensation contingent on the net earnings of

The organization?
Any related organization?
If"Yes," to line 6a or 6b, describe iIn Part II1

For persons listed in Form 990, Part VII, Section A, line 1a, did the organization provide any non-fixed
payments not described in lines 5 and 6? If "Yes," describe in Part I1I

Were any amounts reported in Form 990, Part VII, paid or accured pursuant to a contract that was
subject to the initial contract exception described in Regulations section 53 4958-4(a)(3)? If "Yes," describe
inPartIII

If"Yes" to line 8, did the organization also follow the rebuttable presumption procedure described in Regulations
section 53 4958-6(c)?

Yes | No
ib
2
4a No
4b | Yes
4c No
5a No
5b No
6a No
6b | Yes
7 No
8 No
9

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. Cat No 500537 Schedule J (Form 990) 2013



Schedule J (Form 990) 2013

Page 2

Im Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees. Use duplicate copies If additional space 1s needed.

For each individual whose compensation must be reported in Schedule ], report compensation from the organization on row (1) and from related organizations, described in the
instructions, on row (11) Do not list any individuals that are not listed on Form 990, Part VII
Note. The sum of columns (B)(1)-(in) for each listed individual must equal the total amount of Form 990, Part VII, Section A, line 1a, applicable column (D) and (E) amounts for that individual

(A) Name and Title

(B) Breakdown of W-2 and/or 1099-MISC compensation

(C) Retirement and

(D) Nontaxable

(E) Total of columns

(F) Compensation

(i) Base (ii) Bonus & (iii) Other other deferred benefits (B)(1)-(D) reported as deferred
compensation incentive reportable compensation In prior Form 990
P compensation compensation

(1)A HUGH GREENE 0 o 0 0 0 0 0 0
PRESIDENT & >
DIRECTOR (ii) 752,886 290,000 30,000 499,028 15,863 1,587,777 0
(2)HARVEY GRANGER .

(D 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
ASSISTANT >
SECRETARY (ii) 366,616 105,000 15,000 196,051 19,231 701,898 0
(3)STEPHEN LEE (D 191,897 58,979 10,000 35,618 11,357 307,851 0
VICE PRESIDENT (ii) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
(4)JOHN F WILBANKS (i) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
EXECUTIVE VP (i) 462,492 157,500 15,000 228,752 12,580 876,324 0
(5)MICHAEL .
LUKASZEWSKI ) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
SVP/CFO (ii) 395,982 280,707 15,000 4,462 15,774 711,925 0
(6)BARBARA
GINGHER ASSISTANT (i 128,433 15,500 10,000 23,749 6,760 184,442 0
ADMINISTRATOR, (ii) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
NURSING
(7)STEPHEN BEAN (D 134,718 138 0 19,368 13,892 168,116 0
PHARMACIST (ii) 0 ) 0 0 0 0 0

Schedule J (Form 990) 2013
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Page 3

m Supplemental Information

Provide the information, explanation, or descriptions required for PartI, lines 1a, 1b, 3,4a,4b, 4c,5a,5b,6a,6b,7,and 8, and forPart II
Also complete this part for any additional information

Return Reference

Explanation

Schedule J, PartI, Line 3,
Arrangement used to establish the
top management official's
compensation

IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION POLICY OF BAPTIST HEALTH SYSTEM,INC (BHS), THE ORGANIZATION'S SOLE
MEMBER, BHS'S COMPENSATION COMMITTEE (MADE UP OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS OF BHS) ENGAGES ANNUALLY A THIRD PARTY
COMPENSATION CONSULTANT WHO PROVIDES A DATABASE COMPOSED OF CURRENT DATA REGARDING COMPENSATION PAID FOR EACH
EXECUTIVE POSITION BY SIMILARLY SITUATED TAX EXEMPT HEALTH SYSTEMS IN THE COUNTRY THESE HEALTH SYSTEMS ARE GENERALLY
THE SAME SIZE AS BHS, CONSIDERING REVENUE AND OTHER APPROPRIATE INDICATORS THE GROUP OF COMPARATOR COMPANIES THAT
IS DERIVED BASED ON THE ABOVE STATED PARAMETERS COMPRISE THE "MARKET" WHEN THE COMMITTEE MEETS WITH SUCH
CONSULTANT, THE CONSULTANT PROVIDESTO COMMITTEE MEMBERS COMPENSATION TARGET LEVELS THAT ARE COMPETITIVE WITH
THE MARKET GENERALLY, THE MEDIAN OF THE MARKET IS TARGETED THE ACTUALAMOUNT THAT HEALTH SYSTEM EXECUTIVES RECEIVE
AS COMPENSATION MAY BE HIGHER OR LOWER THAN THE MEDIAN, DEPENDING ON THE HEALTH SYSTEM AND THE INDIVIDUAL'S
PERFORMANCE THE OBJECTIVE ISTO HAVE A STRONG LINK BETWEEN HEALTH SYSTEM AND INDIVIDUAL PERFORMANCE AND EXECUTIVE
COMPENSATION SUCH THAT IF THE HEALTH SYSTEM AND THE INDIVIDUAL PERFORM AT AN OPTIMAL LEVEL, HIS ORHER COMPENSATION
ISIN THE HIGHER RANGE OF THE MARKET CONVERSELY,IF EITHER THE HEALTH SYSTEM ORINDIVIDUAL PERFORMANCE IS BELOW
EXPECTATION, COMPENSATION MAY BE IN THE LOWER RANGE OF THE MARKET THE MINUTES OF THE ANNUAL COMPENSATION
COMMITTEE ARE RECORDED BY THE COMMITTEE'S COMPENSATION CONSULTANT AND ARE APPROVED PROMPTLY BY THE CHAIR OF SUCH
COMMITTEE

Schedule J, Part I, Line 4b,
Supplemental nonqualified retirement
plan

BAPTIST HEALTH SYSTEM, INC (BHS), PARENT AFFILIATE OF BAPTIST MEDICAL CENTER OF NASSAU,INC (BMCN), HAS TWO ACTIVE
SUPPLEMENTAL NONQUALIFIED RETIREMENT PLANS (SERPS) ONE IS FOR CERTAIN EXECUTIVES (SUPPLEMENTAL EXECUTIVE RETIREMENT
PLAN) AND THE OTHER IS FOR CERTAIN VICE PRESIDENTS (VICE-PRESIDENT SUPPLEMENTAL EXECUTIVE RETIREMENT PLAN) THESE
SERPS ARE PLANS DESCRIBED IN IRS SECTION 457(F) THE BENEFITS UNDER THESE PLANS ACCRUE DURING EACH EXECUTIVE'S TERM OF
EMPLOYMENT THESE BENEFITS ARE UNVESTED AND SUBJECT TO FORFEITURE UNTILTHE COVERED EMPLOYEE REACHES RETIREMENT

AGE THE FOLLOWING INDIVIDUALS ACCRUED UNVESTED BENEFITS UNDER THESE PLANS DURING CALENDAR YEAR 2013 A HUGH GREENE,
$459,770,)JOHN F WILBANKS, $192,103, AND HARVEY GRANGER, $158,310 THESE AMOUNTS ARE INCLUDED IN SCHEDULE J, PART II,
COLUMN (C)FOR EACH OF THE LISTED INDIVIDUALS

Schedule J, Part I, Line 6b,
Compensation contingent on net
earnings of a related organization

BAPTIST HEALTH SYSTEM,INC ,PARENT COMPANY OF THE FILING ORGANIZATION, POLICY PROVIDES FOR ANNUAL REVIEWS OF ALL
EMPLOYEES AN EMPLOYEE'S PERFORMANCE INCLUDES AN EVALUATION BY THE EMPLOYEE AND SUPERVISORIN MEETING INDIVIDUAL
AND ORGANIZATIONAL GOALS BASED ON AN EMPLOYEE'S PERFORMANCE IN MEETING THESE GOALS AND THE OPERATING MARGIN OF
THE CONSOLIDATED HEALTH SYSTEM FOR THE FISCAL YEAR, A BONUS MAY BE PAID TO EMPLOYEES AT THE MANAGERIAL LEVEL AND

ABOVE,INCLUDING THOSE LISTED IN SCHEDULE J, AND IS INCLUDED IN THE EMPLOYEE'S W-2 REPORTABLE COMPENSATION

Schedule J (Form 990) 2013
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Schedule K
(Form 990)

Department of the Treasury
Internal Revenue Service

Supplemental Information on Tax Exempt Bonds

k- Complete if the organization answered "Yes" to Form 990, Part IV, line 24a. Provide descriptions,
explanations, and any additional information in Part VI.

= Attach to Form 990.

I See separate instructions.

kInformation about Schedule K (Form 990) and its instructions is at www.irs.gov/form990.

OMB No 1545-0047

Open to Public
Inspection

Name of the organization

BAPTIST MEDICAL CENTER OF NASSAU INC

Employer identification number

59-3234721
m Bond Issues
(h) On .
(g) Defeased behalf of (i) Pool
(a) Issuer name (b) Issuer EIN (c) CUSIP # (d) Date i1ssued (e) Issue price (f) Description of purpose Issuer financing

Yes No Yes No Yes No

JACKSONVILLE HEALTH
FACILITIES AUTHORITY
VARIABLE RATE HOSPITAL

REFUND SERIES 2007CDE

A REVENUE REF 12-01-2011 3,264,000 BONDS X X X
UNDING EXTENDABLE NOTES
SERIES 2007CDE
Proceeds
A B C D
1 Amount of bonds retired 1,050,000
2 Amount of bonds legally defeased 0
3 Total proceeds of Issue 3,264,000
4 Gross proceeds In reserve funds 0
5 Capitalized interest from proceeds 0
6 Proceeds in refunding escrows 3,255,494
7 Issuance costs from proceeds 8,506
8 Credit enhancement from proceeds 0
9 Working capital expenditures from proceeds 0
10 Capital expenditures from proceeds 0
11 Other spent proceeds 0
12 Other unspent proceeds 0
13 Year of substantial completion 2007
Yes No Yes No Yes No Yes No

14 Were the bonds issued as part of a current refunding Issue? X
15 Were the bonds issued as part of an advance refunding Issue? X
16 Has the final allocation of proceeds been made? X
17 Does the organization maintain adequate books and records to support the final X

allocation of proceeds?

Private Business Use
A B (o D
Yes No Yes No Yes No Yes No

1 Was the organization a partner in a partnership, or a member of an LLC, which owned X

property financed by tax-exempt bonds?
2 Are there any lease arrangements that may result in private business use of bond- X

financed property?

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990.

Cat No 50193E

Schedule K (Form 990) 2013



Schedule K (Form 990) 2013 Page 2
m Private Business Use (Continued)
A C
Yes No Yes No Yes No Yes No
3a Are there any management or service contracts that may result in private business use X
of bond-financed property?
b If"Yes" to line 3a, does the organization routinely engage bond counsel or other
outside counsel to review any management or service contracts relating to the financed
property?
c Are there any research agreements that may result in private business use of bond-
financed property? X
d If"Yes" to line 3c, does the organization routinely engage bond counsel or other
outside counsel to review any research agreements relating to the financed property?
4 Enter the percentage of financed property used in a private business use by entities .
other than a section 501 (c)(3) organization or a state or local government L3 0 %
5 Enter the percentage of financed property used In a private business use as a result of
unrelated trade or business activity carried on by your organization, another section 0 %
501 (c)(3) organization, or a state or local government L3
Total of lines 4 and 5 0 %
Does the bond issue meet the private security or payment test? X
8a Has there been a sale or disposition of any of the bond financed property to a
nongovernmental person other thana 501(c)(3) organization since the bonds were X
Issued?
b If "Yes" to line 8a, enter the percentage of bond-financed property sold or disposed of
c If"Yes" to line 8a, was any remedial action taken pursuant to Regulations sections
1141-12 and1 145-2?
9 Has the organization established written procedures to ensure that all nonqualified
bonds of the iIssue are remediated in accordance with the requirements under
Regulations sections 1 141-12 and 1 145-27
LCIAEAA Arbitrage
A C
Yes No Yes No Yes No Yes No
1 Has the issuer filed Form 8038-T? X
2 If"No" to line 1, did the following apply?
a Rebate not due yet?
b Exception to rebate?
c No rebate due?
If you checked "No rebate due” in line 2¢, provide In
Part VI the date the rebate computation was performed
3 Is the bond issue a variable rate issue? X
4a Has the organization or the governmental iIssuer entered X
into a qualified hedge with respect to the bond issue?
UBS AND WELLS
b Name of provider FARGO
Term of hedge 16 1
d Was the hedge superintegrated? X
e Was the hedge terminated? X

Schedule K (Form 990) 2013



Schedule K (Form 990) 2013

Page 3
LC1aEAA Arbitrage (Continued)
A B
Yes No Yes No Yes No Yes No
5a Were gross proceeds Iinvested In a guaranteed investment X
contract (GIC)?
b Name of provider
Term of GIC 00
d Was the regulatory safe harbor for establishing the fair market
value of the GIC satisfied?
6 Were any gross proceeds Invested beyond an available temporary X
period?
7 Has the organization established written procedures to monitor X
the requirements of section 1487
Procedures To Undertake Corrective Action
A B
Yes No Yes No Yes No Yes No
Has the organization established written procedures to ensure
that violations of federal tax requirements are timely 1dentified
X
and corrected through the voluntary closing agreement program If
self-remediation 1s not available under applicable regulations?

.m Supplemental Information. Provide additional information for responses to questions on Schedule K (see Instructions).

Return Reference

Explanation

SCHEDULE K, PART I, COLUMN (C), .
SERIES 2007 CDE CUSIP #'S 2007C N/A 2007D 469404UP0 2007E 469404UM?7
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Schedule L Transactions with Interested Persons OMB No 1545-0047
(Form 990 or 990-EZ) & Complete if the organization answered
"Yes" on Form 990, Part 1V, lines 25a, 25b, 26, 27, 28a, 28b, or 28c,
or Form 990-EZ, Part V, line 38a or 40b.
Department of the Treasury k- Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ. = See separate instructions. Open to Public

Intemal Revenue Service kInformation about Schedule L (Form 990 or 990-EZ) and its instructions is at
www.irs.gov /form990.

Inspection

Name of the organization

Employer identification number
BAPTIST MEDICAL CENTER OF NASSAU INC

59-3234721
lm Excess Benefit Transactions (section 501(c)(3) and section 501(c)(4) organizations only).

Complete If the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, PartIV, line 25a or 25b, or Form 990-EZ, Part V, line 40b

1 (a) Name of disqualified person (b) Relationship between disqualified (c) Description of transaction (d) Corrected?
person and organization Yes | No

2 Enter the amount of tax incurred by organization managers or disqualified persons during the year under section
e - e ]

3 Enter the amount of tax, iIf any, on line 2, above, reimbursed by the organization. . . . . . . » 3

m Loans to and/or From Interested Persons.

Complete If the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990-EZ, Part V, line 38a, or Form 990, Part IV, line 26, or if the
organization reported an amount on Form 990, Part X, line 5,6, 0r 22

(a) Name of (b) (c) (d) Loan to (e)Oniginal | (f)Balance [(g) In (h) (i)Written

Interested Relationship |Purpose of| orfrom the principal due default? Approved agreement?

person with loan organization? amount by

organization board
or
committee?
To From Yes No | Yes No Yes No
Total > 3 |

m Grants or Assistance Benefitting Interested Persons.
Complete If the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 27.
(a) Name of interested (b) Relationship between | (c) Amount of assistance (d) Type of assistance (e) Purpose of assistance
person Interested person and the
organization

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ. Cat No 50056A Schedule L (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2013



Schedule L (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2013

Page 2

i-149¥4" Business Transactions Involving Interested Persons.
Complete If the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 28a, 28b, or 28c.

(a) Name of interested person

(b) Relationship

(c) Amount of

(d) Description of transaction |(e) Sharing

between interested transaction of
person and the organization's
organization revenues?
Yes No
(1) GREGORY SMITH MD DIRECTOR OF FILING 178,826 [ORTHOPAEDIC SURGICAL No
ORGANIZATION AND SERVICES TO EMERGENCY
OFFICER OF AMELIA DEPT ,4$136,000, LEASE
ISLAND PAYMENTS TO FILING
ORTHOPAEDICS ORGANIZATION, $42,826
(2) GERALD BURFORD MD DIRECTOR OF FILING 108,282 [LEASE PAYMENTS TO FILING No

ORGANIZATION AND
OFFICER OF AMELIA
INTERNAL MEDICINE

ORGANIZATION

Supplemental Information

Provide additional information for responses to questions on Schedule L (see Instructions)

Return Reference

Explanation

Schedule L (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2013
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SCHEDULE O

OMB No 1545-0047

(Form 990 or 990-EZ) Supplemental Information to Form 990 or 990-EZ 2 01 3

Department of the Treasury
Intemal Revenue Service

Complete to provide information for responses to specific questions on

Form 990 or to provide any additional information. Open to Public
k- Attach to Form 990 or 990-EZ. Inspection
k- Information about Schedule O (Form 990 or 990-EZ) and its instructions is at
www.irs.gov/form990.

Name of the organization
BAPTIST MEDICAL CENTER OF NASSAU INC

Employer identification number

59-3234721

990 Schedule O, Supplemental Information

Return Reference

Explanation

Form 990, Part VI, Sec A, Line 6, Classes of members or
stockholders

THE ORGANIZATION HAS A SOLE CORPORATE MEMBER, BAPTIST HEALTH
SYSTEM, INC

Form 990, Part VI, Sec A, Line 7a, Members or stockholders
electing members of governing body

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF BAPFTIST HEALTH SY STEM, INC, THE SOLE
CORPORATE MEMBER OF THEOR

GANIZATION, ELECTS THE MEMBERS OF THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE
ORGANIZATION

Form 990, Part VI, Sec A, Line 7b, Decisions requiring approval
by members or stockholders

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF BAPFTIST HEALTH SY STEM, INC, THE SOLE
CORPORATE MEMBER OF THEOR

GANIZATION, HAS THE RIGHT TO REMOVE DIRECTORS OF THE
ORGANIZATION AND MUST APPROVE ANY AME

NDMENTS TO THE GOVERNING DOCUMENTS OF THE ORGANIZATION

Form 990, Part V|, Sec B, Line 11b, Review of form 990 by
governing body

WHILE THE ORGANIZATION'S GOVERNING BODY DID NOT REVIEW THE
FORM 990, THE BOARD OF DIRECTOR

S OF BAFTIST HEALTH SYSTEM, INC , THE SOLE CORPORATE MEMBER OF
THE ORGANIZATION, WAS PROVI

DED THE ORGANIZATION'S ENTIRE FORM 990 PRIOR TO ITS FILING VIA A
LINK TO A PASSWORD-PROTEC

TED WEBSITE

Form 990, Part V|, Sec B, Line 12¢, Conflict of interest policy

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE ORGANIZATION'S SOLE MEMBER,
BAPTIST HEALTH SYSTEM, INC , HAS

APPOINTED A CONFLICTS OF INTEREST COMMITTEE WHICH REGULARLY
REVIEWS THE REQUIRED DISCLOSU

RES OF POTENTIAL CONFLICTS OF INTEREST BY THE DIRECTORS AND
OFFICERS OF THE ORGANIZATION A

ND TS AFFILIATES AND RECOMMENDS ANY ACTION TO BE TAKEN WITH
REGARD TO SUCH DISCLOSURES |

N ACCORDANCE WITH THE CONFLICTS OF INTEREST POLICY, DURING
MEETINGS OF THE ORGANIZATION'S

GOVERNING BODY, A DRECTOR WHO MAY HAVE A CONFLICT OF
INTEREST IS EXCUSED FROM DISCUSSION

BY THE GOVERNING BODY ABOUT ANY TRANSACTION OR MATTER THAT
MAY HAVE GIVEN RISE TO THE DIRE

CTOR'S ACTUAL OR POTENTIAL CONFLICT OF INTEREST

Form 990, Part VI, Sec B, Line 15a, Process to establish
compensation of top management official

IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION POLICY OF
BAPTIST HEALTH SYSTEM, INC (BHS),

THE ORGANIZATION'S SOLE MEMBER, BHS'S COMPENSATION COMMITTEE
(MADE UP OF INDEPENDENT DIRE

CTORS OF BHS) ENGAGES ANNUALLY A THIRD PARTY COMPENSATION
CONSULTANT WHO PROVIDES A DATABA

SE COMPOSED OF CURRENT DATA REGARDING COMPENSATION PAID FOR
EACH EXECUTIVE POSITION BY SIM

ILARLY SITUATED TAX EXEMPT HEALTH SYSTEMS IN THE COUNTRY THESE
HEALTH SY STEMS ARE GENERAL

LY THE SAME SIZE AS BHS, CONSIDERING REVENUE AND OTHER
APPROPRIATE INDICATORS THE GROUP O

F COMPARATOR COMPANIES THAT IS DERIVED BASED ON THE ABOVE
STATED PARAMETERS COMPRISE THE "

MARKET" WHEN THE COMMITTEE MEETS WITH SUCH CONSULTANT, THE
CONSULTANT PROVIDES TO COMMITT

EE MEMBERS COMPENSATION TARGET LEVELS THAT ARE COMPETITIVE
WITH THE MARKET GENERALLY, THE

MEDIAN OF THE MARKET IS TARGETED THE ACTUAL AMOUNT THAT
HEALTH SY STEM EXECUTIVES RECEIVE

AS COMPENSATION MAY BE HIGHER OR LOWER THAN THE MEDIAN,
DEPENDING ON THE HEALTH SY STEM'S

AND THE INDIVIDUAL'S PERFORMANCE THE OBJECTIVE IS TO HAVE A
STRONG LINK BETWEEN HEALTH SY

STEM AND INDIVIDUAL PERFORMANCE AND EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
SUCH THAT IF THEHEALTH SYSTEM

AND THE INDIVIDUAL PERFORM AT AN OPTIMAL LEVEL, HIS OR HER
COMPENSATION IS IN THE HIGHER R

ANGE OF THE MARKET CONVERSELY, IF EITHER THE HEALTH SY STEM OR
INDIVIDUAL PERFORMANCE IS B

ELOW EXPECTATION, COMPENSATION MAY BE IN THE LOWER RANGE OF
THE MARKET THE MINUTES OF THE

ANNUAL COMPENSATION COMMITTEE ARE RECORDED BY THE
COMMITTEES COMPENSATION CONSULTANT AND

ARE APPROVED PROMPTLY BY THE CHAIR OF SUCH COMMITTEE

Form 990, Part VI, Sec B, Line 15b, Process to establish
compensation of other employees

ALL OFFICERS AND KEY EMPLOY EES OF THE ORGANIZATION WERE
INCLUDED IN THE EXECUTIVE COMPENSA

TION POLICY DESCRIBED ON FORM 990, PART V|, LINE 15A THIS PROCESS
IS USED TO ESTABLISH CO

MPENSATION FOR THESE INDIVIDUALS FOR EACH CALENDAR YEAR

Form 990, Part V|, Sec C, Line 19, Required documents
avallable to the public

UPON RECEIVING A REQUEST FROM ANY ONE, THE ORGANIZATION WILL
SUPPLY A COPY OF ITS GOVERNING

DOCUMENTS, CONFLICTS OF INTEREST POLICY, FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND ITS MOST RECENTLY FILED

FORM 990 AND FORM 990-T THE ORGANIZATION ALSO MAKES ITS FORM
990 AVAILABLE AT THEWEBSIT

E GUDESTAR ORG

Form 990 , Part X|, Line 9, Other changes In net assets or fund
balances

TRANSFERS TO AFFILIATED ORGANIZATIONS - -5546745, TEMPORARILY
RESTRICTED CONTRIBUTIONS - 1

51411, NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM RESTRICTIONS - -72894,
PERMANENTLY RESTRICTED CONTRIBUTION

S - 296894, NET ASSET TRANSFERS FROM BHS TO BHSF FOR ENDOWMENT
MATCHING PROGRAM - 101708,
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SCHEDULE R Related Organizations and Unrelated Partnerships :
(Form 990) = Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part 1V, line 33, 34, 35b, 36, or 37. 20 1 3
= Attach to Form 990. Ik See separate instructions.

Department of the Treasury k- Information about Schedule R (Form 990) and its instructions is at www.irs.gov /form990. Open to P_ublic
Intemal Revenue Service Inspection

Name of the organization Employer identification number
BAPTIST MEDICAL CENTER OF NASSAU INC

59-3234721 .
IEEREHEl 1dentification of Disregarded Entities Complete If the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 33.
(a) (b) (c) (d) (e) N
Name, address, and EIN (if applicable) of disregarded entity Pnmary activity Legal domicile (state Total iIncome End-of-year assets Direct controlling
or foreign country) entity

IEXYTEil 1dentification of Related Tax-Exempt Organizations Complete If the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 34 because it had one
or more related tax-exempt organizations during the tax year.

(a) (b) (c) (d) (e) ()] (9)
Name, address, and EIN of related organization Pnmary activity Legal domicile (state Exempt Code section Public chanty status Direct controlling Section 512(b)
or foreign country) (if section 501(c)(3)) entity (13) controlled
entity?
Yes No
(1) SOUTHERN BAPTIST HOSPITAL OF FLORIDA INC HOSPITAL FL 501(C)(3) 3 BAPTIST HEALTH SYSTEM No
INC
800 PRUDENTIAL DR
JACKSONVILLE, FL 32207
59-0747311
(2) BAPTIST HEALTH SYSTEM INC MGT ASSISTANCE TO FL 501(C)(3) 11 - Type II NA No
HOSPITALS
841 PRUDENTIAL DR STE 1602
JACKSONVILLE, FL 32207
59-2487136
(3) BAPTIST MEDICAL CENTER OF THE BEACHES INC HOSPITAL FL 501(C)(3) 3 BAPTIST HEALTH SYSTEM No
INC
1350 13TH AVE S
JACKSONVILLE BEACH, FL 32250
59-2980620
(4) BAPTIST HEALTH SYSTEM FOUNDATION INC FUNDRAISING ACTIVITIES FL 501(C)(3) 7 -Typel BAPTIST HEALTH SYSTEM No
TO SUPPORT HOSPITALS INC
841 PRUDENTIAL DR 13TH FLOOR
JACKSONVILLE, FL 32207
59-2487135
(5) BAPTIST HEALTH PROPERTIES INC PROPERTY MGT FOR FL 501(C)(3) 11 - Type I BAPTIST HEALTH SYSTEM No
HEALTHCARE SYSTEM INC
3563 PHILIPS HWY BLD F STE 608
JACKSONVILLE, FL 32207
59-2487133
(6) BAPTIST HEALTH AMBULATORY SERVICES INC CANCER RESEARCH & FL 501(C)(3) 11 - Type I BAPTIST HEALTH SYSTEM No
EDUCATION FOR INC
3563 PHILIPS HWY BLD F STE 608 HEALTHCARE SYSTEM
JACKSONVILLE, FL 32211
59-3410739

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. Cat No 50135Y Schedule R (Form 990) 2013
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Page 2

EETREiid Identification of Related Organizations Taxable as a Partnership Complete If the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 34
because It had one or more related organizations treated as a partnership during the tax year.

(a) (b) (c) (d) (e) (f) (9) (h) (i) @) (k)
Name, address, and EIN of Pnmary activity Legal Direct Predominant Share of Share of |Disproprtionate| Code V-UBI | General or| Percentage
related organization domicile controlling income(related, |total income| end-of- allocations? amount In | managing ownership
(state or entity unrelated, year box 20 of partner?
foreign excluded from assets Schedule K-1
country) tax under (Form 1065)
sections 512-
514)
Yes No Yes | No
NON-RESIDENTIAL FL SOUTHERN EXCLUDED 0 0 0 No 0 %

(1) PAVILION ASSOCIATES LTD

3563 PHILIPS HWY BLD F STE 608
JACKSONVILLE, FL 32207
59-2505491

PROPERTY MGT

BAPTIST
HOSPITAL OF
FLORIDA INC

-14¥A"A Identification of Related Organizations Taxable as a Corporation or Trust Complete If the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part 1V,
line 34 because it had one or more related organizations treated as a corporation or trust during the tax year.

(a) (b) (c) (d) (e) 0] (9) (h) 0]
Name, address, and EIN of Pnmary activity Legal Direct controlling| Type of entity Share of total | Share of end- Percentage Section 512
related organization domicile entity (C corp, S corp, Income of-year ownership (b)(13)
(state or foreign or trust) assets controlled
country) entity?
Yes No
(1) PAVILION HEALTH PHYSICIAN FL BAPTIST HEALTH |C CORPORATION 0 0 0 %
SERVICES INC PRACTICES/RETAIL SYSTEM INC
PHARMACIES
3563 PHILIPS HWY BLD F STE
608
JACKSONVILLE, FL 32207
59-2059710

Schedule R (Form 990) 2013
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Transactions With Related Organizations Complete If the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 34, 35b, or 36.

Note. Complete line 1 if any entity 1s listed in Parts II, III, or IV of this schedule Yes | No
1 During the tax year, did the orgranization engage I1n any of the following transactions with one or more related organizations listed in Parts II-IV?

a Receipt of (i) interest (ii) annuities (iii) royalties or (iv) rent from a controlled entity 1a No
b Gift, grant, or capital contribution to related organization(s) 1b No
c Gift, grant, or capital contribution from related organization(s) 1c | Yes
d Loans orloan guarantees to or for related organization(s) id No
e Loans orloan guarantees by related organization(s) 1le No
f Dividends from related organization(s) 1f No
g Sale of assets to related organization(s) 1g No
h Purchase of assets from related organization(s) ih No
i Exchange of assets with related organization(s) 1i No
j Lease offacilities, equipment, or other assets to related organization(s) 1j No
k Lease of facilities, equipment, or other assets from related organization(s) 1k | Yes
I Performance of services or membership or fundraising solicitations for related organization(s) 1l No
m Performance of services or membership or fundraising solicitations by related organization(s) im| Yes
n Sharing of facilities, equipment, mailing lists, or other assets with related organization(s) in| Yes
o Sharing of paid employees with related organization(s) 1lo | Yes
p Remmbursement paid to related organization(s) for expenses 1p | Yes
q Reimbursement paid by related organization(s) for expenses 1q | Yes
r Othertransfer of cash or property to related organization(s) 1r | Yes
s Othertransfer of cash or property from related organization(s) 1s | Yes

2 Ifthe answerto any of the above I1s "Yes," see the instructions for information on who must complete this line, including covered relationships and transaction thresholds

(a) (b) (c) (d)
Name of related organization Transaction Amount involved Method of determining amount involved
type (a-s)

Schedule R (Form 990) 2013
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IEEYTEZ28 Unrelated Organizations Taxable as a Partnership Complete If the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 37.
Provide the following information for each entity taxed as a partnership through which the organization conducted more than five percent of its activities (measured by total assets or gross

revenue) that was not a related organization See instructions regarding exclusion for certain investment partnerships

(a) (b) (c) (d) (e) 0] (9) (h) (i) 6)] (k)

Name, address, and EIN of entity Pnmary activity Legal Predominant | Are all partners Share of Share of Disproprtionate Code V?UBI | General or Percentage

domicile Income section total end-of-year allocations? amount In managing ownership

(state or (related, 501(c)(3) Income assets box 20 partner?

foreign unrelated, organizations? of Schedule

country) |excluded from K-1

tax under (Form 1065)
sections 512-
514)
Yes| No Yes No Yes No

Schedule R (Form 990) 2013
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.m Supplemental Information

Provide additional information for responses to questions on Schedule R (see Instructions)

Return Reference Explanation

Schedule R (Form 990) 2013



Additional Data

Software ID: 13000248
Software Version: 2013v3.1
EIN: 59-3234721
Name: BAPTIST MEDICAL CENTER OF NASSAU INC

Form 990, Schedule R, Part II - Identification of Related Tax-Exempt Organizations

(a) (b) (o) (d) (e) (f) (9)
Name, address, and EIN of related organization Primary activity Legal domicile Exempt Code Public charity Direct controlling |[Section512
(state section status entity (b)(13)
or foreign country) (if section 501 (c) controlled
(3)) entity?
Yes No
(1)SOUTHERN BAPTIST HOSPITAL OF FLORIDA INC HOSPITAL FL 501(C)(3) 3 BAPTIST HEALTH No
SYSTEM INC
800 PRUDENTIAL DR
JACKSONVILLE, FL 32207
59-0747311
(1)BAPTIST HEALTH SYSTEM INC MGT ASSISTANCETO FL 501(C)(3) 11 - Typell NA No
HOSPITALS
841 PRUDENTIAL DR STE 1602
JACKSONVILLE, FL 32207
59-2487136
(2)BAPTIST MEDICAL CENTER OF THE BEACHES INC HOSPITAL FL 501(C)(3) 3 BAPTIST HEALTH No
SYSTEM INC
1350 13TH AVE S
JACKSONVILLE BEACH, FL 32250
59-2980620
(3)BAPTIST HEALTH SYSTEM FOUNDATION INC FUNDRAISING FL 501(C)(3) 7 -Typel BAPTIST HEALTH No
ACTIVITIESTO SYSTEM INC
841 PRUDENTIAL DR 13TH FLOOR SUPPORT HOSPITALS
JACKSONVILLE, FL 32207
59-2487135
(4)BAPTIST HEALTH PROPERTIES INC PROPERTY MGT FOR FL 501(C)(3) 11 -Typel BAPTIST HEALTH No
HEALTHCARE SYSTEM SYSTEM INC
3563 PHILIPS HWY BLD F STE 608
JACKSONVILLE, FL 32207
59-2487133
(5)BAPTIST HEALTH AMBULATORY SERVICES INC CANCER RESEARCH & FL 501(C)(3) 11 -Typel BAPTIST HEALTH No
EDUCATION FOR SYSTEM INC
3563 PHILIPS HWY BLD F STE 608 HEALTHCARE SYSTEM
JACKSONVILLE, FL 32211
59-3410739
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COMMUNITY HEALTH NEEDS ASSESSMENT: 2012 REPORT

This compiehensive community health needs assessment conducted thiough the
Health Planning Council of Northeast lorida has been an extremely worthwhile
endeavor in helping us identify specific gaps in health care that currently exist in
our community. Since we all share a common conumitment to providing access (o
high quality health cage beyond our own w alls, we are pleased to nay have this
information that ean be used as we move forward to develop solutions to improve
the lives of Northeast Floi ida 1esidents,

A. Hugh Gieepe
President and CFO
Baptist Health

Brooks Rehabilitation is pleased to participate in this coordinated
community health needs assessment. By working with the Health Planning
Council on this cffort, all of the health systems benefit from this
comprehensive analysis of the needs in our community. This approach
enables us 1o betler address these needs in a collaborative manner and avoid
duplication of efforts,

This assessment provides Brooks Rehabilitation with a road map to better
scrve people living with or at risk for disabilitics and helps us determine how
we can apply our resources to achicve maximum community impact,

especially Lor those with the greatest need. It also allows us, together with
our pariners in the community, to focus on the most pressing concerns
resulting in an improvement in the qualily of fife and makes Northeast
Florida a healthier place to live,

Douglas M. Baer
President and CEO
Brooks Rehabilitation

The community health needs assessment is representative of the shared
values that exist among the hospitals and health systems that have come
together to complete this very important work, It is demonstrative of the
collaboration, commitment and excellence that exists and must prevail as we
now take steps individually and collectively to address the most pressing
health needs of the communitics in which we live and serve, Mayvo Clinic is
proud to be part of this unprecedented and collaborative end Cavor.

William €. Rupp, MD
cro
Mayo Clinic Florida

COMMUNITY MEAITH NEEDS ASSESSMENT 2012 PEPORT
-3 -
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COMMUNITY HEALTH NEEDS ASSESSMENT: 2012 REPORT

Working collaboratively with other hospitals through the Health Planning
Council of Northeast Florida (o develop a comprehensive community needs
assessment demonstrates a commitment to improving the health and well-
being of our community. Identified healih disparities and gaps will better
guide our ¢fforts and resources, which will have cxponential benefits to the
communily. Shands Jacksonville Mcdical Center is commiited 1o addr ssing
these needs in conjunction with our other health care partners. This has been
an excellent process and a great example of synergy.

Jim Burkhart, M HHA, D.Sc., FACHE
President aud Cro
Shands Jacksonville

Together, with other area hospitals, we have completed this communily
health needs assessment 1o determine if we arc on target in meceting the
needs of the most vulnerable within our community. The results of the
assessment were no surprise, but rather served as alfirmation that 1,
Vincent’s has been, and continues to be, deeply integrated and in touch
with the needs of the communities in which we serve,

We have seleeted some of the most critical health issucs and have built
corresponding measured action plans to provide care and o better quality
of life for so many.

Moody Chisholm
President and cro
St. Vincent’s HealthCare

COMMUNITY MEAITH NEEDS ASSESSMENT 2012 PEPORT
- -
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CHAPTEP 1 INTPODUITION

ABOUT THE JACKSONVILLE METROPOLITAN COMMUNITY BENEFIT PARTNERSHIP

Northeast Florida 1s home to several hospitals that are ranked 1n the nation’s top 100 and 1s one of only three
locations 1n the nation for the renowned Mayo Clinic Also based 1n Jacksonville 1s the University of Florda
Proton Therapy Institute (www floridaproton org), one of only 10 (1n 2011) proton therapy cancer treatment
centers located 1n the United States The health care industry in Jacksonville contributes a total of nearly $7 4

billion 1in direct economic impact When accounting for related industries, the total 1s nearly $25 billion

In July 2011, leaders from Baptist Health, Brooks Rehabilitation, the Clay County Health Department, the
Duval County Health Department, Mayo Clinic, the Nassau County Health Department, the Putnam County
Health Department, Shands Jacksonville Medical Center, St Vincent’s HealthCare and @

;ame together and formed the Jacksonville Metropolitan Community Benefit Partnership (The
Partnership) to conduct the first-ever multi-hospital system and public health sector collaborative community
health needs assessment The Partnership consists of a network of five health care systems (nine nonprofit
hospitals) and four public health departments that stand for a shared voice and vision of improving
population health and wellness 1n the Jacksonville Metropolitan area The Partnership’s vision 1s to improve
population health 1n the region by eliminating the gaps that prevent access to quality, integrated health care
and to improve access to resources that support a healthy hifestyle

%‘i\ HEALTH PLANNING The Health Planning Council of Northeast Florida works for a better

E COUNCILIL balance of public health policies directed at community development
% OF NORTHEAST FLORIDA

including the equitable provision of essential public health services,
the protection of environmental resources; and the promotion of economic sustamability Their role as an
unbiased community convener affords them the ability to mobilize civic leaders, businesses and citizens to

play a meaningful role in creating healthy communities that enrich people’s lives

In 1982, Florida State Statute Title XXIX Public Health Chapter 408 033, and 11 local health councils,
including the Health Planning Council of Northeast Florida (Health Planning Council), were established The
Health Planning Council has served as a reliable and progressive agency serving Baker, Clay, Duval, Flagler,
Nassau, St Johns and Volusia Counties The Health Planning Council 1s the only non-partisan, non-
governmental planning organization 1n the region mandated to dedicate resources and expertise to regional
health utilization data management; manage health-related quality of life indicators and health planning and
research; conduct community connecting projects; and provide iput on proposed land use and

environmental development projects to local government

The Health Planning Council conducts numerous community health planning/assessment and community
connecting projects across Florida Since each community 1s unique, our approach to better understanding a
community’s need 1s aligned with the Social-Ecological Model The Social-Ecological Model 1s a
comprehensive approach to health and urban planning that not only addresses a community’s or individual’s
risk factors, but also the norms, beliefs, and social and economic systems that create the conditions for poor

community health outcomes

COMMUNITY HEALTH NEEDS ASSESSMENT 2012 PEPOPT



CHAPTEP 1 INTPODUITION

SOCIAL- ECOLOGICAL MODEL
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In partnership with the Health Planning Council, Ulrich Research assisted with survey design, data analysis and
the presentation of survey findings Established in 1981, Ulrich Research has experience 1n a wide variety of
research methods including telephone surveys, mail surveys, data processing, personal interviews, focus groups,

database enhancement, market profiling and secondary research

Participating Members of the Jacksonville Metropolitan Community Benefit Partnership

Audrey Moran Michelle Leak

Baptist Health/Wolfson Children’s Hospital Mavo Clinic

Lynn Sherman Nancy Mills

Baptist Healtli/Wolfson Children’s Hospital Clav Countv Health Departmeint
Mary Alice Phelan Tim Lawther

St. Vincent's HealthCare Duval Countv Health Departmeint
David Pringle Heather Huffman

St Vincent's HealthCare Nassaut County Healtlh Departnient
Robin Bass Robin Wright

Shands Jacksonville Medical Center Putnam Countv Healtlt Departiment

Marion Anderson
Brooks Relhabilitation
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INTRODUCT!ON TO COMMUNITY BENEFT

Commumty benefit bPrograms and SeTvices are Integral parts of the missian of nonprofi health caye
Orgamzations and are the bagy of fax exempion!, They ntend 1o 1) improve access 10 health care, 2) enhance
the health of the community; 3) advance Medical and health knowledge, and, 4) relieve or reduce the burden of
government on other community efforg The Affordable Care Act (2010) Includes Provisions that Wil increage
msurance Payments 1o hospllals, resulting jp fewer batients relying on chanity care To ensure that nonprofjt
hospitals, contmue to proy,de Communyty benefit, hospitals seeking to Maintain tax-exempy status muyst-

81Ve Increased attention to working with others 1o determine cOmmunity hegjt}, needs and take action to
meet those needs, and

Implemen; financa] assistance and billing and collection policies that protect consumeyg 2

Section 501 (r), added 1o the tax code by the Affordable Care Act, Imposes new '®quirements op hospital
Ol'gamizatjons Each 50 (e)(3) hospua] Orgamzation g Tequired to meet four generg] Tequirements op, ,
faCJhty-b_v-faCIth basis The Téquirements are ¢,

establish Wrttten financiga) assistance and ¢Mmergency medica] tare policies,

- limyt amounts charged for cmergency or other medically necessary care (o mndividua]g eligible {of
assistance under the hospital’s financia] assistance policy,

- make Teasonable efforg to determype whether ap mdividuga] 14 ehgible for assislance nunder the hospitays
financa] assistance policy before engaging in extraordinary collection actions agamst the mndividual, ang

* conduct a community heajyj needs assessment at Jeagy once every three Years ?

Commumty health needs assessments enaple practitioners, Managers gng policy makers to dentify thege
Indiduals 1p reatest need and ensure that healih care resources are used to maximze healip, IMprovement
The assessment 1s not anend, byt 5 Process that

= describes the health stapys within the defined geographic areg,
- dentifies the Mmajor risk factorsg and causeg of llness, and

allows {or the formulatlon of actions needed to address those rigk factors and cayseg 4

In addition 1 satisfving regulatory requirements of federal ang state agencies and locg] funders, the commumty
health needs assessment represents an Unprecedented efipr and key opportunity o bring together hospita)
data, pPopulation health, heahh-re]ated quality of [fe indicators ang community Mmember nput to provide 4
more detailed ang complete profile of ommunty heajtj needs The long-term, goal is to achieve regional
collaboration that wy]] s€rve as ap Obportunity fo optima] leverage of resources, setting (and Managing)
Tegional health Prioritzes, apgd developing Teglonal collectyye Hmpact strategjes among all heath-relateq
stakeholders,

The health ofa Communyty 1g determimned by the physical, menta], environmenta), SPirtual and socqg] well bemg
of all Community residentis Achieving gycpy acomplex state of bemng is one that requires gn equally complex
undel‘standing of the determmants of each of these aspects of health A Community health needs assessment ___
driven by communaty Input—is 4 g, 'stematie approach to coHectmg, analyzing and using thys complex datg and
tnformation lo identify PIIOTIY areas for health m Provement effortg This ommunity heaypy needs assessment
Teport serves a¢ 4 baselime of the health status of the five counties ydentifieq by The Parlnershlp as the
geography of focus Duval, Nassay, Clay, Putnam and northern St Johng Countjeg located 11y Northeast Florida

1 Cathalie Health Association of the Uniteq States L‘ommunny Benafi htp fiww chausa nrg/CommunnyBenem/

2The Hilitap Institute (ZDH) Haspiral L‘a‘mmumty Benefirs after tha ACA The Emprgmg Federal Framewg i
bty v HmTopmstnute orgfpubnca!mns/H0spna}CommunnyRenef;lsAﬂerThpACA»HCBP!ssueBnel»JanuaryZMI pdf

3 internaf Revenue Servige (2012) New fy‘equuements for 507(c)5) flospitals Under the 4 fforgabie Care det htlp';’/www s gov,’charrnes/chamable/arlrcle/(lnm=236275,00 htm}

4 Worlg Health Organwatmn (Z[][]]) L‘ommum?y Health Neods Assessment An /nrmdbcrory Guide for the Famyj, Heaitn Nuise 1p Europe
Mipsiiwww eure who gy data/assets/pdf 111310018/1022491573494 pdf
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Using national strategics including Healthv people 2020, National Prevention Strategles and The Robert Wood
Johnson Foundatlon’s County Heath Rankings a8 A framework for the community health needs assessment,
data were compiled from the most up-lo-date publicly available resources and primary research with targeted
populations who face more challenges 11 recewving health care and mamtamng optimum health and well beng
Health status ymprovement and ev1dence—based nterventions will be tracked and measured using the Northeast

Florida Counts health—rela\ed quality of hife indicato? platform

In Flonda, all 67 county health departments are required to jnihiate a countywide, community health
assessment that determines publhic health priontics for the next ihree to five years MAPP, the acronym for
“Mobihzing for Action ihrough Planmng and Parmershlps,” 15 recommended by many national and state public
health orgamzations ncludimg the National Association for City and County Health Officials (NACCHO) and the
Flonda Department of Health as 2 best practice for health assessment and planmng MAPP 15 built ont
prmcxples of broad community engagement and strategic planning, which prepare community partners 10 act
together 10 address prlorltlzed health 1s5U€S and mmprove communty health All county health departments
located in the five geographlc focus areas 1argeted for the community health needs assessment have corapleted
their MAPF priorities at the ume of The Partnership’s communty health needs assessment. It was jmperative
that the health priorities identified the five MAPP assessments be \ntegrated and supported in thus report 10

avoid the creation of duplicative oF competng community health 1mprovement plans

The findings from The Partnerships commumnty health needs assessment document the need for 1mprovement
m socal determinants of health, health status, access to care and bult environment clements acToss the five
counties The five-county arca {alls short of Healthv people 2020 goals 11 multiple areas, and 15 WOI'S€ than state
and national statistics in many others. Disparities 10 access and preventive care as well as {ood access
demonstrate the need for concerted action i order to achieve health equity and overall health ymprovement for
the entire population Health disparities are differences 1D health outcomes between groups that reflect social
mequalitics According to the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention’s (CDC) 2011 Health Dispartties and
Inequalities Report, “Snce the 1980s, our nation has made substantial progress 11 ymproving residents’ health
and reducing health disparitics, but ongoing racial/ethmc, economic and other social disparities i health are

both unacceptable and correctable”

Throughout this report, W€ will ghhght health disparities 10 the dentified community health needs
assessment region The report also acknowledges the expertise of the Health Planning Council for managing the
assessment, including convenmng, data mining. facilitating and securmng the technical and research resources to
complete the project The Health Planming Counci1s @ reglonal nonprofit that develops regional, unbiased
research and evidence-based imitianives that promote healthy communties and hifestyles, and 1mprove

accessible, quality health care

The community needs assessment report will be pubhcaﬂy accessible by way of Northeast Florida Counts and
the Community Health Needs Assessment (CHNA) web-based platform located on cach hospital’s orgamzatmnal
website as well as this prmted report The CHNA system 182 custormzable, web-based information system that
provides a continuously updated “yyng” needs assessment and provides cach of the partic ipating hospitals with
a CHNA template/ deliverable to help meet new Internal Revenue Code Section 501(r), for conductuing

community health needs assessments

Q*\Ix‘x,‘:"ﬂ\n?‘{ HEMLTH NEEDS J‘\‘Ez?/ii‘so“s“xEN'” 2012 gEPHET
P



THAPTIR 1 pNTEO e TN

Fully embeddable within each hospital’s existing website, the CHNA system will provide a dashboard of
indicators that drive community health needs assessments and will contain a large database of promusing
practices that inform evidenced-based community benefit programs The CHNA system 1s designed 1o work
closely with the eusting Northeast Florida Counts platform Together, the CHNA system and Northeast Florida
Counts provide hospitals access to high quality community health assessment data, improved health indicator
tracking, best practice sharing and community development tools that function logether to help improve the
health and environmental sustainability of the community

The implementation wil] include an embedded CHNA landing page configured specifically for- Brooks
Rehabilitation, Mayo Clinic, St Vincent’s HealthCare — Riverside and Southside, Shands Jacksonville Medical
Center, Baptist Health Jacksonville, Beaches, South and Nassau, and Wolfson Children’s Hospital These

will include county- and selected sub-county level data views for Clay, Duval, Nassau, Putnam and St Johns
Counties 1n Florida.

COMMUNITY MEAITH NEEDS ASSESSMENT 2012 PEPORT

-1 -



A
P

S 59

ite, ¥
% 5

I YOS
SELS
o
|

$
5

5
o
2

A

Ve el
oy

%

oI5

o
W

e

Igw?

A

R
« S -
o

N




CHAPTEP 2 METHODOLOGY

DEFINING THE COMMUNITY

Through community health and utilization data, as well as internal-facility targeted service delivery geography,
the Jacksonville Metropolitan Community Benefit Partnership (The Partnership) and the Health Planning
Council recognized the disparity in health status and health risk between those 1n the highest income levels and
the lowest, as well as between the msured and uninsured Those 1n the lowest income level without msurance
have the greatest health needs and are most challenged 1n gaining access to high quality, affordable health care
In addition, the community health needs assessment 1dentified children and youth as the population most at risk
for adopting poor health behaviors, but with the greatest opportunity for successful intervention Each of the
participating hospital’s Implementation Strategy and Community Benefit Plan will address the health needs of
the broader population with a special focus on those members of the population who demonstrate the greatest

need

Each of the participating hospitals in The Partnership discussed and agreed upon their respective targeted
communities Internal hospital patient census, existing community benefit programs, as well as a secondary data
and community scans facilitated the specific community audiences to engage for the primary data collection The
targeted community audience for primary data collected included, but was not limited to, adults and children
living below the poverty level, homeless/transient, unwed mothers, the disabled and their caregivers, children and
adolescents, senior citizens, adults and children with a variety of education levels, adults and children from

diverse racial 1dentification, and health care professionals

- Baptist Medical Center Jacksonville - Duval County

- Baptist Medical Center Beaches - Duval County (specifically, Atlantic, Neptune and Jacksonville Beaches)
- Baptist Medical Center Nassau - Nassau County

- Baptist Medical Center South - Duval County and Northern St Johns County

- Brooks Rehabilitation - Duval County and St Johns County

- Mayo Chinic - Duval County

- St Vincent’s Medical Center Riverside - Duval County, Clay County and Putnam County

- St. Vincent’s Medical Center Southside - Duval County

- Shands Jacksonville Medical Center - Duval County

- Wolfson Children’s Hospital - @

PRIMARY RESEARCH

Community Health Survey

The Community Health Survey was developed and administered to a broad and varied range of residents living
in the targeted five-county community The survey contained questions regarding perceived quality of hife and
health of the community, barriers to health care, use of health care, health care needs and demographic
information. The survey had two screening or “filter” questions to redirect two specific segments of population to
a different set of questions 1f they qualified The first filter question asked the respondent,“Do you have any
children under the age of 18 1n your home?” If they responded YES, the respondents were asked a separate set of
survey questions that were child- or adolescent-focused If they responded NO, they continued with the standard
set of survey questions A second filter question asked the respondent, “Do you take care of a person with
disabilities or are you a person with disabilities?” If they responded YES, the respondents were asked a separate
set of survey questions that focused on caregiving and disability needs If they responded NO, they continued

with the standard set of survey questions

COMMUNITY HEALTH NEEDS ASSESSMENT 2012 PEPOPT
- 14 -



CHAPTEP 2 METHODOLOGY

The Community Health Survey was completed between February 6, 2012, and March 6, 2012 The survey was
conducted 1in two phases 1) an Internet panel-based survey conducted from February 6 through February 8,
2012, and 2) a telephone survey completed between February 29 and March 6, 2012 A total of 935 persons in
Northeast Florida participated in the survey The survey included participants from Clay, Duval, Nassau and
St Johns Counties

An Internet panel method was used 1n order to reach the largest possible number of qualified respondents within
the limuts of the project budget The panel survey was conducted through Research Now, a global provider of
pre-recruited consumer and business respondents who have agreed to participate in market research surveys
With more than six million panelists worldwide, Research Now can provide access to consumers at the MSA or
county level for studies that have a relatively low incidence of qualification. A total of 822 respondents

participated in the Internet panel survey

Internet panel surveys do not reach households that do not have access to the Internet Additionally, they tend to
underrepresent lower-income, less educated and minority households A randomized telephone survey sample
was designed to address these gaps by targeting households with household incomes below $25,000 and two age
groups. 1) persons ages 18 to 34 and persons ages 75 and older These age ranges were underrepresented in the
online survey sample A total of 113 interviews were completed by telephone

The average length of the online version of the survey was 18 minutes, compared to 25 minutes on the telephone
A $10 00 gaft card was offered to the telephone survey respondents to encourage their cooperation and patience
with the interview

The final sample 1s not a true probability sample with known ranges of sampling error It was designed to meet
the objectives of the research 1n the most cost-effective and efficient manner possible If the Community Health
Survey had been based on a true probability sample, the range of sampling error would be plus or minus 3 2
percent at the 95 percent level of confidence Because at least 28 percent of U S households now have no
landline phone service, traditional RDD telephone samples do not provide coverage of all households It has
become more common to use multiple modes of sampling and interviewing, and then to statistically weight the

combined survey samples to most closely represent the target population

The Community Health Survey sample was ’jepresent the population of adults ages 18
and older in Clay, Duval, Nassau and St Johns Counties by age range The following table shows 2012 estimates
of population by age from Claritas, Inc., the unweighted distribution of respondents by age, the statistical weight
applied and the weighted distribution of respondents Putnam County residents were not included in the sample
due to small sample sizes

COMMUNITY HEALTH NEEDS ASSESSMENT 2012 PEPOPT
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SUAPTEP 2 GETHODOLOGY

THE COMMUNITY HEALTH SURVEY sAMPLE

2.36640

123,524

189,136 420778
187,011 136482 18%
201,993 1.09361 20%
58 1o B4 155,027 15% 0 82251 15%
6570 74 85,700 8% 189 17% 049567 8%
75 aAND OLEER 74,406 7% 5% 8% 115967 70%
TOTAL 1,036,797 100% o35 1w0o'% 1ou%
¥pATA ROUNDED
Focus Groups/Rouudlable Discussions
he five

roundtable discussions Were Conducted n each oft
focus groups) 1 which
cess The

After the completion of the surveys. focus groups/
a participatory large-group approach (symular 1O

quahtative data are generated about an 1ssu€ of importance through an mnteractive and collaborative pro
approach allows for the wdentification of needs and priorities among participants who have the knowledge and

expertise 10 inform the research A {otal of 148 individuals from communities located within Clay, Duva\@lssau,

Putnam and St Johns Counties gave thewr mput on multiple dimensions of thewr communities, t not

counties Roundt:\ble discussions are

himited o).
- But Environment Does the community infrastructure encourage or ;nhibit healthy hifestyles?
es? How has {he overall economic chmate affected

. Local Econonv Are there adequate economic opportunity

those m the commuumty?

. Barriers [0 Access Are there services that are not accessible? Do those with Medicaid and Medicare face

more barriers than those with private mnsurance’

. Motivatwon for Healthv Liviig What mfluences decisions about health?

SECONDARY RESEARCH

Health Care, Populatioit Health, Health-Related Quality of Life Indicators

o for the five counties. Whenever

ted of gathermg publicly available health-related dat
a focus of this research but are

Secondary research consis
possxble, data were collected at the county fevel sub-county level data were not

prov1ded where available

jcally includes a profile of the community’s population and

norbidity indicators for the general population., as well as spectfic

Characterlsncs From there, moriality and 1
populations that experience @ hgher burden of discase and death, are reviewed Prevention mdic

An assessment ofa community’s health typ

ators are also an

1mporiant component 1o consider.
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Counry Healr}, Rankings

A snapshot view of Community heaip 1S provided by the County Health, Rankings, an nriative of The Robert
Wood Johnson Foundatiop and The Umversny of Wisconsin Population Health Insttyte Health rankings for
each county in the nation are developed, USINg a variety of data for lactors 1hay mpact the health ofa

fommunity Thege factors range from mdividya] health behaviors 1 education ¢ Jobs to quality of health care
to the en vIronment

v B L
G

i

HEatry FALTORY #18

,’I/Io!)i[izt'ug for Actio, througt, P[(uming and Partuerslzips (MAPP)

Each county health department located Clay, Duval, Nassay, Putnam ang St Johns Countjes Inniated 5
countywide, community hegjih assessment that determined public health Priorities for the next three to fiye
years The MAPP mode] way chosen to guide thig Comprehens)ye effort MAPp IS Tecommended by many nationa]
and state public health Orgamizations includmg the Nationa] Association {of City and County Healtpy Officials
(NACCHO) and the Flopd, Department of Health a5 4 best practice for health assessment and p]anmng MAPP ;5
built on principles of broaq commun;ty ngagement and strategic Planning, which brepare communyy Y partners
to act together 14 addresg briontized hegjth Issues and improye Community healil, The Partnershlp’s community
health needs assessment reflect the priorityeg identified 1 the MAPP assessment and j corresponding
community hea|yjy Improvement plan

=

The Jacksonwlje Metropolitan area s known for 1ts accessible regional data ang community siyd)eg and repors
In the spypy; of utihzing these Tesources ang avoiding the duplication of these CXisting reports, the communmty
health needs assessment accessed and ysed data from the foHowing sources

Florida Medica] Qualny Assurance Ine - (FMQAD) Medicare Claim Data for Clay, Duval], Nassau and
St Johns Counties
- ElderSource’s Area Service Needs Assessment for Clay, Duval, Nassau ang St Johns Counties

ER and Admissjon Rates for Youth Sports-Related Concussiong Report for Clay, Duva], Nassau ang
St Johns Countieg

~ Flonida Youth Risk Behavior Survey for Clay, Duva], Nassay, Putnam ang St Johns Counties

- The Flonda Department of Health’s State Health Improvemen; Plan (SHIP)
Hospiia] Chanty Care Daty

[
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CTHAPTEP 3 COMMUNITY PPOFILE

GEOGRAPHY

The Partnership’s community health needs assessment includes Clay, Duval, Nassau, Putnam and St Johns
Counties A list of health-related quality of life indicators were selected based on the Institute of Medicine,
Healtlv People 2020, National Prevention Strategy recommendations and local community priorities The

indicators below are the focus of data retrieval and include the following categories:

Socioeconomic Indicators
- Population Demographics
- Economics

- Poverty

- Housing Statistics

- Homelessness

- Education

- Unintentional Injuries

Health-Related Indicators
- Sports-Related Injuries

- Environmental Health

- Nutrition

- Health Care Access

- Health Economics

- Dental Health

- Healthy Lifestyle

- Crime - Vision

- Access to Food - Chronic Disease Conditions

- Vital Statistics (mortality rates) - Health Status (physically and
mentally unhealthy days)

- Behavioral Health
- Substance Abuse
- Infectious Disease
- Maternal Health

- Disabilities

DEMOGRAPHICS

Population

The five counties of The Partnership’s community health needs assessment region have a population of
approximately 1 4 million, ranging from Putnam and Nassau Counties, each with a population around 74,000,
to Duval County, with a population of nearly 900,000 (see Chart 3-1) The population of all counties 1n the
region grew between 2000 and 2010 Growth ranged from 5 6 percent in Putnam County to 54 3 percent 1n

St Johns County

Age

In all five counties of The Partnership’s community health needs assessment, the largest portion of the
population falls between the ages of 18 to 44 The age distribution of all five counties roughly resembles that of
the state of Flornida (see Chart 3-4) Putnam County has the highest percentage of residents ages 65 and older
(18 percent)

Gender
In all five counties, females make up more of the population than males, but not by more than three percent
Clay, Putnam and Nassau Counties are closest to 50/50 (see Chart 3-5)

Racial Demographics

Racial demographics vary across The Partnership’s community health needs assessment Nassau and St Johns
Counties are nearly 90 percent Caucasian, with African-American populations around six percent Duval County
has the assessment region’s largest African-American population at close to 30 percent The Partnership’s
community health needs assessment region’s largest Asian population percentage 1s also 1n Duval County

(4 2 percent) For a breakdown of the racial mix in the assessment region, see Chart 3-2

COMMUNITY HEALTH NEEDS ASSESSMENT 2012 PEPOPT



CTHAPTEP 3 COMMUNITY PPOFILE

Ethnicity

Ethnicity, which 1s measured separately from race, likewise varies across the region Hispanic/Latino residents
make up 3 2 percent of Nassau County’s population and 5 2 percent of St Johns County’s population The other
counties In the assessment region have a Hispanic / Latino population between 7 5 and 9 0 percent The
Hispanic / Latino population 1n the assessment region 1s significantly lower than that of the state (22 5 percent)
(See Chart 3-3.)

Language

The data gathered on languages other than English spoken at home includes residents ages five and older The
percentage for the state of Florida 1s 25 8, most likely a reflection of the large Hispanic/Latino population Of the
five counties 1n the assessment region, Duval County has the highest percentage (11 7 percent) and Nassau
County has the lowest (4 2 percent) (See Chart 3-6)

Key Findings

- From 2000 to 2010, the population 1n all five counties increased The largest increase was seen in St Johns
County Generally speaking, the age distribution of all counties 1s similar to that of the state of Flonda
overall Additionally, the difference 1n the percentage of men and women 1s very small 1n every county of the
assessment region

- The racial diversity of the region 1s most evident in Duval County The Hispanic/ Latino population in the
five-county region 1s much lower than that of the state of Florida, as 1s the percentage of those who speak
languages other than English at home

CHART 3-1 POPULATION ESTIMATES

1,000

800

600

400

POPULATION (iN THOUSANDS)

200

o]

NASSAU PUTNAM ST. JOHNS
I 2010 140.8 778.9 57.7 70.4 123.1
B 2011 191.9 892.4 73.6 74.3 194.4

Sourte US Census Bureau 2010
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CHART 3-2 POPULATION BY RACE
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CHART 3-3 HISPANIC / LATINO POPULATION
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CHART 3-4
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CHART 3-5 pg PULATION BY GENDER
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CHART 3-6 LANGUAGE OTHER THAN ENGLISH SPOKEN AT HOmE
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ECONO/VHC CONDIT!ONS

The economic downturn clearly had an effect on the €Conomics of the region, as 1t d;q throughout the nation
Poverty increased, a4 did Unemploymen,

Income

Median household incomes jn Clay, Nassay and St, Johns Counties are all around $60.000 Putnam County has
the lowes; medjan family mcome at £33,842 and 1s the only county with 5 median family meome below the state
average ($44,409) There are stark differences In median famuly ncome between Black angd White residents 1y g
counties except for Clay (difference of less thap $4,000) Sce Chart 3.7 g, median householg mcome for 3]
counties and by race

Poverry

In 2010, hearly one 1n four residents of Putnam County (24 ¢ Percent) hived 1n families with meomeg below 109
bercent of the Federa] Poverty Guidelines (FPG) AddmonaHV, more than one 5, three children jp Putnam County
356 percent) hive 1n poverty Only Putnam County has percentages higher than the state level (12 bercent for 4]
familjeg and 19 5 percent for Chlldren) Nassay County hag the lowegt famd_y Poverty rate jn the assessment
reglon at 8 ¢ bercent, byt Clay County has the lowest clyyg poverty rate at 14 bercent See Chayy 3-8 for county
Comparison of poverty rates for 2000 and 2010

Employme,

Unemployment Tates have at Jeqst tripled for )] five countjes m the assessment regjon, as well as for the state
of Florida since 2006 However; (he 8rowth of the unemplovmen rate has slowegd For five Years, Putnam
County has had the highest levels of unemployment and 1s the only county to Consistently g above the slate
average In20jg, Putnam Countv’s rate of12 6 percent was followed by Duva] a4 11 7 percent St Johns County
had the lowest unemployment rate at 9 5 bercent See Chart 3.9 (- average annua| unemployment rates from
2006 to 2010
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Focus group respondents were divided on the topic of economic

opportunity While some felt there was little to no opportunity,

others felt that the city’s colleges, hospitals and the port provide

o

opportunities for residents Additionally, the loss of employment in

&+

the area has led to subsequent loss of health insurance Even those
who have kept their jobs have seen an increase in premiums and

co-pays

Housing

Clay, Nassau and St Johns Counties have homeownership rates of
about 78 percent Duval County 1s the only county 1n the
assessment region with a homeownership rate lower than the state
level See Chart 3-10 for homeownership rates in all five counties
and Florida In all five counties, most residents spend 35 percent
or more of their household income on rent This level 1s highest 1n
Putnam County and lowest in Nassau County See Chart 3-11 for a
description of gross rent as a percentage of household income by

county

Homelessness

The number of individuals who meet the federal defimition for
homelessness has increased 1n Duval County since 2008, while
Putnam County has seen a decrease, and St Johns County has
stayed almost exactly the same See Chart 3-12 for trends 1n all five
counties When considering the state of Florida's homeless
definition, Duval County has the highest numbers There 1s no data
available for Putnam and St Johns Counties See Chart 3-13 for
more information. The demographics of the homeless population

in Duval, Clay and Nassau Counties are as follows-

- 91 percent of the individuals are between the ages of 18 and
60 years old

- 71 percent are male

- 57 percent are Black
See Table 3-1 for characteristics of the homeless population

Key Findings
- Poverty and unemployment increased from 2000 to 2010.

- Putnam County has very high poverty rates, both for families
and children, as well as the highest unemployment rates for
the past five years

- In all five counties, unemployment 1s rising, but 1t 1s rising
slower than over the past five years

- Unemployment 1s lowest in St Johns County i
Y

N

- Most residents in the assessment region spend more than 35 I :ﬁ
%, P

percent of their income on rent i ;‘?3:
v &

- Duval County has the highest number of homeless individuals

COMMUNITY HEALTH NEEDS ASSESSMENT 2012 PEPOPT
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CHART 3-7
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CHART 3-8
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CHART 3-9
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CHART 3-11 GROSS AS A PERCENT OF HOUSEHOLD INCOME
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CHART 3-12 FEDERAL HOMELESS DEFlNlTlON

4,500

@ 4,000

-t
L4
g 3,500
Z

(=]

] 3,000
@

@ 2,500
3

=

z 2,000
b=

% 1,500
[+

s

% 1,000
e
=

500

Is} o

CLAY

111 789 1,238
nfA 911 1,237
61 283 1,237

g2 2008 25
Wi 2009 N/ A
g 2010 7

Soure Deparunen’ of Childien 300 famhes Annual Regart on Humeless Congtions Flonga 2070

Q‘\Ix‘x,‘x"ﬂ\n?‘{ HEMLTH NEEDS ASRES SR ENT 2012 R cpnET



CHART 3-13

HNUMBER OF HOMELESS INDIVIDUALS
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Sourte Department of Children and Families Annual Report on Homeless Conditions in Florida 2010

TABLE 3-1
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SCHOOLAND STUDENT POPULATION

kaCEfETnpiciTy

NASSAU
164

ot A

P
L

BLACK HISPARIC

7% 4%

Focus group participants are not very satisfied with Duval County Public Schools and acknowledge that

education affects health They mentioned they feel that, in Duval County, private schools are a better choice for a

quality education

Student Race and Ethuicity

Only 1n Duval County are there more Black students than White In the other four counties, White students make

up at least 50 percent of the student population There are the fewest numbers of minority students in Nassau

and St Johns Counties The breakdown for the state of Florida 1s much more even than any of the counties 1n the

assessment region See Chart 3-14 for student race and ethnicity by county
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Graduarz'ou Rates

Nassay County hag the highest graduation rate at 93 8 percent, followed by St Johns County at 95 » bercent
Duval ang Putnam Counties are below the State average of 80.1 percent See Chart 3-15 fora Comparison of
graduation rates acrosg Counties

School Absence

The Percentage of students abgeny more thap 1 days is highest in Putnam County (17 1 bercent) The only other
county above the State average 15 Duva] County hag the lowest rate at 5 9 bercent
See Char 3-16 to Compare the absence rateg across counties

Homeless Studenss

During 2009-201¢, Duva] County had the highest number of homelesg students (947) while Nassay County hag
the lowest (145) Thys kind of variation g expected with acyg] Numbers, ¢ counties wyth larger overal]
Populations are hkely to have highey actual numberg of homeles, students p Duval ang Putnam Counties the
numbery of homelesg students decreased between 2005-2006 and 2009-2010 See Chart 3.1 for more
informaton about homeJesg students 1n the assessment region

Gang Activiry

Based on students ages 15 o 17 Winessing delinquent behaviors among gang members 4t school, ﬁghtmg 1s the
most common behavior in Duva], Clay, Putnam and St Johng Counties Ip Nassay County, drug sajes and
carrying weapons were most freq uently reported See Chart 3.18 for more informanon on gang activty,

Kev Findings

White students make Up more than 50 bercent of the student body 1n aj counties except for Duval, where
there are more Black students thay White

Nassau and g¢ Johns Countyes have the highest graduation rateg
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CHART 3-16 SCHOOL ABSENCE
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CHART 3-18 GANG ACTIVITY
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PUBLIC SAFETY /CRimE

Focys 8TOUD participants, feel safe 1n Most areas of Dyyy] County, byt acknowledge that there aye some high.
trime pockets 1 which they do not feel safe Many barticipantg e¥pressed concerpy about safety and securnty gy

Um'uteutioual lijury

2010 rates of Unmtentjonga] mjury were highest 1y Putnam County (86 9 Per 100,000y, 5 stark increase from the
two years prioy- In Duvya] County, the rate staved around 40, and decreages were observed i Clay, Nassay, and
St Johns Counties The rate for the state also decreased See Chart 3.19 fora Comparison of rates acrosg
Counties from 2008102019, Chart 3-2¢ Ulustrates the trends 1n Unintentiong] drownmg rates in CVery county of
the assessment region The rate has changed very little jn Clay and Duval Counties, ag well as the state of
Flonda The Tales in Nassay, and St Johns Counties haye been aPproximately ¢y In half, whije Putnam County
Tates have more than doubled

Motor Velicle Cras/

Motor vehjele Crashes have steadily declined in all five counties of the assessment regjon, as well as 1n the State
of Florida The 2010 rate for Putnam County was the highest 1n the region ot 365 per 100,000, while St Johns
County had the lowest 4 8.3 Duval, Clay and st Johns Counties had rates below the state average of 12 g See

Chart 3-21 fo @ comparison of rates across counties from 2008 to 2010,
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Domestic Violence

Domestic violence rates vary greatly by county Over the last three years, rates have increased in Putnam, Duval
and Nassau Counties Clay County rates have declined, while St Johns County and the Florida average have
stayed about the same The 2010 rate for Putnam County 1s the highest in the assessment region and more than
double the Florida average St Johns County rates are the lowest (364 5 per 100,000) See Chart 3-22 for a
comparison of rates across counties from 2008 to 2010,

Aggravated Assault

Rates of aggravated assault have dropped across the board The most dramatic decline was 1n Nassau County,
where the 2010 rate of 221 2 was down from 808 3 1n 2008 Nassau County had the lowest rate, while Putnam
County had the highest at 754 1. Putnam and Duval Counties have consistently had rates above the state

average See Chart 3-23 for details

Forcible Sex Offenses

Rates of forcible sex offenses have declined 1n Clay, Nassau and St Johns Counties since 2008 Putnam County
rates have leveled off since 2009 Duval County 1s the only county 1n the assessment region to see an increase,
and had the highest rate 1n 2010 at 78 3 per 100,000 The rates in Nassau and St Johns Counties are well below
the state average of 52 6 See Chart 3-24 for more information about forcible sex offense rates

Homicide

Homicide rates have stayed about the same 1n all counties except for Putnam, where there was a drop from 11 0
to 7 7 Duval and Putnam Counties lie above the state average, and Duval County has the highest rate 1n the
assessment region at 12 2 per 100,000 See Chart 3-25 for age-adjusted death rates per 100,000

Charts 3-26 to 3-38 outhine sports-related head injury data Be sure to note the difference between Emergency
Department (ED) wvisits and hospital admission data Chart 3-26 shows that Duval County has the highest
number of visits for patients with traumatic brain injury (TBI) at 2,410 However, St. Johns County has the
highest proportion of those visits stemming from sports-related TBI (24 7 percent) Duval County saw the
highest number of hospital admissions for patients with TBI (111)

In Chart 3-28, there 1s a noticeable increase 1n the number of ED visits in 2009 Additionally, 2009 saw the
largest percentage of ED wvisits resulting from TBI, at 2 15 percent In 2006 1 97 percent, in 2007 2 09 percent,
and 1in 2008 1 85 percent Chart 3-29 shows the noticeable decrease 1n the number of hospital admission visits
1n 2009 Additionally, 2009 saw the smallest percentage of hospital visits result from TBI, at 1 1 percent (in
2006 1 4 percent; in 2007 15 percent, and 1n 2008 1 2 percent)

From 2006 to 2009, sports-related TBIs accounted for 15 percent of all TBIs reported during this timeframe
There was a 75 percent increase 1n the number of children ages 10 to 18 years who went to the ED for treatment
of a sports-related TBI between 2006 and 2009 (from 154 to 269), but the overall number of TBI for this period
also increased (see Chart 3-30) Chart 3-31 outlines hospital admissions for TBI, both sports-related and non-
sports-related From 2006 to 2009, TBI hospital adnussions dropped by 15 The percentage of those
patients who had sports-related TBI increased shightly over the same timeframe (2006 5 1; 2009* 5 5)
Additionally, 2007 saw the highest number of admissions (99) and the highest percentage of sports-related TBI
admissions (10 1 percent) from 2006 to 2009

* Data on sports related head injuries include all five counties in the assessment region

COMMUNITY HEALTH NEEDS ASSESSMENT 2012 PEPOPT
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Charts 3-32 and 3-33 and Tables 3-3 and 3-4 break the data down by age The number of ED visits from 2006 to
2009 for patients with TBI increases steadily with age However, the percentages of those visits that are sports-
related do not follow this pattern Incidence of TBI hospital admissions increases overall with age However, ages
12 and 14 have the highest proportion of sports-related TBI (15 8 percent and 15 4 percent, respectively) The
numbers of sports-related TBI are very small, so these differences are somewhat nrelevant When 1t comes to
gender, males make many more ED wisits for TBI (see Chart 3-34) Additionally, the percentage of visits that are
sports-related for males (17 8 percent) 1s higher than for females (8 8 percent) This disagrees with Covassin et
al, their rate was higher in females When the data 1s separated by race (Charts 3-36 and 3-37), White residents’
ED wisits with TBI are double that of Black and Other residents’ combined, but they have the

14 3 percent) Black 15 2 percent; Other 16 4 percent White residents’ hospital
admissions with TBI are double that of Black and Other residents’ combined Black patients have the lowest

proportion of sports-related TBI visits (6.2 percent). Other patients have a very high percentage (22.2 percent).

Tables 3-6 and 3-7 show which hospitals see TBI patients. Shands sees the highest volume of patients with TBI
(1,045), but Baptist Medical Center South sees the highest percentage of sports-related TBI patients (32 8
percent) Shands has the highest volume of hospital admissions for patients with TBI (181) but Baptist Medical
Center Jacksonville serves the highest percentage of sports-related TBI patients (23 8 percent) Rates for the
other hospitals were too small to report Chart 3-38 outlines the average length of stay (LOS) Across each year
between 2006 through 2009, sports-related TBI resulted in shorter LOS than non-sports-related TBI Both types
of TBI have decreased 1n LOS from 2006 (sports-related -0 2, non-sports-related -0 3)

Juvenile Crime

Chart 3-39 shows the overall decline 1n juvenile arrests 1n the state of Florida since 1998, Table 3-8 provides self-
reported data on violent behaviors both on and off school property. For all indicators, Duval County data was
higher than the state level County-level data was not available for the other counties of the assessment region
Thirty-two percent of students had been in a physical fight one or more times Nearly 14 percent had been in a
physical fight on school property Nearly 19 percent had carried a weapon on at least one day, and 6 5 percent

had done so on school property See Table 3-8 or more data

Key Findings
- Motor vehicle crashes have dropped in all of the counties 1n the region, as well as 1n the state

- Unintentional injury and drownings in Putnam County are significantly higher compared to the other
four counties and the state average

- The rate of domestic violence in Putnam County 1s double that of the state average

- Rates of aggravated assault have dropped throughout the assessment region

- The rate of forcible sex offenses has increased in Duval County

- Homicide rates have stayed about the same, with the exception of a small drop 1n Putnam County

- Duval County has the highest number of visits for patients with TBI and St Johns County has the highest
proportion of those visits stemming from sports-related TBI

- Incidence of TBI hospital admissions increases overall with age However, ages 12 and 14 have the highest
proportion of sports-related TBI

- Males make many more ED visits for TBI

- Shands sees the highest volume of patients with TBI, but Baptist Medical Center South sees the highest
percentage of sports-related TBI patients

- There has been an overall decline 1in juvenile arrests 1n the state of Florida, but for all indicators listed,
Duval County percentages were higher than those at the state level

COMMUNITY HEALTH NEEDS ASSESSMENT 2012 PEPOPT
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CHART 3-19
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CHART 3-20 UNINTENTIONAL DROWNINGS
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CHART 3-21
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CHART 3-22
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CHART 3-23
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CHART 3-30 SPORTS-RELATED
VS, NON-SPORTS-RELATED
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CHART 3-32 SPORTS-RELATED AND
NON-SPORTS-RELATED, BY AGE
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10 13.8%
11 14.8%
12 14.8%
13 16.5%
17 13.3%
18 5.0%

Source Health Planning Council of Northeast Florida (2011} ER and Haspital Adaussions from Youth Sparts Related Cancussions or Head Injuries
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CHART 3-33 HOSPITAL ADMISSIONS FOR PATIENTS WITH TBI, SPORTS-RELATED
AND NON-SPORTS-RELATED, BY AGE
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TABLE 3-4
10 6.7%
11 9.1%
12 15.8%
13 8.3%
14 15.4%
15 9.8%
16 4 6%
17 49%
18 1.2%

Sourte Health Planning Counuil of Northeast Florida (2011} ER and Haspital Adnussians fram Youth Spaits Related Cancussians or Head Injuries
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CHART 3-34 ED VISITS FOR PATIENTS WITH TBI, SPORTS-RELATED AND
NON-SPORTS-RELATED,

4,000

3,500

3,000

2,500

2,000

1,500

NUMBER OF VISITS

1,000

500

o]
FEMALE

188
1,960

[l TB! SPORTS-RELATED

32 TBI NON-SPORTS-RELATED

Source Health Planning Counuil of Northeast Florida (2011 ER and Haspital Admissions from Youth Sports Related Concussiers or Head Injuries

CHART 3-35 FOR PATIENTS WITH TBI, SPORTS-RELATED
AND NON-SPORTS-RELATED, BY GENDER
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TABLE 3-§5
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CHART 3-37 HOSPITAL ADMISSIONS FOR PATIENTS WITH TBI,
SPORTS-RELATED AND NON-SPORTS-RELATED,
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TABLE 3-6 TBI SPORTS-RELATED AND NON-SPORTS-RELATED HOSPITAL DATA
THROUGHOUT NORTHEAST FLORIDA

W 7, #

FLORIDA HOSFITAL, ORMUOND HOSPITAL 37
BAPTIST MEDICAL CENTER NASSAU 25
FLORIDA HOSPITAL, FLAGLER 39
FLORIDA HOSPITAL~ DELAND 42
FLAGLER HOSPITAL 48
FLORIDA HOSPITAL FISH MENMORIAL 47
HALIPAY HEALTH MEDICAL CENTER 86
ORANGE PARK MEDICAL CERTER &0
SHANDS JACKSONVILLE MEDICAL CENTER 87
OTHER (HOSPITALE, INGLUDING MAYD CLINIC,

WITH COUNTS ¢25) 124
TOTAL 861
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322
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958

1,601

5,067

Sourte Health Planning Counuil of Northeast Florida (2011} ER and Haspital Admissians from Youth Sparts Related Cancussians or Head Injuries
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TABLE 3-8 JUVENILE CRIME DATA
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LHAPTER 3 CONMAVHNITY PROFILE

VITAL STATISTICS

Leading Causes of Death

Cancer 1s consistently the leading cause of death, responsible for nearly a quarter of deaths 1n each county of
the assessment region Heart disease, chronic lower respiratory disease and stroke also topped the hist m every
county Suicide appeared on the list for St Johns County, accountable for approximately three percent of
deaths Pneumonia 1s responsible for the same percentage of deaths in Nassau County The following tables

break down the leading causes of death for each county of the assessment region

LEADING CAUSES OF DEATH — CLAY COUNTY (2010)

CARCER o / 33 . T we.7 o V 190 7
HEART DISEASE 59 146.0 14%.5
;2;‘3&%;{?@??5&% 98 7.6% 54 565
BRINTENTIONAL INJURIES 33 4.7% 36.3 40.8
STRORE 62 4.5% 339 33.9
DIABETES 57 4.1% 30.5 25.3

Source Flonga Deparrment of Health, Vital Statistius Bureau

LEADING CAUSES OF DEATH — DUVAL COUNTY (2010)

G . cF e i E
A GHEARD Uﬁ’fi% g;m;&%@%%.&iﬁﬁ%ﬁi}? 2
SEATRRATE" ESTHRETY 7
P o Y A » /"‘;w = s ;:ir
CANCER 180.2 183 8
HEART DISEATE 176.3 176 1
CHRONIL LOWER : o
RESPIRATORY DISEASE 43% 6 3% 8.4 49.8
BRINTEMTIGNAL INJURIES 367 £.3% 399 40.3
STROKE 268 5.1% 2.1 35.7
DIABETES 137 3 4% 26 6 28.2
Souree Flornida Department of Heaith Vital Siatistins Bureay

OOAMUNITY HEALTH NEEDS ASSESSMINT Zap2 FLPORT
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LEADING CAUSES OF DEATH ~ NASSAU COUNTY (2010)

A A

y BERCEN TR, »»zm
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}\w ” ; % p

%ﬂ«mz ust &5, 1 ¥

SO SR L SRR oy TR
CAN(;ER / 1 o h ) 151 / ‘ 23 2% 185 4 / 1;35 5
HEART DISEASE 139 21.3% 159.2 168.7
;gskg!:ﬁé?ttiiﬁsmse 44 6.7% 489 52.2
UNINTENTIONAL INJURIES 42 6.4% 54 0 56.3
STROKE 27 4.1% 30.9 34
15 2.3% 18.6 20.4

Sourte Florida Department of Health Vital Statistits Bureau

LEADING CAUSES OF DEATH ~ PUTNAM COUNTY (2010)

é‘M% >§ ﬁﬁf@(%ﬁé %g%mw»@ %{ Mé ‘%z&éx;usw;a ,,,ﬂ,iw M&zﬁc

Cornestn | o otk ¢ otk SBATAS oy o MERCHERTE T L SEA RS
{CM;C/ER ) / 2.:26/ ) 23 0% 2129 203.2
HEBART BISEASE L2 20.01% 184 3 163.5
RESMRATORY DISEASE 73 7 4% 64 6 66.7
BHIKTENTIONAL INJURIES 62 6.3% 26.9 72.0
STROKE 49 5 0% 43.9 43.6
DIABETES 42 4.3% 37.4 37.0

Sourte Florida Department of Health Vital Statistivs Bureau

LEADING CAUSES OF DEATH ~ ST. JOHNS COUNTY (2010)

s S

m@iﬁssﬁf’ -
:gm;mfaw ”

L s
,,»gg{ﬁ,,&w«ww%% P gwwg/ ;a:ﬁ%rx :
e ST %ﬁ«? S pURATHRRET

&y Mﬁwmﬁ@’? f:w
1’%" . Wﬂg{ i’

A v e ,;’ E :, 7 v & P e ,;\ P » ,:‘,;/{,, P
CANCER 25,7% 153 [ 159 7
HEART DISEASE 290 i9 7% 113.3 109 2
R paATORY DiSEASE 8 5.8% 343 35.2
STRGKE &5 4.4% 26.1 26.1
UNINTENTIONAL INJURIES & 4.2% 287 32.5

42 2 9% 19 8 15.9

Source Florida Department of Health Vital Statistics Bureau
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CTHAPTEP o BUILT ENVIPONMENT

NATURAL AMENITIES SCALE

The natural amenities scale 1s a measure of the physical characteristics of a county area that enhance the
location as a place to live The scale was constructed by combining six measures of climate, topography and
water area that reflect the environmental qualities most people prefer These measures are warm winter, winter
sun, temperate summer, low summer humidity, topographic variation and water area ® Natural amenity

”

rankings are given values “1” through “7,” with “7” representing the highest score

St Johns and Putnam Counties were scored at a “5,” while the other counties 1n the assessment region all
recelved a score of “4 ” On a scale of “7,” a score of “3” would 1ndicate an average score, as 1t falls exactly in the
middle Thus, while the county scores are not the highest possible, they are still above average The standard

deviations listed in Table 4-1 put these scores 1n context and provide a better 1dea of how high each score 1s.

AMERICAN LUNG ASSOCIATION: STATE REPORT CARD

The American Lung Association (ALA) assigns grades “A” through “F” based on average annual number of days
that ozone levels exceeded U S standards during the three-year measurement period ' The weighted average
was derived by adding the three years of individual level data (2008 through 2010), multiplying the sums of
each level by the assigned standard weights (1€, “1” = orange, “1 5” =red, “2 0” = purple and “2 5" = maroon)
and calculating the average Grades are assigned based on the weighted averages as follows “A” =00, “B" =03
t009,“C"=10t020,“D"=21t032,“F' =33+°

Duval County 1s the only county 1n the assessment region for which the ALA reports data As shown 1n Table
4-2, Duval County was given a grade of “B” for both ozone levels and particle pollution for the years of 2008
through 2010

Blood Lead Levels

According to Flonida's definition of childhood lead poisonung, children ages 72 months or younger with
confirmed lead levels greater than or equal to 10 micrograms per deciliter are considered lead poisoned This 1s

the same definition as the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention *

The data available on the subject are provided 1n Table 4-3 Note that a very small sample of children from each
county was tested Even so, St Johns County did not have any incidences of elevated blood lead levels On the

other hand,

Water Fluoridation

Fluoridating the public water supply 1s the most cost-effective means of preventing dental decay with positive
effects ranging throughout all ages The constant contact of low concentrations of fluoride in the oral cavity that

occurs when people drink fluornidated water has been shown to significantly reduce dental 10

6 United States Department of Agriculture, Economic Research Service http //www ers usda gov/data-products/natural-amenities-scale aspx
7 NE FL Counts http //www nefloridacounts erg/modules php?ep=modload&name=NS-Indicator&file=indicator&iid=15387

8 American Lung Association http //www stateoftheair org/2012/states/understanding-the-grades-and-tables huml

9 Florida Department of Health hitp //www doh state fl us/envirenment/lzarming/lead prevention him

10 Florida Department of Health Community Water Fluoridation http [jwww doh state il us/fanuly/dental/flucridation/mmdex html
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CTHAPTEP o BUILT ENVIPONMENT

CHART 4-1 WATER FLUORIDATION
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& PERCENTAGE OF
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POPULATION 8.0 99.2 740 63.4 39.0
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CITY POPULATION 5.5 93.1 54.0 25.2 34.3
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Sourte Florida Department of Health http //www doh state fl us/family/dental/fluoridation/optimelly2007 pdf
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THAPTER § AMTESS TO FOND

SUPPLEMENTAL NUTRITION ASSISTANCE PROGRAM (SNAP)

The number of food stamp recipients climbed by about 10 million from 2007 to 2009'" Thus, the observed
increase 1n SNAP-authorized stores 1s likely due to the increased demand for such establishments All five
counties n the assessment region have seen an increase 1n the rate of SNAP-authorized stores since 2008 In
2010, Putnam County had the highest rate at 1 48 stores per 1,000 individuals St Johns County had the lowest
rate at 0 53 stores per 1,000 people (see Chart 5-1)

WOMEN, INFANTS AND CHILDREN (wic)

While there are more SNAP-authorized stores, the rates of WIC-authorized stores have stayed the same

Chart 5-2 illustrates that the largest change in either direction was by 0 02 When the rates for SNAP- and WIC-
authorized stores are viewed side-by-side, the low levels of WIC-authorized stores are put into perspective. In
using the most optimistic numbers (from Putnam County), the rate equates to approximately one store for every

6,600 individuals See Chart 5-3 for further comparison
ACCESS TO FOOD SOQURCES

The distribution of various food sources varies by county In Nassau and St Johns Counties, there are more full-
service restaurants than fast food restaurants However, in Clay and Duval Counties the opposite 1s true All of
the assessment region counties share a relatively low rate of farmers’ markets (no higher than 0 2 markets per
1,000 people 1n any county) Additionally, convenience stores make up a large majority of the stores available to
residents of all five counties In Putnam County specifically, there are three times as many convenience stores
than all other types of stores (supercenters, grocery stores, specialized food stores) combined Charts 5-4 and
5-5 provide more immformation about the types of food sources available 1in each county When considering
access to food that 1s greater than one mile away, those individuals 1dentified as low-income have less difficulty
than those without a car, this 1s true for all five counties

This becomes more obvious when the distance radius 1s increased to 10
miles See Charts 5-7 and 5-8 to compare Note the scales for the two charts are very different Maps 5-1

through 5-4 help to visualize the food deserts in Clay, Duval, Putnam and St. Johns Counties.

The percentage of students eligible for free or reduced school lunch 1s highest in Putnam County (nearly 75

percent) See Chart 5-6 for percentages 1n the rest of the assessment region

Focus group participants expressed their concerns about individual eating habits and choices In the survey, 47
percent of respondents indicated that they had not consumed the recommended amount of fruit and 58 percent
did not eat enough vegetables Focus group participants have noticed many people skipping the produce aisle
and heading for foods that are cheaper and easier to prepare This type of decision-making extends beyond what
they buy 1n the grocery store, when convenience stores are so prevalent, the decision becomes about where to go

to buy food, not just what food to buy.

11 The New York Times food Stamp Usage Across the Country http://www nytimes com/mteractive/2009/11/28 /us/20691128 -foodstamps huml
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Key Findings
- SNAP-authorized stores have increased along with increased enrollment, but WIC-authorized store rates
have stayed the same

- Residents 1n all five counties have limited availability of local food sources (1 e , farmers’ markets)
Additionally, there are high rates of convenience stores which for many serve as food sources

- In Putnam County specifically, there are three times as many convenience stores than all other types of
stores (supercenters, grocery stores, speclalized food stores) combined

- The data imply that a lack of personal transportation 1s a greater barrier than being 1dentified as “low-

mcome”

CHART 5-1 SNAP-AUTHORIZED STORES

1.6

1.4

-
(S

STORES PER 1,000 IN POPULATION

o]

NASSAU

i

B SNAP-AUTHORIZED
STORES [ 1,000 1.13 0.63 0.33 0.3 0.6%
POR, 2008

Wit SHAP-AVTHORIZED
STORES / 1,000 1.48 0.81 0.6 0.53 1.11

POPR, 2010

Sourte United States Department of Agriculture

11 The New York Times food Stamp Usage Across the Country hitp //www nytmnes cem/interactive/2008/11/28/us/20081128-feadstamps himl

COMMUNITY HEALTH NEEDS ASSESSMENT 2012 PEPOPT

- 57 -



fHAPTEP §

CHART 5-2 WIC-AUTHORIZED STORES
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CHART 5-3 SNAP- AND WIC-AUTHORIZED STORES
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CHART 5-4 RESTAURANT AVAILABILITY
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CHART 5-6 ELIGIBILITY FOR FREE AND REDUCED-PRICE LUNCHES
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CHART 5-7 ACCESS TO FOOD, GREATER THAN ONE MILE
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CHART 5-8 ACCESS TO FOOD, GREATER THAN 10 MILES
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MAP 5-4 PUTNAM COUNTY
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Access to health care services 1s an important determinant of health status and continues to be a central focus for
health policy in Florida The following summary provides a review of health coverage available to Clay, Duval,
Nassau, Putnam and St Johns County residents, health care providers practicing in the counties, health care
facilities and services, and other community resources An assessment of existing health care systems will help to

identify the current status of care availability and significant gaps or challenges

According to the Community Health Survey used for this assessment, access to health care 1s important to a
majority of respondents (96 percent). Statistical tests showed that significant differences exist across gender and
race/ethnicity Female respondents (97 percent) found access to health care to be more important than males (94
percent) Females (84 percent) also responded “very important” more than males (67 percent) Other/Multi-Racial
respondents placed the lowest level of importance on access to health care (73 percent), while Hispanic
respondents unanimously answered “very important” or “somewhat important” (100 percent) A closer look at
strictly “very important” responses shows that African-American respondents answered this way the most (93

percent) It1s important to note that none of the respondents answered “not at all important ”
QUALITY OF CARE

Sixty-five percent of the respondents of the Community Health Survey rated the quality of health care services in
their county as “excellent or good” Forty-seven of those percent were “good” responses Five percent of

respondents rated the health care services as “poor”

St Johns County respondents were most satisfied with the health care services 1n ther county (79 percent) and
submitted the highest level of “excellent” ratings (30 percent) Duval County residents were least satisfied (61
percent) and gave the highest percentage of “poor” ratings Respondents from Clay County gave the fewest

“excellent” ratings (11 percent)

Males (71 percent) tended to rate the health care services in their counties higher than females (61 percent). They

also gave more “excellent” ratings (22 percent) than women (16 percent)

Aslan respondents were most satisfied with the health care services (78 percent) Interestingly, African-American
respondents were the least satisfied overall (53 percent) but gave the highest level of “excellent” ratings This
signals a divide 1n beliefs; a high number of people rated thenr services as “excellent,” however an almost equally

large number of people were displeased with the quality

Ratings of health care services tend to improve as the age of the respondent increases, with a shight drop-off for
those 1n the ages 75 and older group Those respondents ages 18 to 24 gave their services the lowest rating (54
percent), but 1t was the ages 25 to 34 group that responded with the least percentage of “excellent” responses
Respondents ages 65 to 74 gave the highest ratings (87 percent), but individuals ages 75 and older responded with

the highest “excellent” responses (46 percent)

Ratings of health care quality increased as income increased Those 1n the Under $15,000 bracket gave the lowest
overall rating (46 percent), while those at the highest end of the income scale gave an 80 percent rating and the
highest percentage of “excellent” ratings (27 percent) Those in the $50,000 to $74,999 income range gave the

lowest amount of “excellent” ratings (12 percent)

Key Findings:

- Sixty-five percent of the survey respondents rated the quality of health care services in their county as
“excellent or good ” Forty-seven percent of those were “good” responses

- St Johns County respondents were most satisfied with the health care services 1n their county (79 percent)
and submitted the highest level of “excellent” ratings Duval County residents were the least satisfied and gave
the highest percentage of “poor” ratings Respondents from Clay County gave the fewest “excellent” ratings

- African-American respondents were the least satisfied overall (53 percent) but gave the highest level of
“excellent” ratings This signals a divide 1n beliefs; a high number of people rated thenr services as “excellent,”
however an almost equally large number of people were displeased with the quality
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HEALTH CARE PROVIDERS AND FACILITIES

The Community Health Survey revealed several interesting findings regarding accessibility of health care,
delays in treatment, routine care, and tests and screenings, insurance coverage and other barriers to care
Findings from the 22 consumer-based focus groups conducted across the selected counties supported much of
the findings from the community needs assessment The Department of Health and Human Services (HHS) has
designated each of the low-income populations in Clay, Duval, Nassau, Putnam and St Johns Counties as a
Medically Underserved Population (MUP) In addition, Clay, Duval, Nassau, Putnam and St Johns Counties are
all designated as Health Professional Shortage Areas (HPSA) for the low-income population in the areas of
Primary Care, Dental Care and Behavioral Health I M Sulzbacher Center for the Homeless, the Duval County
Health Department, Rural Healthcare, Inc , Sunrise Primary Care and Northeast Florida Health Services are

to address health care access needs of the low-income population in Northeast Flornda.

Accessing Health Care or Physicians

Eighty-one percent of survey respondents reported that they “did not have a time during the past 12 months
when they or anyone 1n their household experienced difficulties getting or delayed recewving health care for

»

any reason’

Ten percent of respondents reported that they “had experienced a time during the past 12 months when they
needed medical care, but had difficulty finding a doctor” Five percent of respondents with children reported
that they “had a time 1n the past 12 months when they needed medical care for a child in thewr care, but they

could not receive 1t ”

When ~ere asked where they would most likely go if their children or dependents were sick, the
majority of respondents (83 percent) said that they would be “most likely to go to the doctor’s or pediatrician’s
office/clinic 1if their children or dependents were sick” The next most common answer was the “hospital
Emergency Room” (15 percent) followed by an “urgent care or walk-in clinic” (10 percent) No respondents said

that they would “rely on a school nurse/chinic”

Ninety-three percent of respondents who get a prescription for medications to treat an illness said that they “get
their prescription(s) filled at a pharmacy” Five percent reported that they “go without medicine” and an
additional five percent reported that they “buy over-the-counter medicine instead ”

When disabled respondents were asked to 1dentify the biggest 1ssue they face regarding health care acccess, the
four most common 1ssues were, “don’t have/can’t get health insurance” (11 percent), “mobility,” 1n general, (10

percent), “walking” (eight percent) and “cost of care/medications/equipment” (eight percent)

Just under half of the respondents (49 percent), reported that themr most recent visit to the dentist or dental
clinic was within the past six months Eleven percent of respondents reported that they had not made a visit to
the dentist or dental clinic 1n five or more years

Delays in Accessing Health Care or Physicians

Of those who had delayed health care services in the last 12 months, 73 percent had delayed a visit to a doctor
or physician The next most delayed service was medical test, exam or screening (42 percent) The third most
delayed service was dental care (28 percent) Ten percent of respondents answered “other services”

The types of doctor or physician visits that the respondent or a household member delayed most frequently in
the past 12 months were “routine care” (54 percent), “chronic condition” (47 percent), “minor illness/injury”

2

(36 percent) and “dental care” (35 percent) Sixteen percent of respondents answered “other visits’

Forty-eight percent of respondents with children “visited a doctor for a routine checkup or general physical
exam within the past six months ” The percentage of children who “had not visited a doctor for a routine
checkup or general physical exam within the past six months in five or more years” was zero percent

COMMUNITY HEALTH NEEDS ASSESSMENT 2012 PEPOPT
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Delays in Tests and Screenings

»

Twenty-seven percent of respondents specified “other tests’

When parents were asked how long 1t had been since their child visited a dentist or dental chinic, the largest group
of respondents answered “within the past six months” (43 percent). Sixteen percent of the respondents said that
their “child has never wvisited a dentist or dental climic”

Reasons for Delays in Accessing Health Care

The three most frequently noted reasons for delaying health care treatment are “inability to pay” (38 percent),
“no isurance” (35 percent) and “concerned about spending in current economy” (33 percent) Twenty-five

percent of respondents answered “other reasons”

Respondents reported the main obstacle to getting medical care for children as “cost/no msurance/could not
afford 1t” (67 percent) The next most common obstacle reported was “too long of a wait for an appointment”

(10 percent)

According to the survey, 19 percent of respondents, or someone 1n their household, “needed a prescription

medicine, but did not get 1t because they could not afford 1t”

Key Fiudings:

- Eighty-one percent of survey respondents did not have a time during the past 12 months when they or anyone
n their household experienced difficulties getting or delayed receiving health care for any reason; 10 percent
of respondents experienced a time during the past 12 months when they needed medical care but had
difficulty finding a doctor Five percent of respondents with children had a time 1n the past 12 months when
they needed medical care for a child in their care but could not get 1t

- When disabled respondents were asked to identify the biggest 1ssue they face 1n accessing health care, the
four most common answers were, “don’t have/can’t get health insurance” (11 percent), “mobility, 1n general
(10 percent), “walking” (eight percent) and “cost of care/medications/equipment” (eight percent)

- Just under half of the respondents (49 percent) reported that their most recent visit to the dentist or dental
clinic was within the past six months For 11 percent of respondents, this visit had not occurred in five or
more years

- Of those who had delayed health care services 1n the last 12 months, 73 percent had delayed a wvisit to a
doctor or physician The next most delayed service was medical test, exam or screening (42 percent) The
third most delayed service was dental care (28 percent) Ten percent of respondents answered “other services.”

- The types of doctor or physician visits that respondents, or a member of their household, delayed most
frequently 1n the past 12 months were “routine care” (54 percent), “chronic condition” (47 percent), “minor
illness/imjury” (36 percent) and “dental care” (35 percent) Sixteen percent of respondents answered “other
visits”

- Forty-eight percent of respondents with children “visited a doctor for a routine checkup or general physical
exam within the past s1ix months ” The percentage of children who “had not visited a doctor for a routine
checkup or general physical exam within the past six months 1n five or more years” was zero percent

- Sixteen percent of the survey respondents reported that their “child has never visited a dentist or dental
chime”

- The three most frequently noted reasons for delaying health care treatment are, “inability to pay” (38
percent), “no msurance” (35 percent) and “concerned about spending 1n current economy” (33 percent)
Twenty-five percent of respondents answered “other reasons ”

- The main obstacle to getting medical care for children was reported as “cost/no insurance/could not afford 1t”
(67 percent). The next most common obstacle reported was “too long of a wait for an appointment” (10
percent)

- Nineteen percent of respondents, or someone 1n their household, “needed a prescription medicine but did
not get 1t because they could not afford 1t”
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CHART 6-2 TOTAL LICENSED PHYSICIANS
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CHART 6-3 TOTAL LICENSED PRIMARY CARE PHYSIC!ANS
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CHART 6-5 TOTAL ACUTE CARE BEDS
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CHART 6-6 TOTAL SPECIALTY BEDS
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CHART 6-7
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CHART -9 TOTAL NURSING HOME BEDS
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HEALTH \NSURANCE

tealth care Jnsurance coverage 1s crifical to accessing medical care within the U S health care system Coverage
options vary dramatically 11 terms of which services are covered, which providers are covered, and what portion
of the cost is the responsﬂ)ﬂ'ny of the patient As the national economic climate continues to fluctuate and costs
of health care remam high, indiiduals and farmihies are strugghng to pay for adequate health care seTvices Most
have health coverage through an employer (thewr own oF thewr spouse’s) OF recelve benefits through Medicand or

Medicare

Hospital services are known 1o be extremely expensive, making health msurance coverage almost 2 necessity

when seeking acute care services

According 10 the Community Health Swrvey, 92 percent of households have at least on¢ member covered by any
form of insurance or health plan When asked why no one n their household had some form of nsurance, 69
percent gaid that 1t was because they can't afford the cost of msurance. Thirty-eight percent gave unemployment

as the reason Additionally, 1 1 pereent can’t buy msurance dueto pre-emsting condition

Fifty-one percent of respondents saad their household’s health care coveTage comes from thew own employer
health insurance Twenty-five percent utihize any kind of government—a551st:mce health care coverage The third

most frequent source of health care coverage s from another fanuly member’s job (24 percent).

Sixty-two percent of respondents have msurance that covers pehavioral health services. It 15 1important 10 note

that 31 percent of respondents answered ‘ot sure”

Sixty-seven percent of respondents have dental \nsurance coverage:

Q‘\L‘n‘:"ﬂ\aﬂ‘{ HEMLTH NEEDS :’\‘523‘33‘3&“\8:\3” 2012 gEPHET
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Medicare and Medicaid

Medicare 1s provided to people ages 65 and older, some disabled people under the age of 65, and people of all
ages with end-stage renal disease (permanent kidney failure treated with dialysis or a transplant) Charts 6-13
and 6-14 provide summaries of the Medicare beneficiaries and Medicare Advantage (MA) enrollees living 1n the
five-county assessment area, which includes the private health plans such as HMOs, PPOs, and Private Fee for
Service (PFFS) plans contracted to provide Medicare services. Chart 6-10 depicts the median monthly Medicaid
enrollment for the five assessment counties and Florida

Florida KidCare

Federal government provisions for children’s health coverage include Medicaid and Title XXI of the Social
Security Act The states use Title XXI block grants to fund child health care coverage through an expansion of the
Medicaid program, health insurance or a combination of the two The KidCare Act of 1997 expanded Medicaid
ehigibility and the Healthy Kids Program, and mmitiated the MediKids program Currently, there are four KidCare

programs available to augment health care for children (listed below) Enrollment data are provided in Table 6-5

e Healthy Kids Program — The Healthy Kids Program provides subsidized health insurance for children ages
five through 18 who reside 1n households where income 1s between 100 to 200 percent of the federal poverty
level (FPL) Full-pay options are also available to families with incomes above 200 percent of FPL

¢ MediKids — MediKids covers children ages one through four with income levels at 133 to 200 percent of FPL.

¢ Children’s Medical Services (CMS) — CMS covers children from birth through age 18 who have special
behavioral or physical health needs or chronic medical conditions

e Medicaid — Medicaid provides health insurance for children from birth through age 18, with eligibility based
on the age of the child and household income Children under the age of one are covered, 1f the household
income 1s below 200 percent of FPL, children ages one through four, if the household income 1s less than 133
percent of FPL, and children ages six through 19, 1f household income 1s below 100 percent of FPL

Key Fiudings:

- Overall, the vast majority of residents living 1n the five assessment counties have some form of health
msurance

- According to the Community Health Survey, 92 percent of households have at least one member covered by
any form of insurance or health plan When asked why no one in their household had some form of
insurance, 69 percent said that 1t was because they can’t afford the cost of insurance Thirty-eight percent
gave unemployment as the reason Additionally, 11 percent can’t buy insurance due to a pre-existing
condition

- Fifty-one percent of respondents said their household’s health care coverage comes from their own employer
health mmsurance Twenty-five percent utilize any kind of government assistance health care coverage
The third most frequent source of health care coverage 1s from another family member’s job (24 percent)

- The total number of children enrolled in KidCare 1n the assessment counties 1s considerably lower than
the state average.

COMMUNITY HEALTH NEEDS ASSESSMENT 2012 PEPOPT
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TABLE 6-1 HEALTH INSURANCE COVERAGE BY AGE

TOTAL

UNDER 18
18 ~ 44
45 ~ 64
65 AND OLDER 99.4 98 2 160.0

Sourte US Census Bureau - 2010 American Community Survey

TABLE 6-2 PERCENT OF ADULTS WITH ANYTYPE OF COVERAGE

ALL

RACE/ETHNICITY
NOR-HISPANIC WHITE 87 1% 20.0% 88 6% 82.5% 9%.0% 87.3%
HON-HISPANIC BLACK 96, 7% 86 4% /A 8%.5% n/a 76 %

EDUCATION LEVEL

CHIGH SCHOOL n/a n/a 78 3% 66 3% w/a 64 4%
HiGH SCHOOL/ GED B1.6% 8R.7% 85.6% R3.0% B88.7% 76.5%.
}HIGH SCHOOL 91 1% B9 8% 92.0% B7 9% 93.8% 87.9%

ANNUAL INCOME

< $25,000 65.8% 83.0% 78.9% 75 6% 73.6% 64.2%
$25,007- $49,999 B5.5% &5 0% 89.0% 87 8% 88.6% #1 7%
$50,000 or MORE 94 6% 96.4% 93.3% 94.4% 96 6% 95.4%

Sourte Florida County Level BRPSS Survey Flonda Department of Health Bureau of Epidemiology

TABLE 6-3 NUMBER OF ENROLLED AND PERCENT OF POPULATION

MEDICARE v 2? 678 (14, 8%} A 117 639 (13 0%) ) 13 65? (18 5%) 16,415 (22 z%) 33 188 (53 5%; 3,390,801 (18/ o%)
MEDICARE HMO 1,467 (1.8%) 15,619 (1.7%) 1,543 (2,1%) 1,113 (1.5%) 2,569 (1.4%) 804,893 (4.3%)
MEDICAID 21,758 (11.7%) 153,324 (17 &) &,897 (12 1%) 19,606 (25 7%) 14, 561 (7.7%) 2,966,294015.7%)
MEDICAID HMO 11,866 (6.4%) 53,513 (5.9%) 1,934 (2 6%) 5,381 (7.3%) &2 (0 03%) 1,117,567 (3.9%)
COMMERCIAL HMO 14,119 (7 6%) 59,049 (6 5%) 5,046 (6.8%) 802 (1.1%) 10,195 (5 4%) 1,348,751 (7 2%)

Source Flonda Medical Quality Assurance {FMOAIl AHCA CMS and Florida Demagraphic Estimating Canference 2011

COMMUNITY HEALTH NEEDS ASSESSMENT 2012 PEPOPT
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CHART 6-10
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NUMBER OF BENEFICIARIES
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CHART 6-11 KIDCARE ENROLLMENT — MEDIKIDS AND MEDICAID, CHILDREN UNDER AGE &
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CHART 6-12 TOTAL NUMBER OF MEDICARE BENEFICIARIES
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NUMBER OF ENROLLEES

NUMBER OF ENROLLEES
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CHART 6-13 NUMBER OF MEDICARE

HEALTH T APE AF 7 ESS

35,000
T
30,000 ‘,
%
25,000
“t, Lo
. e
% .
20,000 i L A
15,000 . L7
P
» e
10,000 ’
-
P 7
5,000
e s .
T i, e ,,:;, ,;;a:g::»« Tt ok A Ot NerPnty (AT &Y
[s] o N SN A e N8 B =2 g T e E
1969 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 20085 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
e (LAY - DUVAL veeser o HASSAR PUTNAM st ST, JOHNS

Sourte Centers far Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) Kaiser Family Foundatian

CHART 6-14 NUMBER OF MEDICARE ADVANTAGE ENROLLEES (WITHOUT DUVAL)
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EMERGENCY DEPARTMENT VISITS

Local hospital Emergency Department (ED) utilization can be a good indicator of the availability and
accessibility of area health care services Equally important, 1s the patient’s payor source when visiting an
emergency room (ER) Chart 6-16 provides insight into the diversity of inpatient (ER admissions) ER payor
source 1n each of the counties targeted 1n this community needs assessment

Of all of the residents visiting an ER 1n the assessment region, at least 30 percent and no more than 35 percent
are self-pay Approximately 36 percent have Medicare or Medicaid

Nassau County has the most self-pay and Clay County has the fewest self-pay

In Putnam County, approximately 45 percent of all hospital inpatient visits were from Medicare beneficiaries
and 19 percent were Medicaid beneficiaries. Outpatient ER payor source reveals that at least 36 percent of all
patients have Medicare, Medicare HMO, Medicaid or Medicaid HMO A minimum of 30 percent of all

outpatient visits are self-pay

Payor source characteristics for ER wisits for children look considerably different compared to adults visiting
the ER Of all of the children visiting an ER 1n the assessment region, at least 10 percent and no more than 15
percent are self-pay However, a mimimum of 45 percent (St Johns County) and a maximum of 75 percent
(Putnam County) of all children visiting an ER have some form of Medicaid. More children have commercial
msurance compared to adults Nassau County has the most self-pay and Putnam County has the fewest self-pay

Finally, the Community Health Survey revealed the top three most utilized 50 percent of
adult respondents, or thenr household members, used a hospital ER, outpatient testing or treatment was utilized
by 45 percent of respondents or a household member, the third most frequent response was admittance to a
hospital (41 percent)

Key Findings

- Of all of the residents visiting an ER 1n the assessment region, at least 30 percent and no more than 35
percent are self-pay Approximately 36 percent have Medicare or Medicaid Only 27 percent of ER patients
have commercial insurance. Nassau County has the most self-pay and Clay County has the fewest self-pay

- In Putnam County, approximately 45 percent of all hospital inpatient visits were from Medicare
beneficiaries and 19 percent were Medicaid beneficiaries. Outpatient ER payor source reveal that at least 36
percent of all patients have Medicare, Medicare HMO, Medicaid or Medicaid HMO

- Payor source characteristics for children’s ER wisits look considerably different compared to adults visiting
the ER Of all of the children visiting an ER 1n the assessment region, at least 10 percent and no more than
15 percent are self-pay However, a mimmimum of 45 percent (St Johns County) and a maximum of 75
percent (Putnam County) of all children visiting an ER have some form of Medicaid More children have
commercial insurance compared to adults Nassau County has the most self-pay and Putnam County has
the fewest self-pay

COMMUNITY HEALTH NEEDS ASSESSMENT 2012 PEPOPT
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DENTAL COVERAGE AND PROVIDER SuppLy

During 2019 1o 2011, the rate of licensed dentists per 100,000 Population in 5] five countjes was much lower
than the si1e (Chart 6-1 9) Generally, access to dental caye declines a4 Income dechineg While the Percentage of

low-ncome Persons with accegg to denta] care In al] five counties js considered low, the Pereentage of Joy,.
Income persong aceessing denyg] Se1vices 1s aboye the rate for the state of Florida (Chart 6-20)

Survey respondents mndicated thyy dental care g the third most frequently delayed service (behyng “Visit to
doctor” and “medica] lest, exam or screening”) Addltlonaﬂy, 63 percent of respondents recerved a denty) exam
In the Jagt 12 Mmonths Fortv-nipe Percent reporteq that theijr Most recent vigyt ¢ the denpigy Was within the past
SIX monthsg However, 11 percent have net Seen a dentist 1n five or more years The same type of Pattern exjstg
for the children of respondents The largest group of respondents answered “withp, the past g% months” (43
percent) However, 1g Percent of the respondents sa;q therr ch)ld has neyer visited a dentigt or dentz] clinic

All five counties 1p the assessment region are below the state average for rate of totg] licensed dentists. The
levels haye stayed about the Same n all counteg e€xcept for 8t Johns where there was a decregge (See Chary
6-19) While the number of dentists doeg play a part p the accessibility of denta] care, focysg BIOUD participaptg
feel that Insurance Coverage dictates which heglily services are aceessible to eqch berson, especally dent)gys,
Accordmg to the survey data, two-thirds (67 bercent) of SUIvey respondents, have dentg] Msurance Coverage.
This type of Coverage 1s hkely not as common among low-income residents Access 1o denta] services for low.-
INncome ndividualg has Increased Marginally since 2008, ©Xcept in Nassay County Even with the decline,
Nassay County’s Jeyels are still much higher than the state Jeye] See Chart 6.2¢ for more information op access
to denta) services for low-income residents
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Key Fiudings:

- Generally, access to dental care declines as income declines While the percentage of low-income persons

with access to dental care 1n all five counties 1s considered low, the percentage of low-income persons

accessing dental services 1s higher than the state of Florida's percentage

- Survey respondents indicated that dental care 1s the third most frequently delayed service (behind “visit to

doctor” and “medical test, exam or screening”)

- 11 percent of the survey respondents have not seen a dentist in five or more years

- While the number of dentists does play a part in the accessibility of dental care, focus group participants
feel that insurance coverage dictates which health services are accessible to each person, especially dentists

- According to the survey data, two-thirds (67 percent) of survey respondents have dental insurance coverage

CHART 6-18 TOTAL LICENSED DENTISTS
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CHART 6-19 ACCESS TO DENTAL CARE BY LOW-iNCOME PERSONS
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HEARING AND VISION pROVIDER SUPPLY

Focus group participants did not mention difficulty 1m receving hearing oF yis100 SETVICEs However. the most
commonly delaved test oF exam among survey respondents was an cye exam (44 percent) On the other hand,
2 percent hiad received an eye oxam in the last 12 months

See

Tables 6-7 and 6-8 for the numbers of vision and hearing practitioners It each county
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TABLE 6-6 NUMBER OF PRACTITIONERS AND QFFICES

7 - \@3’“,/ - ¥ . ;';‘;n;,,,;f" oy oo .
woss C T wasske o O eutian
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Gt
v
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T L7 7 S, é:“ v 5
OPTOMETRIST 137 10 3
ORTICIAN L] 121 9 12 50
OPTICAL ESTABLISHMENT PERMIT 15 58 2 3 3
OPTOMETRY BRANGH OFFICE AL 38 0 8 19

Sourte Florida Department of Health License Verification

TABLE 67 NUMBER OF AUDIOLOGISTS
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Source Flonda Department of Health License Verifitation

BARRIERS TO CARE

Affordability

Affordability and time constraints were two common barriers mentioned in the focus groups The economy
has led to many people losing their jobs and, 1n turn, their health benefits. Aside from job loss, coverage 1s
decreasing while premiums and co-pays are on the rise, as well as the cost of prescription medication. In the
survey, for the eight percent of uninsured households (determined by answers to question 17), 69 percent said
that 1t was because they can't afford the cost of insurance and 38 percent gave unemployment as the reason As
one participant said, “Without health insurance, 1t 1s difficult to get services unless you go to the emergency
room ” Of those survey respondents who stated they had delayed health care services, the three most frequently
noted reasons for delaying health care treatment were “inability to pay” (38 percent), “no insurance” (35
percent) and “concerned about spending in current economy” (33 percent) As people attempt to compensate
for the dismal economy, dual-income families are becoming more common But in dual-earner families, finding
time to get to the doctor s difficult

Trausportation as a Barrier

A common theme 1n the focus groups was the challenges presented by a lack of transportation, especially when
trying to obtain health care A handful of participants mentioned that transportation needs extend beyond
getting to and from medical centers, but that 1s all the public transportation assists them with Upon mitial
evaluation of the survey data, 1t seems that access to public transportation 1s not as important as many of the
other attributes of a healthy community However, when the crosstabs were analyzed, 1t became evident that
while 1t 1sn’t important for everyone, 1t 1s very important for some
Additionally,

As
might be expected, the importance placed on access to public transportation decreases overall with rise 1n
Income
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Key Fiudings:

- Affordability (a barrier to care) plays a role in the decisions that residents make to take care of their health,
of those survey respondents who stated they had delayed health care services, the three most frequently
noted reasons for delaying health care treatment were “inability to pay” (38 percent), “no insurance” (35
percent) and “concerned about spending in the current economy” (33 percent)

- A common theme in the focus groups was the challenges presented by a lack of transportation, especially
when trying to obtain health care. A handful of participants mentioned that transportation needs extend
beyond getting to and from medical centers, Upon
mitial evaluation of the survey data, 1t seems that access to public transportation 1s not as important as
many of the other attributes of a healthy community However, when the crosstabs were analyzed, 1t
became evident that while 1t 1sn't important for everyone, 1t 1s very important for some

- The importance placed on access to public transportation decreases overall with a rise 1in income The

1mportance 1s highest for those making less than $15,000 (96 percent) and lowest for those making
$£100,000 or more (70 percent)

CAREGIVERS '

Additional help with caregiving (at all stages of disease) 1s the greatest need for caregivers. There seems to be
confusion among caregivers as to what resources are available to them, and how to secure and/or qualify for the
resources This does not seem to be as much of an 1ssue 1n the earlier stages of disease Caregivers have
difficulty asking for help, particularly in the early stages of the disease They often do not ask for help until an
emergency situation arises When physiclans use the term Alzheimer’s, all agreed that seeking help seems easier
Overnight help, while sometimes available, did not seem to be a high priority with caregivers Many caregivers
believe that leaving their spouse or parent overnight 1s not worth 1t because of the setbacks they often
experience Additional daycare hours would be used Participants mentioned drop-in care, late afternoon hours
and early evening hours as being very beneficial Participants discussed starting mini-support groups or

informal get-togethers with caregivers and their loved ones

Spouses and children often become caregivers out of necessity Many quit jobs and move Many caregivers have

financial problems because of these unexpected changes

Caregivers want more information from doctors Some doctors don'’t provide even basic information and
resources Dental problems were 1dentified as the major health problem, particularly with patients whose
disease was more progressed The patient tends to be non-cooperative, not liking someone 1n their mouth

Preventive dental care 1s difficult for caregivers Dental care 1s expensive, many dentists don't accept Medicaid

Caregivers have difficulty staying healthy Injuries suffered when transporting their loved ones are common. In
addition, many caregivers, particularly those with loved ones who are newly diagnosed, suffer from issues of
fear and guilt. Many caregivers don't have the time or finances to take care of their own health.

Children of caregivers play varying roles 1n helping a parent provide care, depending on where they live, their
job and family responsibilities, etc Children do not always understand the severity of a parent’s disease
Caregivers are hesitant to ask their children for help, they would be more willing to ask for help if they could
pay their child

12 The information on caregivers comes from caregiver focus groups conducted by The Health Planning Council in 2011 for another assessment
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THAPTEP 7 HEALTHY LIFESTYLES AND BEHAVIOPS

PHYSICAL ACTIVITY

It 1s well known that regular physical activity can help people manage their weight as well as reduce their risk
for chronic disease However, most people do not get the recommended amount of daily activity. According to
guidelines set by the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, children and adolescents should get 60
minutes or more of physical activity per day, and adults 18 years and older should get 150 minutes of physical
activity per week

For some, physical barrers (1 e , disability, injury) or behavioral health difficulties make physical activity
challenging This 1s the case for more than 25 percent of Putnam County residents The percentages in Clay and
Duval Counties lie above the state average of 16 8 percent St. Johns County residents have the least amount of
challenges 1n this area (See Chart 7-1 for details ) Physical activity among youth 1s a salient topic, with efforts
such as Lets Move and Plav 60 receving recognition Despite the efforts of our nation’s leaders, children still do
not get the exercise they should Chart 7-2 describes the number of students who do not get adequate exercise
Nearly 40 percent of Putnam County middle and high school students do not get enough physical activity St
Johns County students in both middle and high school beat the state average Refer to Chart 7-2 for further

comparison

Key Findings

- Physical or behavioral health act as barrers to physical activity 1n all counties of the region, but especially
in Putnam

- Children 1in middle and high school do not get enough physical activity, especially in Putnam County

- High school physical activity levels are low across the board

CHART 7-1 PHYSICAL OR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH AS A BARRIER TO PHYSICAL ACTIVITY

30%
R
250/ %
A =
i
20% - :«},/
2
-
5% B E
(s] et e
- | - B
- 4 s s
107 s -
2 o i i
-~ ‘//’)ﬁ ’;’;/
50/0 %ﬁ = =
e -
00/ % "-7-"::/&?‘:
b ===
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Sourte 2010 Florida Behavioral Risk Factor Survelliance System (BRFSS) Data Report
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CHART 7-2 STUDENTS WITHOUT SUFFICIENT PHYSICAL ACTIVITY
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Sourte Florida Department of Health Sthool-aged Child and Adolestent Profile

IMMUNIZATIONS AND SCREENINGS

Secondary data analyses have concluded the following regarding immumnizations and screenings, excluding

vision which was primary data from respondent survey

Vision

Within the past 12 months, approximately 56 percent of Clay County respondents reported that they had
delayed eye care visits, while Duval and Nassau Counties reported lower rates of 21 and 22 percent, respectively

St Johns County reported the lowest amount at four percent.

Oral Health

Within the past year, St Johns County had the highest percentage of White adults to visit a dentist or dental
clinic at 76 9 percent, which was higher than the state rate of 68 2 percent Putnam County demonstrated the
lowest percentage of White adults at 51 2 percent and only 25 4 percent of Black adults Clay, Duval and Nassau
Countles exhibited results similar to the state percentage for White adults, but higher for Black adults in Clay
and Duval Counties at 69 1 and 65 0 percent, respectively As previously stated in this report, Nassau and St.
Johns Counties have relatively small Black populations. This was represented by the lack of reportable
percentages for Black adults in these counties

The rate of adults who had permanent tooth removal due to tooth decay or gum disease was highest in Putnam
County for both White and Black adults at 64 8 and 74 6 percent to the state percentage of 52 1 and 62 4,
respectively Clay, Duval, Nassau and St Johns Counties reported lower than state percentages for White and
Black adults In parallel to this result, the percentages of adults who had their teeth cleaned 1n the past year was

higher 1in these same counties
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- B8 -



THAPTEP 7 HEALTHY LIFESTYLES AND BEHAVIOPS

As previously stated 1n this report, Nassau and St. Johns Counties have a relatively low amount of Black

residents; this was represented by the lack of reportable percentages for Black adults in these counties

Putnam and St Johns Counties reported significant decreases for diseases of hard tissues of teeth from 2008 to
2010, while all counties reported a decrease n pediatric diseases of hard tissues of teeth Nassau County
displayed a significant decrease 1n adult disease of pulp and periapical tissue (down from 207 to 98 from 2008
to 2010), while Putnam County displayed a dramatic decrease in pediatric diseases of pulp and perapical tissue

at the same time, dropping from 13 to four percent

Childhood Immunizations

Rates 1n 2010 for immmunization levels 1n kindergarten-aged children were, on average, higher than the state rate
of 91 3 percent for Clay, Duval, Nassau and Putnam Counties The rates for St Johns County were shghtly lower
than the state rate, at 91 2. Duval marked the highest rate of 95 8 percent by comparison St Johns County had

a high improvement between 2008 and 2010 from 88 6 to 91 2, but still remains the lowest rate for the region

Influenza and Pueumonia

Percentages of adults ages 65 years and older who have ever received a pneumonia vaccination were
comparatively lower than the state rate of 69 9 percent; excluding Nassau County at 70 8 percent and St Johns

County at 76 4 percent Duval County demonstrated the lowest percentage (59 6 percent)

In addition, percentages of adults ages 65 years and older who received a flu shot 1n the past year remain close
to the state percentage of 65 3 percent Duval and Putnam Counties remain the lowest at 60 9 and 54 9 percent

respectively, while St Johns County has the highest percentage (70 1 percent)

Percentages for both vaccinations remain similar in the 65 years and older demographic for all counties
However, race had an effect, as a higher percentage of White respondents reported to have been vaccinated

compared to Black and Hispanic adult respondents in all counties

Key Findings
- Whites demonstrated high percentages of dental care and dental wvisits, while Blacks had higher percentages
of tooth removal due to tooth decay and gum disease

- Putnam County had the highest marked percentage of permanent tooth removal (because of tooth decay or
gum disease) for both White and Black adult respondents, and had the lowest percentages for dental visits
and teeth cleanings

- Putnam County displayed a high rate of improvement for tooth decay and gum disease for both adults and
pediatrics

- Many of the counties displayed a decrease 1n dental and gum problems 1n 2009, but increased the
following year

- Duval marked the highest rate of immunization in kindergarten-aged children

- St Johns County reported an improvement for immunizations 1n kindergarten-aged children from 88 6 to
91 2 percent between 2008 and 2010, but continued to be the lowest rate for the region

- Duval County demonstrated the lowest percentage of adults ages 65 years and older who have ever received
a pneumonia vaccination

- Duval and Putnam Counties had the lowest percentage of adults ages 65 years and older who have ever
recerved a flu shot 1n the past year, while St. Johns County remained the highest.

- All counties reported that a higher percentage of White adult respondents are vaccinated compared to
Black and Hispanic adult respondents
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CHART 7-3 PERCENTAGE OF ADULTS WHO VISITED A DENTIST
OR DENTAL CLINIC IN THE PAST YEAR
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CHART 7-4 ADULTS WHO HAD A PERMANENT TOOTH REMOVED
BECAUSE OFTOOTH DECAY OR GUM DISEASE
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CHART 7-5 PERCENTAGE OF ADULTS WHO HAD THEIR TEETH CLEANED IN THE PAST YEAR
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TABLE 7-1 DISEASES OF HARD TISSUES OF TEETH — ADULTS 18+

G e Y
5 RRSEA BTN
AR 1 = 3 P ’ -

2008 / 152 / 434 650
2009 164 162 537
2010 183 374 400

Sourte AHCA Emergency Department Database Files CY 2008 2003 & 2010

TABLE 7-2 DISEASES OF HARD TISSUES OF TEETH —~ PEDIATRIC (37 AND YOUNGER)

23 '
T & 14
2 16 20

Sourte AHCA Emergency Department Database Files CY 2008 2009 & 2010

TABLE 7-3 DISEASES OF PULP AND PERIAPICALTISSUES — ADULTS 18+
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CHART 7-8 ADULTS AGES 65+ WHO HAVE EVER RECEIVED A PNEUMONIA VACCINATION, BY RACE
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CHART 7-9 ADULTS AGES 65+ WHO RECEIVED A FLU SHOT IN THE PAST YEAR
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CHART 7-10 ADULTS AGES 65+ WHO RECEIVED A FLU SHOT IN THE PAST YEAR, BY RACE
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CHAPTER 8§ HEALTH FONDITIONS AND DISEASES

CHRONIC DISEASES

Cancer

Overall, cancer rates have fallen since 2008 1n all counties except for Putnam Clay, Duval and Putnam Counties’
rates 1n 2010 were above the state rate of 159 2 See Chart 8-1 for comparisons of cancer rates for each county
Survey data indicate that respondents are not very concerned about cancer In focus groups, respondents with
cancer notice

Cancer rates across races vary by county In Clay County, the rate for White residents 1s far higher than that of
Black residents In Duval County, Black and White individuals have similar rates of cancer, and the Hispanic
rate 1s less than half of that Nassau and St Johns Counties see higher rates in the Black population The rates

across race are much more even at the state level See Chart 8-2 for cancer rates by race

Charts 8-3 through 8-5 detail trends in rates for lung, colorectal and breast cancers 2010 rates for lung cancer
are higher than the state level 1n all counties except St Johns Additionally, rates in all counties have decreased
since 2008 The data for colorectal cancer paint a different story The rate 1s highest 1in Putnam County and had
mcreased in Duval County since 2008, Breast cancer rates have increased drastically in Putnam and St. Johns

Counties Only Nassau County has a rate below the state level of 21 per 100,000

Heart Disease and Stroke

Hypertension rates are outlined by race and gender in Charts 8-6 and 8-7 Duval County has the highest rate
for Black residents, while Putnam County has the highest affected White population. Nassau and St Johns
Counties did not have data to report for their Black populations Additionally, in all counties and throughout

the state of Florida, men have higher rates than women

Putnam County 1s the only one 1n the region to see an increase 1n the rate of coronary heart disease from 2008-
2010 See Chart 8-8 for trend data for each county Overall, rates of coronary heart disease are higher for Black
individuals than for White and Hispanic residents. Minority data was not available for St. Johns County and

Hispanic data was missing for Nassau and Putnam Counties See Chart 8-9 for rates by race

In most counties, the 2010 rate for stroke 1s higher than the state level of 29 8 per 100,000 However, most
counties have seen a decrease simnce 2008 See Chart 8-10 for a comparison of stroke rates across counties from
2008 through 2010 As Charts 8-11 and 8-12 show, Black residents have higher levels of stroke than their White
and Hispanic counterparts Note the lack of data for minorities in most counties The distribution of strokes
across gender varies by county In Duval and Clay Counties, female percentages are higher than male

Respiratory Diseases

Rates of chronic lower respiratory disease have declined 1n all counties, but most still hie above the state level
Comparisons of asthma rates across race are difficult due to the residents 1n some
counties and 1n any of the counties For middle and high school students, the
trends vary by county Some counties have seen an increase and others have improved Additionally, some
counties lie above the state average and others are lower See Charts 8-16 and 8-17 for data on asthma in middle
and high school students Chart 8-18 illustrates that asthma hospitalizations have increased since 2008 1n every

county and throughout the state Charts 8-19 and 8-20 detail hospitalizations for children of varying ages

Diabetes

Diabetes death rates are higher than the state level (19 3 per 100,000) in Clay, Duval and Putnam Counties (see
Chart 8-21) When this indicator 1s broken down by race, the rates for

See Chart 8-22 for more details ) Note the Chart
8-23 outlines a slight increase 1n all counties 1n the rate of hospitalizations from or with diabetes Diabetes
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m all coungeg See Chart
8-24 1o sce how these rates compare 14 the state Jeve]

Putnam County has the highest Percentage of adults with dragnosed diabetes Those adults 4ges 65 and odey
bave the highest Percentage Racially, Black residents generally haye higher rates Charts 8.25 ¢, 8-27 detay]
these Indicatorg Chart 8-28 shows that males haye higher rates than womep mn all counties and throughouy the
state Hospjtahzatlons from amputation of 4 lower extremity attributable 14 diabeteg have Increased in 4]
Counties

Key Findings
- Cancer rate, have faljep Smee 2008 1n 4] counties except for Putnam Survey data Indicate thay respondents
are not very Concerned about Cancer
* Cancer rajeg ACToss races vary by county

= Putnam County 15 the only county 1 the region 1o S€e an increase 1y the rate of Coronary heart disease
from 2008 1, 2010

= Rates of Coronary heart disease are higher for Black individyaly than for White and Hispanic residents

" Rates of chronic lower Tespiratory disegge have declined in all counties, but megt stll e above the state
level]

" Diabetes deaypy rates are higher than the state level 1n Clay, Duva] and Putnam Counties The rates for Black
residents are for higher thap those of White residents

= Putnam County expenenced the highest rates of hospltahzatlons from ampultation of lowey Cxlremities gpg
Was significantly higher fompared to the State averages,

CHART 8-1 CANCER
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CHAPTER 8§ HEALTH FONDITIONS AND DISEASES

CHART 8-2 CANCER, BY RACE
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CHART 8-3 LUNG CANCER
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CHART 8-4 COLORECTAL CANCER
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CHART 8-5 BREAST CANCER
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CHART 8-8 CORONARY HEART DISEASE
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CHART 8-g CORONARY HEART DISEASE, BY RACE
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CHART 8-1¢0
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CHART 8-14 STROKE, BY RACE
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CHART 8-14
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CHART 8-16 MIDDLE SCHOOL STUDENTS WITH ASTHMA
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CHART 8-18
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CHART 8-2¢ ASTHMA HOSP!TAUZAT!ONS = CHILDREN

450
400 %%
£
350
300
250
200
150
100
50
o "
NASSAY FLORIDA
L OAGES . g4 238.2 411.9
W AGES 12 .48 233.4 330.9

Source flonda Departmant of Healtn Sv.hocl~ageu Child ang Acolesient Profug

CHART 8-24 DIABETES — DEATH RATES
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CHART 8-25 DIABETES ~ DEATH RATES,
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CHART 8-24 DIABETES HOSPITALIZATIONS — CHILDREN
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CHART 8-25 ADULTS WITH DIAGNOSED
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CHART 8-26 ADuLTs WITH DIAGNOSED DIABETES,

30%

25%

20%

15%

PERCENTAGE

10%

5%

0%

FLORIDA

3.6
11.6

. J e
LAY Duvayp NASS Ay
% aces 18-44 1.6 2.2 0.4
W AG s 456, 14.7 i7.9 10.4
8 2GES 654 19.0 18.¢ 14.3

19.2

Source Flonda Deparimenr of Healtn 2000 Floriga Behavioral Risk Factor Surveian e System {BRFSS} Uaia Rerort

PERCENTAGE
F)
o
3®

Duvar

FLORIDA
10.1
13.1

5 WHITE 10.5 111
Uil Brac 8.9 11.0

Source Florita Separtment of Heafth 2010 Flonda Behavigra) Risk Factor Surveiliangg System {BRFS3Y Yata Reporr

Q‘u‘f’.ﬁfi‘)\‘t?\’ HEALTH NEEDS ASSf&?MEN7 2112 Prpoz~
H



PERCENTAGE

RATE PER 100,000

CHAPTER 8§ HEALTH FONDITIONS AND DISEASES

CHART 8-28 ADULTS WITH DIAGNOSED DIABETES, BY GENDER
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Source Florida Department of Health 2010 Florida Behavioral Risk Factor Survelllance System (BRFSS) Data Report

CHART 8-29 HOSPITALIZATIONS FROM AMPUTATION OF A LOWER EXTREMITY,
ATTRIBUTABLE TO DIABETES
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TABLE 81 DEATHS FROM HYPERTENSION (PER 100,000)

Fglwtn I :
CLAY
DUVAL 7.4 15.8
MASSAU 4.1 n/ia
PUTNAM 12.6 25.6
ST. JOHNS 7 17.4
FLORIDA 5.5 15.4 4.5

Sourte Florida Department of Health Bureau of Vital Statistics

TABLE 8-2 ADULTS WITH DIAGNOSED HYPERTENSION

T
)z,w’:llfi e

30.4% 23.9%
DUVAL 33.8% 4. 4%
HASSAU 37.7% M/A
PUTNAM 42 6% 34.0%
ST. JOHNS 31.4% M/A
FLORIDA 35.4% 41.7% 24.8%

Source Florida Department of Health 2010 Flornda Behavioral Risk Factor Surveillante System (BRFSS) Data Report

BEHAVIORAL HEALTH

For decades, behavioral health disciplines have existed alongside primary health care However, 1n recent years
there has been greater recognition of the link between good behavioral health and good overall health The
relationship between mental and physical health 1s bidirectional mental disorders can have an effect on
physical health and many physical allments can induce more behavioral health 1ssues™ Thus, 1t 1s crucial to

include behavioral health indicators 1n this assessment

All five counties reported satisfaction with quality of life above 85 percent (“satisfied” or “very satisfied”)
Putnam County residents reported the lowest satisfaction with quality of life, with 88.2 percent responding
“satisfied” or “very satisfied ” Nassau County residents gave the highest percentage of these responses (96 4
percent) Putnam County also showed the lowest levels of overall positive perception of their health and
behavioral health Respondents from St Johns County had the highest percentages in these two indicators See
Chart 8-30 for levels of residents from every county in the assessment region Chart 8-31 shows adults with

good behavioral health by race Overall, Black respondents had higher behavioral health satisfaction than Whaite

13 World Federation for Mental Health Wo:ld Mental Health Day hitp //www wimh org/WMHD%2005%20Languages/ENGLISH%20 WMHDOS pdi
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Tespondents, by this 1s not the €ase in Nassay; County st Johns County did ney have datg ¢, report for Black
respondents Addmonaﬂy, survey respondents overwhelmmgly rated thejr behaviprg] health ag bositive (89

bercent rated “good” or “excellent")

even if they fe]t okay Sometimes Syjcide rates haye

Increased acrogg the board Nassay County has seen the most drastic Increase and hga the highest rate in the

region Chart 8.3 outlines the differences in the INcreases acrogg Counties and ip, the state of Florida

Psy

chiatric beds for adulis have stayed about the Same 1n Duva] gnd St Johns Countyes, a5 well as the state of

Florida Clay County 15 the only county to show ap Inerease Nassay and Putnam Counties reported no adyjt
psychiatric beds (see Chart 8-33) Duva] County is the only county that Provides chylq and adolescent
Psychiatric beds, and thev do so at a rate symlgr to that of the state (see Chapy 8-349),

Sixty-two bercent of SUIvey respondents have Insurance that covers behaviora] health S€rvices, Ji g Important te
note that 3 bercent of respondents were “not sure” jf therr insurance covers behaviprg| health SeIvices
Behaviorg] health SEIvIces were Jisted (albeit Jegs frequenlly than other Services) ag bemng delayed the last 12
months

Key

Findings

All five counties reported satisfaction with [ife above 85 percent (“satisfied” or “very satisfied”) Putnam
County residents reported the Iowest satisfaction wyth quality of life, with gg 2 percent responding
“satisfied” or “very satisfied ” Nassay County residents gave the highest bercentage of theye responses (96 4
Percent)

Twenly-elght bercent of Survey respondenys said they haye had twe Years or more 1p thewr Life When they fo|
depressed of sad most days, even if they fely okay sometimes,

Suicide rateg have increaged across the board Nassay County hag seen the mogy drastic nerease and g
the highest rate in the egron, Nassau and Putnam Countjeg Teported no adyj; Psychiatric beds

CHART 8-30 ADuULTs REPORT!NG POSITIVE QuaLITY oF LIFE
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CHART 8-31 ADULTS WITH GOOD BEHAVIORAL HEALTH

100%
95%
E
90 o %,{‘;
= L |
85% B =
57 F %
=
|
80% -
75% ' =
CLAY NASSAU PUTNAM ST. JOHNS FLORIDA
B WHITE 87.1 88.6 82.5 93.0 88.5
W BLACK 96.7 29.5 N/A 90.9
Source 2010 Flornida Behavioral Risk Factor Surverllance Survey (BRFSS)
CHART 8-32
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= 2006-08 13.3 14.4 18.5 13.6 13.0
g 2007-69 16.1 17.G 20.9 14.6 13.7
B 2008-10 18.3 21.2 18.9 15.9 13.9

Source Florida Department of Health Bureau of Vital Statistits
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CHART 8-33 ADULT PSYCH!ATRIC BEDS
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SUBSTANCE ABUSE

Substance abuse 1s defined as a maladaptive pattern of substance use leading to chinically significant
impairment or distress " Survey respondents listed drug abuse as a concerning unhealthy behavior with the
second highest percentage of “very concerned” responses However, the number of substance abuse beds does

not miurror the concern of residents In fact, only Duval County prowvides any of these beds (see Chart 8-35)

Smoking

Putnam County has the highest percentage of current smokers 1n the assessment region (23 6 percent)
Percentages for males are higher than for females 1n Putnam and Duval Counties In all other counties, the
difference between genders 1s very small See Chart 8-36 for details Survey respondents were not too concerned
with tobacco use, and gave the third lowest percentage of “very concerned” responses (38 percent “very

concerned” responses) Thirteen percent of survey respondents smoke cigarettes “every day” or “some days’

Nine percent of respondents smoke every day

Student cigarette use 1s higher among high school students than middle school students in all counties The
middle school percentage 1s highest in Putnam County (12 percent) and the highest percentage of high school
smokers are 1n Clay County (19 4 percent) High school cigarette use has increased since 2008 1n Clay and Duval
Counties, but has decreased 1n all other counties 1n the assessment region and the state of Florida (see Chart
8-38). High school students use smokeless tobacco less than cigarettes, however the percentages in Clay and

Nassau Counties are nearly double that of the state level (Chart 8-39)

Alcohol

Binge drinking among adults had declined in all counties except for St Johns The levels in Clay, Duval and

St Johns Counties are above the state level of 15 percent (Chart 8-40) In the survey, binge drinking was defined
as five or more drinks 1n one sitting for males and four or more drinks 1n one sitting for females. Nineteen
percent of respondents binge drank at least once 1n the past month Eight percent did so three or more times

Eighty percent of respondents did not binge drink in the past month

Key Findings
- The percentage of current smokers 1s high 1n comparison to the state level 1n nearly every county 1n the
assessment region

- High school cigarette use has increased since 2008 1n Clay and Duval Counties, but has decreased 1n all
other counties 1n the assessment region and the state of Flornida

- High school students use smokeless tobacco less than cigarettes, however i1ts use has almost doubled 1n
Clay, Nassau and St. Johns Counties.

- Binge drinking among adults has dechined in all counties except for St Johns County The levels in Clay,
Duval and St Johns Counties are above the state level of 15 percent

14 Unwversity of Indiana OMS-1V Substance Abuse Criteria hitp /iwww sis indiana edu/DSM-IV-Criteria aspx
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CHART 8-35
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CHART 8-37 STUDENT CIGARETTE USE
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PUTNAM FLORIDA
Z MIDDLE SCHOOL 6.0 6.4 12.0 4.3 4.9
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Source Florida Department of Health Florida Youth Tobatto Survey
CHART 8-38 HIGH SCHOOL STUDENT CIGARETTE USE
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CHART 8-39 HIGH SCHOOLSTUDENT SMOKELESS TOBACCO USE
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Sourte Florida Youth Tobatto Survey

CHART 8-40 BINGE DRINKING AMONG ADULTS
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OBESITY

Percentages of Overwejgh; mdmiduals ape higher thap those of phege residents acrosg the board The levels of
overweight people in Clay, Putnam ang St Johns Counties are above the State level of 37 g bercent When
analyzmg obeSIty levels, Duval ang Putnam Counties have Percentages aboye the siate level of 27 2 percent
(see Chary 8-41) Survey data shows that

Obesity data for non-Whjte residents 1s et available {or 4] counties 1n the assessment region, byt
n the counteg that do provide thyg data, Black residents have higher rates, with the exception of Putnam
County (Chayt 8-42). In the Teglon and 1n 1he state, bercentages of teens at or above the 95 Percentile in By
fall between 10 and 15 bercent St Johps County s the €xception with Percentages my,cp lower (sce Chart 8-43)
These rates are high despite focus ETOUp participants listing fating right apd eXercising (at the 8¥m, walking the
track at Joca] schools, et ) as ways that people in they Communityes stay healthy,

Key Findings

" The levels of overweight beople in Clay. Putnam and St Johns Counties are above the state leve] of
378 Perceni

= Duval ang Putnam Counties haye obesity levels above the staje level of 27 > percent (28 4 apg 313 percent,
Tespectively),

- Survey respondents Viewed obesity as the most serious health problem in therr Communitjes

* Inthe region and in the state, Percentages of teens at or aboye the 95 percentile in BM fall between
10 and 15 percent. St Johng County s the exception with Percentages much Jowey

* Although focus group Participants It eatmg right and exercising g Ways people in their CoOmmuniteg stay
healthy, overweight and obesity rates are still greater thap the state averages

PERCENTAGE
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CHART 8-42 OVERWEIGHT AND OBESE ADULTS, BY RACE
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Sourte Florida Department of Health 2010 Florida BRFSS Data Report

CHART 8-43 OVERWEIGHT TEENS — BMI AT OR ABOVE 95™ PERCENTILE
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SEXUALLY TRANSMITTED DISEASES

Syphilis, Gonorrhea, Chlamydia

The rate per 100,000 for infectious syphilis 1s well below the state level in all but Duval County In fact, the
Duval County rate has been higher than the state level since 2008 and has been increasing. Levels of syphilis
have dropped in Nassau, Putnam and St Johns Counties (see Chart 8-44) Chart 8-45 1llustrates the overall
decline 1n gonorrhea cases reported 1n all counties 1n the assessment region Still, rates in Duval and Putnam
Counties lie above the state level Chlamydia rates have been on the rise 1n all counties, and the 2010 rates 1n

Duval and Putnam Counties are higher than the state level (see Chart 8-46)

HIV/AIDS

Charts 8-47 and 8-48 outline the rates of new HIV and AIDS cases For both new HIV and new AIDS cases,
Duval County 1s the only county in the assessment region that has rates higher than the state of Florida Clay,
Nassau and St. Johns Counties have new HIV case rates under 15 percent The rates of new AIDS cases 1n Clay
and Putnam Counties have increased, while St Johns County has decreased Nassau County did not have data
to report prior to the rolling rate for 2008 through 2010 The HIV/AIDS death rates have fallen or stayed the
same In every county of the assessment region See Chart 8-49 to compare county rates to the state’s rate

Key Findings

- The Duval County rate for infectious syphilis has been higher than the state level since 2008 and has been
increasing. Levels of syphilis have dropped 1in Nassau, Putnam and St. Johns Counties.

- Chlamydia rates have been on the rise 1n all counties

- The HIV/AIDS death rates have fallen or stayed the same 1n every county of the assessment region

CHART 8-44 INFECTIOUS SYPHILIS CASES REPORTED

Pl

Q

NASSAU PUTNAM ST. JOHNS FLORIDA
@ 2006-08 1.3 5.3 1.9 2.7 0.8 4.8
W 2007-09 1.6 5.9 0.9 1.3 0.5 5.4
B 2008-10 1.6 6.1 0.9 0.4 0.5 5.8

Sourte Florida Department of Health Bureau of STD Prevention & Control [CHARTS)
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CHART 8-45 GONORRHEA CASES REPORTED
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CHART 8-46 CHLAMYDIA CASES REPORTED
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CHART 847
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CHAPTER 8§ HEALTH FONDITIONS AND DISEASES

MATERNAL AND INFANT HEALTH

Maternal and infant health are significant indicators of health and societal progression for future generations
Florda's statewide infant mortality rates (6 9 per 1,000 live births) for 2010 are shghtly higher than the baseline
rates indicated by Healthv People 2020 objectives (6 7 infant deaths per 1,000 live births) The following data are

from secondary data analysis for maternal and infant health

Early Prenatal Care

The region’s rate of births with prenatal care during the first trimester 1s comparable to the state percentage of
78 1 percent for 2010 Putnam County had the lowest percentage of 69 2 percent and also yielded the lowest
percentage for Hispanic residents (60 percent) In addition, Duval County had the lowest percentage among
Black residents (62 3 percent), which 1s much lower than the state rate of 70 1 percent

Births with late or no prenatal care were the highest in Duval and Putnam Counties (6 7 and 6 9 percent,
respectively) between 2008 and 2010 compared to the state percentage of 5 1 percent All other counties were
below the state percentage Putnam County’s rate of Hispanic births with late or no prenatal care was more

than 70 percent higher than that of the state (9 5 and 5 5, respectively)

Infant Mortality

Infant mortality for the region remained relatively constant from 2006 through 2010 with only mild

fluctuations While Putnam County had higher percentages of births with hittle or no prenatal care, Duval
County had the highest infant mortality rate for 2010 (8 8 per 1,000 live births) as compared to the state (6 9 per
1,000 live births) St. Johns and Clay Counties had the lowest rates (5 4 and 5 6 per 1,000 live births,
respectively) In addition, infant mortality racial differences for the region were reported in Duval County only
(13 1 Black and 7 5 Hispanic, respectively) and were higher than state rates (12 6 Black and 5 5 Hispanic,
respectively) However, a decrease 1n infant mortality was reported from 2006 to 2010, with rates dropping from

9 7 to 7 5 for Hispanic residents in Duval County

Preterm Births

Duval County has a high rate of neonatal intensive care beds compared to the state All other counties remain
lower than the state rate (or had none reported) The per capita numbers of Level IT and IIT beds for Duval
County (9 3 and 6 2 per 100,000, respectively) are significantly higher than those of the state rate (5 0 and 3 7
per 100,000, respectively) for 2010

Low Birth Weight Babies

The rate of low birth weight (less than 2,500g) babies was the highest in Duval and Putnam Counties (9 5 and
9 6 percent, respectively) between 2008 and 2010 and was higher than the state rate of 8 7 percent St Johns
County had the lowest rate for the same time period (6 5 percent) In conjunction, highest percentages were
reported 1n Black residents for all counties and were significantly higher in Nassau County (19 4 percent)

compared to the state (13 6 percent)

Teen Mothers

Putnam County had the highest rate of births to young mothers ages 15 to 19 between 2008 and 2010 (71 3 rate
per 1,000 females), and was nearly double that of the state rate (37 rate per 1,000) In addition, Black and
Hispanic residents showed the highest rates (98 1 and 85 8 per 1,000 females, respectively) and were also on the

approximate order of double the state rates (57 2 and 42 2 rate per 1,000 females, respectively)

The rate of births to mothers ages 10 to 14 1n Putnam County (1 7 rate per 1,000 females) was more than three

times that of the state rate (0 5 rate per 1,000 females)
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Key Findings

The region’s rate of births with prenatal care during the first trimester 1s comparable to the state
percentage

Putnam County had the lowest percentage of births with prenatal care in the first trimester

Putnam County had the lowest percentage of births with prenatal care for Hispanic residents

Duval County had the lowest percentage of births with prenatal care among Black residents

Duval County had the highest infant mortality rate for 2010

St Johns and Clay Counties had the lowest infant mortality rate for 2010

Infant mortality racial differences for the region were reported in Duval County only

A decrease in infant mortality was reported from 2006 to 2010 for Hispanic residents in Duval County
Duval County has a high rate of neonatal intensive care beds compared to the state

The rate of low birth weight (less than 2,500g) babies was the highest in Duval and Putnam Counties
The rate of low birth weight (less than 2,500g) babies was the greatest in Black residents for all counties
The rate of low birth weight (less than 2,500g) babies was highest in Nassau County for Black residents
Putnam County had the highest rate of births to young mothers ages 15 to 19 between 2008 and 2010

Putnam County had the highest rate of births to young mothers ages 15 to 19 between 2008 and 2010 for
Black and Hispanic residents

Putnam County had the highest rate of births to young mothers ages 10 to 14

CHART 8-51 NEOMNATAL INTENSIVE CARE UNIT LEVEL Il BEDS

10

NASSAU PUTNAM ST. JOHNS FLORIDA
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0 o 0 5.0
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Source Flonda Agency for Health Care Administration (AHCA)
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CHART 8-54 BIRTHS WITH FIRST TRIMESTER PRENATAL CARE, BY RACE
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72.5 60.0 72.8 76.7

Sourte Florida Department of Health Office of Vital Statistits 2008-2010

CHART 8-55
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CHART 8-57 INFANT MORTALITY
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CHART 8-60 INFANT MORTALITY, BY RACE — FLORIDA
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CHART 8-61
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CHAPTER 8§ HEALTH FONDITIONS AND DISEASES

CHART 8-62 LOW BIRTH WEIGHT (LESS THAN 2,5006G), BY RACE
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CHART 8-63
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CHART 8-64 BIRTHS TO MOTHERS AGES 15T0 19, BY RACE
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THAPTEP ¢ PESIDENTS WITH DISABILITIES

RESIDENTS WITH DISABILITIES

The Healthv People 2020 goal to promote health and well being of people with disabilities begins 1n our region
with an analysis of our region’s disabled population Individuals with disabilities vary greatly in their need for
assistance and level of independence The following data are from a secondary data analysis for residents with
disabilities

Adults with Disability

The percentage of adults with disabilities 1s the greatest in Putnam County (16 4 percent) as compared to the
state percentage (12 9 percent) St Johns County had the lowest percentage (10 9 percent), followed closely by
Duval County (11.7 percent). In addition, the percentage of people with disabilities living 1n poverty 1s highest
in Putnam County (26 1 percent) compared to the state (21 3 percent) Duval County 1s the only other county
with a percentage higher than the state level (25 9 percent) See Charts 9-1 and 9-2 for more detailed
information on these indicators.

The percentage of adults who use special equipment due to a health problem was highest in Putnam County
(13 0 percent), followed closely by Duval County (11 3 percent), as compared to the state percentage (9 3
percent) All other counties reported less than the state percentage (see Chart 9-3)

Persons with Various Difficulties

The percentage of persons with cognitive difficulty was highest in
Only Nassau County (3.9 percent) reported a percentage lower than the state level
of 4 4 percent (see Chart 9-4)

The percentage of persons with self-care difficulty was more than double the state level of 4 4 percent in both
St Johns and Duval Counties (10 4 percent and 8.7 percent, respectively) Only Nassau County (3 8 percent)

reported a percentage lower than the state level (see Chart 9-5)

Similar to the aforementioned indicators, St Johns and Duval Counties had the highest percentage of persons
with ambulatory difficulty (10 2 percent and 8 7 percent, respectively) Nassau County (3 9 percent) reported the
lowest level (see Chart 9-6)

St Johns and Duval Counties had the highest levels for both persons with hearing difficulty and persons with
vision difficulty In both counties, the levels were at least double the state level Keeping with the pattern,
Nassau County reported the lowest levels for hearing and vision difficulties (3 5 percent and 3 4 percent,
respectively) (see Charts 9-7 and 9-8)

Key Findings
- Putnam County has the largest percentage of adults with disabilities and people with disabilities iving
1n poverty
- Putnam County has the highest percentage of adults who use special equipment due to health problems
- St Johns County has the highest percentages of all disability difficulty indicators (cognitive, self-care,
ambulatory, hearing and vision), with levels nearly three times the state average. Duval County consistently

has the second highest levels— double the state levels (See Chart 9-9 for a comparison of all indicators
across counties )
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CHART 975 PERCENTAGE OF PERSONS WITH SELF-CARE DIFFICULTY
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THAPTEPR 10 NEEDS ASSESSMENT SUMMAPIES BY 1 OUNTY

CLAY COUNTY

& <

e T AT U SBIECTED STATISTICS® ..
EAN 4 G P . A B S 7 i A m e

*ADBITIONALCOUNTY INFORMATION IN RELATIONSHIP TO OTHER COUNTIES CAN BE FOUND THROUGHOUT THE
COMMUNITY HEALTH NEEDS ASSESSMENT REPORT
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HEALTH OUTCOMES #6
HEALTH FACTORS #18
MEASURE COUNTY FLORIDA
T G S i e B s 1 Y L S
i ///, . 7 //m/’//////ﬂ }é 1 g ’/fﬁ/f / 7 ,W’ L
O ARV LG T A AN L ML NP WP LN f T AL ARt A S
TOTAL POPULATION 191,900 -~
RACE
WHITE 21 8% -
BLALK 9.9% -
ASIAN 2.9% -
2+ RACES 2.9% -
OTHER 19% -
ETHNICITY
HISPANIC 7.7% -
MEDIAN HOUSEHOLD INCOME $58,263 $44,409
UNEMPLOYMENT RATE (2010} 10.5% M5%
7 ///;// 00 S IR X litasr 7 S e S LS T "
%%? /’f‘/;}‘i//”//;/:’///'/M/ /://,/ a2 y}/’/"/xf/////%/ s .«/{ /ﬂ(//’/"x/
C o it ot B L A DD B . s et ol A B A, LN G e A b nll, il
FORCIBLE SEXUAL OFFENSES {Per 100,000} 603 52.6
HOMICIDE (pER 100,000) 5.0 67
. R S VT 23 i A IV ORATY . Yy RN L e
BT T A iR SR st i
(PO T N N s e ey o 4"%&’9’% 4%//&/,«"2%//“%/‘/@
CANCER 184.7 -
HEART DISEASE 146.0 -
CHRONIC LOWER RESPIRATORY DISEASE 54.0 -

5 L TG e G ST g N B P o L s
57 % 7 72 o - 7y 9 e s A P
L s e A L i
Tardrttatd o e sl Aopdin . kit o LA, o, vrnti PG it A BNt ot AR 18 1 il oo e 1
SHAP-AUTHORIZED STORES (Per 1,000 porULATION] 0.60 -
WIC-AUTHORIZED STORES (per 1,000 poruLaTiON) 012 -
FAST FOOD RESTAURANTS (PEr 1,000 ropuLaTion) 0.62 -
FARMERS' MARKETS {Per 1,000 poruLaTion) 0,61 -

W g S S ‘% FEHE, 2 s I LBt 7 ) S G

LS // gy 7 W S /,/,// //,/{//

z % = 4 v G P 7 4

v ﬁy,»‘éﬂém%%w&%m%%/ i v ol A Mféf&é L M
LICENSED PRIMARY CARE PHYSICIANS {rarte peEr 100,000}

FAMILY PRACTICE %5 197
IMTERNISTS 237 41 8
OB/GYN 65 7.9
PEDIATRICIANS 3 14.9

TOTAL HOSPITAL BEDS (RATE PER 100,000) 180 4 320 6
POPULATION ENROLLED IN MEDICARE 14.8% 18.0%
POPULATION ENROLLED IN MEDICAID 11 7% 15.7%

U R RS b BGHSE

Z. ‘MM,AX/WM{’/M%A%/% Dok ki vt b i 7 B //ﬂf;nf,a%ﬁ%’{wéﬂ%fﬁ (i et

DIABETES ~ DEATHS (RATE PER 100,000 305 19.3

OVERWEIGHT HIGH SCHOOL STUDENTS 12.10% 11.50%
VLT SR SRR i S
T et G B e W T A R i T A

SUICIDE (RaTE PER 100,000) 18.3 139

ADULT FSYCHIATRIC BEDS (RaTe PER 100,000) 209 18.4

CHILD/ADOLESCENT PSYCHIATRIC BEDS (RaTE pEr 100,000) 00 30

HIGH SCHOOL STUDENT CIGARETTE USE 19.40% 13.10%
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THAPTEPR 10 NEEDS ASSESSMENT SUMMAPIES BY 1 OUNTY

CLAY COUNTY (cCONTINUED)
HEALTH DISPARITIES

Health insurance coverage varied greatly across demographic groups For example, nearly a quarter of Clay
County residents between the ages of 18 to 44 are uninsured, while nearly all residents ages 65 and older are
msured Non-Hispanic Black residents have a higher percentage of insured individuals than non-Hispanic

White residents Additionally, as income and education levels increase, so do levels of insured individuals

Cancer rates 1n Clay County are much higher for Whate residents than for their Black counterparts
Hypertension rates are higher for White residents, as well as for males However, the stroke rate 1s much higher
among Black individuals than White individuals Across gender, a higher percentage of females have ever had a
stroke. Asthma 1n adults 1s almost 1dentical between Black and White residents. The diabetes death rate for
Black individuals 1s more than double that of White residents However, the percentage of White individuals
with diagnosed diabetes 1s higher than for Black individuals This may be a sign of disparities in disease
management The same pattern 1s seen 1n hypertension rates. Males are also far more likely to have diabetes

than women
Overwelght and obese adults are more often Black than White

Generally, access to dental care declines as income declines Whites demonstrated high percentages of dental
care and dental visits, while Blacks had higher percentages of tooth removal due to tooth decay and gum

disease

A higher percentage of Black individuals reported good behavioral health than White individuals In Clay
County, the percentage of female tobacco smokers 1s shightly higher than that of males

Hispanic residents are least likely to receive first trimester prenatal care Black mothers have the highest
percentage of births with late or no prenatal care, as well as the highest percentage of low birth weight babies
Clay County did not have minority data for infant mortality Teenage mothers (ages 15 to 19) are most

frequently Black
PREVENTIVE HEALTH CARE

In 2010, unintentional injuries in Clay County were lower than the state rate, as was the death rate from
unintentional drowning Motor vehicle crashes have declined since 2008, and 1n 2010 were less than the Florida
rate While the numbers for these indicators are relatively low, unintentional injuries are the fourth leading
cause of death 1n Clay County, accounting for nearly five percent of total deaths — more than stroke and
diabetes

Clay County has seen a recent increase 1n the rate of total licensed physicians, but the level 1s much lower than
the state level In Clay County, 86 5 percent of residents have some type of health insurance This 1s higher than
both the state and national average Since 2006, the median monthly Medicaid enrollment rate has increased

The same pattern 1s seen 1n KidCare enrollment

During 2010 through 2011, the rate of licensed dentists (per 100,000 population) was much lower than the state
While the percentage of low-income persons with access to dental care 1s considered low, the percentage of low-
mncome residents accessing dental services 1s above the percentage for the state of Florida Survey respondents
indicated that dental care 1s the third most frequently delayed service (behind “visit to doctor” and “medical
test, exam or screening”) While the number of dentists does play a part 1n the accessibility of dental care, focus
group participants feel that insurance coverage dictates which health services are accessible to each person,
especially dentists Focus group participants did not mention difficulty 1in receiving hearing or vision services

However, the most commonly delayed tests or exams among survey respondents were eye exams (44 percent)

COMMUNITY HEALTH NEEDS ASSESSMENT 2012 PEPOPT
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THAPTEPR 10 NEEDS ASSESSMENT SUMMAPIES BY TOUNTY

CLAY COUNTY (CONTINUED)

Affordability (a barrer to care) plays a role in the decisions for residents to take care of their health Of those
survey respondents who stated that they had delayed health care services, the three most frequently noted
reasons for delaying health care treatment were “inability to pay” (38 percent), “no insurance” (35 percent) and

“concerned about spending in current economy” (33 percent)

For some, physical barriers (1 e , disability, injury) or behavioral health difficulties make physical activity
challenging This 1s the case for more than 20 percent of Clay County residents Within the past 12 months
approximately 56 percent of Clay County respondents reported that they had delayed eye care visits Rates in
2010 for immunization levels in kindergarten-aged children were, on average, higher than the state rate of 91 3
percent for Clay County Percentages of adults age 65 years and older who have ever receved a pneumonia
vaccination were comparatively lower than the state rate of 69 9 percent

Suicide rates have increased since 2006.

The highest percentage of high school-age smokers 1s 1n Clay County (19.4 percent). The level of overweight
people in Clay County 1s above the state level, as 1s the level of overweight high school students

In the overall Community Health Needs Assessment region, the types of tests or exams most frequently delayed

were eye exams, pap smears and mammograms
BUILT ENVIRONMENT

Residents 1n Clay County have lmited access to local food sources (e g, farmers’ markets) Fast food
restaurants are far more available

Only eight percent of the water system population has fluoridated water While Clay County received a four (out
of five) on the Natural Amenities Scale, 1t had the lowest rating of the five counties No air quality data was
reported for Clay County Levels of asthma indicators (hospitalization and diagnosis rates) were at or better

than the state levels
Eighty-three percent of Clay County high school students graduate.

The domestic violence rate 1s well below the Florida average Levels of homicide and aggravated assault are also
below the state level. However, Clay County has a forcible sex offense rate that 1s higher than the state level

DISABILITY

In Clay County, 32 6 percent of residents ages 65 and older have a disability; this 1s lower than the state average
of 34 2 percent The percentage of people with disabilities living 1n poverty 1s 20 1 percent, shghtly less than the
state level (20 7 percent) Approximately nine percent (9 2 percent) of adults use special equipment due to a

health problem, which 1s about the same as the Florida average of 9 3 percent

The percentage of persons with cognitive difficulty 1s 5 9 percent, higher than the state level of 4 8 percent The
rate of persons with self-care difficulty (2 0 percent) 1s shightly lower than the state average of 2 6 percent The
rate of individuals with ambulatory difficulty 1s 7 1 percent, nearly the same as the Florida average of 6 9

percent

COMMUNITY HEALTH NEEDS ASSESSMENT 2012 PEPOPT
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DUVAL COUNTY
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HEALTH OUTCOMES W44
HEALTH FACTORS #32
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TOTAL POPULATION 892,460 -
RACE
WHITE &60.9% -~
BLACK 29 5% --
ABIAN 4.2% -
2+ RACES 7 9% -
OTHER 2.1% -
ETHNICITY
HISPANIC 7 6% -
MEDIAN HOUSEHOLD INCOME $45,078 $44,409
UNEMPLOYMENT RATE (2010) 1.7% 1M 5%
U L A R sk e v B ///”///////;
«”‘@Wfﬁﬂ A G i, Lo A i /& AW AR TN %y%@w Ty A
GRADUATION RATE 7L2% 80 1%
GANG ACTIVITY
FIGHTING 59.6% 45 B%
THEFT 37.5% 28.5%
VANDALISM 38.1% 30.4%
DRUG SALES 43.9% 34 1%
CARRYING WEAPONS 32.4% 12 5%
G el W o T 2 iy 587 T
PG, T o we i e AL A7
DOMESTIC VIOLENCE OFFENSES (Per 100,000} 1,056 9 603 4
FORCIBLE SEX OFFENSES (per 100,000) 783 52.6
HOMICIDE (PER 100,000} 12.2 6.7
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RIBRIE A iirnie chis s s iooin il I )
CAMCER 180 2 -
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SNAP-AUTHORIZED STORES {Per 1,000 ropuLATION) 111
WIC-AUTHORIZED STORES [Per 1,000 popuiaTiONn) 0.12
FASTFOOD RESTAURANTS (Pew 1,000 poruLaTion) 0 83
FARMERS” MARKETS (Per 1,000 PorULATION) 001
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TOTAL LICENSED PHYSICIANS (RATE PER 100,000) 285.6 -~
TOTALBOSPITAL BEDS (RATE PER 100,000) 399.6 320.6
REHABILITATION BEDS (rate PER 100,000} 7.4 12.4
POPULATION ENROLLED IN MED ICARE 13.0% 18.0%
POPULATION EMROLLED IN MEDICAID 17 0% 15.7%

COMMUNITY HEALTH NEEDS ASSESSMENT 2012 PEPOPT
- 1yb -
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DUVAL COUNTY (CONTINUED)
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LOW-INCOME —~ ATLANTIC BEACH
LOW-INCOME ~ BALDWIN
LOW-INCOME ~ EAST JACKSONVILLE
LOW-INCOME ~ SOUTH JACKSONVILLE

LOW-INCOME ~ WEST JACKSONVILLE

HEALTH DISPARITIES

Overall, 82 7 percent of Duval County residents have health insurance of some type The 18- to 44-year-old
age group had the lowest percentage of insured individuals, while nearly all residents ages 65 and older were
msured While White individuals have a higher insured percentage, the gap between them and Black
residents 1s smaller than in other counties and the state as a whole. The differences across education level are
similar, with those with a higher education having a shightly higher percentage of insured individuals Income

appears to make a large difference

When 1t comes to accessing health care services, affordability and time constraints were two common

barriers mentioned 1n the focus groups

When asked about the quality of the health care services in their area, Duval County residents were least
satisfied and gave the highest percentage of “poor” ratings Additionally, Duval County has the highest rate of

licensed physicians, pediatricians, OB/GYNs, internists and family practitioners

In Duval County, Black and White individuals have similar rates of cancer, and the Hispanic rate 1s less than
half of that Duval County has the highest rate of hypertension for Black residents Strokes are far more
common among Black individuals and women The percentage of adults with diagnosed diabetes between
Black and White residents 1s nearly identical However, the death rate for diabetes 1s much higher for Black
individuals. This could signal a disparity in disease management and treatment. White adults have a higher

percentage of individuals with asthma

COMMUNITY HEALTH NEEDS ASSESSMENT 2012 PEPOPT
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DUVAL COUNTY (CONTINUED)

Duval County has the highest number of homeless individuals The homeless are more often Black, male and

between the ages of 18 to 60
PREVENTIVE HEALTH CARE

Black residents reported good behavioral health more often than their White counterparts Duval County 1s
the only county that provides child and adolescent psychiatric beds, and they do so at a rate similar to that of

the state

Smoking percentages for males are higher than for females in Duval County Nearly 19 percent of Duval
County residents smoke tobacco, including 3.5 percent of middle school students and 13.2 percent of high
school students; 4 5 percent of high school students use smokeless tobacco Binge drinking among adults 1s
slightly higher than the state level

The rate of obesity in Duval County 1s 28.4 percent, this 1s higher than the state rate of 27.2 percent. The
percentage of overweight and obese adults 1s higher for Black residents than White residents

Births with late or no prenatal care were the highest in Duval County Duval County had the highest infant
mortality rate for 2010 (8 8 per 1,000 live births) as compared to the state (6 9 per 1,000 live births) The rate
of low birth weight (less than 2,500g) babies was the highest 1n Duval County The largest group of births with
late or no prenatal care came from Black women Infant mortalhity and low birth weight were also highest
among this group The largest group of teenage mothers (ages 15 to 19) came from the Black community

The unintentional injury rate in Duval County 1s lower than the state level, while the unintentional drowning

rate 1s almost exactly the same The motor vehicle crash rate 1s just below the state rate

Duval County sees the highest number of patients on all traumatic brain injury indicators However, because

rates are measured 1in number of patients and Duval County has the largest population, this 1s to be expected

The percentage of adults who visited a dentist or dental clinic in the past year only differed by 1.5 percent
across race. However, Black residents were far more likely to have a permanent tooth removed because of
tooth decay or gum disease White residents were more likely to have had their teeth cleaned 1n the past year

Survey respondents indicated that dental care 1s the third most frequently delayed service (behind “visit to
doctor” and “medical test, exam or screening”) All five counties 1n the assessment region are below the state
average for rate of total hicensed dentists While the number of dentists does play a part in the accessibility of
dental care, focus group participants feel that imnsurance coverage dictates which health services are
accessible to each person, especially dentists Access to dental care by low-income persons has increased in
Duval County since 2008 Duval County has the largest number of vision practitioners and audiologists
However, because these indicators are measured 1n numbers and Duval County has the largest population,
this 1s expected Within the past 12 months, approximately 21 percent of Duval County respondents reported

that they had delayed eye care visits

Duval County marked the highest rate of childhood immunization Duval County demonstrated the lowest

percentage of adults age 65 and older who have ever received a pneumonia vaccination

The Duval County rate for infectious syphilis has been higher than the state level since 2008, and has been
increasing Duval County 1s the only county in the assessment region that has new HIV/AIDS case rates

higher than the state of Florida The tuberculosis level in Duval County 1s more than double that of the state

COMMUNITY HEALTH NEEDS ASSESSMENT 2012 PEPOPT
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Duval COUNTY (commuso)
Buirr ENV!RONMENT

Duval County’s ageravated assay] rates are consistently aboye the state average Duygy) County 1s the only
county in the assessment TCEION 10 see an merease in forehje sex offenses, and had the highest rate m 2010 at
78.3 per 100,000 Duva] County hag the highest homicide rate in the assessment Tegionat 12 3 per 100,000
Focus 8IOUD participant,, feel safe 1 Most areas of Dyyg] County, byt acknowledge that there re some high.
€rime pockets 1hat do not fee] safe Many barticipantg expressed concerp about safety and Security at pubjye
schools Fighting ys the mosy fommon juvenje ¢rime behavyor-

Only 1n Dyya) County are there more Black students than White, The Duva] County high schoo] graduation
Tate 1s below the state leve], However, Duva] County has the lowest rate of schoo] absence at 5.9 percent,

Duva] County receved a score of four out of five on the Natural Amenities Scale On bot}y Mmeasures of 4,y
quality (ozone and paricle pollution), the county was grven 5 grade of “B » Even st]l, the bercentages of
students (muddle and high school), as well g adults, with asthma are 4 above the state average

Nearly al] of the water S¥stem population recerves fluonidateq water

Duva] County has more {ast food Testaurants thap either full-service restaurants o farmerg’ markets,
Convenrence stores make up close 1o half of 1he avatlable storeg More than 40 percent of Duva] County
students were eligible for free lunch M 2009 Access to food greater than one mile away g difficu]t, when the
food s more than 10 miles away, it 15 nearly impossible There are Numeroys pockets of Duval County that
qualify as fooq deserts Most of them are i the urban core of Jacksonvi]je

Residents of Duval County Placed the MOst Importance op access 1o publie ransportatioy (51 percent
responded “very mportant”) Add]tlonaHy, Afncan-Amencan respondents gave access to public transportanon
the mos; “very Important” answers (75 percent) Ag might be eXpected, the Importance placed On access o
public transportation decreages, overall with rige I mcome The Importance highest for- those making legg
than $15 000 (96 bercent) and lowest for those making §] 00,000 or more (70 percent)

DlSABlLITY

In Duvy] County, 35 7 bercent of residents 4ges 65 and older have d)sablhty, this js highey- than the state
average of 34 3 bercent. The Percentage of people with disabilities hving 1n boverty 15 23 ¢ percent, slightly
more than the siate level (20 7 pereent) The gt of who use Special equipment due to health problem
15 11.3 percent, mighey than the Florda average of 9 3 percent
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TOTAL POFULATION 73,600 --
RALE
WHITE 89 8% -
BLACK 6.4% -
ASIAN 0.9% -~
2+ RACES 16% -
OTHER 0.9% -
ETHHICITY
HISPANIC 3 2% -
MEDIAN HOUSEHOLD INCOME $60,729 $44,409
UNEMPLOYMENT RATE (2010) 10 9% 11.5%
) s N . T
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GRADUATION RATE 93 8% 80 1%
SANG ACTIVITY
FIGHTING 12.6% 45.8%
THEFT 11.0% 28 5%
VANDALISM 10 7% 30.4%
DRUG SALES 17.2% 34 1%
CARRYING WEAPONS 17.0% 19.5%
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UNINTENTIONAL INJURY (Per 100,000) 54 413
Vi Sk i i A
4 % s 7 s
M//d??,g«/ o L e A Lot ont B S wxwmyma%a sl o
CANCER 155 4 --
HEART DISEASE 159 2 --
CHRONIC LOWER RESPIRATORY DISEASE 48 9 -
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SNAP-AUTHORIZED STORES [PEr 1,000 PopULATION) .81
WIC-AUTHORIZED STORES {Per 1,000 POPULATION] 0.13
FAST FOOD RESTAURANTS [Per 1,000 roPuLlaTION) 0.42
FARMERS MARKETS (per 1,000 POPULATION) 3.02
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LICENSED PRIMARY CARE PHYSICIANS (Rate rer 100,000}

FAMILY PRACTICE 20.3 97
INTERNISTS 95 41.8
oB/avN 4.1 79
PEDIATRICIANS 54 #%.9
TOTAL HOSPITAL BEDS (rate pER 100,000 73.7 320 6
TOTAL SPECIALTY BED S [RATE PER 100,000) 00 55 4
POPULATION ENROLLED IN MED ICARE 18.5% 18.0%
FPOPULATION ENROLLED IN MEDICAID 12.10% 15 7%
TOTAL LICENSED DENTISTS (RATE PER 100,000} 26 9 627
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DIABETES DEATHS (RATE PER 100,000) 26 6 19.3
DIABETES HOSPITALIZATIONS 1IN CHILDREN — AGES 5 1o 11 (rarte per 100,000} 60 9 44.2
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NASSAU COUNTY (CONTINUED)
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OVERWEIGHT TEEMS (BMI AT OR ABOVE 85 PERCEMTILE]

MIDDLE SCHOOL 13.5 1.7
HiGH SCHOOL 13 6 11 5
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SUICIDE (RATE PER 100,000} 212 139
ADULY PSYCHIATRIC BED S (RaTe pEr 100,000} g0 18.4
CHILD/ADOLESCENT PSYCHIATRIC BEDS (RATE PER 100,000) 0.0 3.0
HIGH SCHOOL STUDENT SMOKELESS TOBACCO USE 12.00% 6.40%

HEALTH DISPARITIES

The percentage of the population that has health insurance varies by age Residents ages 18 to 44 have the
lowest level of insurance, while 100 percent of residents ages 65 and older are covered Nassau County did not
have msurance percentages to report for Black residents Education and income levels both related positively

to percentage of 1nsured residents, as they increase, so does the percentage of insured individuals

Nassau County did not report data on disparities across race for dental services This was also true for

percentages of adults with hypertension, rate of stroke, obesity and percentage of adults with asthma

Cancer rates among Blacks are higher than those of Whites in Nassau County A higher percentage of men
have hypertension than women The rate of coronary heart disease for Black individuals 1s almost triple that
of White residents The death rate from diabetes for Black residents 1s more than three times that of their

White counterparts

The levels of asthma 1n adults, middle school and high school students are lower than the state level The
same 1s true for the diabetes death rate

Infant mortality has increased since 2006 and 1s currently higher than the state level.

The highest percentages of low birth weight babies were reported 1n Black residents and were significantly
higher in Nassau County White mothers were more likely to have first trimester prenatal care than Black or

Hispanic mothers Births to mothers ages 15 to 19 occurred most frequently in the Hispanic community
PREVENTIVE HEALTH CARE

Nassau County was the only county in the Community Health Needs Assessment (CHNA) region with more

White residents reporting good behavioral health than Black residents

The unintentional injury rates in Nassau County have declined, but are still higher than the state level The
death rate from unintentional drowning has essentially been cut in half, and 1s now the lowest 1n the region

The rate of motor vehicle crashes has declined, but 1s still higher than the state level
Nineteen percent of traumatic brain injury visits at Baptist Medical Center Nassau were sports-related

Of those who had delayed health care services in the last 12 months, 73 percent had delayed a visit to a doctor
or physician The next most delayed service was medical test, exam or screening (42 percent) The third most
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frequently delayed S€TVIce was denty| care (28 percent). The types of tegig Or exams mogq frequenﬂ_y delayed
WeTe eye examsg (44 bercent), pap Smears (41 bercent) and Mammograms (34 pPercent) The three masy
frequently noted reasons for dela_ymg health care Ireatment were “mability 1o pay” (38 percent), “pe
Insurance” (35 bercent) and “concerned about spending 1n current €Conomy” (33 percent). Nasgay, County has
the lowest number of Iicensed physicians the region Affordablh'ty and time comstramts were two ¢ommon
barriers mentioned 1n the focus groups

Access 1o denta] services for Iow-mcome individualg has decreased Smce 2008 1n Nassay County Evep with
the dechine, Nassau levels are still much higher than the state Jeye] Nassay County displaved 5 Significant
decrease ip

The 2019 rates for immunizagep levels in kmdergarten-aged children were, on average, higher than the siaze
rale of 91.3 for Nassay County,

Suicide rages have Increased markedly sipce 2006 and st well above the state average,

Nearly 29 bercent of Nassay, County residents smojke tobacco, High schoo] student use of smokeless tobacco
oceurs at g Jeye| that 15 nearly doyple that of the state average

Buicr ENVIRONMENT

There

Drug sales and Canying weapops are the mogt frequemly feported gang acuvity The most dramatse decline 1p
aggravated assay| Was in Nassay County, Nassau now has the lowest rate n the CHNA egion. The rate of
forcible sey offenses 1n Nassay County 15 we] below the state average

More than ope bercent of the children jp Nassay County showed elevated blood lead levels Appro_\'imately
th]“e-qual“[ers of the water SVstem population receive fluondated water,

In Nassay County, there are more ful]-sennce restaurants thap {ast food restaurants More than half of the
slores availab]a are convenience stores,

DISAB!LITY

In Nassay County, 36 bercent of yesidenis 2ges 635 and older have 5 disablht_v, thus is higher thap, the state
average of 34 2 bercent The bPercentage of beople with disabilities Iving 1 Poverty s 19 g percent, slightly
less than the state leve] (20 7 percent). The bercentage of adylts who use Special equipmen due to 4 health
Problem 15 7 4 bercent, lower thyp the Florida average of 9 3 percent

The Percentage of bersons wyth cognitive dlfﬁcuhy In Nassap County s 3 g percent, less thap the state leve] of
4 8 percent The rate of Persons with self-care dlfﬁculty (32 percent) g shightly higher thap the state average
(26 percent) The rate of mdividyalg with ambulatory difficulty 15 o 2 percent, higher than the Florida level of
6 9 percent
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HEALTH QUTCOMES #65
HEALTH FACTORS #61
MEABURE COUNTY FLORIDA
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TOTAL POPULATION 74,300 -~
RACE
WHITE 77 3% -
BLACK 16 2% -
ASIAN 0 6% -~
2+ RACES 17% -~
OTHER 3.6% .
ETHHICITY
HISPANIC 2 0% -
MEDIAN HOUSEHOLD INCOME $33,842 $44,409
POVERTY LEVELS
CHILDREN 35 6% 19.5%
ALLFAMILIES 24 6% 12 0%
UNEMPLOYMENT RATE (2010) 12 6% 11.5%
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SCHUOLABSENCE

GANG ACTIVITY
FIGHTING
THEFT
VANDALISM
DRUG SALES

CARRYING WEAPONS
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UNINTENTIONAL INJURY (RATE PER 100,000)

UNINTENTIONAL DROWNINGS ~ DEATH RATE
MOTOR VEHICLE CRASH (RATE PER 100,000)
DOMESTIC VIGLENCE (OFFENSES PER 100,0()0)
AGGRAVATED ASSAULT (ARRESTS PER 100,000]
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AW
SHAP-AUTHORIZED STORES {per 1,000 PORULATION
WIC-AUTHORIZED STORES (PER 1,000 poPULATION)
FARMERS' MARKETS (Per 1,000 pOPULATION)
STUDENTS FREE-LUNCH ELIGIBLE

A U A S 7 7

LICENSED PRIMARY CARE PHYSICIANS (RATE PER 100,000)
FAMILY PRACTICE
INTERNISTS
osfovYN
PEDIATRICIANS
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THAPTEPR 10 NEEDS ASSESSMENT SUMMAPIES BY TOUNTY

PUTNAM COUNTY (CONTINUED)
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TOTAL HOSPITAL BEDS (RaTE Per 100,000) 1335 320 6
TOTAL SPECIALTY BEDS (RATE PER 100,000} 0.0 55.4
POQPULATION EMROLLED IN MEDICARE 22.2% 18.0%
POPULATION ENROLLED (N MEDICAID 25.7% 15 7%
TOTAL LICENSED DENTISTS (RATE pER 100,000) 210 627

O . . gy v

v M%%M 77 Sniini Bt s wil) HAD Y il B Ak
PHYSICALOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH AS A BARRIER TO PHYSICAL ACTIVITY 27 2% 16.8%
MIDDLE SCHOOL STUDENTS WITHOUT SUFFICIENT PHYSICALACTIVITY 40.0% 30.7%
OVERWEIGHT MIDDLE SCHOOL STUDENTS [BMI AT OR ABDVE 95" PERCENTILE) 14.3% 7%
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m@%ﬁ%ﬂd@’fk{/fé~yﬂéfa//m e Borsd” 45 15 llostls atidd B st ///«&’%/ﬁj%%'éﬁ%ﬁf& (77 Ll s,
ASTHMA HOSPITALIZATIONS — AGES 12 70 18 {raTe rEr 100,000} 41.2 330.9
DIABETES DEATHS [RaTE PER 100,000} 37.4 193
HOSPITALIZATIONS FROM OR WITH DIABETES (RATE PER 100,000) 3,679.4 2,879.4
HOSPITALIZATIONS FROM ARPBTATION OF A LOWER EXTREMITY
ATTRIBUTABLE TO DIABETES (rave rEr 100,000} 52.3 30.5
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SUICIDE (Rave PER 100,000) 189 139
ADULT PSYCHIATRIC BEDS (raTe rer 100,000) ] 18 4
CURREMT SMOKERS 23.60% 17.10%
MIDDLE SCHOOL STUDENT CIGARETTE USE 12.00% 4.80%
HIGH SCHOOL SMOKELESS TOBACLO USE 11.60% 6 40%
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BIRTHS WiTH LATE OR NO PRENATAL CARE 6.90% 5 10%
BIRTHS TO MOTHERS AGES 15 70 19 (rate rer 1,000 rEMALES AGE 15-18) 713 370
BIRTHS TO MOTHERS AGES 10 7o 14 {(rave rer 1,000 FEMALES AGE 15-19) 17 0.5
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HEALTH DISPARITIES

The percentage of the population that has health insurance of any kind varies greatly across age groups In
Putnam County, residents ages 18 to 44 have a far lower percentage of insured individuals than any other
group Residents ages 65 and older are msured at a rate of more than 99 percent Percentages of the population
that are mnsured also vary by race, education and income levels Black individuals are more likely to be insured,

as are those with at least a high school diploma and those who make $50,000 or more

Overall, cancer rates are higher among White individuals than Black, Hispanic data not provided

Hypertension rates also follow this pattern Across genders, hypertension, stroke and diabetes occur in a higher
percentage of men than women Black residents have a higher rate of coronary heart disease, stroke and
diabetes than their White counterparts Respiratory diseases, especially asthma, are highest in the Black

commun lty

Cancer rates have fallen since 2008 1n all counties except for Putnam Putnam County 1s the only one 1n the
region to see an increase 1n the rate of coronary heart disease from 2008 to 2010 Putnam County has the

highest percentage of adults with diagnosed diabetes

COMMUNITY HEALTH NEEDS ASSESSMENT 2012 PEPOPT
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PUTNAM COUNTY (CONTINUED)

The percentage of obese individuals 1s highest in Putnam County The Black community has a shghtly
smaller percentage of overweight or obese individuals Nearly 40 percent of Putnam County middle and high

school students do not get enough physical activity

Putnam County had the lowest percentage of births with early prenatal care at 69 2 percent Births with late
or no prenatal care were the highest in Putnam County Black and Hispanic women were less likely to have
first trimester prenatal care, and Hispanic women were most likely to have late or no prenatal care at all
Black women were most likely to have a low birth weight baby Putnam County’s rate of Hispanic births with

late or no prenatal care was more than 70 percent higher than that of the state (9 5 and 5 5, respectively)

Putnam County had the highest rate of births to young mothers ages 15 to 19 between 2008 and 2010 (71 3
rate per 1,000 females) and was nearly double that of the state rate (37 rate per 1,000) Black and Hispanic
residents showed the highest rates of births to mothers ages 15 to 19 (98.1 and 85.8 per 1,000 females,
respectively) and were also on the approximate order of double the state rates (57 2 and 42 2 rate per 1,000
females, respectively) The rate of births to mothers ages 10 to 14 1n Putnam County (1 7 rate per 1,000
females) was more than three times that of the state rate (0 5 rate per 1,000 females)

PREVENTIVE HEALTH CARE

Generally, access to dental care declines as income declines While the percentage of low-income persons with
access to dental care 1n all five counties 1s considered low, the percentage of low-1ncome residents accessing
dental services 1s near the percentage for the state of Florida The rate of adults who had permanent tooth
removal due to tooth decay or gum disease was highest 1n Putnam County for both White and Black adults at
64 8 and 74 6 percent to the state percentages of 52 1 and 62 4, respectively Putnam County also had the
lowest percentages for dental visits and teeth cleanings; White residents visited a dentist or dental chinic and

had their teeth cleaned more often than Black residents

Survey respondents indicated that dental care 1s the third most frequently delayed service (behind “visit to
doctor” and “medical test, exam or screening”) Putnam County has the lowest rate of licensed dentists in the
Community Health Needs Assessment (CHNA) region, and only one-third of the state level In a county of
close to 75,000 people, there are only three optometrists and two audiologists Black residents reported higher
levels of good behavioral health than theirr White counterparts.

Rates of unintentional injury during 2010 were highest in Putnam County (86 9 per 100,000), a stark increase
from the two years prior The unintentional drowning rate 1s double that of the state level The 2010 rate for

motor vehicle crashes in Putnam County was the highest 1n the region at 36 5 per 100,000.
Immunization levels for kindergarten-aged children sat just above the state level 1n 2010

Putnam County has the highest percentage of current smokers 1n the assessment region (23.6 percent). The
percentage of middle school-age smokers 1s highest in Putnam County (12 percent) A much larger percentage

of men smoke than women

For some, physical barrers (1 e , disability, injury) or behavioral health difficulties make physical activity

challenging This 1s the case for more than a quarter of Putnam County residents

COMMUNITY HEALTH NEEDS ASSESSMENT 2012 PEPOPT
- 455 -



THAPTER 140 NELDS ALBESRMENT SUMMARIES BY TOUNTY

‘r

PUTNAM COUNTY (CONTINUED)
BUILT ENVIRONMENT

The graduation rate for Putnam County students 1s 75 5 percent This 1s less than the state level of 80 1
percent Additionally, the school absence data are much higher than the rest of the CHNA region, as well as
the state of Florida Gang activity (1 ¢, fighting, theft, vandahsm, drug sales, carrying weapons) in Putnam
County 1s overall higher than the rest of the CHNA region and the state of Florida

Domestic violence rates 1n Putnam County have Increased since 2008 and are double that of the state rate
The rate of aggravated assault 1n Putnam County 15 consistently above the state average Homicide rates have
stayed about the same 1n all counties except for Putnam, where there was a drop from 11 0 t0 7 7 However,
this 1s still above the state level.

Putnam County was given a score of “5” (out of “5”) on the Natural Amenities Scale In Putnam County there
are three times as many convenience stores than all of the other types of stores (supercenters, grocery stores,
specralized food stores) combined The percentage of students chgible for free or reduced school lunch 1s
highest 1n Putnam County (nearly 75 percent)

DISABILITY

The percentage of adults with disabilities 1s greatest 1n Putnam County

COMMUNITY HEALTH NEEDS ASSESSMENT 2012 PEPORT
- 156 -



2
A

THAPTEP 14 NEEDS ASS

ST. JO

v

o o

7 swibnns

P AR

v L e

COUNIY SELECTED STRTISTICSY

ESS M

ENT SUMMAPIES BY TOUNTY

HNS COUNTY

.
R h s

R

YADDITIONAL COUNTY INFORMATION IN RELATIONSHIP TO OTHER COUNTIES CAN BE FOUND THROUGHOUT THE

COMMURNITY HEALTH NEEDS ASSESSMENT REPORT

. ~

T A
PSP/ P AR R I

HEALTH QUTCOMES

HEALTH FACTORS

MEASURE
Ul S T R
f/méf{ L

,
SN W

TOTAL POPULATION

RALE

WHITE
BLACK
ASIAN
2+ RACES
CTHER

ETHMICITY
HISPANIC
MEDIAN HOUSEHOLD INCOME
UNEMPLOYMENT RATE (2010}
S
a//,w,
FORCIBLE SEXUDAL OFFENSES (rer 100,000}
HOMICIDE (PeR 100,000}
gt s 7 TS L
ﬂy//gyf, ////,/
CANCER
HEART DISEASE

CHRONIC LOWER RESPIRATORY DISEASE

%«v

#
e

P
|75 ) s # 5
G il L

NATURAL AMENITIES SCALE

e

A5 3

P s i AT
% g 2 ) 7 4 4 72 T A 2, WY
%%W%%%@/ WY TS A ML Tl

S couies péstne %@Wa& s
v /'/4;'5/1'&' PIFECET S 7 (p/?/ /{//“’A/& s

- 7/ 7 LB P 7,
v /f/ 2 /j’"}{ %
4 o Botiine /::m;%wﬂma;‘/w ; ,%ﬁw/é/«%ﬁ i

Y Y
s G S R s s ey

4 ’//%%’y BRaERt 2 3 s e
A g AN Y Y

e A o L s »1/';«'1 ’/;’/mfy’ 7
#1
#1
COUNTY FLORIDA
P A Ll S ) ’/%”’:/ s /,,f”// s
A
W . W WG AN
194,400 -~
89 3% -~
5 6% =
2.1% -~
1 8% -
0 8% -
5 2% -
$58 age $44,409
9.5% 1M 5%
i SRS s, ’/ ’//;’ 2y
/ L e ST S /,///
P, A i #hl
1% 1 52 6
g 6.7

27

RN

v

2
153.0 -

133 -
343

b/

oy
A

EN

Sourofs
5

<
R

N

i e z e
SNAP-AUTHORIZED STORES (PER 1,000 PoRULATION) 053 -~
WIC-AUTHORIZED STORES (PEr 1,000 popuLaTion) 0.11 -

FAST FOOD RESTAURANTS (PEr 1,000 popuLATION) 0 60 -
FARMERS' MARKETS (per 1,000 poeULATION) 002 -

L i AR GRS S

W sl M(,‘dc&////f&’/{,/ /e// G i b it ,ﬂf%';/ /(z’;w’ff@gf%/% i %f’jﬁm’f
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FAMILY PRACTICE 145 97
INTERNISTS 28.5 418
os/GYN 48 7.9
PEDIATRICIANS 9.1 14.9
TOTALHOSPITAL BEDS (RATE PER 100,000) 172.9 320 6
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ST. JOHNS COUNTY (CONTINUED)

Vg W sk N R WA IR R N A A A
L ;/ﬁﬁw%ﬁﬁ%mwmém%%ym%%@/ Ly

< a5 s
S A = 4 A5 Lk % oz
I AP A, £ Sl WA A CEBRLAE LY LW

LOW-INCOME —~ WEST ST, JOHNS COURNTY

HEALTH DISPARITIES

St Johns County respondents were most satisfied with the health care services in their county (79 percent)
ratings (30 percent)

»

and submutted the highest level of “excellent

The percentage of the population that has health insurance of any kind varies greatly across age groups In St
Johns County, adults ages 18 to 44 have a lower percentage of msured individuals than any other group
Residents ages 65 and older are more than 98 percent msured Percentages of the population that are insured
also vary by education and income levels Data for Black mndividuals was not reported

St Johns County has seen a decrease 1n the number of licensed dentists While the number of dentists does
play a part in the accessibility of dental care, focus group participants feel that mnsurance coverage dictates
which health services are accessible to each person, especially dentists Residents of St Johns County had the
highest percentage of recent dental visits and the lowest percentage of having a permanent tooth removed
Data for their Black counterparts was not provided

Affordability (a barrier to care) plays a role in the decisions for residents to take care of their health Of those
survey respondents who stated that they had delayed health care services, the three most frequently noted
reasons for delayng health care treatment were “inability to pay” (38 percent), “no msurance” (35 percent)
and “concerned about spending n current economy” (33 percent)

Black residents of St Johns County present higher rates of cancer, diabetes deaths and hypertension deaths
Males exhibit higher levels of hypertension, stroke and diabetes

St Johns County has the lowest infant mortality rate and lowest rate of low birth weight babies White
mothers are most likely to recewve first trimester prenatal care, while Black mothers are most likely to recerve
Iittle or no prenatal care Black women are also more likely to have a low birth weight baby Teenage mothers
(ages 15 to 19) are usually Black 1n St. Johns County.

PREVENTIVE HEALTH CARE

St. Johns County has the lowest rate of unintentional mjury, unintentional drowning and motor vehicle
crashes Levels of all three of these indicators are below the state average

St Johns County residents have the least amount of trouble with mental or physical barriers to physical
activity This county also sees the lowest number of students without sufficient physical activity, 1t 1s the only
county that lies below the state leve]

St Johns County showed the highest levels of overal] positive perception of therr health and behavioral
health Binge drinking among adults had declined 1n all counties except for St Johns
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THAPTEPR 10 NEEDS ASSESSMENT SUMMAPIES BY TOUNTY

ST, JOHNS COUNTY (CONTINUED)
Females are shightly more likely to smoke tobacco
St Johns County reported the lowest levels of overweight middle and high school students

St Johns County reported an improvement for immunizations in kindergarten-aged children from 88.6 to 91 2
percent i 2008, but continued to be lowest rate for the region Seniors in St Johns County boast the highest

percentage of pneumonia and flu vaccinations
BUILT ENVIRONMENT
St Johns County has the second highest graduation rate and the second lowest level of gang activity

Domestic violence, aggravated assault, forcible sex offenses and homicide levels are all substantially lower than
the state level

St Johns County scored a “5” (out of “5”) on the Natural Amenities Scale Additionally, it was the only county
to report zero percent of children with elevated blood lead levels Only 39 percent of the water system

population gets fluoridated water

There are substantially more full-service restaurants than fast food restaurants 1n St. Johns County However,
there are still only 0 02 farmers’ markets per 1,000 people and convenience stores are more common than

grocery stores, specialized food stores or supercenters

A common theme 1n the focus groups was the challenges presented by a lack of transportation, especially when
trying to obtain health care A handful of participants mentioned that transportation needs extend beyond
getting to and from medical centers, but that 1s all that 1s provided by the public transportation system

DISABILITY

In St Johns County, 31 7 percent of residents ages 65 and older have a disability, this 1s lower than the state
average of 34 2 percent and the lowest 1n the Community Health Needs Assessment region The percentage of
people with disabilities iving 1n poverty 1s 20.7 percent, exactly the same as the state level. The percentage of
adults who use special equipment due to a health problem 1s 7 9 percent, lower than the Florida average of 9 3

percent
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COMPREHENSIVE REHABILITATION
OUTCOMES, CONT'D.

Built Environneitt

Mobility

Walkable Neighborhoods/Communities

Handicapped/Disabled Person Parking
Accessibility

Access to Food/Food Deserts

e Physical Actvity/Obesity

ACUTE CARE OQUTCOMES

Health Disparities Built Environmeiit

(Race, Socto-Ecanomic and Sevual Ortentation)
o Access to Food/Food Deserts

¢ Infant Mortahty e Clean and Healthy Environment

o Communicable Diseases - Awr and Water Quality

- Sexually Transmitted Diseases
(STDs), mcluding HIV

- Influenza and Pneumonia

- Asthma

- Respiratory [lness

- Hepatitis Physical Activity
. - Obesity
e Chronic Diseases )
e Transportation

- Prostate Cancer

- Heart Disease e Housing

- Hypertension e Childhood Obesity
- Congestive heart farlure o Crime/Homicide
- Diabetes
- Stroke

¢ Adult Obesity

o Substance Abuse

Preventive Health Care

o Smoking and Smokeless Tobacco
e Nuirntion
¢ Unintentional Injuries
- Motor Vehicle Crashes
¢ Dental Exams and Treatment
s Eye Exams and Glasses
e Pap Smear Screenings
e Prostate Screening
o Mammography
o Behavioral Health

- Substance Abuse

- Suicide
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PRIORITY-SETTING AND RANKING

Members of The Partnership 1n the priority-setting process using the “Ranking” methodology
Members were asked to rank the 1dentified themes and their respective community needs with a numerical
score based on a scale of one to five (one being the most pressing need and five being the least pressing need)
This exercise helped members of The Partnership develop a more complete picture of the needs and assets
compared to the existing community resources dedicated to addressing each need 1dentified

The rankings of each hospital’s priorities were placed in a comprehensive “Priorties” table and shared with
each member of The Partnership Finally, the members of The Partnership discussed their rationale behind
ther respective rankings After much discussion, negotiations on collective impact opportunities occurred as

well as gaps in the community Participants were given a chance to change their rankings accordingly

In the end, each hospital 1dentified and agreed upon two to five strategic health needs as their highest priority
and worthy of inclusion 1n their respective Strategic Implementation Plans. Each hospital then engaged

and/or developed employee/staff/community “ilmplementation teams” to vet and accept the selected priorities

Baptist Medical Center Jacksonville, Duval County

Heart Disease, Stroke, Diabetes, Nutrition, Mammogram, Infant Mortality, Behavioral Health, Smoking

Cessation, Access to Food and Physical Activity

Baptist Medical Center Beaches, Duval County (specifically Atlantic, Neptune and Jacksonville Beaches)

Heart Disease, Stroke, Diabetes, Nutrition, Mammogram, Smoking Cessation, Access to Food and Physical

Activity

Baptist Medical Center Nassau, Nassau County

Heart Disease, Stroke, Diabetes, Nutrition, Mammogram, Smoking Cessation, Access to Food and Physical

Activity

Baptist Medical Center South, Duval and Northern St Johns Counties

Heart Disease, Stroke, Diabetes, Nutrition, Mammogram, Infant Mortality, Smoking Cessation, Access to

Food and Physical Activity

Brooks Rehabilitation, Duval and St. Johns Counties

Stroke, Head and Spinal Cord Injuries, Behavioral Health/Depression and Physical Activity

Mayo Clinic, Duval County
Adult Obesity

St. Vincents Medical Center Riverside, Duval, Clay and Putnam Counties

Infant Mortality, Heart Disease, Diabetes, Childhood and Adult Immunizations, KidCare, Mammogram,

Type II Diabetes Screening, Access to Food, Childhood Obesity

St. Vincents Medical Center Southside, Duval County

Infant Mortality, Heart Disease, Childhood and Adult Immunizations, KidCare, Mammogram, Type II
Diabetes Screening, Access to Food, Childhood Obesity
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UF/Shands, Duval County

Infant Mortality, Heart Disease, Stroke, Diabetes, Nutrition, Mammogram, Smoking Cessation, Unintentional
Injuries, Behavioral Health, Pap Smear Screening, Access to Food, Childhood Obesity

Wolfson Children’s Hospital, Duval

Infant Mortality, Childhood Obesity, Asthma, Head Injury/Concussions, Sexually Transmitted Infections,
Immunizations, KidCare, Eve Exams/Glasses, Behavioral Health, Unintentional Injunies, Type II Diabetes
Screening, Access to Food, Childhood Obesity, Physical Activity, Crime

COMMUNITY ASSETS TO ADDRESS THE NEEDS

The five counties that comprise The Partnership’s service area have many resources already n place to address
the health needs of the population not included 1n The Partnership’s priority hist The Partnership recognizes
the strengths of each community in the service area, and will work to support and complement organmzations
that are also working to improve the health and well being of the population

Duval County Health Department, Clay County Health Department, Nassau County Health Department,
Putnam County Health Department and St Johns County Health Department each provide leadership and
coordination of public health services and data collection All five county health departments produce a
Comprehensive Health Improvement Plan (CHIP) that unites service providers from across the counties n
collecting and analyzing data, setting objectives and priorities, and coordinating services to reduce duplication
of effort. Representatives from all five health care systems are active members on each of these CHIP
community coalitions

The Healthy Jacksonwlle Coalition, Partnership for a Healthier Nassau, Clay County Health Assessment Task
Force, Healthy Putnam County and the St Johns County Health Leadership Council are each working to
develop comprehensive wellness plans to address the public health needs of their communities
Representatives from all five health care systems are active members on each of these coalitions

Large and small local organizations dedicated to serving low-mcome and medicallv-underserved populations
provide food, €mergency financial and housing assistance, social support, and access to free or reduced-cost
medical, dental, vision, hearing and behavioral health care These organizations include, but are not limited
to, the following (see next page):
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NEEDS NOT ADDRESSED IN ASSESSMENT

One of the top priority risk factors identified in the community health assessment—Built Environment—will
not be addressed directly by hospital-led imtiatives The community health survey showed that many residents
in the hospital service areas do not have pedestrian paths or grocery stores in their neighborhood Walk-ability
and ease of access to grocery stores can be major barriers to regular participation in physical activity and
access to fresh fruits and vegetables That said, none of the participating hospital partners are in a position to
directly impact these 1ssues However, all of the partners are committed to improving the health and wellness
of our communities, and fully support local government and wellness coalitions 1n their efforts to positively
impact these 1ssues

Transportation effects access to care, particularly among the low-income and medically-underserved
populations Other local organizations such as the Area Agency on Aging, Council on Aging and local
transportation systems are already working to address transportation needs 1n the area Therefore, the
participating partners will not directly address this 1ssue with any new 1mitiatives

COMMUNITY NEEDS ASSESSMENT TAKEAWAYS

The Jacksonville Metropolitan Community Benefit Partnership’s community health assessment includes a
wealth of data from both primary and secondary sources about the health and well being of residents of the
five-county area covered by the community health needs assessment It also 1dentifies a number of areas of
concern, which should lead to further investigation and continued collaborative action among the Partners
Participants of this multi-system Partnership developed transformative and unprecedented takeaways from
this collaborative assessment process Throughout the assessment, The Partnership discovered areas for future
community benefit collaboration they identified areas of overlap and duplication among the systems and
county health departments, community-based orgamzations and local government, areas where additional
services are needed, and areas primed for intense “collective impact” strategies such as addressing the

epidemic of obesity
Further Takeaways

e The Northeast Florida’s health, human service, aging, disability, environmental and philanthropic
community should align community benefit programs and funding patterns with the priorities and key
findings of The Partnership’s community needs assessment

¢ The Northeast Florida’s population health status should be tracked, measured and monitored through the
Northeast Florida Counts health-related quality of life indicator platform.
e ‘Access to Health Care was 1dentified by The Partnership as the single most important 1ssue 1n Northeast

Florida

e Health care and community health should evolve from a system of sick care to one based on wellness and
prevention

e The Northeast Florida health community should embrace a holistic approach (physical, emotional, place,
mind and spirt) to improve individual health outcomes

" Access to Health Care I1s defined as Any person who 1s insured, undernnsured or uninsured who has a disruption or barrier to obtaining information on community resources,
obtaining affordable health, dental, behavioral health insurance coverage, obtaining durable medical equipment, obtaining transportation, filling prescriptions or securing a
primary care physician
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APPENDITES

COMMUNITY HEALTH SURVEY 2012 DEMOGRAPHICS
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JACKSONVILLE METROPOLITAN COMMUNITY BENEFIT PARTNERSHIP
SHANDS MINORITY FOCUS GROUP ~ THEMES AND SUMMARY

1. What do people in your community do to stay healthy? For example, to exercise, where they get
information about health, checkups, health screcnings, safety, biking, walking, where they get access
to healthy foods, and those types of things.

e Information 1s transgenerational — 1t comes from mothers, home remedies, etc

¢ Exercise 1s not a real priority, but the jobs that those in the community hold are labor intensive (1 e,
construction, cleaning)

* Those who take the bus do a lot of walking
® Some people exercise by walking 1n the park
® Medical assistance 1s very limited for those without papers

® Access to healthy foods provided by WIC

2. Isthis a good place to raise children: school quality, daycare, after-school care, recreation, natural
environment, that kind of thing?

¢ Conflicting 1deas about safety one says 1t feels safe and another says the community does not feel safe —
high crime and violence

® Schools are seen 1n a positive light because they are free and can provide meals for children

¢ Language barrier 1s an 1ssue for parents They do not know what their children are learning and cannot be
mvolved

3. What about daycare, when both parents have to work and the kids are not old enough for school?
e Little to no access to free daycare or subsidized formal daycare

e Latino community works together to help take care of children There 1s “a lot of cohesiveness”

4. Do you feel that there's cconomic opportunity in the community: locally-owned and operated
businesscs, jobs with carcer growth and job training, higher educational opportunitics, affordable
housing options?

e Limited economic opportunity Free English classes are the extent of services

® Not having proper documentation 1s a problem for even the most basic things such as renting housing

5. Where do you or most of your neighbors go for health carc services; doctors, emergency rooms,
health clinic, health department, home health care services, cte.?

¢ Pregnant women and most Hispanic individuals go to the Health Department

¢ If they are not pregnant, they simply do not go because there are not many free services Most of the free
clinics that do exist require a social security number

6. Are there health services that you need that are not available to you? You could consider primary
care, specialty care, dental/oral care, family planning, birth control, behavioral health, prescription
medications, substance abuse — any services that are not available to you.

e Access to all services 1s limited, but the two most significant are dental and behavioral health services

7. Have you personally experienced any trouble with doctors not accepting Medicaid or sclf-pay?

e It does not seem as though people have trouble finding a doctor that will accept self-pay However, due to
the low mncome of most residents, paying for a visit alone (without any tests/lab work) 1s too expensive.

COMMUNITY HEALTH NEEDS ASSESSMENT 2012 PEPOPT
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SHANDS MINORITY FOCUS GROUP ~ THEMES AND SUMMARY

8. How do you or your neighbors pay for their health care services?

¢ Cash

* Without msurance, they simply do not g0 to the doctor

9. How has the local ¢conomy affected you or your neighbors” health?

* Because most people work 1n construction, the decline 1n work m that field has really affected the
community

* Many people will wait until the last 40 days of Pregnancy to see a doctor so that they can use Medicaid
benefits (you can get Medicaid for 45 days 1f you are pregnant)

¢ They do not go to the doctor unless 1t 1s a real emergency because thev cannot pay

10. What prevents you or your neighbors, friends and family members in your community from taking
care of yoursclves and staying healthy in general?

* The price of health food, especially without WIC

® Price in general

1. What influcnces your decision to take care of your health: money, doctor, family members, health
insurance, transportation, church, ete.?

* Transportation and money Even with a car, gas prices are very lugh The majority of the Hispanic
population lacks transportation, so the bus 1s the usual mode of transportation.

* Access to and price of healthy foods

¢ Cultural influences on diet choices (1e., high levels of carbohydrates 1in Latino cultural foods such as
tortillas, rice, corn)

12.Do you feel like your neighborhood is casy to get around in by bicycle or on foot; do you have
destinations to go to without using a car?

* Walking distance (1 e., from the hospital to Publix)

13. The physical environment, do you feel that the air is clean, the water is clean, those sorts of things?

® Yes, 1t 15 clean

14. Do you think there’s education being provided to children about what their healthy food choices are,
cducation about dict and nutrition? Do you feel like that's accessible to the community?

¢ The children recerve education 1n schools, but the parents do not receve 1t

Conclusions
- Lack of documentation of legal status 1s a major barrier to all aspects of life, especially access to health
care.

- Opportunities for healthy diet choices are limited, even with WIC Education about food 15 present in
schools, but the parents are not being educated Additionally, cultural food norms play a part in food
choices

- Job losses and the economic chimate have put health care services even further out of reach, so much SO
that many people choose not to see a doctor at all.

=~ The lack of transportation leads to an increase 1n the amount of walking that individuals do, however,
that benefit 15 outweighed by the fact that 1t also serves as a major barrier to access to health care

- The most pervasive theme 1s cost of care

LCOMMUNITY HEALTH NEEDS ASHESSMEN™ 20052 PEPOR™
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HEALTH NEEDS ASSESSMENT FOCUS GROUP
BROOKS REHABILITATION — SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS

BLUE = DISABILITY RED = STROKE ORANGE = BRAIN INJURY

What do people in your community do to stay healthy? It could be vour ncighborhood, county, define
it as you like?

e Since 2007, the Brooks sports program has provided opportunities for indmiduals to stay active (1 e,
rowing, soccer;, bowhng, hand cycle)

e Getting active, espectally with others with disabihities, has had a positive impact on thenr behavioral health
aswell They no longer f[eel hke they are alone and have sometlung to occupy thew tune Keeping busy lifts
therr spirits

e That bemg said, aside [rom Brooks, Jachsonville 1s not the ideal place [or someone new to o disabihiny The
city s very large and public transportation 1s not very accessible

® YMCA and Brooks for exercise

e It thev live near schools, many people walk the track. Parks are too far awav.
e Walking, especially with themr dogs

e Private gvms andd the YMCA

¢ Feel sale walking, but not biking due 1o Jack of bike-friendly mfrastructure

o Shepat health oo d stenes tre Whele Toods Notnve Sun, GNO

e Lilting werehis

e Walling 1unnng

o Cowilng hialihy meals

Are there any additional elements that you would add to the Brooks recreation program?

e More stalt and more money Services seeh 1o expand, but the stall does not expand 1 syne so resources get
spread thin As more and more people with disabilities find out about the program and the things they can
be mnvolved m, more and more people participate, but this requures addiional stalt or volunteers

e The activities are held at dilferent locations throughout the city I there was one centralized facility,
transportation would be easier

e Transportation services are {rustrating The mdividual 1s given a two-hour wait span, but the driver does
not wart ot alb if vou are not there right when they arrive

Where do vou seck health information to find out about health or health services?
® The Internet (1 ¢, Google)

e Sharmg mformation with others met through the activities

I heard mention of the pattern of going to work and coming home and the weight gain. When you
talk about nutrition, do vou fecl that vou have access to healthy food stores, and where do you get
nutrition information?

e Sometimes reaching things on store shelves 1s difficult
e Coohing at home 15 a challenge It 1s difficult to get something off ol the stove or out of the oven
e Often 1t 15 much easter and less time-consuming to purchase somethimg that s pre-made

¢ Due to low meome, money s always a concern Unfortunately, the cheapest food 1s usually not
the healthiest

e Werght gain 15 a concern lor those with hmited mobilits. The standard 2,000 calories o day 1s more than
they need and can lead 1o werght gan

* Some believe that Brooks should spend more time on education about these sstes
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BROOKS REHABILITATION — SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS

5.

10.

So, about how many individuals are part of your community here in Jacksonville?
o I Duval County there are approsumatels =0,000 people with disabilities

e That meludes ADA disabilities The numbers lor physical or mobility unpatrments are sel-disclosed s0
they could be higher

How large is your group here at Brooks?

e The program served about 1,000 people last vear (30 people per week across 14 activities)

Do you feel therc ;s economic opportunity in the Jacksonville community in terms of job growth,
opportunity to start your own business, higher education opportunitics, affordable housing?

e Not enough Jobs are growing, but not ot the same rate lorw orking-age people with disabilities

o With limited mcome comes Limted housing opportunits Ponred with accessibility ssties, this 1ssue Is
very difficult

e The lack of transttional housimg plays a part as well There s a large gap between himited meome and
getting a job to nerease then meome

e Housing 1s affordable and job opportunmities reflect the economy, but are not too himited

e There ure not as many jobs w 1h career growth and job tramimng as thete used to be

e Good higher education opportuntties (UNF, JU)

o There 15 a ot ol atfordable housime, but 1t depends on how vou define atlordable

o0t vy ate willing 1ok o} e are phooty ol opporiunities T lereno b linohicr educanien’

o There 1= atteadable housing but 1ot 1 e beslareas

Do you feel the community is a safc place to live?

e Yes, for the most part, but there are some exceptions by location (1 e , Regency Mall)

o For the most part, neighbors look out for each other

e Yoo, 111 the areas that (hey restde Other areas ate not the same (1 e, Regenay)

e The nerghbors 1 their community w ateh alter each othet smee most of them are retwred
o Ovcrall ves

o Noighbors Lok ot o ene an e

What about educational opportunitics here in Jacksonville?

o There are quality higher education options, but DCPS 15 “not that good ”

e The university systems offera catisfactory amount of disabled services UNF 1 particular has a new
resoutce center

Where do you or most of your ncighbors go for health care services, primary carce and

specialty care?

e Memortal Hospital

o Primary care physician

o Solantie, especially if the reason for gomg 1s untelated o ther disability

e Wart times play a part Additionalls, they have to find someone who 1s not only 1 therr msurance networh,

but 1s farmbar with thew disability

e The Internet does ot pt ovide much gadance on findimg a doctor They rely heavily on word of mouth
within the communmty
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BROOKS REHABILITATION — SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

o A disability directory (broken down by msurance and/or Jocation) would be very helpful

¢ Most respondents had a primary care phvsician that thev would see Emergency room used for

emergencies, not because thev do not have doctors
o Urgent care centers are used after-hours, but the wait 1s verv long

e Private doctors Nobods that they know uses a health chime or the Health Department Do not know
ansone that would go to the emergeney Tovin tor 4 nofcemergency. Solantic un Sundays.

o Al ost ot e private phivsiernans and spectalists atfiliated with he spatals

What about emergency room care; which ERs de you go to?

o 1t depends on whether the emergency 15 based on (hew disability or not Memortial and Shands for spmal
mjuries Many of the doctors that Brooks patients see are Afilated with Memoral

e St Luhe’s and Baptist
e Baptist, St Vincent’s, St Luke’s

o Bapiint Shands dlase Onangs Pak

What are some of the reasons that you've visited the emergency room?
o Prossure sores

e Heart condition

e Staph mmfection

o These 1ssues are not abwavs related to therr disabihity

0 Sme e et s e e ER B ot et wly and cthers ks ol preople whe g dea e e TR S

T I

Wwhat about home health services?

o Tt would be mice, but msurance does not pay 1ot

Are there health services that you aced that are not available to you; can be primary carc, specialty
care, dental, family planning?

e Yoo, all of the above.

e Exam rooms are 1ot Secessible/disability {riendls (tables too high off the ground, no traned personnel o

help get you on the table)
¢ “No problems at all”
e “None that [they] need”
o Ocoupational ond phy creal tharapy thevause ey e nol e pt Meclieands

e Dentol health

Have you personally ever experienced any trouble with doctors accepting M cdicaid or not accepting

you because you did not have insurance?

o Medicand restricts patients {rom seewng the doctors they want 1o s Even once they decided ona doctor,

Lhetr wart-time was anywhere from one to three hours
e Frustration that then msurance won't allow them 1o go to Brooks, but an unemploved mdividual could

o [t ts nearly mmpossible 1o find a doctor that will let you pav out ol pocket because they want to charge the
HSUTALCE COMPRIY

e Tn general, no Medicare advantage requires that thev do a bit more searchmg 1o find a doctor that will
accept 1t

e\, Lo physeal and cocupate nal theraps
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BROOKS REHABILITATION = SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

How do you or your necighbors pay for health care services?
e Mostly private msurance (emplover-provided)
o Ty preally. through private msutanee and Medicare

o PLivale tostilanies aid r Modieare Advontaee

Has the local cconomy affected your ability to cover your health carc expenses, and in what way?
o Yoo, Most of them ate hving ona fived meome (disabihity check)

o 11 15 common for o medical item o be more expensive, il purchased through msurance verstt> paving out-
of-pocket

o Durable medical equipment 1> entremely overpriced

e They [eel a double-squecse. W hen the econonty 1s bad, they feel the salne SCOMOITIC Pressiles as ¢Vely one
clse, but they also have to face meveasing costs ol medical equipment

« Some Job loss but overall, relanvely unaffected
e Peroonally, unaflected Has seen 1ssties with dechne mn militars health service

e Fowvar o, hord fooompete Slier stsiatie o bram muns

Do you feel that the cconomy prevents you from taking care of yourself the way that you would
want to?

e Yoo Reusing catheters is i common enample

e Symple, but necessary things, olten arve not covered 1e shower chars

Think about you, your neighbors, friends, and family members in your community. What prevents
you from taking care of yourselves (or staying healthy)?

e Independence (or lack thereof), 1t vou are scared of imurv (1e falling), vou tend to stav put

e Transportation: JTA “can be a problem " The wait-times are long and the workers do not do much to
ensure that vou get the services you have requested Some have been denied use of the services because
thev own a car, even though doctors have saud they cannot drive

o Nothing but ourselves We have all of the resources, we just have to use them

o Lok ol e badiny Jue i biati s

In thinking about you, your ncighbors, family and friends, what influences your decisions to take
care of your health?

e Cost

e Avarlability

e Support system (family, friends, chureh members) and the will 1o get better

e Fumily members (some who are doctors) and mlormation about screentngs in the newspaper

e Supperl i Clanule leends deociors?

in terms of decisions you make about your health care, is it usually a shared decision, not
individual, for those of you who are married or have a partner?

o Defimtely a shared decision

What about your faith, religion, church, God, if that is your spiritual path; does that in any way
influcnce your health care decision-making?

e Praver plays a big part.
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BROOKS REHABILITATION — SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS

23.

Is there anything else you'd like to tell us or talk about?

e Transportation s a huge obstacle People erther do not have a ramp to leave thewr house, or do not have
rehable transportation Brooks s a small budget for this, but it s not enough, and JTA “is not the

answer”
e Fumuily doctors are very important

o Public tanspoataten em Clas Counts b Jacksmwlle Jyeuld Be mnprved

CONCLUSIONS

Both similarities and differences exist 1n themes across respondent type

Commonalities:

Transportation 1s a large barrier to health care services and overall well bemng Public transportation (JTA)
does not provide adequate assistance

Overall, people feel the community 15 safe The exceptions he n pockets of the community (1€ . Regency)
Nearly all respondents acknowledged the quality opportunities for higher education

Most respondents utilized a private physician, but knew of mndividuals who sought care from emergency
rooms for non-emergencies. Solantic was also mentioned frequently, but mostly utihzed durmng off-peak
times (mights and weekends)

In addition, most respondents stated that they or their neighbors typically used private insurance or
Medicare to cover their health care expenses

Support systems play a crucial role 1n health care decision-making. Respondents pointed most frequently
to fanuly members (either they urge them to be healthy or are the motivation for personal choices),
friends/social pressures to be healthy and doctors

Differences:

Those with disabilities face not only low mcome, but expensive medical equuipment and accessibility 1ssues
in housing, transportation and even exam rooms

Those with disabilities have formed a commumty where they share medical information with each other
and form a de facto support group

Those who have suffered bram mjury would like more assistance when 1t comes to occupational and
physical therapy

All respondent types with the exception of those with disabilities viewed the local economy as having
minimal 1mpact on opportumty and availability of affordable housing They believe that the job market has
gotten shghtly smaller, and that affordable housing 1s available However, they note that “affordable” means
different things to different people, and affordable housing typically 1s not n the best areas of town

Those affected by stroke, as well as caregivers, did not feel that they had health needs that were not
being met.
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HEALTH NEEDS ASSESSMENT FOCUS GROUP
MAYO CLINIC — SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS

BLACK — GENERAL RED — CANCER GREEN—LIVER/KIDNEY

What do people in your community do to stay healthy; for example, exercising, or wherever they
get information about their health, health screenings, ete.?

e Gardening

¢ Golfing and riding bikes

e Water sports

« Walking/jogging/running

o It 1s easy to be healthy There 15 a community sentiment that being healthy 1s umportant

« Not everyone has the advantage of seeing their physicians/dentists as often as they should
e Exercising by gomg to the gvm, walking, jogging

« Regular doctor appointments

« YMCA, walking dogs and walline on the beach lor exercrse

o [Iealth mtormation comes from television (Dr O2) and the Internet.

Do you feel like your community is a good place to live and raise children, does it feel safe
to raisc children?

e Yes, in guarded (not gated) commumnty

e Good community events (community-wide picnic).

e St Johns County provides quality schools and 1s a safe place

e The schools here are not as high-quality as ones up North

« Duval County does not have very good schools, so you have to use private schools

« The quality of education affects health (1 e, nuiritional choices, job opportunities)

o Verv safe place, but there are pockets that are not so sale (1 ¢, Springfield, NW Duval County)

e Mandarin, Sawgrass and Ponte Vedra are all considered safe

e Putnam County sees high robbertesivandahism, but still feel safe walking around the neighborhood
o WildlLife 1s o concern (snakes and alligators)

® Yes.

And do you have any criticisms about where you live?

e Tncrease 1n taxes due to addition of LPGA

Do you feel that there is economic opportunity in your communities?
¢ No, not in Duval or 5t Johns County

o Jacksonville s better olt than a lot ol other places (e g, colleges, hospitals, constant consiruction, the
port)

where do most of your neighbors or you go for health care services? For example, a doctor,
emergency room, health care clinic, home health care services, that type of thing?

¢ Mayo or Baptist
e Mavo, Memonial and Baptist
e For non-hospital services. people go to Solantic or priunary care phvsicians

o The one respondent who does evervthing at Mayo enjoys having all of thewr information i one svstem.

COMMUNITY HEALTH NEEDS AGSESLSMINT 2012 REPOPT
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MAYQ CLINIC — SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS

10.

11.

o Mavo Chore

o Urgent care faciliies are conventent and much less expensive.

Do you feel that there are any health scrvices that are not accessible to you? For example, dental,
primary care, any sort of specialty care, behavioral health, substance abuse, prescription meds?

e Volusia County behavioral health services are not sufficient The people who want help don't have the
opportunity to get 1t because all facilities are filled with court-mandated individuals

o Alternative medicine (1 e, holistic center, massage, acupunciure, meditation)
e Insurance coverage dictates these things, especiallv dentists
e Mammograms require that vou wait a couple of months, unless vou have special circumstances

e When vou first come to town ttean be difficult, but the service providers are here

Do you feel that you could use more, in terms of capacity, that there could be more services for
behavioral health; or do you fecl it’s part of that system of who they are serving?

e Frustrated with having to go into Downtown Jacksonville from the beaches for things hike courthouse
services

Have you or anyone you know ever experienced any trouble with doctors accepting Medicaid,
Medicare or scif-pay?

o Without health mmsurance, 1t 18 difficult to get services anywhere for anybody unless you go io the
emergency room

& Mayo does not accept Medicare.
e Yes, Mavo 1s oftennot n the network for Medicare
o Finding a doctor m the Medicare networh takes some searchung.

o Olten switch to generic drugs o save Money.

How has the local economy affected you or your neighbors’ health?

o View high uninsured rate as being direct consequence of loss of jobs

e Those with msurance notice decrease in coverage and mncrease In prermums and co-pays

e There are a lot of people who make too much to qualify for Medicaid, but can't afford premiums.

* Most respondents have fared well, but they have noticed an 1ncrease 1n stress (€., higher cost of food,
finances troubles leading to divoree, swicide)

o Manv people strugele with job loss and/or mereased premmums
e The cost of transportation 1s Mcreasing, so the cost of healthy food 15 mmcreasng

o Health msurance has gone up The health cate st the problem, it's the msurance

How do you or your neighbors pay for your health care services?
e Private insurance (mostly employer-provided)
e Medicare

e VA

Do you think that somconc having insurance would make them go to a family doctor
more often?

e Unammous “yes”

OOAMUNITY HEALTH NEEDS ASSESSMINT Zap2 FLPORT
- 183_



APDENDILES

MAYO CLINIC — SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS

12.

13.

14.

Thinking about you, your acighbors, friends and family, what would prevent you from taking carc of
yourself and staying healthy?

o Accessibility and transportation Because there 1s no bus system, they must rely on taxis Additionally, they
must use taxs 1f they don’t have a caregiver during recovery from a procedure

¢ People do without health care because they can't get Medicaid or Medicare

» Transportation needs extend bevond getting to and from medical centers, and that’s all that JTA covers.
e Lack of insurance

¢ Tume constramnts of dual-earner family with chuldren

e Lack of time

¢ Having to hunt for service providers in vour msurance network

o Atlordability, especialiyaf the patient s voting, they sall put off sceng a doctor i chey have to pay

e The older people are more COmSCIOUS ot being healthy

Thinking again about you, your neighbors, friends and family, what influences your decision to take
care of your health? Another person, doctors, a pastor, if you have insurance, other family members,
moncy, things like that?

e What your imsurance covers

e The cost of medication

« Knowledge of health 1ssues and symptoms

¢ Knowing your body and knowing when something 1s wrong

« Social pressures from fanuly and doctors

e Personal values/emphasis on personal wellness

e Seeing others around vou getung sick and not recovermg well

e Bemng a role model and berng around (o see chuldren/grandchildren grow up

Is there anything clse that we haven’t hit on that would address the health and wellness of your

community?

o Very few people 1n the produce section at the supermarket With tume constrants, everyone makes their
way to the freezer section

e Plenty of outreach to elderly, but not screenings and prevention for parents with kids
¢ There should be more education for young famihies on things such as nutrition and preventive screenings

e One respondent acknowledged that thewr responses are based on their environment 1 a wealthy
community and are likely not an accurate reflection of the greater J acksonville communitv.

e Paperwork s compheated Suggestions ineluded making the process simpler and educatiog those who
fill 1t out

e Education ts the way to change people’s minds about what cheap tood s
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CONCLUS‘ONS

. Respondents livem a community that placcs an emphasis on regular exercise Not only do the people
encourage 1t but the built environment allows for 1t too

. For the most part, respondents felt that theil cormnmunity was safe Many lived on golf courses or n gated

commumtles

. gome feel that there ar¢ not economic opportunies, but others €€ the economic conditions 10
Jacksonville as more resthent than most other places

- Many people g0 to Mayo of urgent care centers

- Insurance coverageé dictates the services one receives, especmﬂy when 1t comes to dental care

. Cancer pabients notice the absence of alternative medicine options

- Lossof employment pawed with the increased costs associated with msurance lead people t© struggle
. The fact that Mayo does not accept Medicare came U quite often

- Time constrants, (ransportation and affordabibty (especmﬂy when qrunsured) are the major barriers

- Social relationships strongly influence decisions about health.
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JACKSONVILLE METROPOLITAN COMMUNITY BENEFIT PARTNERSHIP
BAPTIST HEALTH - SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS

L. What do people do in your community to stay healthy?
¢ Go to the gym
* Walking at local parks/at the school track
* YMCA
* Childhood 1immunizations
® Eating right and exercising

* Visit the doctor regularly for checkups

* Try to shop at health food stores, but they are expensive. Farmers’ markets are good for produce, but they

require a separate trip

* To get information, they go to seminars, recerve information from therr doctors, the Internet and from
each other

* Relax on the weekend to decrease stress

* Healthy food from gardens/markets

2. Isthis a good place to rajse children?

* There are many 1ssues with the schools (e g, lack of funding for school actvities, after-school programs,
and transportation: lack of positive reinforcement) Magnet schools are good

* Yes, dependent on the neighborhood NW Jacksonville is not a safe area to raise children

* Children with special needs don’t have many options

* It depends on the age of your child, the elementary schools are good, but the middle and high schools lose

quality, mostly due to the number of children per school

3. Do you feel there is cconomic opportunity in the community?
* The job market 1s rough, especially in the manual labor intensive jobs (1 e , construction)
® Higher education Opportunities exist with the universities
¢ Affordable housing 1s available because of all the foreclosures The problem 1s getting loans

* There 15 wide variation in answering this question because Jacksonville 1s so large, there are pockets of
good and bad

¢ There are not many small businesses They are generally tucked away and word-of-mouth 1s the only way

to find them,

* The big companies are pushing out small businesses

* Yes and no to affordable housing The housing market 1s now cheaper, but rental prices have gone up and

assisted hiving 1s not affordable

* The jobs that are available pay minimum wage and provide no benefits

4. Do you feel that your community is a safe place to live?

* The neighbors don't look out for one another And 1n neighborhoods where they do, the schools are not
safe (low security in a high-crime area)

® Overall, yes However, there are a ot of pockets of unsafe areas
* While some areas might be worse than others, some 1ssues are everywhere (1 e, sex offenders).
* Even with neighbors you can trust, you still never know when someone may try to break mto vour house

* Yes, they feel safe where they live and work, but not at the schools that their children attend Schools 1n
high-crime areas (1 ¢ | magnet schools) do not make them feel safe

® Overall, they feel safe n parks, but would not let their children go unsupervised
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BAPTIST HEALTH — SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS

e For the most part, people felt that their neighbors looked out for them
e Gateway and Regency Malls are not considered safe, while the Avenues and Town Center are.

e They feel safe at the beach because you get to know your neighbors more than 1n other areas Their
neighbors look out for them

e They feel safe at home and sometimes at school Some schools are in high-crime areas or lack the security
measures to keep danger out of the school

5. Where do vou or most of your neighbors go for health care services?

* When people don't have insurance, they go to the emergency room At Shands, they can apply for a
chinic card

® Many people also go to the Health Department, 1f they have the right paperwork.
e If you are from here, are poor, and have papers, you get Medicaid
e Private physician or urgent care center, if needed

® Wolfson 1s the hospital of choice for children They prefer Baptist hospitals for themselves, partly because
they are employed there, and partly due to proximity

¢ They do not go to the ER for non-emergency 1ssues, except one respondent who said they know someone
who does because they do not have insurance

6. Are there health services you need that are not available to you?
¢ There are resources out there, but not everybody knows about them Suggested that a guide be compiled
e If you have msurance, your needs are almost always met But without insurance, it 1s hard to get services
e Cost of medications, even with private insurance, can strain someone’s finances
e It 1s difficult to take care of a special needs child Providing everything they need 1s hard
¢ Dental services.

e Prescriptions are so expensive that you have to choose which ones to take or even choose not to take any
at all

e There 1s not any specialist care for those who do not have insurance

* Many groups said that they feel everything they need 1s covered

7. Have you personally ever expericenced any trouble with doctors accepting Medicaid or sclf-pay
(uninsured)?

® Medicaid coverage doesn’t include many doctors
® Yes; many people with disabled children have applied for Medicaid and can’t get 1t

* They were told that the hospital would help them pay their bills, but they never did, causing their credit to
take a hut. Additionally, if you do not have insurance, you must wait much longer than insured people to
see a doctor, which often times turns a minor 1ssue nto a major one

¢ Not personally, but they know that Mayo has a reputation for practices that discourage Medicaid patients
(1€, charging up front and making reimbursement difficult)

8. How do you or your neighbors pay for health care services?

e Variety of answers (e.g , employer-provided private insurance, out-of-pocket, HAS, Medicaid and
Medicare)

® Respondents acknowledged that people with insurance are more likely to go to the doctor and only go to
the emergency room if they really had to go

® Some expenses covered, then out-of-pocket

¢ They don't think having insurance would make someone go to their family doctor or ER more
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BAPTIST HEALTH - SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS

9.

10.

11.

12.

How has the local economy affected you or your neighbors” health?

e Behavioral health has suffered, due to increased stress levels

¢ Don't tend to 1ssues until they are life-threatening

o Things cost more, but wages are not increasing You start having to choose which medicines to buy
« There 15 less work, which means less money and access to insurance

e The economy has resulted m a loss of funding, so the prices for things like vaccmations from the Health
Department have gone up

e Co-pays and the cost of prescriptions have mcreased

¢ It has affected many baby-boomers because Medicare and Medicaid are getting cut

Think about you, your neighbors, friends and family members in your comniunity. What prevents
you from taking care of yourselves (or staying healthy)?

« Money (affording healthy food, cost of medication) Education about how to lLive healthy on a budget
would be helpful

e Transportation, both individual and public Gas prices are high for those with cars and public
transportation 1s not very user-friendly

e Access to good food 15 a problem (food desert)

e Not everyone 18 educated on nutrition

e Lack of insurance

¢ Time management 1ssues — work 1s time-consuming

o Self-motivation/laziness

Again, thinking about you, your neighbors, friends and family members. What influcnces your
decisions to take care of your health?

o Seeing/taking care of sick relatives

e Wanting to be around for their children

¢ Being a role model for therr children

¢ Advice from doctors

¢ Monetary mcentives for healthy Lifestyles from msurance

e Children, doctors and church members all encourage healthy choices
e Healthy peer pressure from co-workers at the hospital.

s Independence and the ability to take care of yourself

Is there anything else you'd like to tell us or talk about?
e Providing more activities for the kids
« Behavioral problems mn children.

o They would like to see a place established where immgrants and mugrant workers can go 1o get the help
they need.

¢ They like the fact that Wolfson and Nemours are next to each other
e There 1s a lot of communication technology, but very little actual communication

¢ Specialty care for people without a lot of money 1s a big 1ssue. Community meetings (such as the focus
groups) are very valuable.
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JACKSONVILLE METROPOLITAN COMMUNITY BENEFIT PARTNERSHIP
ST, VINCENT’S HEALTHCARE - SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS

1. What do people in your community do to stay healthy?
e Come to the clinic
e Eat well
e Exercise (e g , gong to the gym, walking, biking, m-home gym)
o Health information comes from many different places (e g., television, advertisements, other people)

e They would like the school playgrounds and {racks to be open more so that they don't have to drive all the
way to the park

5. 1s this a good place to raisc children? (oaly ask parent grou ps)

* N/A

3. Do you fecl thereis cconomic opportunity in the community?
¢ There are not economic opportuntties for locally owned businesses

e There 18 not an opportunty for on-the-job tramnng Most employers want someone with prior experience,
but aren't willing to tram, so gething hured 1s dafficult

e There are some educational opportuniies, if you have the qualifications 1€ high school diploma or GED

e Some do not feel there 15 affordable housing and others have expertenced the opposite

4, Do you feel your community is a safe place to live?
e Overall, ves They feel safe at home, at work, at schools, playgrounds and parks (Clay County)
« The older children make 1t unsafe for young children at the park
e No, only if you have a gun Don't feel safe iving alone (Putnam County)
e Schools are safe

¢ Neighbors do look out for each other. They (eel they have tom the rough environment

5. Where do you or most of your neighbors go for health care services?
¢ Way Free Chnic.
e Primary care physician

e There was debate over using emergency rooms for non-emergency Issues. Some argue that 1t 1sn't night
and others argue that 1t's their only choice under special circumstances {no insurance/money, odd hours
of the day)

e Famuly medical and Gamesville/Shands for emergency room care They do not use the emergency room
for non-emergency care (Putnam County)

6. Arc therc health services you nced that are not available to you?
« Dental and optical services.
« Women's health services (mammogram, pap smear)
e Behavioral health/substance abuse.

¢ Prescription medication assistance

7. Have you personally ever experienced any trouble with doctors accepting Medicaid or sclf-pay
(uninsured)?

e Yes. A couple of people had 1ssues getting an mterpreter for a deaf chuld.

e It 1s it or miss Some places turn down self-pay because patients were trymng {o get pain pills from
multiple doctors
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APDENDILES

VINCENT'S HEALTHCARE — SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS

How do you or your neighbors pay for health care services?
e Most respondents don't have msurance and pay when they can.
e They speculate that their neighbors get isurance through their employers

e Social Security and Medicare (Putnam County)

How has the local economy affected you or your neighbors’ health?
« People have high blood pressure and heart trouble from the stress

« Many people have lost ther insurance or are living on wages that do not allow them to buy insurance

Think about you, your neighbors, friends and family members in your community. What prevents
you from taking carc of yourselves (or staying healthy)?

e Money and insurance You can eXercise all you want but 1f you get sick, you're out of luck
e The cost of medicine.

e Transportation.

® Stress

e Cost of healthy foods

Again, thinking about you, your necighbors, friends and family members. What influences your
decisions to iake care of your health?

e Famuly (1 e, children and grandchildren, parents, spouses)
e “Mysell” Individual motivation to stay healthy
» Neighbors

e Doctors

is there anything elsc you'd like to tell us or talk about?
* Respondents suggested more readily available information about free and low-cost seTvices
e Also suggested a mobile dental service

¢ They would like to have a place that they can make a payment plan with a doctor

CONCLUSIONS

- Many people exercise by walking and biking More may bike if they felt like the mfrastructure
supported it

Health information comes from a variety of places, mainly television, Internet and doctors.

Overall, respondents did not feel like there was economic opportunity In any of the four areas they were
asked about

- Respondents from Clay County felt safe but those mn Putnam County did not feel safe at all. They even
mentioned that they only feel safe with a gun

Most respondents have prumary care physicians and only go to the emergency room when absolutely

necessary

Dental services were mentioned across the board Behavioral health was a concern as well

Most respondents don’t have msurance, so they pay when they can

The economy has resulted lost wages and insurance This has led to a spike in stress levels The lack
of money for health services / healthy foods and stress levels are negatively affecting people’s health

People are motivated by those around them, most frequenily children and grandchildren, as they want
1o be around to see them grow up
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Report of Independent Certified Public Accountants

The Board of Directors
Baptist Health System, Inc and Subsidiaries

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Baptist Health System,
Inc and Subsidiaries, which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of September 30, 2014
and 2013, and the related consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets and
cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial
statements

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated
financial statements in conformity with US generally accepted accounting principles, this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free of material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on
our audits We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material
misstatement

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair
presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control Accordingly, we express no such opinion An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion
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Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the consolidated financial position of Baptist Health System, Inc and
Subsidiaries at September 30, 2014 and 2013, and the consolidated results of their operations and
their cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with U S generally accepted accounting
principles

Supplementary Information

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements as a whole The consolidating detail on pages 48 through 63 is presented for purposes
of additional analysis and is not a required part of the consolidated financial statements Such
information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements
The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audits of the
consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material
respects in relation to the consolidated financial statements as a whole

é/vmt ¥ LLP

January 26, 2015
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Baptist Health System, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Balance Sheets

Assets
Curtent assets
Cash and cash equivalents

Accounts recenable. less estimated uncollectible
accounts of $89.142 1n 2014 and $81.306 1n 2013

Inventories

Prepaid expenses and other cutient assets

Current portion of assets limited as to use
Total current assets

Assets limited as to use

Internally designated tor capital improyements.

debt service and msurance reserves

Less amounts tequited to meet curtent obligations

Property. plant. and equipment. net
Investments
Other assets
Total assets

Liabilities and net assets

Curient habilities
Curtent portion of long-term debt
Accounts pavable and accrued labilities
Estimated thud-party settlements

Total curtent habilities

Long-term debt. net of curient poition
Other liabilities
Total habilities

Net assets
Uniestricted
Temporarnily restiicted
Permanently restricted
Total net assets
Total habilities and net assets

See accompanving note's

1408-1294947

(In Thousands)

September 30

2014 2013
$ 96,283 § 103.476
196,696 159.531
21,637 19.278
26,533 20414
11,094 9.215
352,243 311914
1,077,160 919.072
11,094 9.215
1,066,066 909.857
852,787 853.353
71,702 59401
103,060 87.489
3 2445858 § 2222014
$ 23,493 § 23.751
159,234 123.567
4,174 5.739
186,901 153.057
510,541 534116
196,103 142.225
893,545 829.398
1,482,970 1.342.132
30,831 26.491
38,512 23.993
1,552,313 1.392.616
3 2445858 § 2222014
-
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Baptist Health System, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Operations and Changes in Net Assets
(In Thousands)

Untestricted 1evenues and other support
Patient service 1evenues
Provision for bad debts
Net patient service 1evenues less provision tor bad debts
Other 1evenues
Net assets released tiom testiictions used tor operations
Total untestricted 1evenues and other support

Opetrating expenses
Salaiies and benetits
Professional fees
Supplies
Interest
Depieciation and amottization
Other expenses
Total operating expenses
Income from operations

Nonoperating gains
Investment income
Other. net

Total nonoperating gains

Excess of tevenues and £a1Nns OV el EXPenses

Continued on next page

1408-1294947

Year Ended September 30

2014 2013
1,366,092 $ 1.307.654
(77,967) (124.168)
1,288,125 1.183.186
57,731 57.128
4,098 3.748
1,349,954 1244062
684,400 660.991
39,380 33.283
245237 226.701
8,557 9.026
84,649 77.774
182,990 154.968
1,245,213 1.162.743
104,741 81319
80,010 74.829
6,688 8.935
86,698 83.764
191,439 1635.083



Baptist Health System, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Operations and Changes in Net Assets (continued)

(In Thousands)

Unrestricted net assets
Excess of revenues and gains over expenses
Other changes n unrestricted net assets
Change- related to pension and executiy e compensation
other than period costs
Contributions tor the purchase of properts . plant. and equipment
Transfers to temporarily restricted net assets
Net assets released from restrictions used for the purchase
of property . plant. and equipment
Unrealized (loss) gamn on interest rate swap agreements
Other. including net asset transters trom BHS to BHSF for
endowment matchig progam
Increase 1n unrestricted net assets

Temporanly restricted net assets
Restricted contributions
Investment gain
Tranfer from unrestricted net assets
Transfer of mvestment gains from
permanently restricted net assets
Net assets released trom restrictions
Net asset transfers trom BHS to BHSF
Increase 1n temporarily restricted net assets

Permanently restricted net assets
Contributions
Investment gain
Tranwfer of mvestment gains to
temporarily restricted net assets
Net asset transters trom BHS to BHSF for endowment
matching program
Increase in permanently restricted net assets

Increase n net assets
Net assets. beginning of vear

Net assets. end of vy ear

See accompanving notes

1408-1294947

Year Ended September 30

2014 2013
$ 191439 § 165.083
(45,905) 95.629
54 158
)] -
2,613 5.434
(74 1.627
(7,280) (571)
140,838 267.360
7,322 6.990
792 847
9 _
2,923 2.861
(6,711) (9.182)
5 )
1,310 1512
8,199 10.671
2,923 2.861
(2,923) (2.861)
6,320 _
14,519 10.671
159,697 279.543
1,392,616 1.113.073
$ 1532313 $ 1392616



Baptist Health System, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(In Thousands)

Year Ended September 30
2014 2013

Operating activities
Change 1n net assets S 159,697 $ 279.543
Adjustments to reconcile change 1n net assets to net cash

provided by operating activities

Depreciation and amortization 84,649 77.774
Interest. dividends. and net gains on 1ny estments (80,010) (74.829)
Change 1n tair value of interest rate swaps (2,005) (10.325)
Change- related to pension and executiy e compensation

other than period costs 45,905 (93.629)
Prov1sion for bad debts 77,967 124,468
Loss on sale of equipment 21 20
Contributions tor the purchase ot properts .

plant. and equipment &4 (138)
Restricted contributions and ny estment income recen ed (19.236) (21.369)
Increase m accounts recen able (115,132) (116.326)
Increase m v entories and other current assets (8,478) (4.044)
Increase 1n accounts payv able and accrued liabilities 35,667 4.830
Decrease n estimated third-party settlements (1,565) (686)
Decrease n other liabilities (3,932) (15.496)

Net cash provided by operating activities 173,494 147.773

Iny esting activities

Proceeds trom sales and maturities of assets limited to use classified 235,102 192.767
as trading
Purchases of assets limited to use classified as trading (315,102) (167.767)
Proceeds from sales and maturities of v estments classitied as trading 10,016 21.811
Purchases of investments classitied as trading (16,987) (34.783)
Purchases of property . plant. and equipment (81,342) (126.985)
Increase m other assets (7,914) (11.562)
Net cash used 1n investing activities (176,227) (126.519)

Continued on next page
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Baptist Health System, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (continued)

(In Thousands)

Financing activities

[ssuance of long-term debt

Repayments of long-term debt

Contributions tor the purchase of properts . plant. and equipment
Restricted contributions and mv estment mcome recern ed

Net cash (used n) provided by tfinancing activities

Net (decrease) increase m cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents. beginning of v ear

Cash and cash equivalents. end of year

Supplemental disclosure of cash flon information
Cash paid tor mterest

See accompanving notes

1408-1294947

Year Ended September 30

2014 2013

$ - $ 14.000

(23,750) (23.039)

54 158

19,236 21.369

(4,460) 12.488

(7,193) 33.742

103,476 69.734

S 96,283 $ 103.476
$ 8033 _$ 8402
7



Baptist Health System, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Dollars in Thousands)

September 30, 2014

1. Organization and Mission

Baptist Health System, Inc (the Parent)is a tax-exempt parent holding company located in
Jacksonville, Florida, whose primary purpose is to direct the affairs of a multi-entity health care
system (BHS), which includes the following subsidiaries

Southern Baptist Hospital of Florida, Inc (SBHF) - a tax-exempt organization that
operates two acute care hospitals, Baptist Medical Center — Jacksonville (BMCJ) and
Baptist Medical Center — South (BMCS), and an emergency care center, Baptist
Emergency Center Clay (BECC) The two hospitals have 676 and 225 licensed beds,
respectively

Baptist Medical Center of the Beaches, Inc (BMCB) - a tax-exempt, 146-bed acute
care hospital

Baptist Medical Center of Nassau, Inc (BMCN)- a tax-exempt, 62-bed acute
care hospital

Baptist Health Properties, Inc (BHP) — a tax-exempt real estate holding company

Baptist Health Ambulatory Services, Inc (ASI)— a tax-exempt entity that provides
ancillary health care services and health screenings

Pavilion Health Services, Inc (PHS) — a taxable entity that provides various health care
and related support services such as retail pharmaceutical services, home infusion
services, and primary care services

Baptist Health System Foundation, Inc (BHSF) — a public foundation with the primary
purpose of raising funds to support the activities of the tax-exempt members of BHS

SBHF, BMCB, and BMCN are collectively referred to as the Medical Centers The Parent is the
sole member or owner of each of the above affiliates and controls the multi-entity structure
through appointment by the Board of Directors (the Board) and approval of all major
transactions

1408-1294947 8



Baptist Health System, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
(Dollars m Thousands)

1. Organization and Mission (continued)

SBHF, BMCB, BMCN, BHP, and ASI comprise the Obligated Group under the terms of a
Master Trust Indenture between The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N A and the
Obligated Group, which was issued pursuant to the Consolidated and Amended Trust Indenture
dated as of December 1, 2011

Operating and Nonoperating Activities

BHS’s primary mission is to meet the health care needs in the region through an integrated
network of affiliated organizations BHS’s affiliated organizations are committed to providing a
broad range of general and specialized health care services, including inpatient primary care,
outpatient services, and other health care services Activities directly associated with the
furtherance of this purpose are considered operating activities Other activities that result in gains
or losses unrelated to BHS’s primary mission are considered nonoperating activities

Charity Care

BHS accepts patients regardless of their ability to pay A patient is classified as a charity patient
in accordance with certain established policies of BHS Because BHS does not pursue collection
of amounts determined to qualify as charity care, such amounts are not reported as revenue BHS
maintains records to identify and monitor the level of charity care it provides The records
include the amount of charges forgone for services and supplies furnished under its charity care
policy and the estimated cost incurred to provide those services and supplies BHS estimates its
cost of charity care using its cost accounting system to determine the cost-to-charge ratio for
charity patients The estimated cost of care provided to charity patients was $27.918 and $27,563
for the years ended September 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively

2. Significant Accounting Policies
Principles of Consolidation
The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Parent, SBHF,

BMCB, BMCN, BHP, ASI, PHS, and BHSF Significant transactions between entities have been
eliminated
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Baptist Health System, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
(Dollars m Thousands)

2. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Use of Estimates

Management has made estimates that affect the reported amounts of certain assets, liabilities,
revenues, and expenses Actual results could differ from those estimates

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include amounts deposited in operating accounts and cash invested in
highly liquid instruments, with a maturity of three months or less when acquired, excluding
amounts limited as to use by Board designation or other arrangements under trust agreements

Concentrations of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject BHS to concentrations of credit risk consist
principally of cash and cash equivalents and derivatives BHS invests its cash in credit
instruments of highly rated financial institutions Four institutions hold 100% of the total cash
and cash equivalents as of September 30, 2014 and 2013, and the derivative agreements have
been entered into with five institutions as of September 30, 2014 and 2013

Assets Limited as to Use

Assets limited as to use primarily include assets held by a trustee which have been set aside by
the Board for future capital improvements, debt service, and insurance reserves, over which the
Board retains control and may, at its discretion, subsequently use for other purposes Amounts
required to meet current malpractice and workers’ compensation liabilities of BHS are reported
as current assets

Investments and Investment Income

Investments are carried at fair value at the consolidated balance sheet dates Investment income
(including realized gains and losses on investments) is included in nonoperating gains unless the
income or loss is restricted by donor or law Unrealized gains and losses on investments are
included in the excess of revenues and gains over expenses, as substantially all of BHS’s
investment portfolio is classified as trading

1408-1294947 10



Baptist Health System, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
(Dollars m Thousands)

2. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Property, Plant, and Equipment

Property, plant, and equipment are stated at cost or, if donated, at fair value at the date of the gift
Depreciation is determined on the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the
related assets As of September 30, 2014, BHS had open construction commitments totaling
$13,977 for construction projects, which are included in construction-in-progress in Note 4

Deferred Compensation

PHS participates in the Pavilion Health Services, Inc Nonqualified Deferred Compensation Plan
(the Plan) The purpose of the Plan is to retain quality personnel by allowing them to defer
compensation to a later date or upon their death or disability The Plan assets are equal to the
Plan liabilities and were $55,126 and $41,299 at September 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively

Excess of Revenues and Gains over Expenses

The accompanying consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets include
excess of revenues and gains over expenses Changes in unrestricted net assets, which are
excluded from the excess of revenues and gains over expenses, consistent with industry practice,
include changes related to pension and executive compensation other than period costs,
unrealized gains/losses on certain interest rate swap agreements, contributions of long-lived
assets including assets acquired using contributions which by donor restriction were to be used
for the purposes of acquiring such assets, and matching contributions from the Parent for the
endowment matching program

Electronic Health Record Payments

The American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 included provisions for implementing
health information technology under the Health Information Technology for Economic and
Clinical Health Act (HITECH) The provisions were designed to increase the use of electronic
health record (EHR) technology and establish the requirements for a Medicare and Medicaid
incentive payment program beginning in 2011 for eligible providers that adopt and meaningfully
use certified EHR technology Eligibility for the annual Medicare incentive payments is
dependent on providers demonstrating meaningful use of EHR technology in each period over a
four-year period Initial Medicaid incentive payments are available to providers that adopt,

1408-1294947 11



Baptist Health System, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
(Dollars m Thousands)

2. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

implement, or upgrade certified EHR technology Providers must also demonstrate meaningful
use of such technology in subsequent years to qualify for additional Medicaid incentive
programs For the years ended September 30, 2014 and 2013, BHS has recorded $441 and
$1,762, respectively, in Medicaid incentive payments and $6,315 and $7,431, respectively, in
Medicare incentive payments in other operating revenue BHS’s attestation of compliance with
the meaningful use criteria will be subject to audit by the federal government or its designee
Additionally, Medicare EHR incentive payments received are subject to retrospective adjustment
upon final settlement of the applicable cost report from which payments were calculated

Adoption of New Accounting Pronouncements

In October 2012, the FASB issued ASU 2012-05 Not-for-Profit Entities: Classification of the
Sale Proceeds of Donated Fmancial Assets in the Statement of Cash Flows. ASU 2012-05
requires a not-for-profit to classify cash receipts from the sale of donated financial assets
consistently with cash donations received in the statement of cash flows if those cash receipts
were from the sale of donated financial assets that, upon receipt, were directed without any not-
for-profit, imposed limitations for sale and were converted nearly immediately into cash
Accordingly, the cash receipts from the sale of those financial assets should be classified as cash
inflows from operating activities, unless the donor restricted the use of the contributed resources
to long-term purposes, in which case those cash receipts should be classified as cash flows from
financing activities Otherwise, cash receipts from the sale of donated financial assets should be
classified as cash flows from investing activities The amendments in the ASU are effective for
fiscal years and interim periods within those years, beginning after June 15, 2013 BHS adopted
ASU 2012-05 effective October 1, 2013 Management has determined there is no material
impact of the new guidance on BHS’s consolidated financial statements

In July 2012, the FASB issued ASU 2012-02, Testing Indefinite-Lived Intangible Assets for
Impamrment. Under this guidance, an entity has the option to first assess qualitative factors to
determine whether the existence of events and circumstances indicates that it is more likely than
not that indefinite-lived intangible assets are impaired If an entity concludes that it is not more
likely than not that impairment has occurred, then the entity is not required to take further action
However, if an entity concludes otherwise, then it is required to determine the fair value of the
indefinite-lived intangible assets and perform the quantitative impairment test in accordance with
existing accounting guidance The guidance is effective for fiscal years and interim periods
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Baptist Health System, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
(Dollars m Thousands)

2. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

beginning after December 15, 2012 BHS adopted ASU 2012-02 effective October 1, 2013 As a
result of adopting this standard, management performed a qualitative assessment and determined
it is not more likely that not an impairment has occurred, thus, requiring no further action

In December 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011-11, Disclosures about Offsetting Assets and
Liabilines. Offsetting (netting) assets and liabilities is an important aspect of presentation in
financial statements The differences in offsetting requirements of U S generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP) compared to International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
account for significant differences in the amounts presented in statements of financial position as
reported under each set of accounting requirements These differences reduce the comparability
of statements of financial position ASU 2011-11 requires disclosure about offsetting and related
arrangements to enable financial statement users to understand the effect of those arrangements
on financial position In January 2013, the FASB issued ASU 2013-01, Clarifying the Scope of
Disclosures about Offsetting Assets and Liabilities. The amendments in ASU 2013-01 and 2011-
11 are effective for fiscal years beginning on or after January 1, 2013, and interim periods within
those annual periods BHS adopted ASU 2013-01 and 2011-11 effective October 1, 2013
Management has determined there is no material impact of the new guidance on BHS’s
consolidated financial statements

Prospective Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”), in conjunction with the
International Accounting Standards Board, issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”)
No 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers The objective of this ASU is to
significantly enhance comparability and clarify principles of revenue recognition practices across
entities, industries, jurisdictions, and capital markets For a not-for-profit entity that has issued,
or is a conduit bond obligor for, securities that are traded, listed, or quoted on an exchange or an
over-the-counter market, the amendments in this ASU are effective for annual reporting periods
beginning after December 15, 2016, including interim reporting periods within that reporting
period Early application is not permitted The standard can be adopted either retrospectively to
each prior reporting period presented or as a cumulative effect adjustment as of the date of
adoption BHS is currently evaluating the impact of adopting this new guidance on its financial
position and results of operations and will adopt the provisions of this statement in fiscal 2018
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Baptist Health System, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
(Dollars m Thousands)

2. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Net Patient Service Revenues, Accounts Receivable, and Provision for Bad Debts

Patient service revenues are reported at estimated net realizable amounts for services rendered
BHS recognizes patient service revenues associated with patients who have third-party payor
coverage on the basis of contractual rates for the services rendered For uninsured patients that
do not qualify for charity care, revenue is recognized on the basis of discounted rates in
accordance with BHS’ policy

Patient service revenues are reduced by the provision for bad debts and accounts receivable are
reduced by an allowance for uncollectible accounts These amounts are based on management’s
assessment of historical and expected net collections for each major payor source, considering
business and economic conditions, trends in health care coverage and other collection indicators
Management regularly reviews collections data by major payor sources in evaluating the
sufficiency of the allowance for uncollectible accounts On the basis of historical experience, a
significant portion of BHS’ self-pay patients will be unable or unwilling to pay for the services
provided Thus, BHS records a significant provision for bad debts in the period services are
provided related to self-pay patients For receivables associated with patients who have third-
party coverage, BHS analyzes contractually due amounts and provides an allowance for
uncollectible accounts and a provision for bad debts, if necessary Accounts receivable are
written off after collection efforts have been followed in accordance with BHS’ policies

For all patients other than charity patients, patient service revenues, net of contractual allowances
and self-pay discounts and before the provision for bad debts, recognized from major payor
sources is as follows

Year Ended September 30

2014 2013
Third-party payors. net of contracted adjustments $ 1,309,414 $ 1.240.842
Self-pay patients. net of discounts 56,678 66.812

$ 1,366,092 § 1.307.654
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Baptist Health System, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
(Dollars m Thousands)

2. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

BHS has determined, based on an assessment at the reporting-entity level, that patient service
revenues are primarily recorded prior to assessing the patient’s ability to pay and as such, the
entire provision for bad debts is recorded as a deduction from patient service revenues in the
accompanying consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets

Significant concentrations of patient accounts receivable, after bad debt, due from payors at
September 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively, include 22% and 22% from the Medicare program,
13% and 9% from state Medicaid programs, 58% and 60% in each year from contracts with
other third parties, and 7% and 9% from self-pay patients BHS grants credit without collateral to
their patients, most of who are local residents and are insured under third-party payor
agreements

During the years ended September 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively, approximately 24% and 24%
of net patient service revenues were received under the Medicare program, 9% and 7% under
state Medicaid programs, 63% and 64% from contracts with other third parties, and 4% and 5%
from self-pay patients In addition, $501,808 and $462,812 of net patient service revenues were
derived from two third-party payors during the years ended September 30, 2014 and 2013,
respectively

Laws and regulations governing the Medicare and Medicaid programs are extremely complex
and subject to interpretation As a result, there is at least a reasonable possibility that recorded
estimates will change by a material amount in the near term Changes in the Medicare and
Medicaid programs and the reduction of funding levels could have an adverse impact on BHS

BHS is subject to retroactive revenue adjustments due to future audits, reviews and
investigations Retroactive adjustments are considered in the recognition of revenue on an
estimated basis in the period the related services are rendered, and such amounts are adjusted in
future periods as adjustments become known or as years are no longer subject to such audits,
reviews and investigations During the years ended September 30, 2014 and 2013, net patient
service revenues increased by $7,718 and $4,820, respectively, due to changes in estimated prior
year settlements
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Baptist Health System, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
(Dollars m Thousands)

2. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Trade Receivables

Trade accounts receivable have both a contractual maturity of one year or less and arise from the
sale of goods or services Accounts are reviewed monthly and deemed uncollectible after 365
days and subsequently written off

Functional Expenses

BHS does not present expense information by functional classification because its resources and
activities are primarily related to providing health care services Further, since BHS receives
substantially all of its resources from providing health care services in a manner similar to a
business enterprise, other indicators contained in these consolidated financial statements are
considered important in evaluating how well management has discharged its
stewardship responsibilities

Inventories

Inventories are stated at lower of cost (principally determined by the weighted-average method)
or market

Income Taxes

The Parent, SBHF, BMCB, BMCN, BHP, ASI, and BHSF are not-for-profit corporations and are
exempt from federal income taxes under Section 501(a)as organizations described in
Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and are exempt from state
income taxes pursuant to Florida Statute Chapter 220 13 PHS is a taxable corporation and files
federal, Florida, and Georgia income tax returns Tax-related interest and penalties are included
in other expense on the accompanying consolidated statements of operations and changes in net
assets Income taxes related to PHS are not material to BHS

With respect to its for-profit entity as well as any unrelated business income generated at the tax-
exempt entities, BHS records income taxes using the liability method, under which deferred tax
assets and liabilities are determined based on the differences between the financial accounting
and tax bases of assets and liabilities Deferred tax assets or liabilities at the end of each period
are determined using the currently enacted tax rate expected to apply to taxable income in the
period that the deferred tax asset or liability is expected to be realized or to be settled
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Baptist Health System, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
(Dollars m Thousands)

2. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Loan Issue Costs

The costs incurred in connection with the issuance of the various Hospital Revenue Bonds
(see Note 7) are being amortized over the term of the related indebtedness on the effective
interest method

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Goodwill and other intangible assets, included in other assets, consist principally of cost in
excess of the net book value of purchased businesses, internally developed software, medical
records, and purchased provider contracts and treatment protocols Goodwill is not amortized but
is reviewed annually for impairment or more frequently if impairment indicators arise If such
indicators are present, BHS uses projections of future discounted cash flows and other
procedures to determine whether the entity’s estimated fair value is less than its carrying amount,
and, if so, BHS recognizes an impairment loss based on the excess of the carrying amount of the
goodwill over its fair value Intangible assets with a finite useful life are amortized on a straight-
line basis over their useful life Intangible assets with an indefinite life are tested annually for
impairment

Donor-Restricted Gifts

Donor-restricted gifts and endowments are reported as either temporarily or permanently
restricted support if they are received with donor stipulations that limit the use of the donated
assets or are subject to time restrictions BHSF’s policy provides for the establishment of
endowments by donors who wish to provide a permanent source of funding for equipment,
operations, and charity care at BHS affiliates The policy provides for investment of endowment
gifts by the Foundation for long-term growth of the endowment and limits the amount to be
disbursed annually from these investment earnings When a donor restriction expires (that is,
when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished) temporarily
restricted net assets are reclassified as unrestricted net assets and reported in the accompanying
statements of activities as released from restrictions Donor-restricted contributions whose
restrictions are met within the same year as received are reported as unrestricted contributions in
the accompanying financial statements
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Baptist Health System, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
(Dollars m Thousands)

2. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

BHS participates in an endowment matching program in which they match donor contributions
to endowments on a tiered basis Of the net assets transferred, the matching contributions
transferred from BHS unrestricted net assets to Foundation restricted net assets for the years
ending September 30, 2014 and 2013 are $6,320 and $0, respectively The amounts transferred
by BHS for matching contributions are permanently restricted net assets as required to match
external donor amounts as outlined in the donors’ contribution agreements

Temporarily Restricted Net Assets

Temporarily restricted net assets are primarily available for operations and to purchase
equipment, renovations, and buildings Temporarily restricted net assets are available for the
following purposes or periods

September 30
2014 2013
Hospital programs $ 16,331 §$ 12.793
Education and research 5491 4.869
Property and equipment 4,796 5.204
Communuity Outreach 3,095 2.528
Other program sery 1ces 1,074 1.053
Future time perods 44 44
$ 30,831 $ 26491

Permanently Restricted Net Assets

Permanently restricted net assets are those preserved by donor intent to provide a permanent
source of investment income for the operations of the Medical Centers’ adult and children’s
hospital divisions Permanently restricted net assets are restricted to

September 30
2014 2013
Hospital programs $ 32429 $ 20.870
Education and research 3,581 1.074
Community outreach 1,841 1.629
Other program sery 1ces 552 420
Property and equipment 109 —
$ 38,512 $ 23.993
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Baptist Health System, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
(Dollars m Thousands)

2. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been made to the 2013 financial statements to be consistent with
the 2014 presentation These reclassifications had no effect on net assets previously reported

3. Investments and Assets Limited as to Use
Assets Limited as to Use

The composition of assets limited as to use is presented below

September 30
2014 2013
Internally designated for capital improvements. debt seryice.
and nsurance reser s
Equity mutual funds
Domestic $ 408,032 $ 320341
International 146,630 127.083
Fixed-mcome mutual funds
Domestic 491,546 443 874
International 30,457 27.116
Interest recers able 495 658

$ 1,077,160 $ 919.072

Investment return is summarized as follows

Year End September 30

2014 2013
Interest. dividends. and realized gamns $ 43,714 $ 43.335
Net unrealized gains on iy estments reported at fair value 40,011 35.202
Total v estment return $ 83,725 § 78.537
Included 1n nonoperating gains $ 80,010 $ 74.829
Reported separatels as increase in restricted net assets 3,715 3.708
Total 1nyestment return $ 83,725 $ 78.537
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Baptist Health System, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
(Dollars m Thousands)

3. Investments and Assets Limited as to Use (continued)

The amount of net unrealized gains for investments and assets limited as to use still held as of

September 30, 2014, is $156,211
Investments

Investments include the following

September 30
2014 2013

Equity securities $ 182 3 149
Equity mutual funds

Domestic 29,513 22.590

International 11,425 9611
Fixed-income mutual funds

Domestic 20,833 17,637

International 2,380 2,056
Cash and cash equivalents 7,319 7.292
Interest receivable 50 66

$ 71,702 $ 59,401

4. Property, Plant, and Equipment

BHS had property, plant, and equipment less accumulated depreciation as follows

September 30
2014 2013
Land and improvements $ 56,296 $ 54,566
Building and equipment 1,639,567 1,577,767
1,695,863 1,632,333
Less accumulated depreciation (881,459) (801,440)
814,404 830,893
Construction-in-progress 38,383 22,460

$ 852,787 $ 853,353
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Baptist Health System, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
(Dollars m Thousands)

5. Other Assets

Other assets consist of the following

September 30
2014 2013
Long-term pledge receivables $ 7,201 $ 5,714
Goodwill and intangible assets 13,052 15,553
Equity investment in Solantic 18,466 19,159
Deferred compensation 55,126 41,299
Beneficial interest in trust held by others 719 364
Other 8,496 5,400
$ 103,060 $ 87,489
6. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets
BHS’s intangible assets are summarized as follows
September 30, 2014
Accumulated
Gross Amortization Net
Intangible assets subject to amortization
Internally developed software $ 10,127 $ (4,161) $ 5,966
Medical records 2,452 (1,454) 998
Noncompete agreements 1,667 (1,667) -
Other 3,406 (2,470) 936
Intangible assets not subject to
amortization (indefinite life)
Goodwill 3,674 - 3,674
Other 1,400 - 1,400
Trade name 78 — 78
$ 22,804 $ (9,752) $ 13,052
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Baptist Health System, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
(Dollars m Thousands)

6. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets (continued)

September 30, 2013
Accumulated
Gross Amortization Net
Intangible assets subject to amortization
Internally developed software $ 10,127 $ (2,714) $ 7,413
Medical records 2,356 (1,003) 1,353
Noncompete agreements 1,667 (1,667) -
Other 3,406 (1,771) 1,635
Intangible assets not subject to
amortization (indefinite life)
Goodwill 3,674 - 3,674
Other 1,400 - 1,400
Trade name 78 — 78
$ 22,708 $ (7,155) $ 15,553

Amortization expense related to computer software costs was $1,447 and $1,469 for the years

ended September 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively

Total amortization expense related to

intangible assets was $2,597 and $2,607 for the years ended September 30, 2014 and 2013,
respectively Expected amortization expense for the next five years is as follows

2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
Thereafter
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$ 2,598
2,015
1,580
1,207
459
41

7,900
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6. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets (continued)
The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill are as follows

Year Ended September 30

2014 2013
Goodwill balance, beginning of period $ 3,674 3 3,674
Goodwill acquired during the year - -
Goodwill adjusted during the year - -
Goodwill impaired during the year — —
Goodwill balance, end of period $ 3,674 $ 3.674

7. Long-Term Debt

The Medical Centers, BHP, and ASI comprise an Obligated Group and have certain joint and
several liabilities under a Master Trust Indenture to make all payments required with respect to
obligations under the Master Trust Indenture, which totaled $534,034 at September 30, 2014
The Master Trust Indenture requires certain covenants and reporting requirements to be met by
the Obligated Group

The Series 2003 A, Series 2004, and Series 2007C bank held variable-rate extendable notes bear
interest at a variable index interest rate of 67% of the 30-day London Interbank Offered Rate
(LIBOR), plus 68 basis points The initial interest rate period expires December 1, 2016, at
which time the Series 2003A, Series 2004, and Series 2007C notes may operate in another bank
purchase mode or be subject to mandatory tender for purchase Upon mandatory tender for
purchase, the Obligated Group may convert to another available interest rate mode Interest is
payable quarterly

During March 2012, May 2012, August 2012, and December 2012, the Obligated Group issued
$60,000, $16,000, $10,000, and $14,000, respectively, of Jacksonville Health Facilities
Authority Hospital Revenue Extendable Notes, Series 2012A, 2012B, 2012C, and 2012D
(collectively, the Series 2012 Notes) The proceeds of the Series 2012 Notes were used to
finance capital expenditures for planning, developing, constructing, and equipping SBHF and
BMCB Principal payments of the Series 2012 Notes are due in varying amounts from
August 15, 2014 to August 15, 2037
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7. Long-Term Debt (continued)

The Series 2001 and Series 2007D bank held variable rate extendable notes bear interest at a
variable index interest rate of 70% of 30 day LIBOR, plus 75-basis points The margin for
calculating the interest rate can change depending on the Obligated Group’s credit rating The
initial interest rate period expires July 1, 2017, at which time Series 2001 and Series 2007D notes
may operate in another bank purchase mode or be subject to mandatory tender for purchase
Upon mandatory tender for purchase, the Obligated Group may convert to another available
interest rate mode Interest is payable monthly

The Series 2003C bank held fixed rate extendable note bears interest at a fixed bank rate of
1 99% The initial interest rate period expires August 15, 2019, at which time the Series 2003C
note may operate in another bank purchase mode or be subject to mandatory tender for purchase
Upon mandatory tender for purchase, the Obligated Group may convert to another available
interest rate mode Interest is payable monthly

The Series 2003B bank held variable rate extendable note bears interest at a variable index
interest rate of 74% of 30-day LIBOR, plus 75 25 basis points The initial interest rate period
expires September 4, 2017, at which time the Series 2003B note may operate in another bank
purchase mode or be subject to mandatory tender for purchase Upon mandatory tender for
purchase, the Obligated Group may convert to another available interest rate mode Interest is
payable monthly

The Series 2007B and Series 2007E bank held variable rate extendable notes bear interest at a
variable index interest rate of 75% of 30-day LIBOR, plus 82 basis points The initial interest
rate period expires September 4, 2019, at which time Series 2007B and Series 2007E notes may
operate in bank purchase mode or be subject to mandatory tender for purchase Upon mandatory
tender for purchase, the Obligated Group may convert to another available interest rate mode
Interest is payable monthly

During June 2010, November 2010, and December 2010, the Obligated Group issued $54,000,
$7,000, and $14,000, respectively, of Jacksonville Health Facilities Authority Hospital Revenue
Extendable Notes, Series 2010A, 2010B, and 2010C (collectively, the Series 2010 Notes) The
proceeds of the Series 2010 Notes were used to finance capital expenditures for planning,
developing, constructing, and equipping SBHF and BMCB The margin for calculating the
interest rate for Series 2010C can change based on the Obligated Group’s credit rating Principal
payments of the Series 2010 Notes are due in varying amounts from August 15, 2013 to
August 15, 2035
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7. Long-Term Debt (continued)

Subsequent to the fiscal year end, on October 17, 2014 the Obligated Group extended the
mandatory tender dates of the Series 2010A and Series 2010C The mandatory tender date for
Series 2010A was extended to September 30, 2017 and bears interest at a variable index interest
rate of 65 01% of 30 day LIBOR, plus 81 basis points The mandatory tender date for Series
2010C was extended to June 24, 2017 and bears interest at a variable index interest rate of
65 01% of 30 day LIBOR, plus 72 5 basis points For Series 2010C, the margin for calculating
the interest rate can change depending on the borrower’s debt rating

Subsequent to the fiscal year end, on October 15, 2014, the Obligated Group amended and
restated Hospital Revenue Note, Series 2009 The Series 2009 note bears interest at a variable
index interest rate of 65% of 30 day LIBOR, plus 157 basis points Principal payments of the
Series 2009 note are due in varying amounts from November 2, 2009 to October 2, 2016 Interest
is payable monthly

During fiscal 2012, the Obligated Group entered into interest rate swap agreements (Series
2012A and 2012B swaps), which expire on August 15, 2022 and August 15, 2019, respectively
The Obligated Group agreed to exchange, effective March 26, 2012, and March 29, 2012, the
receipt of a variable interest rate payment for the payment of a fixed interest rate payment The
fixed rates for the Series 2012A and Series 2012B swaps are 2 50% and 2 25%, respectively The
variable rate payment is based on a percentage of LIBOR, which is reset monthly The variable
and fixed payments are calculated on a combined notional amount The Series 2012A swaps had
a notional amount as of September 30, 2014 and 2013, of $22,800 and $23,600, respectively
The Series 2012B swaps had a notional amount as of September 30, 2014 and 2013, of $18,300
and $18,900, respectively The differential to be paid or received is accrued as the variable
interest rate changes and is recognized in interest expense The related amount payable to or
receivable from the counterparty is included in other liabilities or other assets, respectively The
Obligated Group recognizes the change in the fair value of the agreements within unrestricted net
assets, as the agreements have been designated as effective hedges under ASC 815, Dervatives
and Hedgmg Included in unrestricted net assets are the unrealized gains/losses on the Series
2012A and Series 2012B interest rate swap agreements The Series 2012A had an unrealized loss
of $117 for the year ended September 30, 2014 and an unrealized gain of $1,040 for the year
ended September 30, 2013 The Series 2012B had unrealized gains of $43 and $587 for the years
ended September 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively
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7. Long-Term Debt (continued)

The fair value of the Series 2012A swaps at September 30, 2014 and 2013, is $(235) and $(118),
respectively The fair value of the Series 2012B swaps at September 30, 2014 and 2013, is $(57)
and $(100), respectively The amounts represent the amount the Obligated Group would have to
pay to the counterparty should the agreements be terminated and are included in other liabilities
in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets

During fiscal 2009, the Obligated Group entered into an interest rate swap agreement (Series
2001 swap), which expires on August 15, 2021, to convert its Series 2001 bonds from variable
rate refunding debt into fixed interest rate debt The Obligated Group agreed to exchange,
effective June 11, 2009, the receipt of a variable interest rate payment for the payment of a fixed
interest rate payment The fixed rate for the Series 2001 swap is 2 75% The variable rate
payment is based on a percentage of LIBOR, which is reset weekly The variable and fixed
payments are calculated on a combined notional amount as of September 30, 2014 and 2013, of
$21,690 and $24,370, respectively The differential to be paid or received is accrued as the
variable interest rate changes and is recognized in other expenses The related amount payable to
or receivable from the counterparty is included in other liabilities or other assets, respectively
The Obligated Group recognizes the change in the fair value of this agreement within the excess
of revenues and gains over expenses, as this agreement has not been designated as an effective
hedge under ASC 815 Included in nonoperating gains are $442 and $1,038 in unrealized gains
related to the Series 2001 swap for the years ended September 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively

The fair value of the Series 2001 swap at September 30, 2014 and 2013, is $(1,256) and
$(1,698), respectively The amounts represent the amount the Obligated Group would have to
pay to the counterparty should the agreement be terminated and are included in other liabilities in
the accompanying consolidated balance sheets

During fiscal 2009, the Obligated Group entered into an interest rate swap agreement (Series
2007B swap), which expires on August 15, 2023, to convert its Series 2007B bonds from
variable rate refunding debt to fixed interest rate debt The Obligated Group agreed to exchange,
effective June 11, 2009, the receipt of a variable interest rate payment for the payment of a fixed
interest rate payment The fixed rate for the Series 2007B swap is 2 8% The variable rate
payment is based on a percentage of LIBOR, which is reset weekly The variable and fixed
payments are calculated on a combined notional amount as of September 30, 2014 and 2013, of
$21,525 and $23.,675, respectively The differential to be paid or received is accrued as the
variable interest rate changes and is recognized in other expenses The related amount payable to
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7. Long-Term Debt (continued)

or receivable from the counterparty is included in other liabilities or other assets, respectively
The Obligated Group recognizes the change in the fair value of this agreement within the excess
of revenues and gains over expenses, as this agreement has not been designated as an effective
hedge under ASC 815 Included in nonoperating gains is $374 and $1,128 of unrealized gains
related to the Series 2007B swap for the years ended September 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively

The fair value of the Series 2007B swap at September 30, 2014 and 2013, is $(1,387) and
$(1,761), respectively The amounts represent the amount the Obligated Group would have to
pay to the counterparty should the agreements be terminated and are included in other liabilities
in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets

During the year ended September 30, 2006, the Obligated Group entered into forward interest
rate swap agreements (Series 2007CDE swaps), which expire on August 15, 2027, to convert its
Series 2007CDE bonds from variable rate refunding debt into a fixed interest rate debt The
Obligated Group agreed to exchange, effective August 15, 2007, receipt of a variable interest
rate payment for the payment of a fixed interest rate payment The fixed rate for the Series
2007CDE swaps is 3 65% The variable rate payment is based on a percentage of LIBOR, which
is reset weekly The variable and fixed payments are calculated on a combined notional amount
as of September 30, 2014 and 2013, of $87,900 and $93,925, respectively The differential to be
paid or received is accrued as the variable interest rate changes and is recognized in other
expenses The related amount payable to or receivable from the counterparty is included in other
liabilities or other assets, respectively The Obligated Group recognizes the change in the fair
value of these agreements within the excess of revenues and gains over expenses, as these
agreements have not been designated as effective hedges under ASC 815 Included in other
nonoperating gains is $1,263 and $6,532 in unrealized gains related to the Series 2007CDE
swaps for the years ended September 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively

The fair value of the Series 2007CDE swaps at September 30, 2014 and 2013, is $(11,835) and
$(13,098), respectively The amounts represent the amount the Obligated Group would have to
pay to the counterparty should the agreements be terminated, and are included in other liabilities
in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets
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7. Long-Term Debt (continued)

BHS was obligated under long-term debt as follows

Jacksonville Health Facilities Authority Variable Rate Hospital Reyenue
Extendable Notes. Series 2001. due m vy ary ing amounts from 2014
through 2021 with a variable terest rate not to exceed the maximum
permitted by United States federal law or Florida law ( 86% and 88% as
of September 30. 2014 and 2013. respectively)

Jacksonville Health Facilities Authority Variable Rate Hospital Revenue
Extendable Notes. Series 2003A. due n vary ing amounts from 2022
through 2033 with a variable terest rate not to exceed the maximum
permitted by United States federal law or Florida law ( 78% and 80% as
of September 30. 2014 and 2013. respectively)

Jacksonville Health Facilities Authority Variable Rate Hospital Reyenue
Extendable Notes. Series 2003B. due m v ary ing amounts from 2022
through 2033, with a variable mterest rate not to exceed the maximum
permitted by United States federal law or Florida law ( 87% and 89% as
of September 30. 2014 and 2013. respectively)

Jacksonville Health Facilities Authority Fixed Rate Hospital Revenue
Extendable Notes. Series 2003C. due m v ary ing amounts from 2022
through 2033 (1 99% and 1 99% as of September 30. 2014 and 2013.
respectivels)

Jacksonville Health Facilities Authority Variable Rate Hospital Reyenue
Extendable Notes. Series 2004 due m 1y ary ing amounts from 2020
through 2034 with a variable interest rate not to exceed 12% per annum
(78% and 80% as of September 30. 2014 and 2013. respectively)
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2014 2013
21,690 $ 24370
70,000 70.000
35,000 35.000
20,000 20.000
50,000 50.000
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7. Long-Term Debt (continued)

Jacksonville Health Facilities Authorits Hospital Revenue Bonds. Series
2007A. due 1n varying amounts from 2023 through 2037_ with a fixed
nterest rate of 3%. mcluding unamortized premimum of $1.145 and $1.228
at September 30. 2014 and 2013, respectiely

Jacksonville Health Facilities Authority Variable Rate Hospital Revenue
Extendable Notes. Series 2007B. due m vars ing amounts from 2014
through 2023 with a variable terest rate not to exceed the maximum
permitted by United States federal law or Florida law ( 94% and 96% as
of September 30. 2014. and 2013. respectively )

Jacksonville Health Facilities Authority Variable Rate Hospital Revenue
Refunding Extendable Notes. Series 2007C. Series 2007D and
Series 2007E. due m vars ing amounts from 2014 through 2027 with a
yvariable mterest rate not to exceed the maximum permitted by United
States federal law or Florida law ( 86% and 88% as of September 30.
2014 and 2013, respectinely)

Jacksonville Health Facilities Authority Variable Rate Hospital Revenue
Notes. Series 2009. due 1n vary ing amounts from 2014 through 2017.
with a variable interest rate not to exceed the maximum permitted by
United States federal law or Florida law (1 92% and 1 94% as of
September 30. 2014 and 2013. respectively)

Jacksonville Health Facilities Authority Variable Rate Hospital Reyenue
Extendable Notes. Series 2010A. due mn vary ing amounts from 2014
through 2035, with a variable mterest rate not to exceed the maximum
permitted by United States federal law or Florida law (1 07% and 1 09%
as of September 30. 2014 and 2013. respectnely )

Jacksonville Health Facilities Authority Variable Rate Hospital Reyenue
Extendable Notes. Series 2010B. due m vars ing amounts from 2014
through 20335, with a variable mterest rate not to exceed the maximum
permitted by United States federal law or Florida law ( 88% and 90% as
of September 30. 2014 and 2013. respectively)
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2014 2013
$ 66,145 § 66.227
21,525 23.675
87,900 93.925
9,493 13.875
22,450 23,125
22,450 23,125
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September 30
2014 2013

Jacksonville Health Facilities Authority Variable Rate Hospital Reyenue
Extendable Notes. Series 2010C. due m vars ing amounts from 2014
through 20335, with a variable mterest rate not to exceed the maximum
permitted by United States federal law or Florida law ( 90% and 92% as
of September 30. 2014 and 2013. respectively) S 22450 $ 23.125

Jacksonville Health Facilities Authority Variable Rate Hospital Revenue
Extendable Notes. Series 2012A. due mn vary ing amounts from 2014
through 2036. with a variable mterest rate not to exceed the maximum
permitted by United States federal law or Florida law (1 02% and 1 04%
as of September 30. 2014 and 2013. respectnely ) 22,800 23.600

Jacksonville Health Facilities Authority Variable Rate Hospital Revenue
Extendable Notes. Series 2012B. due m vars ing amounts from 2014
through 2036. with a variable mterest rate not to exceed the maximum
permitted by United States federal law or Florida law ( 99% and 1 01% as
of September 30. 2014 and 2013. respectively) 18,300 18.900

Jacksonville Health Facilities Authority Variable Rate Hospital Revenue
Extendable Notes. Series 2012C. due m vars ing amounts from 2014
through 2019. with a fixed mterest rate not to exceed the maximum
permitted by United States federal law or Florida law (1 62% and 1 62%
as of September 30. 2014 and 2013. respectnely ) 9,831 11.920

Jacksonville Health Facilities Authority Variable Rate Hospital Revenue
Extendable Notes. Series 2012D. due mn vary ing amounts from 2014
through 2037. with a variable mterest rate not to exceed the maximum
permitted by United States federal law or Florida law ( 89% and 92% as
of September 30. 2014 and 2013. respectively) 34,000 37.000
534,034 557.867
Less current portion 23,493 23.751

$ 510541 §  534.116
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The following tables outline the location and effect of the interest rate swap agreements on the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets and statements of operations and changes in net
assets Fair values presented are computed using estimated future cash flows Gains and losses
on effective hedges are reported below the excess of revenue and gains over expenses

Fair Value at

Balance Sheet Net Asset September 30
Liability Derivatives Locations Classifications 2014 2013

Interest rate contracts
Series 2001 Other liabilities Unrestricted $ (1,256) $ (1,698)
Series 2007B Other liabilities Unrestricted (1,387) (1,761)
Series 2007CDE Other liabilities Unrestricted (11,835) (13,098)
Total derivatives not

designated as

hedging instruments $ (14478) $ (16,557)
Series 2012A Other liabilities Unrestricted $ (235) $ (118)
Series 2012B Other liabilities Unrestricted (57) (100)
Total derivatives designated

as hedging instruments 3 (292) 3 (218)
Total derivatives $ (14,770) § (16,775)
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Location of Gain (Loss)
Recognized Within

Amount of Gain (Loss)
Recognized Within Statements
of Operations and Changes in
Net Assets for the Year Ended

Excess of Revenues Over September 30
Liability Derivatives Expenses 2014 2013

Interest rate contracts
Series 2001 Nonoperating gains $ 442 3 1,038
Series 2007B Nonoperating gains 374
Series 2007CDE Nonoperating gains 1,263
Total derivatives not designated

as hedging instruments 3 2,079 § 8,698
Series 2012A Unrestricted net assets $ 117y % 1,040
Series 2012B Unrestricted net assets 43 587
Total derivatives designated as

hedging instruments $ (74) 3 1,627
Total derivatives S 2,005 % 10,325

A summary of the changes in the accumulated derivative loss for effective hedging transactions

is as follows

Accumulated derivative loss, beginning of period
Net change associated with hedging transactions

Series 2012 A
Series 2012 B

Accumulated derivative loss, end of period
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2014 2013
$ (218) $  (1,845)
(117) 1,040
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$ (292) $ (218)
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Maturities of long-term debt as of September 30, 2014, are as follows

Amount
Year ending September 30

2015 $ 23,493
2016 23,280
2017 19,723
2018 20,014
2019 19,608
Thereafter 426,771
Unamortized bond premium 1,145

$ 534,034

8. Fair Value of Financial Instruments

In accordance with ASC 820, Fair Value Measurement, assets and liabilities recorded at fair
value in the consolidated financial statements are categorized, for disclosure purposes, based
upon whether the inputs used to determine their fair values are observable or unobservable More
specifically, ASC 820 establishes a three-level fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs used
to measure assets and liabilities at fair value

Level inputs, as defined by ASC 820, are as follows

Level 1 — Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
BHS has the ability to access on the reporting date

Level 2 — Inputs other than quoted market prices included in Level 1 that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly If the asset or liability has a specific
(contractual) term, a Level 2 input must be observable for substantially the full term of the
asset or liability Level 2 assets and liabilities are valued using a market approach

Level 3 — Inputs that are unobservable for the asset or liability

|9%)
[99)
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8. Fair Value of Financial Instruments (continued)

The following tables summarize fair value measurements, by level, at September 30, 2014 and
2013, which are measured on a recurring basis in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets

September 30, 2014
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets
Assets limited as to use
Equity mutual funds
Domestic $ 408,032 §$ - - $ 408,032
International 146,630 - - 146,630
Fixed-income mutual funds
Domestic 491,546 - - 491,546
International 30,457 - - 30,457
Long-term investments
Equity securities 182 - - 182
Equity mutual funds
Domestic 29,514 - - 29,514
International 11,425 - - 11,425
Fixed income mutual funds
Domestic 20,833 - - 20,833
International 2,380 - - 2,380
Cash and cash equivalents 7,319 - - 7,319
Liabilities
Interest rate swaps - (14,772) - (14,772)

o
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September 30, 2013
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets
Assets limited as to use
Equity mutual funds
Domestic $ 320,341 $ - 3 - $ 320,341
International 127,083 - - 127,083
Fixed-income mutual funds
Domestic 443 874 — - 443 874
International 27.116 - - 27.116
Long-term investments
Equity securities 149 — — 149
Equity mutual funds
Domestic 22.590 - - 22.590
International 9,611 - - 9611
Fixed income mutual funds
Domestic 17,637 - - 17,637
International 2,056 - - 2.056
Cash and cash equivalents 7,292 - - 7,292
Liabilities
Interest rate swaps - (16,775) - (16,775)

Interest Rate Swaps

The fair value of the interest rate swaps is estimated using market inputs obtained independently
from third-party sources Expected cash flows are discounted at unadjusted interbank (LIBOR)
rates The valuations represent reasonable estimates of fair values and may not represent the
actual amount at which new transaction could be entered into or the actual amounts at which
existing transactions could be liquidated or unwound

o
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Long-Term Debt

The fair value of long-term debt is estimated based on dealer quotes for hospital tax-exempt debt
with similar terms and maturities and using discounted cash flow analyses based on current
interest rates for similar types of borrowing arrangements The estimated fair value of debt using
Level 2 inputs at September 30, 2014 and 2013, is $537,082 and $556,652, respectively

9. Income Taxes

Deferred income taxes, which as of September 30, 2014 and 2013, have no net carrying value,
reflect the net tax effect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting and the amounts used for income tax purposes As of
September 30, 2014 and 2013, BHS had deferred tax assets of $24,358 and $22,388,
respectively, relating principally to net operating loss carryovers ASC 740-10-50-3, [ncome
Taxes: Disclosure, requires a valuation allowance to reduce the deferred tax assets reported if,
based on the weight of the evidence, it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the
deferred tax assets will not be realized After consideration of all the evidence, both positive and
negative, management determined that a $24,358 and $22,388 allowance at September 30, 2014
and 2013, respectively, was necessary to reduce the deferred tax assets to the amount that would
more likely than not be realized The change in the valuation allowance for the current year
1s $1,970 At September 30, 2014, BHS has available net operating loss carryforwards of
$64,729 These net operating losses will expire between 2018 and 2034

10. Retirement Plans

The Medical Centers, PHS, and ASI participate in a noncontributory defined benefit retirement
plan (Retirement Plan) sponsored by BHS The Retirement Plan covers a substantial number of
the employees Benefits are based on each participant’s years of service and compensation
BHS’s policy is to contribute annually at least the minimum amount necessary to comply with
the requirements of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended SBHF
funds contributions to the Plan

BHS also sponsors a supplemental executive retirement plan (SERP) and vice president
supplemental executive retirement plan (VP SERP) These plans are unfunded and cover the
executive management team and vice presidents of BHS Benefits are based on each participant’s
years of service and compensation

o
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10. Retirement Plans (continued)
The Retirement Plan, SERP, and VP SERP are collectively referred to as the Plans

The following tables set forth the benefit obligations and the assets of the Plans, changes in the
plan assets and benefit obligations recognized in unrestricted net assets, and the components of
net periodic benefit costs

September 30
2014 2013
Accumulated benefit obligation at end of year $ 469,108 $ 380,432
Benefit obligation at beginning of year $ 432,035 $ 476,413
Service cost 13,374 15,959
Interest cost 21,517 19,648
Actuarial (gain) loss 64,076 (67,132)
Benefits paid (11,591) (12,853)
Benefit obligation at end of year $ 519,411 $ 432,035
Change in plan assets
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year $ 373,113 $§ 299,782
Actual return on plan assets 37,267 35,913
Employer contributions 27,154 50,271
Benefit payments (11,591) (12,853)
Fair value of plan assets at end of year $ 425943 $ 373,113
Amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheets
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ (5,804) $ (337)
Other noncurrent liabilities (87,664) (58,585)
Deficiency of fair value of plan assets over projected
benefit obligation $ (93,468) $  (58,922)
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Included in unrestricted net assets at September 30, 2014 and 2013, are unrecognized prior
service costs of $42 and $51, respectively, and unrecognized actuarial losses of $147,888 and
$101,975, respectively, that have not yet been recognized in net periodic pension cost The prior
service cost and actuarial losses included in unrestricted net assets and expected to be recognized
in net periodic pension costs during the year ending September 30, 2015, are $9 and $9,356,
respectively

Year Ended September 30

2014 2013
Components of net periodic benefit cost
Service cost S 13,374 $ 15,959
Interest cost 21,517 19,648
Expected return on assets (27,160) (24,076)
Amortization of
Prior service cost 9 42
Actuarial loss 8,056 16,620
Amount recognized in net periodic benefit cost 3 15,796 $ 28,193
Other changes in plan assets and benefit obligations
recognized in unrestricted net assets
Net actuarial (gain) loss $ 53,970 §  (78,967)
Amortization of
Prior service cost 9) (42)
Actuarial loss (8,056) (16,620)
Total recognized in unrestricted net assets $ 45,905 §  (95,629)
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The assumptions used to determine accrued pension costs and net periodic pension cost are set
forth below

Used to Determine Projected Benefit Obligation

September 30
2014 2013
Weighted-average discount rate 4.54% 505%
Weighted-average rate of compensation increase 3.50 350
Weighted-average expected long-term rate of return
7.50 750

on plan assets

Used to Determine Benefit Cost
Year Ended September 30

2014 2013
Weighted-average discount rate 5.05% 4 17%
Weighted-average rate of compensation increase 3.50 350
Weighted-average expected long-term rate of return
7.50 775

on plan assets
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Baptist Health System, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
(Dollars m Thousands)

10. Retirement Plans (continued)
Expected Cash Flows
Information about the expected cash flows for the Plans follows

Expected employer contributions in fiscal year 2015 As of September 30,
2014, no employer contributions are required in fiscal year 2015 $ 65,934

Expected benefit payments

Amount
Year ending September 30
2015 $ 18,896
2016 15,755
2017 20,499
2018 23,119
2019 21,954
2020-2024 137,704

The benefit payment amounts above reflect the total benefits expected to be paid from the Plans
Asset Allocation

The weighted-average asset allocations for the Retirement Plan at the end of fiscal years 2014
and 2013, and the target allocation for fiscal 2015, by asset category, are as follows

Target Percentage of Plan
Allocation Assets at September 30
2015 2014 2013
Asset category
Equity securities 60% 60% 60%
Debt securities 40 40 40
Total 100% 100% 100%
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Baptist Health System, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
(Dollars m Thousands)

10. Retirement Plans (continued)
Composition of Plan Assets

The composition of the Retirement Plan’s assets at September 30, 2014 and 2013, is as follows

September 30
2014 2013

Fair value of plan assets

Equity mutual funds — domestic $ 184,841 $ 154,837
Equity mutual funds — international 78,167 70,158
Fixed-income mutual funds — domestic 148,766 135,036
Fixed-income mutual funds — international 13,911 12,707
Cash and short-term investments - 5
Interest receivable 258 370
Total $ 425943 $ 373,113

These assets (all Level 1) are exchange-traded funds whose fair value is determined from quoted
prices on nationally recognized securities exchanges There are no Level 2 or Level 3
investments

Investment Strategy

The Retirement Plan’s asset allocation and investment strategy are designed to earn returns on
plan assets consistent with a reasonable and prudent level of risk Investments are diversified
across classes, sectors, and manager style to minimize the risk of large losses BHS uses
investment managers specializing in each asset category and, where appropriate, provides the
investment managers with specific guidelines, which include allowable and/or prohibited
investment types BHS regularly monitors manager performance and compliance with
investment guidelines
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Baptist Health System, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
(Dollars m Thousands)

10. Retirement Plans (continued)
Expected Rate of Return

The expected long-term rate of return on plan assets is based on historical and projected rates of
return for current and planned asset categories in the Retirement Plan’s investment portfolio
Assumed projected rates of return for each asset category were selected after analyzing historical
experience and future expectations of the returns and volatility for assets of that category using
benchmark rates Based on the target asset allocation among the asset categories, the overall
expected rate of return for the portfolio was developed and adjusted for historical and expected
experience of active portfolio management results compared to benchmark returns and for the
effect of expenses paid from plan assets

11. Malpractice Insurance

The Medical Centers and certain other BHS entities participate in a pooled risk program,
whereby BHS entities are the only participants, to insure professional and general liability risks
to the extent of certain self-insurance limits A revocable trust fund has been established for the
malpractice self-insured program The participants’ self-insurance retention is $4,000 per claim
with limits of $50,000 per claim and $50,000 annual aggregate through a claims-made policy
with a third-party insurance carrier Accrued malpractice losses of $38,939 and $24,140 at
September 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively, have been discounted at a rate of 2 5% for both
years Losses are accrued when probable and determinable

In the event that sufficient funds are not available from the trust fund, each participating entity in
the program will be assessed its share of the deficiency If contributions exceed the losses
eventually paid, the excess will be applied to reduce the contributions for future periods
Management believes the trust fund is adequately funded to provide for all professional and
general liability claims that have occurred through September 30, 2014
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Baptist Health System, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
(Dollars m Thousands)

12. Leases

Rental expense under various operating leases was $13,352 and $13,151 for the years ended
September 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively Future minimum lease payments for noncancelable
leases having an initial or remaining lease term in excess of one year are as follows

Amount
Year ending September 30

2015 $ 8,628
2016 7,801
2017 7,203
2018 6,361
2019 5,506
Thereafter 23,616

$ 59,115

13. Promises to Give

Pledges receivable, included in prepaid expenses and other current assets and other assets in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets, consist of the following

September 30
2014 2013

Unconditional promises to give before pledge discounts

and allowance for uncollectible pledges $ 10,759 $ 9,095
Pledge discounts (317) (316)
Allowance for uncollectible pledges (664) (1,363)
Net pledges receivable $ 9,778 $ 7,416
Amounts due in
Less than one year $ 2,577 $ 1,702
One to five years 6,908 5,368
Over five years 293 346
Total $ 9,778 $ 7,416
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Baptist Health System, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
(Dollars m Thousands)

14. Endowments

BHSF operates under the Florida Uniform Management of Institutional Funds Act (FUMIFA)
that was effective in May 2004 and was replaced, eftective July 1, 2012, by the Florida Uniform
Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act (FUPMIFA)

FUPMIFA enhanced provisions of FUMIFA, applies to all charitable institutions, not just those
associated exclusively with education purposes, allows pooling of institutional funds for the
purpose of managing and investing, delineates factors to be considered prior to expenditure of
funds, provides new procedures for releasing restrictions on small institutional funds, provides
for modification of restrictions on the use of endowment funds, and provides for reversion of real
property to the board of trustees of the State of Florida Internal Improvement Trust Fund if an
entity holding a deed subject to a reverter clause violates the deed restrictions

In accordance with FUPMIFA, BHSF considers the following in expenditure decisions for its
endowment funds

» The purposes of BHSF

* The intent of the donors of the endowment fund

* The terms of the applicable instrument

* The long-term and short-term needs of BHSF in carrying out its purposes
» General economic conditions

» The possible effect of inflation or deflation

» The other resources of BHSF

* Perpetuation of the endowment
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Baptist Health System, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
(Dollars m Thousands)

14. Endowments (continued)

BHSF classifies as permanently restricted net assets (a) the original value of gifts donated to the
permanent endowment, (b) the original value of subsequent gifts to the permanent endowment,
and (c) accumulations to the permanent endowment made in accordance with the direction of the
applicable donor gift instrument at the time the accumulation is added to the fund The remaining
portion of the donor-restricted endowment fund that is not classified in permanently restricted
net assets is classified as temporarily restricted net assets until those amounts are appropriated
for expenditure by BHSF in a manner consistent with the standard of prudence prescribed by
FUPMIFA

BHS participates in an endowment matching program with BHSF in which it matches donor
contributions to endowments on a tiered basis Of the net assets transferred, the matching
contributions transferred from BHS unrestricted net assets to BHSF restricted net assets for the
years ending September 30, 2014 and 2013 are $6,320 and $0, respectively

The investment income and earnings from BHSF’s endowment funds are designated for specific
purposes It is the policy of BHSF to expend these funds prudently as expenditures arise that
satisfy the purpose restrictions

BHSF’s endowment investment policies are directed by the BHS Investment Committee
(Investment Committee) of the Board BHSF’s return objectives include annualized returns over
a three to five year period exceeding comparable indices and ranking in the upper tier of a
universe of similar funds or managers BHSF maintains moderate risk posture with respect to
both time and risk preference These risk postures are developed to provide consistent return
patterns over a moderate time horizon and are consistent with conserving the purchasing power
of BHSF’s endowment funds Strategies employed for achieving BHSF’s investment objectives
include passively and actively managed funds invested in domestic and international equities,
fixed income, and other investments
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Baptist Health System, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
(Dollars m Thousands)

14. Endowments (continued)

Changes in endowment net assets for the year ended September 30, 2014, consisted of
the following

Donor-Restricted Endowment Funds
Temporarily Permanently

Restricted  Restricted Total
Endowment net asset composition,

September 30, 2013 $ 14,094 $ 23,993 $ 38,087
Contributions to perpetual endowment 273 8,389 8,662
Net asset transfers from BHS to BHSF 5 6,320 6,325
Reserve adjustments (1) (190) (191)
Investment income 792 2,923 3,715
Transfer of investment income 2,923 (2,923) -
Expenditures (924) - (924)
Other 9 — 9

Endowment net asset composition,
September 30, 2014 $ 17,171 $ 38,512 $ 55,683

Changes in endowment net assets for the year ended September 30, 2013, consisted of
the following

Donor-Restricted Endowment Funds
Temporarily Permanently

Restricted  Restricted Total
Endowment net asset composition,

September 30, 2012 $ 11,371 § 13,322 % 24,693
Contributions to perpetual endowment - 10,482 10,482
Reserve adjustments - 15 15
Investment income 847 2.861 3,708
Transfer of investment income 2,861 (2,861) -
Expenditures (811) - (811)
Transfers (174) 174 —

Endowment net asset composition,
September 30, 2013 $ 14,094 §$ 23993 $ 38,087
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Baptist Health System, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
(Dollars m Thousands)

15. Subsequent Events

BHS has evaluated the impact of subsequent events through January 26, 2015, representing the
date on which the financial statements were issued

No subsequent events were identified for recognition in the accompanying consolidated financial
statements, other than the amended and restated Hospital Revenue Notes, Series 2009, Series
2010A, and Series 2010C discussed in Note 7, Long Term Debt
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